
R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 1

1

MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regular Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, December 19, 
2023, beginning at 6:30 PM in the Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 South 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.

6:30 PM CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

ITEM #1
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACTION: Discussion - Consider approval of agenda as written or amended.

COMMENTS:

ITEM #2
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING HELD ON DECEMBER 5, 2023.

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of minutes as written or amended.

COMMENTS:

ITEM #3
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-150 RECOGNIZING THE 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF DEBRA MELCHERT, TINLEY PARK 
VOLUNTEER, UPON HER RETIREMENT - President Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: This Resolution recognizes Deb Melchert for her years of dedicated 
volunteerism to the Village of Tinley Park upon retirement. This Resolution is 
eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 2

2

ITEM #4
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. CONSIDER RELEASE OF LETTER OF CREDIT #2015-1619 ISSUED 
BY MARQUETTE BANK AND CONDITIONAL ACCEPTANCE OF 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR BROOKSIDE MEADOWS PHASE 2 - 
CRANA HOMES IN THE AMOUNT OF $219,240.

B. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-160 APPROVING A 
CONTRACT WITH FIRE RECOVERY USA FOR EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE REIMBURSEMENT. 

C. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-154 APPROVING AN 
EMPLOYEE LEASING AGREEMENT WITH GOVTEMPS FOR A 
FINANCE CONSULTANT.

D. CONSIDER PAYMENTS OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $3,754,218.35 AS LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD 
APPROVAL REPORTS DATED DECEMBER 8 AND 15, 2023.

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of consent agenda items.

COMMENTS:  
 
 

ITEM #5
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-080 APPROVING A 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 17348 SOUTH 66TH COURT - Trustee Brady

ACTION: Discussion: This Ordinance approves the purchase of the property located at 
17348 South 66th Court in the amount of $265,000. This item was discussed at 
the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. This 
Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 3

3

ITEM #6
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-081 GRANTING 

VARIATIONS FOR A FREESTANDING SIGN TO ADVOCATE 
OUTPATIENT CENTER AT 18210 LA GRANGE ROAD - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner is requesting Variations to permit replacement of a 
freestanding sign in the B-3 (General Business & Commercial) zoning district. 
The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on December 7, 2023, and voted 5-
0 to recommend approval of the requested Variations, in accordance with the 
plans and Findings of Fact as listed in the Staff Report. This Ordinance is 
eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #7
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-082 ESTABLISHING A ONE 

DAY OF PAID LEAVE POLICY FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES - Trustee 
Brady

ACTION: Discussion: This Ordinance establishes a One Day of Paid Leave Policy for all 
Village part-time employees effective January 1, 2024. This item was discussed 
at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. This 
Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #8
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-083 AMENDING PAY 

SCALES AND CERTAIN FRINGE BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2024 - Trustee Brady

ACTION: Discussion: This Ordinance amends the established pay scales for Appendix B 
and Appendix C beginning May 1, 2023, and ending April 30, 2024. This item 
was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. 
This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 4

4

ITEM #9
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-067 LEVYING TAXES FOR 

CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 2023 
TAX LEVY YEAR - Trustee Shaw

ACTION: Discussion: The property tax levy request for 2023 will be in the total amount of 
$30,484,487. This amount is unchanged for both the Village and Library from 
the prior year’s levy requests. Since the overall levy increase is less than 5% of 
the prior year’s extended levy, publication of a Truth in Taxation notice and 
Public Hearing are not required.  The proposed 2023 levy was discussed with 
the Village Board at the Committee of the Whole meeting on November 21, 
2023, and the Library Board on November 30, 2023. This Ordinance is eligible 
for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #10
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-068 ABATING A PORTION 

OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
BOND ORDER DATED JUNE 5, 2013, IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
ISSUANCE OF $11,340,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2013, OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS AS AMENDED BY THE “CERTIFICATE OF 
REDUCTION OF TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE PAYMENT 
OF BONDS” DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 - Trustee Shaw

ACTION: Discussion: The 2023 tax levy requirement for this bond issue is established at 
$740,250, and the Village is in a position to abate $423,023.26 of this levy from 
the following sources and amounts:

Abatement Funding Source Amount
Hotel/Motel Tax Debt Service Reserve $296,100.00
Sewer Fund $105,744.71
Stormwater Management Fund $  13,228.27
New Bremen TIF District Fund $    7,950.28

The net levy for this bond issue will be $317,226.74.  This abatement item was 
provided at the Committee of the Whole meeting held on November 21, 2023. 
This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 5

5

ITEM #11
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-069 ABATING ALL OF THE 

2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
“NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT OF TAXES” 
DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF 
$8,940,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A OF THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS - 
Trustee Shaw

ACTION: Discussion: This ordinance abates all $745,400 of the 2023 Tax Levy 
requirements for the Series 2021A bonds as contained in both the “Notification 
of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B” and the “Direction for Abatement 
of Taxes” dated December 2, 2021, in connection with the issuance of the 
$8,940,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A (“Series 2021A bonds”).  
The bond issue supports infrastructure improvements for the Village Water and 
Sewer system and the abated debt service will be paid by the utility revenues of 
those funds. This abatement item was provided at the Committee of the Whole 
meeting held on November 21, 2023. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 6

6

ITEM #12
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-070 ABATING A PORTION 

OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
“NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT OF TAXES” 
DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021  IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE 
OF $5,965,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021B OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS - Trustee Shaw

ACTION: Discussion: This ordinance abates a portion of the 2023 Tax Levy requirements 
for the Series 2021B bonds as contained in both the “Notification of Sale of 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B” and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes” 
dated December 2, 2021, in connection with the issuance of the $5,965,000 
Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B (“Series 2021B 
bonds”).  This ordinance abates $164,976.74 of the 2023 Tax Levy requirements 
of $197,750.00 for the Series 2021B bonds, leaving $32,733.26 as the remaining 
2023 Tax Levy amount.  Combined, the abatement directions provided within 
ordinances 2023-O-068 and 2023-O-070 leave a net total debt service levy for 
the Village of Tinley Park of $350,000 (excluding the Tinley Park Public 
Library), which has remained unchanged since Tax Year 2009.  The sources and 
amounts of the funds to support this abatement are as follows:

Abatement Funding Source Amount
Hotel Tax Debt Service Reserve $79,100.00
Surtax Capital Projects Fund $51,970.52
Sewer Fund $28,248.58
Stormwater Management Fund $  3533.80
New Bremen TIF District $ 2,123.84

This abatement item was provided at the Committee of the Whole meeting held 
on November 21, 2023. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 7

7

ITEM #13
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-071 ABATING A PORTION 

OF THE TAX YEAR 2023 VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PROPERTY 
TAXES EXTENDED FOR 18501 CONVENTION CENTER DRIVE, TINLEY 
PARK, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS (DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE 
AGREEMENT FOR THE TINLEY PARK HOTEL AND CONVENTION 
CENTER) - Trustee Shaw

ACTION: Discussion: In July 2017, the Village of Tinley Park entered into agreements 
with Elementary School District 159, Rich Township High School District 227, 
and The Harp Group, Inc. related to the hotel property located at 18501 
Convention Center Drive and attached to the Village’s Convention Center 
facility.  The Harp Group purchased the hotel property and requested assistance 
with regard to the significant property tax bill for this location.  Under these 
agreements, the three (3) governments (Village, 159 and 227) will abate 50% of 
the respective government’s property taxes extended for the property for a 
period of ten (10) years, or a cumulative and collective $4 million in abatement, 
whichever comes first.  This Ordinance represents the sixth year of abatement, 
and a copy of the Ordinance will be filed with the Cook County Clerk.  The two 
(2) school districts will provide similar direction for their respective abatement's 
to the Cook County Clerk.  This abatement item was provided at the Committee 
of the Whole meeting held November 21, 2023. This Ordinance is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #14
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-084 AMENDING TITLE XII 

CHAPTER 77 SECTION 10 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE 
ENTITLED “PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES” - Trustee Brennan

ACTION: Discussion: To comply with Illinois State Statutes an amendment to the Tinley 
Park Municipal Code entitled “PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES” is being 
requested. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held 
prior to this meeting. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 8

8

ITEM #15
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-086 AMENDING TITLE XI, 

CHAPTER 116, SECTION 116.09 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL 
CODE REGARDING MAXIMUM STAY LENGTHS FOR HOTELS AND 
MOTELS - Trustee Brady

ACTION: Discussion: This Ordinance clarifies penalties for any person, firm or 
corporation who violates the maximum stay length for hotels and motels. This 
item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this 
meeting. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #16
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-087 RATIFYING A POLICY 

REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS - President Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: On December 7, 2023, Mayor Glotz and Clerk O'Connor signed an 
Executive Order delegating authority to the Police Chief to implement a policy 
regarding unscheduled intercity buses to protect the health, welfare, and safety 
of the passengers and the community. This ordinance adopts and ratifies the 
Order and policy. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole 
meeting held prior to this meeting. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #17
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-088 ADOPTING AND 

RATIFYING RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING UNSCHEDULED 
INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS - 
President Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: On December 15th, 2023, Mayor Glotz and Clerk O'Connor signed 
an Executive Order delegating authority to the Police Chief to implement a 
policy establishing rules and regulations for unscheduled intercity buses to 
protect the health, welfare, and safety of the passengers and the community. 
This ordinance adopts and ratifies the Order and policy. This item was discussed 
at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. This 
Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 9

9

ITEM #18
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-155 APPROVING AN 

AGREEMENT WITH TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY 
SQUARE - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Staff seeks approval of the amended Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Tria Architects, Inc.  Original PSA required insurance 
adjustments as shown in current draft and are agreed upon by both parties' legal 
representation.

Consider appending an agreement with Tria Architecture, Inc.  This item was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole Meeting held previous to this meeting. 
This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #19
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-156 APPROVING A 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 
TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT 80TH AVENUE AND TIMBER DRIVE - Trustee 
Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Currently there are no traffic signals located at the intersection of 
80th Avenue and Timber Drive.  The Village has pursued the installation of 
traffic signals at this intersection in the past; however, the plans were not 
prepared with the signals being interconnected with the railroad crossing signals 
which is a requirement of the Illinois Commerce Commission (ICC) for 
approval nor was an Intersection Design Study (IDS) prepared which is also a 
ICC approval requirement due to the intersection’s close proximity to the 
crossing.

Consider awarding a contract to Robinson Engineering, Ltd. in the amount of 
$120,000.  This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held 
prior to this meeting. This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 
10

10

ITEM #20
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-157 APPROVING A 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS - 
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT - Trustee 
Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Village utilized the Illinois Department of Transportation’s 
(IDOT) QBS (Qualifications-Based Selection) process in selecting the 
Engineering Consultant to assist with the design, cost estimate, Bidding Services 
and Construction Oversight for the Helipad Aircraft Pavement Improvement 
project.  Primera’s Professional Construction Engineering Services includes 
shop drawing reviews, preparation of supplementary sketches and cost 
estimates, material certifications, preparing record drawings, pre-construction 
conference organization, daily construction observation, field testing, final 
inspection and preparation and providing Public Works periodic project reports.

Consider awarding a contract to Primera Engineers, Inc. in the amount of 
$230,850.  This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held 
prior to this meeting. This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #21
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-158 APPROVING AN 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND THE 
ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT) FOR HELIPAD 
IMPROVEMENTS PER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 
PROJECT TF8-5050 - LOCAL SHARE PAYMENT APPROVAL - Trustee 
Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Village entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for 
Project TF8-5050 with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) - 
Rebuild Illinois Airport Capital Improvement Program that was approved by 
IDOT.  The Village is required to pay the Local Share amount of $239,038.74 
which is 20% of the overall cost of the project.

Consider approving an agreement with the Illinois Department of Transportation 
in the amount of $239,038.74.  This item was discussed at the Committee of the 
Whole Meeting held prior to this meeting. This Resolution is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 
11

11

ITEM #22
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-159 PROVIDING FOR AND 

AUTHORIZING LANDING RIGHTS TO SANTA CLAUS IN THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK - President Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: This Resolution would allow the necessary approvals for Santa 
Claus to land in Tinley Park as often as deemed appropriate. This Resolution is 
eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #23
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM STAFF -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #24
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #25
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - D e c e m b e r  1 9 ,  2 0 2 3  | 
12

12

ITEM #26
SUBJECT: ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS: 

A. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON
BEHALF OF THE PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED
AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR ADMINISTRATIVE
TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN
ACTION IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE
BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE RECORDED AND ENTERED
INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING

B. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION,
DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC
EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR
THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A
COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC
BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY
TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

C. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE
OF THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE
PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A PARTICULAR PARCEL
SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

D. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY
OWNED BY THE PUBLIC BODY.

ADJOURNMENT



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes December 5,  2023 1

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES,
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,

ILLINOIS, HELD DECEMBER 5, 2023

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the Council 
Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on December 
5, 2023. President Glotz called this meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

At this time President Glotz led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Clerk O’Connor called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following:

Village President: Michael W. Glotz         
Village Clerk: Nancy M. O’Connor

Trustees: William P. Brady
William A. Brennan
Dennis P. Mahoney
Michael G. Mueller
Kenneth E. Shaw
Colleen M. Sullivan

Absent:
Also Present:
Village Manager: Patrick Carr 
Asst. Village Manager: Hannah Lipman
Village Attorney: Paul O’Grady

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to approve the agenda as written or 
amended for this meeting. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to approve and place on file the minutes 
of the regular Village Board Meeting held on November 21, 2023.  Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, 
Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

At this Clerk O’Connor performed a swearing in ceremony for the following Firefighters:

 Kyle Sellers
 Daniel Vamvakas
 Michael Scaccia
 Alexander Lesiak

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Shaw to appoint THE FOLLOWING 
COMMISSIONERS FOR THE 2024 FISCAL YEAR.
Advisory Commission on Labor and Development:

 Frank DiGiovanni, Co-Chair
 Demetrius Dicharia, Commissioner

Page | 13AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                      December 5,  2023 2

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. 
Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to appoint JAIME DAVILA TO THE 
POSITION OF HELPDESK COORDINATOR. Jaime has (5) five years of related experience in 
Information Technology and is skilled in providing complete infrastructure service to protect data including 
storage, backup, and disaster recovery, as well as experience working in various office environments 
managing daily operations.  He has previously worked for the Village's Information Technology Department 
supporting the IT Helpdesk as a contracted employee where he demonstrated excellent customer service 
skills, aptitude for technology, and was very detail oriented.  Jaime is highly recommended for appointment 
to the Helpdesk Coordinator position. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of 
the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, 
Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee Shaw to consider approving the following 
Consent Agenda items:

A. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-149 AUTHORIZING THE 2024 REGULAR 
MEETINGS SCHEDULE FOR THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND THE 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE.

B. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-153 APPROVING THE ANNUAL 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH IMAGING SYSTEMS INC., FOR HYLAND ONBASE 
DOCUMENT AND AGENDA MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $29,086.33.

C. CONSIDER PAYMENTS OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,283,705.10 AS 
LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED NOVEMBER 24 AND 
DECEMBER 1, 2023.

President Glotz asked if anyone from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items from the Consent 
Agenda. No items were removed or discussed. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from 
members of the public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, 
Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady to adopt and place on file ORDINANCE 
2023-O-079 APPROVING A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK AND KELLY MARMO AND MICHAEL BECHSTEIN, FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17366-17368 68TH COURT IN TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS. This 
ordinance approves the purchase of property located at 17366-17368 68th Court in the amount of $345,000. 
This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole held prior to this meeting.

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. 
Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-151 AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE LAKOTA GROUP FOR 
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT OF $250,026.

Page | 14AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                      December 5,  2023 3

This Resolution authorizes the execution of a contract with The Lakota Group to complete a Comprehensive 
Plan for the Village over an 18 to 24-month period. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole 
prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or 
public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: 
None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady to adopt and place on file ORDINANCE 
2023-O-055 APPROVING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A REAL ESTATE TRANSFER STAMP 
REQUIREMENT. The proposed Resolution authorizes the establishment of a real estate transfer stamp 
within the Village of Tinley Park to regulate all property transfers at no cost to sellers or purchasers. This 
Ordinance will be in full force and effect on January 1, 2025, or soon after based upon the implementation of 
Community Development Enterprise Resource Planning Software. This item was discussed at the Committee 
of the Whole on September 19, 2023, and the Village Board on October 3, 2023. President Glotz asked if 
there were any comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: 
Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared 
the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Shaw to adopt and place on file ORDINANCE 
2023-O-078 GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) 
SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION TO PEOPLE ANIMAL WELFARE SOCIETY (P.A.W.S.) OF 
TINLEY PARK AT 8301 191ST STREET. The Petitioner will install an electronic message center sign 
exceeding the maximum allowable size in the R-5 PD (Low Density Residential, Brookside Glen PUD) 
Zoning District. The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on November 16, 2023, and voted 7-0 to 
recommend approval of the Special Use with the recommended conditions, plans, and Findings of Fact as 
noted in the Staff Report. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or 
public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: 
None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-152 AUTHORIZING A GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
CONSORTIUM CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INCORPORATED. The renewal agreement and statement of work with 
the GIS Consortium service provider, Municipal GIS Partners (MGP) is to provide Geographic Information 
System services to the Village. The cost for the calendar year 2024 period will be $230,044.32. This renewal 
term shall commence on January 1, 2024, and remain in effect until December 31, 2024. In addition, monthly 
usage reports are provided to the Village Board to confirm utilization of the GIS data by staff and the public. 
This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there 
were any comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, 
Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Glotz declared the 
motion carried.

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Staff.  There were none.

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. 

Trustee Brady announced that Thursday, December 7, is the 82nd anniversary of Pearl Harbor and asked that 
we remember all those who perished in this event and World War II.

Page | 15AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                      December 5,  2023 4

Trustee Sullivan congratulated Marketing, Public Works, and Public Safety staff for a successful Holiday 
Market Event this past weekend. 

Trustee Shaw concurred with Trustee Sullivan and stated the Holiday Market was a great event.  He also sent 
condolences to the family and friends of long time Tinley Park resident Bernadette Bosco who passed away 
this week. 

Mayor Glotz thanked Deputy Clerk Laura Godette for her hard work with FOIA. He then stated the Village 
and Library will not be increasing their tax this year.  Other governmental agencies in the community will be 
raising their tax. 

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the public. 

Segreant Chris Butler announced that this is the 28th year of the Tinley Wish program.  Gift wrapping for the 
program will be held on Saturday, December 9th at 9 a.m. at the Police Department and the delivery of gifts 
will be December 16th starting at the Police Department. 

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Shaw, at 7:15 p.m. to adjourn to Executive 
Session to discuss the following: 

A. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR 
DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR 
THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A COMPLAINT LODGED 
AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 
PUBLIC BODY TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney, to adjourn the Village Board meeting at 
7:25 p.m.  Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: 
None. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that no 
discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item.

APPROVED:

_____________________________________
                     Village President

ATTEST:

_____________________________________
                Village Clerk

Page | 16AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TINLEY PARK

RESOLUTION 2023-R-150
A Resolution Recognizing the Accomplishments of 

Debra Melchert, Tinley Park volunteer, upon her retirement
WHEREAS, Debra Melchert, who is known to friends and family as Deb, was born and raised in the 

Roseland neighborhood of Chicago. She married Robert Melchert in 1979 and together they raised two sons, Bob and 
Dan. They moved to Tinley Park in 1986; and

WHEREAS, Deb quickly grew to love the community and first got involved in volunteerism after a friend 
asked if she would help out at Darefest in 1993. When she did such as good job at the event, she was asked to join 
the D.A.R.E. Committee shortly thereafter; and

WHEREAS, it wasn’t long before Reta Brudd, the former chairperson of the Community Resources 
Commission, then known as the Human Resources Commission, asked if Deb would be interested in joining, thus 
beginning a long and storied history of service to the community that has spanned decades; and

WHEREAS, through her work with the Community Resources Commission and later the Marketing 
Commission, Deb has been a very active volunteer who has helped out at numerous Village events throughout the 
years, including Holiday Happenings, the Irish Parade, the Downtown Tinley Boo Bash and the Tinley Park Block 
Party. She has been a member of the American Legion Auxiliary for 16 years and the Patriot Guard Riders for more 
than 20 years, and is a founding member of Post 615 Legion Riders; and

WHEREAS, the Village is eternally grateful for Deb’s dedication to serving her community and wishes her 
nothing but the best in her retirement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the President, Clerk, and Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, that Debra Melchert be celebrated for her years of dedicated 
volunteerism to the Village of Tinley Park.

ADOPTED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

Page | 17AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Director
John Urbanski, CPWP-M

Assistant Director
Colby Zemaitis, PE, CFM

Engineering Department
Darlene Milanowicz

Facilities Department
Superintendent

Jimmy Quinn
Foreman

Dave Galati

Street Department
Superintendent

Kelly Mulqueeny
Foreman

Steve Grossi
Steve Nemecek

Head Mechanic
Danny Quinn

Water Department
Superintendent

Joe Fitzpatrick
Foreman

Ken Howard

Village Hall
Tinley Park Public Works

16250 Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL  60477

708-444-5500

Charles B. Powers
Public Works Garage

7980 183rd St.
Tinley Park, IL  60477

www.tinleypark.org
tppw@tinleypark.org

Daniel Ritter, AICP
Community Development Director
16250 S. Oak Park Avenue
Tinley Park, IL 60477

RE: Brookside Meadows – Phase 2
      Release of Letter of Credit (#2015-1619)

Mr. Ritter:  

A final review was done on the public improvements that were installed for the above 
referenced development by Robinson Engineering, Ltd and a Final Acceptance 
Recommendation was issued to the Village on October 31, 2023. This acceptance 
letter recommended the Village approve the public improvements that were installed 
and that any remaining letter of credits be released.

With this release, the Developer will remain responsible for the maintenance of these 
improvements for one (1) year from the date of this letter. On November 30, 2024, 
the Village will take ownership and accept the responsibility for any and all public 
improvements in this subdivision.

If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM
Assistant Public Works Director

Page | 18AGENDA - 12/19/2023, A... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.tinleypark.org/
mailto:tppw@tinleypark.org


 

 

 
 

 

Date:       December 13, 2023 

To:  Village Board 

Cc:  Patrick Carr, Hannah Lipman 

From: Anthony Ardolino 

Subject: Select Vendor for Emergency Response Reimbursement Processing 

Presented for December 19, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting discussion and action: 
 
Description:  
Approve an agreement with Fire Recovery USA Fire Billing Solutions for the billing and processing of 
emergency response reimbursement. 
 
Background:  
On December 6th 2022 the Village board adopted an ordinance amending the Village’s municipal code 
in order to allow the fire department reimbursement of costs incurred while responding to incidents 
that are typically covered by insurance policies. 
 
As discussed in the November 11th 2022 committee of the whole meeting a billing company 
contracted by the Village will engage in the following activities: 

1. Creating and accounting for the insured party and filing an invoice/claim with the insurance 

company based on the documented services received from the Fire Department. 

2. Following up on the invoice/claim submitted. 

3. Working back and forth (via email, mail, and phone) with insurance company and the assigned 

adjusters to substantiate charges. 

4. Receiving notification from insurance company of the final approved payment amount. 

5. Receiving payment from insurance and noting this in the insured party’s account. 

6. Invoicing non Tinley Park residents of any outstanding balance. 

7. Providing payment to the Village of Tinley Park for monies received. 

8. Tracking all outstanding accounts receivable.   

9. Providing means for the Village to engage collection agency to collect overdue balances. 

For the activities listed a billing company will charge a percentage based on the payments collected. 
 
In order to identify a qualified billing company and to ensure competitive collection fees the Village 
issued a request for proposal in November of 2023. The RFP sought to identify a vendor capable of 
meeting the needs of the Village for a term of three years with the option for extending the agreement 
for an additional two years.  Multiple billing companies were contacted and alerted to the RFP and the 
Village received one qualified proposal from Fire Recovery USA.    
 

Interoffice   

Memo 

Page | 19AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 
Fire Recovery USA is an industry leading cost recovery service with clients in 43 states and over 1700 
cities.  Fire Recovery USA has over 150 clients in Illinois including Orland Fire Protection District, 
Waukegan and Elgin.  There is no direct cost for the Village to enter into the agreement with Fire 
Recovery USA, the cost for their services is 22% of gross collected revenue.   
 
Budget/Finance:  
There is no direct cost for the Village to enter into the agreement with Fire Recovery USA, the cost for 
their services is 22% of gross collected revenue.   
 
Staff Direction Request:  
Enter into a three (3) year agreement with two, one year optional extensions with Fire Recovery USA 
for emergency response reimbursement cost recovery services. 
 
Attachments: 

1. RFP Emergency Response Reimbursement 

2. Fire Recovery USA Proposal 

 

 

 

Page | 20AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-160

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND FIRE RECOVERY USA FOR EMERGENCY REIMBURSEMENT COST 

RECOVERY SERVICES

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 21AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-160

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND FIRE RECOVERY USA FOR EMERGENCY REIMBURSEMENT COST 

RECOVERY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with Fire Recovery USA, a true and correct copy of 

such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 22AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AGREEMENT WITH FIRE RECOVERY USA FOR EMERGENCY REIMBURSEMENT 
COST RECOVERY SERVICES

Page | 23AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

    I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-160, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND FIRE RECOVERY USA FOR EMERGENCY 

REIMBURSEMENT COST RECOVERY SERVICES,” which was adopted by the President and 

Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 24AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 
 

 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 

 

RP TITLE: EMERGENCY RESPONSE REIMBURSEMENT 
 

 

  

 

RESPONSE DUE DATE: November 17, 2023 10:30 AM 

 

 

SUBMIT TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK  

ATTN: CLERKS OFFICE IFB MOBILE LPR 

16250 S. OAK PARK AVE. 

TINLEY PARK, IL 60477 

 

 

QUESTIONS & CORRESPONDENCE: clerksoffice@tinleypark.org 
  

Page | 25AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org


 

1 

 

 

Contents 
INTENT:........................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

QUESTIONS & CORRESPONDENCE: ...................................................................................................................... 2 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL: .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS: ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

CURRENT SETUP: ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

SCOPE OF PROJECT: .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

SOLICITATION PROCESS & PROCEDURES: ......................................................................................................... 4 

DETAILED REQUIREMENTS & SPECIFICATIONS ............................................................................................... 4 

EXPECTED DELIVERABLES: ................................................................................................................................... 6 

PROPOSAL SELECTION: ........................................................................................................................................... 6 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: ...................................................................................................................................... 7 

PROPOSAL SHEET: .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

COMPANY PROFILE WORKSHEET: ....................................................................................................................... 9 

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

APPENDIX B: REQUIREMENTS & SPECIFICATIONS ........................................................................................ 11 

APPENDIX C: BILLING ORDINANCE ................................................................................................................... 13 

 

  

Page | 26AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

2 

 

INTENT: 

 

The Village of Tinley Park, (referred to hereafter as “the Village”) seeks proposals from 

qualified persons or firms interested in billing services for emergency response and 

hazardous material reimbursement compatible with existing Village systems and 

ordinances.  The services will be procured during the Village of Tinley Park’s fiscal year 2024 

for a period not to exceed three (3) years with two (2) optional (at the discretion of the 

Village) one (1) year extensions. 

QUESTIONS & CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

If you wish to receive correspondence regarding this RFP please register by sending an 

email to clerksoffice@tinleypark.org referencing the name of this RFP in the subject. 

 

All questions concerning this RFP are to be submitted no less than three (3) business days 

prior to the response due date via email to clerksoffice@tinleypark.org.  All questions must 

clearly identify this RFP by name in the subject, failure to format a question 

correspondence properly may result in no response from the Village.  Answers and 

addendums will be provided via email to all registered respondents in a timely manner.  To 

avoid ambiguity or confusion Appendix A contains a glossary of terms used within this RFP. 

 

Communication regarding this RFP to any Village entity outside the method outlined 

above is explicitly forbidden and may result in nullification of respondent proposal. 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL: 

 

Sealed proposals must be received at the address provided below no later than 10:30 AM 

on November 17, 2023.  Respondents must submit one (1) original proposal and two (2) 

additional copies in a single sealed envelope clearly marked with the name of this RFP.   

 

The company profile worksheet requires respondents to provide an email address, the 

Village will use this to request an electronic version of the proposal.  The electronic version 

must be identical to the hardcopy submitted in the sealed envelope.  The electronic copy 

request will be within five (5) business days from the RFP due date.  Failure to provide, or 

absence of a Village request for the electronic copy will not void hardcopy responses.  If 

there is any discretion between the electronic and hardcopy the Village will use the 

hardcopy as the authoritative source.  The required hardcopy submission is to be 

delivered to: 

 

Village of Tinley Park 

ATTN: Clerk’s Office IFB Mobile LPR 

16250 S. Oak Park Ave. 

Tinley Park, IL 60477  

Page | 27AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org
mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org


 

3 

 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS: 

 

Activity Date/Time 

RFP issuance 11/3/2023 

Question cut-off 11/14/2023 

RFP closing/responses due 11/17/2023 10:30 AM 

Request for electronic copy cut-off 11/28/2023 

Presentation to Village Board 12/5/2023 

CURRENT SETUP: 

 

The Village of Tinley Park consists of approximately 500 employees spanning over 10 

distinct departments including Police, Fire, 911 Dispatch and Public Works.  The Village has 

a centralized Information Technology department which provides enterprise support to all 

employees and departments via a mixture of effort from the staff employees, staff 

augmentation via contractors, and professional services from managed service providers.  

 

The Village of Tinley Park Fire records management program is a cloud hosted solution 

from EPR called Fireworks.  The dispatch center and police records management systems 

are an on premise solution called OneSolution and provided by Central Square.  The fire 

department responds to approximately 3000 incidents per year.  

SCOPE OF PROJECT: 

 

The Village is seeking an outside vendor to provide billing services for emergency 

responses from the fire department in order to begin cost recovery for fire and rescue 

efforts.  It is the goal of this project to ensure costs of providing emergency fire/rescue 

services are borne by individuals and their insurance companies in congruence with the 

ordinances passed by the Village.  The Village is seeking a solution for three (3) years with 

the option for two (2) annual extensions (done so at village discretion). 

 

“Detailed Requirements and Specifications” is divided into three (3) sections, each 

corresponding to a component of the billing service solution.  The three (3) sections are as 

follows: (1) Billing, (2) Data & Reporting, and (3) Technical/General.  Each section contains 

requirements and specifications (Note section 2 only has requirements).  Items listed as a 

requirement will solicit a yes/no response from the vendor, items listed as specifications 

will solicit a response to address the need/question.  Explanation of terminology and 

definition of words is available in Appendix A: Glossary. 

 

Village ordinance 2022-O-097 addresses and details emergency response reimbursement.  

This ordinance amended Title III chapter 45 of the Village’s municipal code.  It is a 

requirement (and listed as such) that the billing service must be able to enforce the costs 

Page | 28AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

4 

 

detailed in the current ordinance.  Appendix C is a copy of the current 2022-O-97 

ordinance.   

 

SOLICITATION PROCESS & PROCEDURES: 

Items identified in the description with the word “must” are considered requirements of the 

proposed solution, failure to meet these requirements may cause your proposal to be 

excluded from further consideration.   

 

The respondent is to supply information addressing all items listed.  The documentation 

supplied by the respondent must clearly identify each section in their response (e.g.3.26, 

5.2.4).  Appendix B: Requirements & Specifications repeats this list and can be used as a 

template for responses.  Respondent may supply additional information but must address 

all of the items listed in the “Detailed Requirements & Specifications” section. 

 

 

DETAILED REQUIREMENTS & SPECIFICATIONS 

 

The following sections are repeated in Appendix B: Requirements & Specifications, please 

use this as a template for submitted responses. 

 

Section 1: Billing 

1.1 Billing Requirements 

1.1.1 Must have ability to provide direct deposit of collected funds into the Village's bank 

account  

1.1.2 Service must accept responsibility for customer billing inquires and complaints during 

regular business hours   

1.1.3 Service must have ability to obtain insurance information from medical institutions 

should the information provided by the Village lack proper information   

1.1.4 Upon receipt of the Village's data, service must review, prepare, and mail invoices to 

the customer within seven (7) business days   

1.1.5 Mailing must include all necessary forms and information needed for payment 

processing   

1.1.6 Must provide monthly statements informing customers of outstanding balances 

1.1.7 Must be capable of billing per Village Ordinance (listed in Appendix C)    

 

Page | 29AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

5 

 

1.2 Billing Specifications  

1.2.1 The Village's current collection company is Municipal Collection Services LLC. Does the 

service have the ability to electronically submit bad debt accounts to aforementioned 

vendor?   

 

Section 2 Data & Reporting 

2.1 Data & Reporting Requirements 

2.1.1 Must be able to electronically receive information from current Village Fire RMS 

system Fireworks by EPR   

2.1.2 Must provide means for tracking submitted claims to ensure timely payments   

2.1.3 Reports must clearly differentiate between resident and non-resident customers  

2.1.4 Must provide daily reporting capability which provides detailed activity including 

receipts, charges, adjustments, and total accounts receivable   

2.1.5 Must provide reporting showing all transactions that effect General Ledger  

2.1.6 Must provide prompt, accurate monthly reporting which includes gross charges billed 

for the month minus contractual allowances, write-offs (abatement, dismissals, 

bankruptcies, and settlements), and refunds rolling up to the net ending accounts 

receivable balance due, trips per month, number of patients per month, gross charges per 

trip, cash collected per trip and net collection percentage per trip   

2.1.7 Must prepare a financial summary showing “period to date” and “year to date” totals 

for charges, receipts, adjustments, net accounts receivable, total accounts, receivable, and 

collection percentage, and aging reports   

2.1.8 Must be capable of provide billing and customer data to the Village so integration is 

possible with existing (Tyler Eden) and future (BS&A) Financial systems   

2.1.9 Must ensure that all data collection, reporting, and billing methods comply with all 

current state and federal regulations   

2.1.10 Must provide 24/7 online access to information & reports    

2.1.11 Must have ability to provide data in actionable format (i.e. not PDF) regarding bills 

with no payment activity at either 90 or 120 days (to be determined by Village during 

implementation) so that past-due collection processes can commence, omitting customers 

with already established payment plans  

 

Page | 30AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

6 

 

Section 3 Technical/General 

3.1 Technical/General Requirements 

3.1.1 Must be authorized to bill for EMS and fire rescue emergency services in the State of 

Illinois  

3.1.2 Must ensure proper security and confidentiality of patient information and records, 

as required by the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)   

3.1.3 Must maintain generally accepted accounting procedures for the reconciling of all 

financial transactions   

3.1.4 Provide a sample implementation plan (preferably of already provided reference) with 

projected activities and timelines, including all scheduled milestones  

 

3.2 Technical/General Specifications 

3.2.1 Does the service support single sign on with Azure AD?   

3.2.2 Is there an API available for Village use?   

          3.2.2.1 If yes, list cost 

 

 

EXPECTED DELIVERABLES: 

 

Proposals must include the following clearly marked sections: 

 

1. Completion of Appendix B: Requirements & Specifications 

2. Customer references 

a. Provide a minimum three (3) references for current customers of similar size 

and/or organizational makeup, include the following information: 

i. Customer name 

ii. Customer contact information (phone and email) 

iii. Geographic area (address) 

iv. Approximate date of engagement 

v. Approximate time taken for project launch (time from when contract 

signed to when organization began utilizing services) 

3. Completion of Proposal Sheet   

4. Completion of Company Profile Worksheet 

PROPOSAL SELECTION: 

 

Page | 31AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

7 

 

Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated on the following criteria:  

 Properly submitted proposal addressing all expected deliverables 

 Adherence to listed requirements 

 Description of proposed solution specifications 

 Similar project experience and customer references 

 Usage of services by neighboring communities  

 Proposed service costs/fees 

 

 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

The following special requirements are necessary for a complete proposal specification. 

Unless noted otherwise, all special requirements are to be included in the price for each 

section bid on. 

 

Delivery:  The successful respondent will coordinate delivery with the Village’s Information 

Technology department. The equipment will be delivered FOB destination to the Village 

Hall Building, 16250 S. Oak Park Ave., IL 60477, as directed by the Village Information 

Technology department. 

 

Invoicing:  The vendor shall invoice the Village for the total units delivered.  Invoices shall 

include the purchase order number. Payment shall be made following Village approval of 

the invoice. 

 

Additions or Removals: The Village has the right to add or remove quantity from this bid.  

Respondents are advised that although the Village does plan to purchase the full stated 

amount this is not a promise to purchase. The Village retains the right to increase or 

decrease the actual quantity purchased based on the 2024 fiscal year budget or Village 

board recommendations. 

  

Page | 32AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

8 

 

 

PROPOSAL SHEET: 

 

Note: The Proposer must complete all portions of the Proposal Sheet. 

 

The undersigned, having examined the specifications and all conditions affecting the specified 

project, offer to furnish all services, labor, and incidentals specified for the price below. The 

undersigned bidder certifies that they are not barred from bidding on this contract as a result of a 

conviction for the violation of state laws prohibiting bid rigging or bid rotating and is not delinquent 

in any taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue. 

 

It is understood that the Village reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any 

irregularities and that the prices contained herein will remain valid for a period of not less than 

ninety (90) days. 

I (We) propose to complete the following project as more fully described in the specifications for the 

following: 

 

Proposing Company Name:  _____________________________________________________ 

 

 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE REIMBURSEMENT 

Required Items 

Fee for collections (enter as percent of amount collected)   

 

Optional Items 

Additional fees or charges (if present attach documentation 

explain costs in detail) 

 

 

 

 

INDEMNIFICATION:  The bidder hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless the 

Village against loss, damage, or expense from any suit, claim, demand, judgment, cause of action, or 

shortage initiated by any person whatsoever, arising or alleged to have arisen out of work described 

herein, except that in no instance shall the Bidder be held responsible for any liability, claim, 

demand, or cause of action attributable solely to the negligence of the Village.  

 

I hereby certify that the item(s) proposed is/are in accordance with the specifications as noted and 

that the prices quoted are not subject to change; and that  

 

____________________________ (Company Name) is not barred by law from submitting a bid to the 

Village for the project contemplated herein and is not delinquent in payment of any taxes to the 

Illinois Department of Revenue.  

Page | 33AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

9 

 

COMPANY PROFILE WORKSHEET: 

Company Name: 

 

Street Address: 

 

City, State, Zip: 

 

Name (Printed): 

 

Signature: 

 

Title: 

 

Phone Number: 

 

Email Address: 

 

Date: 

 

 
  

Page | 34AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

10 

 

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY 

 

 

Electronic version – A copy of the proposal in common office format (docx, pdf, odt, etc…).  

The Village will reach out to the respondent via email and ask for this copy to be sent back 

to the village via email.  For security reasons, the Village will not accept electronic copies on 

physical media.  Respondents cannot submit an electronic version as their proposal, the 

Village will only accept a hardcopy proposal, no exceptions.  Questions inquiring if the 

Village will accept proposals electronically will not warrant a response.    

 

Fiscal Year 2024 – The Village’s fiscal year 2024 begins on 5/1/2023 and ends on 4/30/2024 

 

Hardcopy – A physical, tangible submission printed on paper.  This is a requirement for the 

proposal. 

 

Respondent - The vendor participating in the RFP process.  

 

  

Page | 35AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

11 

 

APPENDIX B: REQUIREMENTS & SPECIFICATIONS 

 

Section 1 Billing 
1.1 Billing Requirements Yes No 

1.1.1 Must have ability to provide direct deposit of collected funds into the Village's 

bank account   
1.1.2 Service must accept responsibility for customer billing inquires and complaints 

during regular business hours   

1.1.3 Service must have ability to obtain insurance information from medical 

institutions should the information provided by the Village lack proper information   
1.1.4 Upon receipt of the Village's data, service must review, prepare, and mail invoices 

to the customer within seven (7) business days   
1.1.5 Mailing must include all necessary forms and information needed for payment 

processing   

1.1.6 Must provide monthly statements informing customers of outstanding balances   
1.1.7 Must be capable of billing per Village Ordinance (listed in Appendix C)   

 

1.2 Billing Specifications Yes No 

1.2.1 The Village's current collection company is Municipal Collection Services LLC. 

Does the service have the ability to electronically submit bad debt accounts to 

aforementioned vendor?   
 

Section 2 Data & Reporting 

2.1 Data & Reporting Requirements Yes No 

2.1.1 Must be able to electronically receive information from current Village Fire RMS 

system Fireworks by EPR   

2.1.2 Must provide means for tracking submitted claims to ensure timely payments   
2.1.3 Reports must clearly differentiate between resident and non-resident customers   
2.1.4 Must provide daily reporting capability which provides detailed activity including 

receipts, charges, adjustments, and total accounts receivable   

2.1.5 Must provide reporting showing all transactions that effect General Ledger   
  

Page | 36AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

12 

 

2.1.6 Must provide prompt, accurate monthly reporting which includes gross charges 

billed for the month minus contractual allowances, write-offs (abatement, dismissals, 

bankruptcies, and settlements), and refunds rolling up to the net ending accounts 

receivable balance due, trips per month, number of patients per month, gross charges 

per trip, cash collected per trip and net collection percentage per trip   
2.1.7 Must prepare a financial summary showing “period to date” and “year to date” 

totals for charges, receipts, adjustments, net accounts receivable, total accounts, 

receivable, and collection percentage, and aging reports   

2.1.8 Must be capable of provide billing and customer data to the Village so integration 

is possible with existing (Tyler Eden) and future (BS&A) Financial systems   
2.1.9 Must ensure that all data collection, reporting, and billing methods comply with 

all current state and federal regulations   

2.1.10 Must provide 24/7 online access to information & reports    

2.1.11 Must have ability to provide data in actionable format (i.e. not PDF) regarding 

bills with no payment activity at either 90 or 120 days (to be determined by Village 

during implementation) so that past-due collection processes can commence, omitting 

customers with already established payment plans 

  

 

Section 3 Technical/General 
3.1 Technical/General Requirements Yes No 

3.1.1 Must be authorized to bill for EMS and fire rescue emergency services in the State 

of Illinois   
3.1.2 Must ensure proper security and confidentiality of patient information and 

records, as required by the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act of 1996 

(HIPAA)   
3.1.3 Must maintain generally accepted accounting procedures for the reconciling of 

all financial transactions   

3.1.4 Provide a sample implementation plan (preferably of already provided reference) 

with projected activities and timelines, including all scheduled milestones   

 
3.2 Technical/General Specifications Yes No 

3.2.1 Does the service support single sign on with Azure AD?   

3.2.2 Is there an API available for Village use?   

          3.2.2.1 If yes, list cost  

 

  

Page | 37AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

13 

 

APPENDIX C: BILLING ORDINANCE 

The following is a copy of the ordinance, the official ordinance is available at 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/tinleypark/latest/tinleypark_il/0-0-0-96676 

 

CHAPTER 45: EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIAL REIMBURSEMENT 

Section 

   45.01   Purpose and intent 

   45.02   Definitions 

   45.03   Emergency incident response and hazardous materials or hazardous substance incidence 

expense recovery 

   45.04   Limitation of liability 

   45.05   Prohibited acts 

   45.06   Response authority 

   45.07   Liability for fees; costs; penalties 

   45.08   Duty to reimburse 

   45.09   Effective date 

   Appendix A: Mitigation Rates Based on Per Hour 

 

§ 45.01 PURPOSE AND INTENT. 

   It is the purpose and intent of the village to establish certain charges and rates to reimburse the 

village for cost associated with emergency incident responses and the remediation and removal of 

hazardous materials that pose a substantial danger to the public health, safety, and welfare. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19; Am. Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

§ 45.02 DEFINITIONS. 

   The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. 

   “COSTS.” All expenses incurred in relation to the provision of services by the village or any 

emergency response agency, regardless of whether the village would have otherwise incurred those 

costs including reasonable costs of equipment used in the provision of such services, costs of 

materials expended in providing such services, costs of storing hazardous or any other material 

recovered during the course of providing such services, or any other costs attributable to the 

provision of such services. 

Page | 38AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/tinleypark/latest/tinleypark_il/0-0-0-96676


 

14 

 

   “EMERGENCY ACTION.” Any action taken inn response to any emergency incident, and at or near 

the scene of hazardous material emergency incident to prevent or minimize harm to human health, 

to property, or to the environment from the unintentional release of a hazard material. 

   “EMERGENCY INCIDENT.” Any incident involving a response from an emergency response agency, 

including but not limited to, fires, ambulance requests, hazardous materials spills or leaks, 

earthquakes, severe storms, collapses, and terrorist attacks. 

   “EMERGENCY RESPONSE AGENCY.” A unit of the village or any unit of local government that 

provides any of the following: 

      (1)   Firefighting services; 

      (2)   Emergency rescue services; 

      (3)   Emergency medical services; 

      (4)   Hazardous materials response teams; 

      (5)   Civil defense; or 

      (6)   Technical rescue teams. 

   “FACILITY.” Any building, structure, installation, equipment, pipe, or pipeline including but not 

limited to any pipe into a sewer or publicly- owned treatment works, well, pond, lagoon, 

impoundment, ditch, landfill, storage container, tank, motor vehicle, truck trailer, rolling stock, 

aircraft, or any vehicle utilizing air, water or rail for transportation. Also, any site or area where 

hazardous material has been deposited, stored, disposed of, abandoned, placed, or otherwise come 

to be located. 

   “FIRE ADMINISTRATOR.” The Village of Tinley Park Fire Administrator. 

   “HAZARDOUS MATERIAL.” Any substance or mixture of substances which is toxic, corrosive, an 

irritant, strong sensitizer, flammable, combustible, or which generates pressure through 

decomposition, heat or other means and which may cause substantial personal injury or illness 

during or as a proximate result of any customary or reasonably anticipated handling, use including 

reasonably foreseeable ingestion by children, or transported in commerce, and also means any 

radioactive substance, if, with respect to such substance as used in a particular class of article or as 

packaged. This definition shall include all definitions described in the Hazardous Materials 

Transportation Act, ILCS Ch. 430, Act 30 §§ 1 et seq. and the Uniform Hazardous Substances Act of 

Illinois, ILCS Ch. 430, Act 35 §§ 1 et seq. 

   “LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS.” The Illinois State Police or any duly authorized employee of the 

Village of Tinley Park Police Department or local government agency who are primarily responsible 

for the prevention or detection of crime and enforcement of the Criminal Code and the highway and 

traffic laws of the State of Illinois or any political subdivision of the state. 

   “MUTUAL AID.” Any action taken pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement, including, but not 

limited to, agreements made as part of a mutual aid box alarm system (“MABAS”). 

   “RELEASE.” Any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, escaping, emptying, discharging, 

injecting, leaching, dumping or disposing of a hazardous material into or on any land, air, water, 

Page | 39AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

15 

 

well, stream, sewer, or pipe so that such hazardous material or any constituent thereof may enter 

the environment. 

   “REMEDIAL ACTION.” Any action consistent with permanent, remedy taken instead of, or in 

addition to, removal actions in the event of a release or threatened release of a hazardous material 

into the environment, to prevent or minimize the release of hazardous materials so that they do not 

migrate to cause a substantial present or potential hazard to human health, property, or the 

environment. The term includes, but is not limited to, such actions at the location of the release as 

storage, confinement, perimeter protection using dikes, trenches, or ditches, clay cover, 

neutralization, cleanup of released hazardous materials or contaminated materials, recycling or 

reuse, diversion, destruction, segregation of reactive wastes, repair or replacement of leaking 

containers, collection of leachate and run off, onsite treatment or incineration, provision of alternate 

water supplies, and any monitoring reasonably required to assure that such actions protect the 

public health and welfare of the environment. 

   “REMOVAL.” The clean up of released hazardous materials from the environment, including such 

actions as may be necessary and appropriate to monitor, assess, and evaluate the release or threat 

of release of hazardous materials, the disposal of removed material, or the taking of such action as 

may be necessary to prevent, minimize, or mitigate damage to the public health or welfare of the 

environment. The term includes, but is not limited to, security fencing, provision of the alternate 

water supplies, and temporary evacuation of threatened individuals. 

   “RESPONSE.” A response to any emergency incident, including any removal or remedial action. 

   “RESPONSIBLE PARTY.” Any person who: 

      (1)   Owns, operates or has custody of any vehicle, location or hazardous material that is involved 

in an incident requiring emergency action by an emergency response agency; 

      (2)   Owns, operates or has custody of bulk or non-bulk packaging or a transport vehicle that 

contains hazardous material that is involved in an incident requiring emergency action by an 

emergency response agency; or 

      (3)   Causes or substantially contribute to the cause of the incident. 

(Ord. 2019-O-19, passed 5-21-19; Am. Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

§ 45.03 EMERGENCY INCIDENT RESPONSE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS OR HAZARDOUS 

SUBSTANCE INCIDENCE EXPENSE RECOVERY. 

   (A)   Notwithstanding any other provision or rule of law, the following responsible party shall be 

jointly and severally liable for all costs associated with an emergency incident, including removal and 

remedial action incurred by the village as a result of a release or threatened release of a hazardous 

material: 

      (1)   The owner and operator of a facility or vessel, including any vehicle or vessel utilizing air, 

water, or rail for transportation, from which there is an emergency incident or a release or 

substantial threat of release of a hazardous material; 

      (2)   Any person who, at the time of an emergency incident or the disposal, transport, storage, or 

treatment of a hazardous material, owned or operated the facility or vessel used for such disposal, 

Page | 40AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

16 

 

transport, treatment, or storage from which there was a release or substantial threat of a release of 

any such hazardous material; 

      (3)   Any person who by contract, agreement, or otherwise has arranged with another party or 

entity for transport, storage, disposal, or treatment of hazardous materials owned, controlled, or 

possessed by such person at a facility owned or operated by another party or entity from which 

facility there is a release or substantial threat of a release of such hazardous materials; 

      (4)   Any person who accepts or accepted any hazardous materials for transport to disposal, 

storage, or treatment facilities or sites from which there is a release or a substantial threat of 

release of such hazardous substances; and 

      (5)   Any person who by an intentional or non-intentional negligent act causes an emergency 

incident or the release or substantial threat of release of such hazardous materials. 

   (B)   The village shall prepare and forward to the responsible party or parties in an emergency 

incident or the hazardous material incident a bill for the total costs and expenses incurred for which 

said responsible party or parties are responsible pursuant to this chapter; provided, however, any 

costs in connection with any independent cleanup contractor shall be billed directly by such 

contractor. Payment of the total bill shall be made within 60 days of receipt. Any bill or portion of a 

bill remaining unpaid after 60 days of receipt shall accrue interest on the unpaid balance of 1.5% per 

month, or the maximum legal rate, whichever is lower. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19; Am. Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

§ 45.04 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

   The village, its agents, its officers, and employees shall not have any liability or responsibility for 

any claim, injury, or damage of any kind resulting from an emergency incident or the hazardous 

material incident to which the village or any of its department officers, agents, or employees 

respond. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19; Am. Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

§ 45.05 PROHIBITED ACTS. 

   No person shall cause, threatened, or allow the release of hazardous materials into the 

environment unless such release is in accordance with an appropriate permit granted by the Illinois 

Environment Protection Agency or other state or federal agency having primary jurisdiction over the 

release, and such release is in such place and manner as will not create a substantial present or 

potential hazard to human health, property, or the environment. 

   The law enforcement officials shall enforce the rules and regulations issued under this chapter. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19) 

§ 45.06 RESPONSE AUTHORITY. 

   (A)   The Fire Administrator or his or her authorized representative shall have authority to respond 

to any release or threatened release of hazardous materials within the village or affecting the public 

water supply, wells, or sewage treatment works located within district. This authority including, but 

is not limited to, remedial action and removal. 

Page | 41AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

17 

 

   (B)   The Fire Administrator shall have primary authority to respond to any release or threatened 

release of hazardous materials as described. The Fire Administrator shall report any release or 

threatened release of hazardous materials to all appropriate federal, state, and local public health, 

safety, and emergency agencies within 24 hours of any substantial release of hazardous material. 

The Fire Administrator shall relinquish his or her response authority at such time, if any, as the 

federal, state, or local public health, safety, or emergency agency having primary jurisdiction over 

the release or threatened release has assumed responsibility for response to the release or 

threatened release. 

   (C)   The Fire Administrator, during such time as response authority is vested in him or her, shall be 

authorized to utilize all village personnel and equipment and he or she may, in his or her sole 

discretion, take such remedial or removal action as he or she may deem necessary or appropriate to 

respond to the release or threatened release of hazardous material including the use of material 

and in accordance with any mutual aid box alarm system (“MABAS”) agreement. 

   (D)   All responding personnel shall cooperate with, and operate under, the direction of the Fire 

Administrator or other persons he or she designates when exercising response authority under this 

chapter until such time as the person exercising such response authority has determined that the 

response is complete or responsibility is assumed by the federal, state, or local emergency response 

agency having primary jurisdiction over the released or threatened release. 

   (E)   The person exercising response authority under this chapter shall coordinate and/or 

cooperate with other federal, state, or local emergency response agencies involved in response to 

the release or threatened release of hazardous materials. 

   (F)   The responding law enforcement officials shall be primarily responsible for the removal of any 

material not considered a hazardous material, but which remains hazardous or imminently 

dangerous to the public including, but not limited to, narcotics, cadavers, and an excessive 

accumulation of litter, clutter, or debris. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19) 

§ 45.07 LIABILITY FOR FEES; COSTS; PENALTIES. 

   (A)   A responsible party shall be jointly and severally liable for any fee, costs, or penalties 

described herein. 

   (B)   These fees shall be binding upon all persons receiving such services as well as their successors 

in interest, assigns, estates and heirs. 

   (C)   When emergency incidents, hazardous material activities, or any other emergency service are 

rendered by the village to residents of the village, such persons shall not be billed for the remaining 

charges which may exist once final payment has been received from all insurance providers of the 

resident. 

   (D)   When emergency incidents, hazardous material activities, or any other emergency services are 

rendered by the village to non-residents, such persons shall be billed for the remaining charges 

which may exist once final payment has been received from all insurance providers of the non-

resident. Unpaid balances shall be assigned to a debt-collection agency of the village’s choice. 

Page | 42AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

18 

 

   (E)   The above-referenced emergency incidents, hazardous material activities, or any other 

emergency service fees shall be assessed pursuant to Appendix A “Mitigation Rates Based on Per 

Hour” set forth at the end of this chapter. 

   (F)   The ambulance, hazardous material activities, or any other emergency service fees herein shall 

be increased from time to time without further action of the corporate authorities in accordance 

with the rates as approved by the Fire Department, with reference to the amounts set by the 

village’s cost recovery company or similar agency. 

   (G)   Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall be fined $200, for each offense, which 

fine shall be payable in addition to the fee otherwise due and owing to the village. 

   (H)   All fees assessed and collected under this chapter shall be deposited into the village’s general 

fund. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19; Am. Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

§ 45.08 DUTY TO REIMBURSE. 

   (A)   It shall be unlawful for any responsible party to fail to reimburse the village, within 60 days 

after the mailing of a bill for the hazardous material emergency incident, the costs incurred by the 

village and any private contractor responding to the incident at the request of the village. The 

amount of the hazardous material emergency reimbursement fee shall be calculated in a manner 

provided in § 45.09 of this chapter. 

   (B)   The failure to pay any debt due to the village as imposed pursuant to this chapter, after the 

period granted for payment has expired by any person liable for such debt, shall constitute a 

violation of this chapter. Judgment shall be entered against any person who violates this section in 

the amount of the debt remaining unpaid on the date the judgment is entered plus litigation and 

collection costs, attorney’s fees and an amount representing all fines and penalties assessed 

pursuant to this chapter. An administrative penalty of 75% of the amount of debt remaining unpaid 

on the date the judgment is entered shall be assessed for each month or portion thereof in which 

the debt remained unpaid. 

   (C)   Nothing in this section shall preclude the village from seeking to collect any debt due the 

village provided in Chapter 42 of this code, or through the use of any other administrative procedure 

or court proceeding authorized by law. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19) 

§ 45.09 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

   This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

(Ord. 2019-O-019, passed 5-21-19) 

APPENDIX A: MITIGATION RATES BASED ON PER HOUR 

MITIGATION RATES BASED ON PER HOUR 

MITIGATION RATES BASED ON PER HOUR 

Page | 43AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

19 

 

The mitigation rates below are average “billing levels,” and are typical for the incident responses 

listed, however, when a claim is submitted, it may be itemized and based on the actual services 

provided. 

These rates are based on actual costs using amortized schedules for apparatus (including useful life, 

equipment, repairs, and maintenance). Labor rates include an average department’s actual 

burdened labor costs and not just a firefighter’s wage. These include wages, retirement, benefits, 

workers comp, etc. 

   Motor Vehicle Incidents 

Level 1 - $506.00 

Provide hazardous materials assessment and scene stabilization. This will be the most common 

“billing level.” This occurs almost every time the Fire Department responds to an accident/incident. 

Level 2 - $576.00 

Includes Level 1 services as well as clean up and material used (sorbents) for hazardous fluid clean 

up and disposal. We will bill at this level if the Fire Department has to clean up any gasoline or other 

automotive fluids that are spilled as a result of the accident/incident. 

Level 3 - CAR FIRE - $704.00 

Provide scene safety, fire suppression, breathing air, rescue tools, hand tools, hose, tip use, foam, 

structure protection, and clean up gasoline or other automotive fluids that are spilled as a result of 

the accident/incident. 

   Add-On Services 

Extrication - $1,520.00 

Includes heavy rescue tools, ropes, airbags, cribbing etc. This charge will be added if the Fire 

Department has to free/remove anyone from the vehicle(s) using any equipment. We will not bill at 

this level if the patient is simply unconscious and the Fire Department is able to open the door to 

access the patient. This level is to be billed only if equipment is deployed. 

Creating a Landing Zone - $465.00 

 Includes Air Care (multi-engine company response, mutual aid, helicopter). We will bill at this level 

any time a helicopter landing zone is created and/or is utilized to transport the patient(s). 

Itemized Response 

You have the option to bill each incident as an independent event with custom mitigation rates, for 

each incident using, itemized rates deemed usual, customary and reasonable (UCR). These incidents 

will be billed, itemized per apparatus, per personnel, plus products and equipment used. 

   Hazmat 

Level 1 - $816.00 

Page | 44AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

20 

 

Basic Response: Claim will include engine response, first responder assignment, perimeter 

establishment, evacuations, set-up and command. 

Level 2 - $2,913.00 

Intermediate Response: Claim will include engine response, first responder assignment, hazmat 

certified team and appropriate equipment, perimeter establishment, evacuations, set-up and 

command, Level A or B suit donning, breathing air and detection equipment. Set-up and removal of 

decon center. 

Level 3 — $6,875.00 

Advanced Response: Claim will include engine response, first responder assignment, hazmat 

certified team and appropriate equipment, perimeter establishment, evacuations, first responder 

set-up and command, Level A or B suit donning, breathing air and detection equipment and robot 

deployment. Set-up and removal of decon center, detection equipment, recovery and identification 

of material. Disposal and environment clean up. Includes above in addition to any disposal rates of 

material and contaminated equipment and material used at scene. Includes 3 hours of on scene 

time - each additional hour @ $336.00 per HAZMAT team. 

   Fire Investigation 

Fire Investigation Team - $321.00 per hour. 

Includes: 

• Scene Safety 

• Investigation 

• Source Identification 

• K-9/Arson Dog Unit 

• Identification Equipment 

• Mobile Detection Unit 

• Fire Report 

The claim begins only when the Fire Investigator responds to the incident and is billed for logged 

time only. 

   Fires 

Assignment - $466.00 per hour, per engine/$582.00 per hour, per truck 

Includes: 

• Scene Safety 

• Investigation 

• Fire/Hazard Control 

Page | 45AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

21 

 

This will be the most common “billing level.” This occurs almost every time the Fire Department 

responds to an incident. 

Optional: 

A Fire Department has the option to bill each fire as an independent event with custom mitigation 

rates. 

Itemized, per person, at various pay levels and for itemized products use. 

   Illegal Fires 

Assignment - $466.00 per hour, per engine;$582.00 per hour, per truck 

When a fire is started by any person or persons that requires a Fire Department response during a 

time or season when fires are regulated or controlled by local or state rules, provisions or 

ordinances because of pollution or fire danger concerns, such person or persons will be liable for 

the Fire Department response at a cost not to exceed the actual expenses incurred by the Fire 

Department to respond and contain the fire. Similarly, if a fire is started where permits are required 

for such a fire and the permit was not obtained and the Fire Department is required to respond to 

contain the fire the responsible party will be liable for the response at a cost not to exceed the 

actual expenses incurred by the Fire Department. The actual expenses will include direct labor, 

equipment costs and any other costs that can be reasonably allocated to the cost of the response. 

   Water Incidents 

Level 1 - $466.00 plus $58.00 per hour, per rescue person 

Basic Response: Claim will include engine response, first responder assignment, perimeter 

establishment, evacuations, first responder set-up and command, scene safety and investigation 

(including possible patient contact, hazard control). This will be the most common “billing level.” This 

occurs almost every time the Fire Department responds to a water incident. 

Level 2 - $932.00 plus $58.00 per hour, per rescue person 

Intermediate Response: Includes Level 1 services as well as clean up and material used (sorbents), 

minor hazardous clean up and disposal. We will bill at this level if the Fire Department has to clean 

up small amounts of gasoline or other fluids that are spilled as a result of the incident. 

Level 3 - $2,3304.00 plus $58.00 per hour per rescue person, plus $117.00 per hour per HAZMAT 

team member 

Advanced Response: Includes Level 1 and Level 2 services as well as D.A.R.T. activation, donning 

breathing apparatus and detection equipment. Set-up and removal of decon center, detection 

equipment, recovery and identification of material. Disposal and environment clean up. Includes 

above in addition to any disposal rates of material and contaminated equipment and material used 

at scene. 

Level 4 

Page | 46AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

22 

 

Itemized Response: You have the option to bill each incident as an independent event with custom 

mitigation rates for each incident using itemized rates deemed ususal, customary and reasonable 

(UCR). These incidents will be billed, itemized, per trained rescue person, plus rescue products used. 

   Back Country or Special Rescue 

Minimum - $466.00 for the first response vehicle plus $58.00 per rescue person. Additional rates of 

$466.00 per hour per response vehicle and $58.00 per hour per rescue person. 

Itemized Response - Each incident will be billed with custom mitigation rates deemed usual, 

customary and reasonable (UCR). These incidents will be billed, itemized per apparatus per hour, 

per trained rescue person per hour, plus rescue products. 

   Chief Response 

$291.00 per hour 

This includes the set-up of Command, and providing direction of the incident. This could include 

operations, safety, and administration of the incident. 

   Miscellaneous/Additional Time On-Scene 

Additional time on-scene (for all levels of service) 

Engine - $466.00 per hour 

Truck - $582.00 per hour 

Miscellaneous equipment - $350.00 

    Mitigation Rate Notes 

The mitigation rates above are average “billing levels” for one hour of service, and are typical for the 

incident responses listed, however, when a claim is submitted, it may be itemized and based on the 

actual services provided. 

These average mitigation rates were determined by itemizing costs for a typical run (from the time a 

fire apparatus leaves the station until it returns to the station) and are based on the actual costs, 

using amortized schedules for apparatus (including useful life, equipment, repairs, and 

maintenance) and labor rates (an average department’s “actual  

personnel expense” and not just a firefighter’s basic wage). The actual personnel expense includes 

costs such as wages, retirement, benefits, workers comp, insurance, etc. 

  

(Ord. 2022-O-097, passed 12-6-22) 

  

 

Page | 47AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



   Mike Rivera
Chief Business Developement Officer

2271 Lava Ridge Court, Suite 120 
  5603-16659 AC ,ellivesoR

email:  
  1.888.640.7222

cell:  916.238.8541

www.FireRecoveryUSA.com

Village of Tinley Park
Emergency Response Reimbursement 

m.rivera@FireRecoveryUSA.com

Purchasing

 
DUE DATE: November 17, 2023 at 10:30 a.m.

Page | 48AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
Tab 1 

 
 

Tab 2 
 
 

Tab 3 
 
 

Tab 4 
 
 

Tab 5 
 
 

Tab 6 
 
 

Tab 7 
 
 

Tab 8 
 
 
 

  

 

 
Cover Letter 
 
 
Qualifications and Experience 
 
 
Methodology 
 
 
Timeline 
 
 
References 
 
 
Pricing / Revenue Forecast 
 
 
Variances 
 
 
Required Docs 
 
 
 

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f T
in

le
y 

Pa
rk

 

Page | 49AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

www.firerecoveryusa.com 
 
2271 Lava Ridge Court, Suite 120                                                                               Phone   888-640-7222 
Roseville, CA  95661                                                                                                     Fax        916-290-0542 
 

 
November 9, 2023 

 
Village of Tinley Park 
Attn: Clerks Office IFB Mobile LPR 
16250 S. Oak Park Ave. 
Tinley Park, Il 60477 
 
 
Dear Clerks Office, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for your “EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
REIMBURSEMENT”. 
 
We are confident that we meet and exceed the specifications listed in the Requirements 
(other than the listed exceptions).  Fire Recovery USA is by far the largest and most 
successful cost recovery billing service in the fire industry. We have over 1,720 cities and 
fire departments in 43 states that have placed their trust in us to provide cost recovery 
programs (over 150 in Illinois). 
 
Our company has over fifteen years in cost recovery with tens of millions of dollars 
collected. Since you a current client, there is virtually no setup or training of your 
personnel, and we’ll continue to offer our outstanding customer service to ensure your 
needs and goals are met to the highest standard. 
 
The information contained in this proposal or any part thereof, including any exhibits, 
schedules, and other documents and instruments delivered or to be delivered to the City, 
are true, accurate, and complete. This proposal includes all information necessary to 
ensure that the statements therein do not in whole or in part mislead the Town as to any 
material facts. 
 
We offer services that cover all of your requested services and this proposal is valid for 
120 days. Please feel free to contact us if you would like clarification on any aspect of 
this proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
Mike Rivera 
Chief Business Development Officer 
 
M.Rivera@firerecoveryusa.com 
 

Page | 50AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Fire Recovery USA, LLC 
2271 Lava Ridge Ct, Suite 120 
Roseville, CA 95661 
 
(888) 640-7222 
(916) 943-1661 – fax 
 
www.FireRecoveryUSA.com  
 

• Contact: Mike Rivera – (916) 238-8541 – m.rivera@firerecoveryusa.com 
• Business Hours: 9 AM (CST) to 8 PM (CST) 
• Incorporation: California, USA 
• Years in Business: 17 
• Personnel: approx. 30 employees 
• Work to be performed at office location in Roseville, CA.    

 
 
 
 
EXPERIENCE 
 
Fire Recovery USA, LLC was founded in 2006 and is located in Roseville, California and 
provides cities and fire departments across the United States with cost recovery funding 
programs in conjunction with motor vehicle incidents, structure fires, hazardous material 
spills, and fire inspection programs. Fire Recovery USA is the sole provider of these pro- 
grams and the software developed to administer them. We do not use partners to 
administer the above-mentioned programs. 
 
Fire Recovery USA has established and implemented systems for Over 1,720 customers 
in 43 states. We have the experience and brand recognition that has positioned us as the 
market leader in this niche. The company has a proprietary and very successful billing 
system developed specifically to meet industry needs. This system and its efficiencies 
have proven to successfully provide collection rates far superior to other competitors. 
 
Fire Recovery USA has developed a methodology to process claims that has not been 
matched by the competition. This methodology centers around the company’s policy of 
communicating and corresponding with the responsible parties as well as providing 
flexible payment options and electronic communication. 
 
 

Page | 51AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TOTAL ORGANIZATION 
 
Fire Recovery USA is one of three entities that comprise our family of cost recovery and 
technology services.  
 

1. Fire Recovery USA 
2. Strealmine Automation Systems 

 
 

1. Fire Recovery USA provides eight main cost recovery programs. 

Emergency Response Cost Recovery Program - You incur significant costs 
responding to incidents. Appropriately recovering the costs of high impact events is 
becoming the new standard. Let us provide you with an estimate of your potential 
recovery.  

iPad Inspection / Inspection billing - By combining technology with automation we 
can greatly enhance your inspection and permitting program. You inspect, we do the 
rest, efficiently and quickly with full transparency. We follow up on payments; have 24/7 
live data reporting and the highest recovery rate in the industry.  

 
2. Streamline Automation Systems, LLC. Fire Recovery USA and Streamline 
Automation Systems develop, market, and support our proprietary systems used for false 
alarm management. All components of this response are controlled by Fire Recovery 
USA, so no other vendors/partnerships are necessary for this response. 
 
Streamline Automated Systems are simple to use. Data and information is seamlessly and 
automatically transferred from the CAD or RMS into the secure, online web based user 
interface and customized front-end portal. It is securely and conveniently stored in the 
cloud for remote and immediate access for updates, validation and follow-up. Streamline’s 
proprietary software is hardware agnostic, meaning you can access your data via any 
computer, tablet device, or smartphone. Our proprietary systems allow for complete 
customization, and quick and agile turnkey deployment. Customizable features include 
personalized portals, site management, billing, mapping and interface design, among 
other elements. 
 
Streamline Inspections is a mobile and cloud-based inspection platform designed for 
state and local government and business performing inspection services.  Streamline 
Inspections is designed to make inspections easier and more cost effective to manage 
regardless of the department or AHJ.  The Application was designed by inspectors for 
inspectors and with multiple programs in mind: Fire Inspections, HazMat, Brush or Weed 
Abatement, Health Inspections, Community Development and Code Enforcement, 
together in one system.  

Page | 52AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
It is designed to work the way you work: our iPad-based software goes anywhere you 
need to go. Locally stored data on the device allows you to work where there is no 
connection to Wi-Fi or cell. Push notices allow notification of time critical new tasks.   
 
The checklist-based system will incorporate any checklist and data field, from true false, 
to text, photos, values, dynamic rules and more.  Find violations not on your checklist, no 
problem, your local codes can be loaded on the device as well.  We have agreements with 
ICC and NFPA, to deliver virtually any code set. No shuffling multiple inspection forms or 
using software that just doesn’t meet your needs.  It’s the most intuitive and versatile 
inspections application on the market.  
 
 
PROPOSED TIMELINE AND TRAINING:  
 
A timeline for accomplishing the scope of work identified in this proposal, estimating the 
amount of time it will take to complete each task. Unless advised otherwise by the Fire 
Department, our “System Implementation” plan is as follows: 
 
1. Upon receipt of a signed contract from the Fire Department, Fire Recovery USA will 
request information in order to setup your account file in RecoveryHub. This information 
is required in order to facilitate the account setup. 
 

a. Information includes basic account information. 
b. Who will manage the project for the Fire Department  
c. Where checks are to be mailed, etc. 

 
2. Fire Recovery USA will need a contact for the Fire Department to install the link to your 
RMS software application (if applicable) to export the data automatically from 
your RMS Software. 
 
3. FRUSA will provide the information on how to submit runs into our system. Although 
most clients need no more help, a live Zoom or Conference Call is available upon request. 
Live on-site training is available for an additional cost, but most likely not necessary. 
 
4. FRUSA will provide “printable” Run Reports (for use “on-site” during the billable event 
in order to collect the correct billing data). 
 
5. In most cases, our clients can begin billing within one to two weeks of receipt of your 
signed contract, depending on how fast our clients can schedule the training of their 
personnel. 
 
 
HIPAA 
 
Our Emergency Incident billing programs require no HIPAA information, and as such, no 
HIPAA information is collected or harvested. In addition, we have been certified by a 

Page | 53AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



third-party consultant as not having any exposure to HIPAA. None of the data we collect 
falls within HIPAA regulations. 
 
 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
Fire Recovery USA affirms that we comply with all state and federal regulations related 
to non-discrimination. 
 
 
STAFF CRITERIA 
 
Fire Recovery USA strives to employ highly competent and efficient processors. Once a 
prospective employee is identified they are screened through the E-Verify system to 
establish and document their legal work status. Each candidate is subject to several 
interviews with management personnel and must pass a series of tests Fire Recovery has 
developed. These proprietary tests measure a candidate’s ability to perform at established 
standards in computer competence, language skills and customer service. 
 
Upon employment, new processors are teamed with an experienced staff member who 
spends a week with them in intensive side-by-side training. The new processor is able to 
experience how a veteran processor handles the various challenges of their workday and 
is exposed to the high standards expected by Fire Recovery USA. Once the week of 
intensive training has concluded, the new processor remains assigned to the experienced 
staff member who continues to act as a mentor until the new processor is able to operate 
independently. 
 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE PHILOSOPHY 
 
Customer Service is a key component in Fire Recovery’s success and has directly led to 
our industry-leading achievement. Customer service is stressed as a vital factor that 
makes us different from our competitors. 
 
Each piece of correspondence sent to residents and businesses in your community will 
include phone numbers and email addresses that can be used to contact Fire Recovery 
USA. We respond to each contact as soon as possible, but never more than one business 
day after contact. If the contact has a question our staff cannot answer we have a 
“Ticketing System” whereby we contact a City employee, as designated by the City, who 
will answer the question by email and Fire Recovery will contact the person with the 
response. Fire Recovery USA has successfully employed this system with our existing 
client base. The system allows each question or problem to be tracked until its resolution 
and helps assure no open items are lost or overlooked at they remain open until 

Page | 54AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



completion. Our clients also appreciate this system as they are not subject to numerous 
phone calls from our staff and they can respond to open issues by email through the 
“Ticketing System” as time allows within their work schedule. 
 
As part of his or her training, each employee of Fire Recovery USA is versed in the 
importance of customer service. They are required to maintain a courteous, business-like 
demeanor in all contact and correspondence with our clients and their constituents. 
 
Fire Recovery USA’s ownership and management believe in modeling our commitment to 
high-level customer service. Employees are our “customers” and need a regular 
demonstration of appreciation. We strive to maintain a family atmosphere in our office 
environment while continually encouraging our employees to reach higher levels of 
achievement through further evaluation and testing, as well as incentive programs to 
encourage success and managerial thinking. 
 
 
EXPERIENCE OF THE FIRM 
 
As the nation’s largest and most successful biller of Emergency Incidents for cities and 
fire departments, our growth of clients has been staggering. We have over 1,720  clients 
as of the date of this proposal. Our collections are the highest in the industry averaging 
between 70% and 100% depending on the type of run. 
 
Emergency Incident billing is handled in our Roseville, CA facility. Our Emergency Incident 
system provide 24/7 access to our billing software and reporting system from any web-
browser.  
 
We will provide unlimited web-based live webinar training for new employees. 
 
Virtually all of our metro/muni clients are government clients (local government / city or 
county) and our experience is the equivalent as with our non-government accounts. They 
achieve the same high collection rates. 
 
  

Page | 55AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Recovery USA is a privately held LLC, and as such does not provide financial 
information, however, we are happy to provide banking references upon request. The 
Owner/manager of Fire Recovery USA LLC is Craig Nagler. 
 
Working as a cohesive team utilizing project management technology such as Basecamp, 
Google Hangouts, and JitBit Ticket Tracking software, we have on-boarded over 1,600 
clients quickly and efficiently. Justin Powell will head the project, including on-boarding 
and the delegation of tasks to the appropriate internal personnel. He will oversee the 
progress and work to keep the project on schedule. 
 
 
KEY INDIVIDUALS 
 
Justin Powell – Head of Project, onboarding and training, oversee all aspects 
Rick Benner – Assist project onboarding, facilitate financial account setup 

Wendy Mangan – Manage RecoveryHub account setup 

Mark Gratoit – Director of Research and Development 

Kevin Brown – Head of RMS/CAD Link Establishment and Testing 

Page | 56AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
March 2013 – Present 
 
In March of 2013 Justin made the transition to join the Executive Management team at 
Fire Recovery USA. As the market demand grows and the increasing need for service and 
technology unfolds, strong leadership and direction is needed, as is in-depth knowledge 
of industry systems and practices. As part of the Executive Management team, Justin is 
responsible for providing direction and vision for company decisions and investments of 
the company’s capital and resource. Justin is also responsible for leading our sales and 
marketing team with an intense focus on product and service delivery. Our complete focus 
is to provide the best overall experience to our customers. The first point of contact in any 
organization is your sales representative and our commitment is to be available to our 
customers, listen to their needs and deliver. 
 
National Sales Manager 
FIREHOUSE Software 
September 2007 – March 2013 (5 years 7 months) Urbandale, IA 
Growing the market-leading Fire Records Management Software domestically and 
internationally. Responsible for leading all advertising and marketing campaigns using 
print and web media. Involved in market research, product development and R&D to lead 
company direction and industry leading products. Advising software development for .net 
conversion and application development for iPad and Android platforms. 
 Led an external independent sales staff of 4 and an internal staff of 3. 
 
Firefighter/EMT 
City of Clive 
August 2006 – November 2011 (5 years +) Clive, IA 
Primary EMS care on ambulance and engine company response. Structural fire 
suppression. Life safety fire inspections and prevention Public education FFI, FFII, 
HazMat Operations, Driver Operator, EMT 
 
 
 

Page | 57AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
January 2008 – Present  
 
Rick began his career as a certified public accountant with Coopers & Lybrand, an 
international public accounting firm. After five years with the firm he became Vice 
President of Finance for the National Basketball Association’s Kansas City Kings before 
relocating with the team to Sacramento, California in 1985. He quickly developed an 
expertise in the NBA’s salary cap and negotiated multi-million dollar player contracts on 
behalf of the Kings’ organization. Rick was promoted to president of the Kings and Arco 
Arena in 1989 and at the time was the youngest president of any major professional sports 
franchise. As president he had overall responsibility for ticket sales, radio and television 
game broadcasts and advertising sales, media and public relations, in arena advertising 
and arena operations, including concessions, security and parking. He remained in the 
role as president through 1999. 
 
After leaving the Kings, he has owned and participated in the development of businesses 
in the health care, airline transportation and mortgage industries. 
 
Rick joined Fire Recovery USA in 2008 and has made a major contribution to the 
development of the company’s proprietary software assuring proper financial controls are 
in place. While his primary responsibility is managing all financial and legal aspects of the 
company’s operations, he assists in all areas of the company’s business development. 
 
 

Page | 58AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
January 2010 – Present 
 
As a member of the Fire Recovery management team Wendy brings with her a significant 
amount of experience. Her previous experiences uniquely position her to lead our service 
and processing center. Wendy is an experienced manager specializing in professional 
billing services and superior customer manager. She is an experienced police dispatcher 
in a metropolitan agency and knows first hand the difficulties in providing public safety. At 
Fire Recovery Wendy is responsible for all processing center staff. Wendy manages 
scheduling and staff performance and insures the office is compliant with all state, OSHA 
and HIPAA laws and regulations. 
 
Manager – Medical Office  
Curtis G. Croft, DDS  
January 2008 – 2010 (2 years +) Roseville, CA 
Responsible for staff schedule and staff performance and ensured the office was 
compliant with all state, OSHA and HIPAA laws and regulations. Observed and protected 
patient confidentiality per policies and procedures. Managed business re- cords as well 
as accounts receivable/payable. 
 
Dispatcher 
Sacramento Police Department 
January 2004 – 2008 (4 years +) Sacramento, CA 
Duties required the ability to effectively communicate, multi-task, evaluate, prioritize and 
quickly make decisions in extremely critical situations demanding immediate and accurate 
response while providing a high level of service to the public. Responsible for providing 
pertinent data in response to requests for information regarding vehicle registration, 
driving records and warrants. Monitored direct emergency alarms and complex public 
safety radio frequencies while operating a variety of communications equipment. 
 
 
 

Page | 59AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH 
 
 
UNDERSTANDING: 
 
Fire Recovery USA specializes in providing seamless methods of cost recovery to cities 
and fire departments nationwide. Fire Recovery USA processes more than 50,000 
Emergency Incident Billing events per year and delivers millions of dollars in recovered 
funds to our clients annually. Our systems make the process of cost recovery efficient in 
all aspects of the program. Our goal is to make the program as seamless and effortless 
as possible. 
 
Each of our Processing Center staff is focused on processing Emergency Incident Billing 
accounts and only Emergency Incident Billing accounts. We have dedicated billing staff 
for these types of claims who focus on this type of billing full-time and can deliver the 
highest possible financial return to our clients. 
 
Our processing team will go to work to insure the highest collection rate possible for the 
City. Your administrative team will have access to the RecoveryHub from any computer 
with internet access and see REAL TIME run data and reports, 24/7. This fully 
transparent system will allow you to see every contact and phone call we’ve made, the 
status of the bill, and track and reconcile every payment we’ve received. Each step in 
our process is visible to you, the end user, so you always know the status of your 
recovery efforts. 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1. Fire Recovery USA will provide the technology to electronically input run data into the 

RecoveryHub for processing.  
 
2. Fire Recovery USA will bill on your behalf, for runs submitted and the service you 

provide, as allowed by your Ordinance. 
 
3. We will work with the insurance companies directly to ensure payments are made for 

invoices submitted. 
 
4.  We will provide real time access to all your claims as well as the ability for the end 

user to run reports on demand. 
 
5.  We will provide automatic monthly reporting and real time access to your account for 

100% transparency.   
 
6. We will develop a successful professional working relationship with the City. 
 
7. We will provide training and project management for your staff. 
 
8.  We will provide a dedicated account manager for the City. 

Page | 60AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
9. We will provide our programs with professionalism while maintaining the integrity of 

the City. 
 
10. We will ensure the highest level of customer service for support and assistance.  

Customer service and support are available between 9:00 AM and 8:00 PM CST 
but can be accommodated outside of these hours for special needs. 

 
11. We will provide for a systematic and standard recovery process that allows 

creditability to be maintained with insurance providers. 
 
12. We will provide the highest collection rate in our industry – over 90% for fluid-

based/HazMat Related Emergency Incidents and over 70% overall on billable 
incidents. 

 
13. We will provide and/or allow access to the newest technology and applications in 

order to insures the most efficient workflow and processes. 
 
14. We will provide insurance documentation upon award of the contract. 
 
 
 
 
REPORTS:  
 
Fire Recovery USA is committed to providing the City with the most advanced reporting 
tools available through our website, RecoveryHub. RecoveryHub provides custom report 
capabilities that we continue to develop in order to satisfy our customers’ needs. 
 
1. We provide detail and summary reports (automatically and electronically) 24/7 from 

any internet-connected computer. 
 
2. We provide an accounts receivable aging report and a report on any billing (claims). 
 
3. We provide a web-based portal to appropriate City staff to access and view the status 

of all relevant reports or files, all updated real time.  This is based on user security 
and roll access to the system. 

 
4. We provide the City with a report on all claims and disputes. 
 
5. We provide custom reports and data exports on any data fields. 
 
 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS: 
 
1. Provide a primary and a secondary contact for daily operational inquiries and notify 

the City of any contact changes. 
 

Page | 61AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2. Provide on-line electronic file lookup and be able to accept information from the City 
via email, fax, or in an electronic format; 

 
3. Provide a custom form for the City to utilize in order to collect the data needed for 

proper bill processing, as stated per ordinance; and 
 
4. Ensure daily backups are stored in a secure, safe location. 
 
5. We are willing to modify our cost recovery methodology to the extent that it conforms 

to the City’s philosophy of interaction with the citizens. We will follow the City's 
philosophy is to pursue accounts in accordance with your state law. We will not 
subcontract cost recovery activities to a third party, without the express written 
consent of the City. 

 
 
 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
Our Official Internal Control Policy is that no confidential information will be released to 
anyone other than the password protected person(s) authorized by the City and the 
insurance company(s) involved in the incident. In addition, only those employees in our 
Recovery Department who are authorized to input and track claims will have access to 
confidential information on any claims and the individuals involved in the claims. 
 
HIPAA Information: Our Emergency Incident billing programs require no HIPAA 
information, and as such, no HIPAA information is collected. 
 
 
 
HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE INFRASTRUCTURE & SECURITY 
 
Fire Recovery USA has aligned itself with some of the best service providers in the 
industry to ensure the security of our client’s data and availability of our services. Our 
entire infrastructure is hosted in Microsoft’s Azure Cloud Platform. This platform has its 
own Security Center that is inherent to that environment however, we go one step 
further. Qualys is a third-party application that we use to monitor for malware and 
conduct additional vulnerability scans. The combination of the two services provides us a 
robust security solution with real time threat detection and a true geo-redundant 
footprint. 
 
If you are a billing customer, then you probably know how important and how difficult it 
can be to become and remain PCI compliant. Once again, we have aligned with an 
industry leader. Authorize.net handles all of our online transactions and maintains a full 
PCI DSS/SSAE-16 compliant data center to secure your client’s sensitive financial data. 

Microsoft Azure 
● Geo-Redundant Services with real time database replication and application 

failover 

Page | 62AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



● The only public cloud platform to offer continuous security and health monitoring 
using Azure Security Center 

● All connections and data transfers are encrypted 
● All databases are encrypted at rest 
● More certifications than any other cloud platform including ISO and HIPAA 
● Real time health alerts and active scaling based on predefined threshold limits 

Qualys  
● Provides additional 3rd party web applications scans and malware monitoring 
● Zero day vulnerability scans utilizing behavioral analysis 
● Web application scanning for OWASP top 10 defined threats 
● Real time alerts on active threats 

Authorize.net 
● All customer billing transactions are conducted through Authorize.net servers and 

are PCI DSS compliant 
● SSAE-16 compliance validated annually 
● HIPAA, GLBA, & California Senate Bill 1386 (SB1386) compliant. Regular audits 

conducted as required to maintain compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 63AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



FIRE RECOVERY SITE DISASTER RECOVERY 
 
FRUSA's Server / DC and all virtual servers that reside on-site are protected by an 
image-based backup solution. 
 
In the instance of a physical server failure or catastrophic operating system problem, 
FRUSA can be up and running in a matter of minutes by connecting directly to the 
backup device. 
 
Additionally, each of FRUSA's servers can be quickly restored to a previously working 
state from these image backups. 
 
All of these image backups are backed up off-site, to our bi-coastal data centers, and 
FRUSA can connect to their information from just about anywhere. We can pull these 
images from our data centers and restore them onto new servers. 

 
 

DATA STORAGE AND REDUNDANCY (CLOUD SITES) 
 
Servers are physically located in Chicago, IL USA.  
Ours are virtual servers built on RS's OpenStack infrastructure on that hardware. 
The implication of this is that our whole infrastructure is in one data center (except for 
Cloud Backups, which I believe are stored redundantly by RS). 
 
WEB-A: 

• Main site web server 
• Stores uploaded documents 
• Read-Only Database Replication 
• Database backups performed twice hourly 
• This server is backed up daily to a server image (Chicago Data Center) 
• All files on this server are backed up hourly (Cloud backup) 
• This server also uses an Attached Network Storage Partition where the 

database backups are stored. 

WEB-B: 
• Main Database Server 
• SSL Wrapper for theinspectionhub.com (points to main site for  
• This server is backed up daily to a server image (Chicago Data Center) 
• All files on this server are backed up hourly (Cloud backup) 

 
 

Page | 64AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



FINANCIAL REPORTING PROTOCAL 
 
Fire Recovery USA, LLC has developed a system for processing claims by fire 
departments for cost recovery related services rendered by those departments. Our 
software program called RecoveryHub controls this system. We have spent many years 
developing in this system and consider many elements of it proprietary as the policies, 
procedures and methodologies we use have been developed at substantial cost and 
have allowed the company to achieve one of the highest collection percentages in the 
industry. Therefore, while we will not share some aspects of our policies and procedures 
so as to provide that information to our competitors, we will provide the following 
overview of our policies and procedures. 

Prior to initiating billing for a client, we ensure the department’s fee structure is set up in 
accordance with all applicable laws and are in line with what is reasonable and 
customary for Emergency Services. In addition, we emphasize these claims should not 
be viewed as a profit center, but as a source of reimbursement for costs incurred by a 
fire department to respond to an emergency situation. We ensure the fee structure for 
each department is in line with the costs incurred by them to provide each covered 
service. 

As runs are submitted to us for submission to an insurance company, we review the 
documentation and use the rate structure for the applicable fire department to establish 
the total claim. We take all necessary precautions to make sure the filing with the 
insurance company is done in compliance with the established and approved rates. 

When filing a claim, we only file against the at-fault party (except in no-fault states). We 
have several ways to accomplish this goal. In many instances, we are provided with a 
copy of a police report, which will stipulate the at-fault party and will file a claim with the 
insurance company listed on the police report. When we don’t have a police report we 
will review the incident report provided by the fire department in an attempt to determine 
the at-fault party and in most instances we are successful in doing so. 

In those rare situations where the at-fault party can’t be determined, we will file a claim 
with one of the insurance companies involved and the insurance adjuster will help us 
determine if their insured was at fault. If their insured wasn’t at fault we will use this 
information to establish the at-fault party and file a claim with their insurance company. 
Our company will never file multiple claims at the same time with more than one 
insurance company for an accident. 

Once the at-fault party has been determined we telephone the applicable insurance 
company and file a claim against the at-fault party in the incident. The insurance 
company will provide us with the name, phone number and fax number of the adjuster 
assigned to the file. We will e-fax an invoice with the supporting documentation that 
provides the authority to file the claim. We will generally wait two to three weeks to 
contact the adjuster by phone to confirm receipt of our invoice and to inquire about 

Page | 65AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



payment (during this three-week period approximately 15-25% of claims will be paid 
without any contact). 

If the claim hasn’t been paid during the two-to-three-week window we will contact the 
adjuster again to get an update on the file. If we can’t reach the adjuster on this call, we 
will make every effort to contact someone in their office to confirm they have received 
the invoice and claim related materials. Once we talk to the adjuster we will find out if the 
claim will be paid, denied or delayed. If they say the claim will be paid, we will mark it a 
“payment approved” in our system and track it for payment. If it is denied, we request a 
denial letter. 

Once we receive the denial letter we review it to assure the denial is appropriate. If not, 
we will file a rebuttal letter with the adjuster. If it is delayed while liability is determined, 
we will ask for a time frame from the adjuster and then place the run on our calendar for 
follow-up. 

All runs are processed through our RecoveryHub system which tracks each run and 
places them on the calendar of one of our processors who will then follow the claim until 
it is resolved by payment or denial. If a run is denied it is up to the fire department to 
determine if they would like to further pursue the claim by billing the at-fault party direct 
or sending the run to a collection agency for final disposition. 

When a payment arrives, our staff will mark the invoice paid in RecoveryHub and note 
the pertinent information related to the payment in the system. Fire Recovery has a 
payment cycle that runs from the 25th of one month to the 24th of the next month. After 
the 24th of the month all accounts are reconciled for accuracy and checks are paid to 
the fire department and mailed to the department between the 4th and 7th of the next 
month. 

Each fire department client of Fire Recovery has 24 hours 365 day a year access to their 
account in RecoveryHub and can view all activity and generate reports on runs and 
payments. The system is totally transparent as to the activity related to each run with 
notes placed in the file each time a run is touched by Fire Recovery personnel. Fire 
Recovery provides unprecedented access to a fire department’s runs and the status of 
the Fire Recovery’s activity related to each run. 

 

Page | 66AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PROGRAM DETAIL 
 
EMERGENCY INCIDENT BILLING PROGRAM (Motor Vehicle Incidents, 
Technical Rescue, Helicopter Landing Zones, etc.) 
 
 
At The Scene of the Incident:  Your personnel will either log the data from the incident 
using your existing system protocol/reporting system, or via our paper-based “Incident 
Reports”. You can also log run information real time from the scene with iPad, tablet or 
PC as long as you have a real time connection to the Internet. It is the responsibility of 
the client to collect the billing data, including the name of the insurance 
companies of the parties involved. 
 
Upon Return to the Station:  We have the ability to harvest the billing data from most 
of today’s most popular RMS Systems. The link will harvest the data information directly 
into our RecoveryHub site.  
 
RecoveryLink is available only through Fire Recovery USA and is based on nationwide 
software that has been used in the fire service industry for the past 20 years.   Unlike 
most competitors’ exchange software, we don't attach anything to their system.  Our 
system is simply setup to "data dump" the public-record information from the incident 
into our secured system.  We do not download any HIPAA information and everything 
we receive is considered public record. 
 
 
After Submitting the Run: The claim begins its track through the billing and recovery 
process. By utilizing the advanced technology in RecoveryHub, we should be able to use 
the necessary billing data for most incidents without further contact with the client, 
depending on the quality of the information provided by your staff. We use the most 
advanced technology, including interfaces to multiple public databases, as well-as-an 
advanced skip-tracing system to fill in any missing incident or demographic information. 
Invoices and letters will be submitted to the insurer in the City’s name, and can include 
language specified by the City. 
 
Fire Recovery will facilitate the process of obtaining accident reports from the Cook 
County Sheriff’s Office to minimize the time crews spend on I80 gathering information.   
 
We work with the insurance companies involved and/or the police to determine who is 
responsible if necessary for payment. Virtually all of our interaction is with the at-fault 
individual and their insurance company. We will determine the existing claim number (or 
create a new claim with the insurance carrier), bill the individual and submit the claim to 
the insurance company, provide follow-up proof of laws, legal documents, and other 
information, and finally, recover the funds. 
 

Page | 67AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Invoices are faxed or emailed when possible and mailed only if necessary or required by 
the insurance company. Unlike Medical Transport Billing, there are no electronic filing 
capabilities for non-medical invoices to automobile insurance companies. 
 
Once an invoice has been submitted, our Processing Center Team members will 
produce letters, make phone calls, and perform any necessary follow-up on behalf of the 
City to ensure that maximum revenue is achieved for each incident. An invoice 
submitted more than 30 days from the incident date typically generates less revenue so 
we recommend your personnel gather as much information as possible at the scene in 
an effort to optimize your recovery. 
 
If denied, the claim then moves to our escalation team who responds to the reasons for 
the denial, provides the responsible party(s) of laws pertaining to the claim, and 
strategizes the most effective way to counter further denials of the claim. 
 
You always have 24/7 access to submitted runs, and you can view each call made on 
your behalf to collect the claim. No other competitor offers this level of transparency. 
 
 
Payment of Runs: On or before the 7th of each month, we issue a check for all 
payments received prior to the previous month’s cut-off date (typically the 24th), minus 
our collection fee. This payment will also include an itemized breakdown of what runs 
the check is paid against. 
 
AVERAGE COLLECTION RATES 
 
Overall Average / All Services = 70% to 90%, depending on the type of run  
 
 
All of the following collection rates are dependent on the quality of the billing data 
provided by the fire department and are listed assuming good data. 
 

Detail: 
 

• Fluid-based MVAs:  90% 
• Non-fluid-based MVAs:  30% 
• Vehicle Fires:  31% 
• Structure Fires:  42% 
• Other Fires:  30% 
• Water Incidents:  34% 
• Hazardous Materials Incidents:  60% 
• Special Rescue Incidents:  34% 
• Inspections/Permits – 97% 

 
 

Page | 68AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



The following page lists the data required to produce a 
strong claim for your services. The items in yellow are 

considered necessary by the insurance industry. 

Page | 69AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



DATA REQUIRED FOR A CLAIM  
 

 
Date:      Incident # ________________  
 
Fire Officer: 

 
  Alarm 

Time:  Cleared 
Time:   

Location: 
 
 

 

 
Vehicle #1 Vehicle #2 

Drivers Name:  Drivers Name:  

Street Address:  Street Address:  

City, State, Zip:  City, State, Zip:  

Phone Number:  Phone Number:  

Member or Resident:  Yes      No Member or Resident:  Yes      No 
Insurance Company:  Insurance Company:  

Policy #:  Policy #:  

Vehicle Make & Model/ License: Vehicle Make & Model/ License:  

REQUIRED For Extrication and Landing Zone 

Which party was extricated (circle):                                                    DRIVER  /  PASSENGER 
Extrication vehicle (Example: Honda, Ford, Dodge, etc.):                                                             
Which party was the landing zone established for (circle):                 DRIVER  /  PASSENGER 
Landing Zone established for which vehicle (circle):                          DRIVER  /  PASSENGER 
* Add other details in Narrative Section (below) 
REQUIRED For HAZMAT   (Trucking Incidents & High-Dollar HAZMAT Incidents) 
Name of the trucking company: 
Name of the driver: 
Name of the commercial insurance: 
DOT # (helpful, but not required): 
* Add other details in Narrative Section (below) 
 

Narrative:  (Please provide a brief description of duties performed):  

 

 

 

 

 

Apparatus On Scene:                                                                       Personnel On Scene:                 

Scene Procedures (Indicate all that apply): 

 Traffic Control  Fluids Mitigation   Helicopter Ops  Extrication with Tools 
 

 C-Spine   Ambulance Transport  Fire Suppression  Vehicle Fire 
 

 Heavy Rescue  Rope Rescue   Airbags   Debris Clean up 
 
 

Page | 70AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
 

Page | 71AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 72AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 73AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page | 74AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
 
 

 

Page | 75AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

PROPOSED TIMELINE 
 
 
PROPOSED TIMELINE:  
 
A timeline for accomplishing the scope of work identified in this proposal, estimating the 
amount of time it will take to complete each task. Unless advised otherwise by the Fire 
Department, our “System Implementation” plan is as follows: 
 
1. Upon receipt of a signed contract from the Client, Fire Recovery USA will request 
information in order to setup your account file in RecoveryHub. This information is 
required in order to facilitate the account setup. 
 

a. Information includes basic account information. 
b. Who will manage the project for the Fire Department  
c. Where checks are to be mailed, etc. 

 
2. Fire Recovery USA will need a contact for the Fire Department to install the link to 
your RMS software application (if applicable) to export the data automatically from 
your RMS Software. 
 
3. FRUSA will provide the information on how to submit runs into our system. Live 
training, a Zoom or Conference Call is available upon request (most clients need no 
more help the information we send). 
 
4. FRUSA will provide “printable” Run Reports (for use “on-site” during the billable event 
in order to collect the correct billing data). 
 
5. In most cases, our clients can begin billing within one to two weeks of receipt of your 
signed contract, depending on how fast our clients can schedule the training of their 
personnel. 
 
 
 
POTENTIAL ISSUES/CHALLENGES:  
 
Due to our vast knowledge and years of experience as the largest and most successful 
billing service in our industry, we foresee no issues or challenges in meeting or 
exceeding the goals of this project. Our systems have multiple levels of backups in order 
to minimize unexpected downtime. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page | 76AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

REFERENCES 
 
List below other organizations for which these or other similar services have been 
provided: 

 
Agency Name: Rural Metro Corporation 

Address: 8465 N. Pima Road 

City, State, Zip Code: Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

Population: 4,485,414 in coverage area 

Telephone Number: (602) 489-6540 

Contact Person: Matt Muse – matt.muse@gmr.net 

Service Dates:  3/2019 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

 

 

  

Agency Name: Clayton County Fire Department 

Address: 7810 Highway 85 

City, State, Zip Code: Riverdale, GA 30274 

Population: 259,524 

Telephone Number: (314) 645-3000 

Contact Person: Tim Sweat - tim.sweat@ccfes.org 

Service Dates:  11/2015 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

 

 

 

Agency Name: Orland Fire Protection District  

Address:  9788 W. 151 St. 

City, State, Zip Code:  Orland Park, IL 60462 

Population:  56,767 

Telephone Number: (708) 349-0074 

Contact Person:  Michael Schofield - m.schofield@orlandfire.org 

Service Dates:  4/2014 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

Page | 77AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Agency Name: Waukegan Fire Department 

Address: 1101 Belvidere Road 

City, State, Zip Code: Waukegan, IL 60085 

Population: 87,729 

Telephone Number: (847) 625-6339 

Contact Person: George Bridges - george.bridges@waukeganil.gov 

Service Dates:  7/2011 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

 

 

 

Agency Name: City of Elgin 

Address: 550 Summit St. 

City, State, Zip Code: Elgin, IL 60120 

Population: 112,456 

Telephone Number: (847) 931-6180 

Contact Person: Robb Cagann - cagann_r@cityofelgin.org 

Service Dates:  4/2012 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

 

 

 

Agency Name: Janesville Fire Department 

Address: 303 Milton Avenue 

City, State, Zip Code: Janesville, WI 53545 

Population: 63,479 

Telephone Number: (608) 755-3050 

Contact Person: Ernie Rhodes - rhodese@ci.janesville.wi.us 

Service Dates:  2/2010 to Present 

Launch Time:  One week 

 

Page | 78AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

COST / PRICING PROPOSAL 
 
Fire Recovery USA will provide the billing services as stated in the SOW for a flat 
percentage per collected claim. This will include faxing/mailing of all documents, 
invoices, postage, envelopes, telephone calls and follow up phone calls until the 
account is paid, posting and depositing of payments and reporting functions, etc.  
 
Total monies collected will be net, after any credit card processing fees (charged 
at 4%) or any collection agency fees. If Client submits a claim to Company and 
later wants to cancel the claim, Client may be subject to a billing fee. 
 
 
Fee: 22% of Gross Collected Revenue. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVENUE FORECAST 
 
Estimated GROSS Revenue = $137,088 
 
Estimated NET Revenue = $106,929 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTES:  
 

1. The Revenue Forecast assumes you’ll be submitting all billable runs.  
 
 
 
 
 

(See Following Page for Revenue Forecast Detail) 
 
 

Page | 79AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

  Emergency Incident Recovery Forecast
                While we cannot make guarantees for cost recovery,
                                the following is an estimated forecast.

Items
Incidents 
per Year

Percent 
Collected

Amt. 
Billed Totals

MVA (with fluids on ground) 217 90% @ $520 = $101,556
MVA (no fluids on ground) 217 30% @ $520 = $33,852
Vehicle Fires 0 20% @ $605 = $0
Landing Zones 0 60% @ $2,100 = $0
Fires 0 60% @ $500 = $0
Hazardous Conditions 4 60% @ $700 = $1,680
Special Rescue 0 60% @ $400 = $0
SUBTOTAL COLLECTED $137,088

TOTAL RETURNED TO THE FIRE DEPARTMENT (per year) $106,929

Based on Data from: 2021
Forecast Prepared on: 6/6/22

Tinley Park Fire Department

* Emergency Incident Billing typically takes up to two years for a full "At Plan" 
ramp up, therefore be advised Year 1 revenue may be as much as 50% lower 
than the ongoing revenues.

* This forecast is highly dependent on the client providing adequate billing data 
to enable us to meet our normal collection rates.  This will be reinforced during  
training. 

* Landing Zones only applies to temporary Landing Zone creation.

Page | 80AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VARIANCES 
 
 
A. 2.1.3 Reports must clearly differentiate between resident and non-resident customers. 
We do not offer this specific differentiation in our reports, however, we do 
distinguish resident and non-resident customers for billing purposes. 
 
 
 
B. 2.1.8 Must be capable of provide billing and customer data to the Village so integration is 
possible with existing (Tyler Eden) and future (BS&A) Financial systems. Yes, pricing and 
scope of project work to be determined. 
 
 
 
C. 3.1.1 Must be authorized to bill for EMS and fire rescue emergency services in the State 
of Illinois. We do not offer EMS Medical or Ambulance Transport billing. 
 
 
 
D. 3.2.1 Does the service support single sign on with Azure AD? Not at this time. 
 
 
 
F. 3.2.2 Is there an API available for Village use? Not at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 81AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



APPENDIX B – Requirements & Specifications 

 

Section 1 Billing 

1.1 Billing Requirements Yes No 

1.1.1 Must have ability to provide direct deposit of collected funds into the 

Village's bank account X  
1.1.2 Service must accept responsibility for customer billing inquires and 

complaints during regular business hours X  
1.1.3 Service must have ability to obtain insurance information from medical 

institutions should the information provided by the Village lack proper 

information X  
1.1.4 Upon receipt of the Village's data, service must review, prepare, and mail 

invoices to the customer within seven (7) business days X  
1.1.5 Mailing must include all necessary forms and information needed for 

payment processing X  
1.1.6 Must provide monthly statements informing customers of outstanding 

balances X  
1.1.7 Must be capable of billing per Village Ordinance (listed in Appendix C) X  

 

1.2 Billing Specifications Yes No 

1.2.1 The Village's current collection company is Municipal Collection Services 

LLC. Does the service have the ability to electronically submit bad debt 

accounts to aforementioned vendor? X  
 

Section 2 Data & Reporting 

2.1 Data & Reporting Requirements Yes No 

2.1.1 Must be able to electronically receive information from current Village 

Fire RMS system Fireworks by EPR X  
2.1.2 Must provide means for tracking submitted claims to ensure timely 

payments X  
2.1.3 Reports must clearly differentiate between resident and non-resident 

customers  X 

2.1.4 Must provide daily reporting capability which provides detailed activity 

including receipts, charges, adjustments, and total accounts receivable X  
2.1.5 Must provide reporting showing all transactions that effect General 

Ledger X  
  

Page | 82AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2.1.6 Must provide prompt, accurate monthly reporting which includes gross 

charges billed for the month minus contractual allowances, write-offs 

(abatement, dismissals, bankruptcies, and settlements), and refunds rolling up 

to the net ending accounts receivable balance due, trips per month, number 

of patients per month, gross charges per trip, cash collected per trip and net 

collection percentage per trip X  
2.1.7 Must prepare a financial summary showing “period to date” and “year to 

date” totals for charges, receipts, adjustments, net accounts receivable, total 

accounts, receivable, and collection percentage, and aging reports X  
2.1.8 Must be capable of provide billing and customer data to the Village so 

integration is possible with existing (Tyler Eden) and future (BS&A) Financial 

systems X  
2.1.9 Must ensure that all data collection, reporting, and billing methods 

comply with all current state and federal regulations X  
2.1.10 Must provide 24/7 online access to information & reports  

X  

2.1.11 Must have ability to provide data in actionable format (i.e. not PDF) 

regarding bills with no payment activity at either 90 or 120 days (to be 

determined by Village during implementation) so that past-due collection 

processes can commence, omitting customers with already established 

payment plans 

X  

 

Section 3 Technical/General 

3.1 Technical/General Requirements Yes No 

3.1.1 Must be authorized to bill for EMS and fire rescue emergency services in 

the State of Illinois                                                            Fire Only  X 

3.1.2 Must ensure proper security and confidentiality of patient information 

and records, as required by the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability 

Act of 1996 (HIPAA) x  
3.1.3 Must maintain generally accepted accounting procedures for the 

reconciling of all financial transactions x  
3.1.4 Provide a sample implementation plan (preferably of already provided 

reference) with projected activities and timelines, including all scheduled 

milestones x  

 

3.2 Technical/General Specifications Yes No 

3.2.1 Does the service support single sign on with Azure AD?  x 

3.2.2 Is there an API available for Village use?  x 

          3.2.2.1 If yes, list cost  
 

Page | 83AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

8 
 

 

PROPOSAL SHEET: 
 
Note: The Proposer must complete all portions of the Proposal Sheet. 
 
The undersigned, having examined the specifications and all conditions affecting the specified 
project, offer to furnish all services, labor, and incidentals specified for the price below. The 
undersigned bidder certifies that they are not barred from bidding on this contract as a result of a 
conviction for the violation of state laws prohibiting bid rigging or bid rotating and is not delinquent 
in any taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue. 
 
It is understood that the Village reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any 
irregularities and that the prices contained herein will remain valid for a period of not less than 
ninety (90) days. 
I (We) propose to complete the following project as more fully described in the specifications for the 
following: 
 
Proposing Company Name:  _____________________________________________________ 
 
 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE REIMBURSEMENT 

Required Items 
Fee for collections (enter as percent of amount collected)   

 
Optional Items 

Additional fees or charges (if present attach documentation 
explain costs in detail) 

 

 
 
 
INDEMNIFICATION:  The bidder hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless the 
Village against loss, damage, or expense from any suit, claim, demand, judgment, cause of action, or 
shortage initiated by any person whatsoever, arising or alleged to have arisen out of work described 
herein, except that in no instance shall the Bidder be held responsible for any liability, claim, 
demand, or cause of action attributable solely to the negligence of the Village.  
 
I hereby certify that the item(s) proposed is/are in accordance with the specifications as noted and 
that the prices quoted are not subject to change; and that  
 
____________________________ (Company Name) is not barred by law from submitting a bid to the 
Village for the project contemplated herein and is not delinquent in payment of any taxes to the 
Illinois Department of Revenue.  

Page | 84AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

Michael Rivera
Fire Recovery USA

Michael Rivera
22%

Michael Rivera
n/a

Michael Rivera
Fire Recovery USA



9 

COMPANY PROFILE WORKSHEET: 

Company Name: 

Street Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Name (Printed): 

Signature: 

Title: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

Date: 

Page | 85AGENDA - 12/19/2023, B... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

Michael Rivera
Fire Recovery USA

Michael Rivera
2271 Lava Ridge Court, Suite 120

Michael Rivera
Roseville, CA 95661

Michael Rivera
Mike Rivera

Michael Rivera
Chief Business Development Officer

Michael Rivera
(916) 238-8541

Michael Rivera
mike@firerecoveryusa.com

Michael Rivera
November 10, 2023



Interoffice

Memo
Date: December 15, 2023

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager

CC: Hannah Lipman, Asst. Village Manager

Subject: Staffing Agreement

With a continued leadership vacancy in the Finance Department, staff is expanding the services of 
GOVTemps. This individual is a former Finance Director from a neighboring community and will be 
providing temporary administrative leadership to the Finance Department in the following areas:

1. Provide financial guidance to the Finance Department and other members of 
Administration. 

2. Assist Finance staff in the annual audit, reporting, and related filings.
3. Assist in the process of assembling, preparing and monitoring the annual budget.
4. Revenue and incentive tracking.
5. Participation in meetings and discussions relevant to Village financial matters.
6. Assist in the evaluation and selection process for new ERP (enterprise resource 

program) financial, and related software applications. 
7. Provide any additional work as directed by the Village Manager. 
8. Assist in the screening and evaluation of Finance Director candidates. 

The rate for this service will be $126 per hour with a not to exceed amount of $75,000. Staff is 
recommending approval of this agreement.

Page | 86AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-154

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EMPLOYEE LEASING AGREEMENT WITH 
GOVTEMPS FOR PROVISION OF A FINANCE CONSULTANT

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 87AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-154

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EMPLOYEE LEASING AGREEMENT WITH 
GOVTEMPS FOR PROVISION OF A FINANCE CONSULTANT

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into a Professional Services Agreement with GovTemps, a true and correct 

copy of such Employee Leasing Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; 

and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
Village Clerk

Page | 88AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AGREEMENT WITH GOVTEMP
FINANCE CONSULTANT

Page | 89AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-154, “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EMPLOYEE LEASING 

AGREEMENT WITH GOVTEMPS FOR PROVISION OF A FINANCE CONSULTANT,” which was 

adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 90AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
1 

EMPLOYEE LEASING AGREEMENT 

THIS EMPLOYEE LEASING AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made by 
GOVTEMPS a division of MGT of AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC ("GovTemps”), and 
the VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK (the "Client"). GovTemps and the Client can be 
individually identified as a ("Party") and collectively as the ("Parties").  GovTemps and the 
Client agree as follows:  

 
 
 

SECTION 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

Section 1.01.  Assigned Employee.  The Client will lease certain employees of 
GovTemps, and GovTemps will lease to the Client, the personnel identified in attached Exhibit 
A, (the "Assigned Employee").  Exhibit A identifies the temporary position and/or assignment 
(the "Assignment") the Assigned Employee will fill at the Client, and it further identifies the 
base compensation for each Assigned Employee, as of the effective date of this Agreement.   
Exhibit A may be amended from time to time by a replacement Exhibit A signed by both 
GovTemps and the Client.  GovTemps, as the common law employer of Assigned Employee, has 
the sole authority to assign and/or remove the Assigned Employee, provided however, that the 
Client may request, in writing, that GovTemps remove or reassign the Assigned Employee. Any 
such request will not be unreasonably withheld by GovTemps. The Parties understand and 
acknowledge that the Assigned Employee is subject to the Client's day-to-day supervision. 

Section 1.02.  Independent Contractor.  GovTemps is and remains an independent 
contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner of, or joint venturer with, the Client.  GovTemps 
has no authority to bind the Client to any commitment, contract, agreement or other obligation 
without the Client’s express written consent.   

SECTION 2 
SERVICES AND OBLIGATIONS OF GOVTEMPS AND CLIENT 

Section 2.01.  Payment of Wages.  GovTemps will, to the extent applicable and/or 
required by law, timely pay the wages and related payroll taxes of the Assigned Employee from 
GovTemp’s own account in accordance with federal and Illinois law and GovTemps’ standard 
payroll practices.  GovTemps will withhold from such wages all applicable taxes and other 
deductions elected by the Assigned Employee.    The Client acknowledges that GovTemps may 
engage a financial entity to maintain its financing and record keeping services, which may 
include the payment of wages and related payroll taxes in accordance with this Section 2.01.  
The Client agrees to cooperate with any such financial entity to ensure timely payment of wages, 
related payroll taxes, and any applicable fees pursuant to this Section 2.01.  As to Assigned 
Employees, GovTemps will comply  with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, (Title VII), the Americans With 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the Equal 
Pay Act of 1963, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871 (42 U.S.C. § 1981), the Family and 

Page | 91AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
2 

Medical Leave Act of 1993, the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, the National Labor Relations 
Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) of 1974, and any other federal, 
state or local statute, state constitution, ordinance, order, regulation, policy or decision regulating 
wages and the payment of wages, prohibiting employment discrimination or otherwise 
establishing or relating to rights of Assigned Employee. 

Section 2.02.  Workers’ Compensation.  To the extent required by applicable law, 
GovTemps will maintain in effect workers’ compensation coverage covering its Assigned 
Employee’s work in an Assignment.   Any applicable coverage under this Agreement terminates 
on the Termination Date of this Agreement.  

Section 2.03.  Employee Benefits.  GovTemps will provide to Assigned Employee those 
employee benefits identified in the attached Exhibit B.  GovTemps may amend or terminate any 
of its employee benefit plans according to their terms.  All employee benefits, including 
severance benefits for Assigned Employee will be included in Fees payable to GovTemps under 
Section 3.01 of this Agreement.  

Section 2.04.  Maintenance and Retention of Payroll and Benefit Records.  
GovTemps will maintain records of all wages and benefits paid and personnel actions taken by 
GovTemps in connection with any of the Assigned Employee(s). GovTemps will retain control 
of such records and make them available for inspection as required by applicable federal, state or 
local laws.   

Section 2.05.  Other Obligations of GovTemps.  GovTemps will comply with any 
federal, state and local law applicable to its Assigned Employee(s).  GovTemps will comply with 
the requirements of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

Section 2.06.  Direction and Control.  The Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Client has the right of direction and control over the Assigned Employee, including matters of 
discipline, excluding removal or reassignment, as provided for by Section 1.01. The Assigned 
Employee(s) will be supervised, directly and indirectly, and exclusively by the Client's 
supervisory and managerial employees.  

Section 2.07.  Obligations of the Client.  Pursuant to this Agreement the Client 
covenants, agrees and acknowledges: 

(a) The Client will provide the Assigned Employee with a suitable workplace, 
that complies with US Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) statutes 
and regulations, and all other health and safety laws, regulations, ordinances, directives, 
and rules applicable to the Assigned Employee and the Assigned Employee’s workplace.   
The Client agrees to comply, at its expense, with all health and safety directives from 
GovTemps’ internal and external loss control specialists, GovTemps’ workers’ 
compensation carrier, or any government agency having jurisdiction over the place of 
work.  The Client will provide and ensure use of all functional personal protective 
equipment as required by any federal, state or local law, regulation, ordinance, directive, 
or rule or as deemed necessary by GovTemps’ workers’ compensation carrier.  
GovTemps and/or its insurance carriers have the right to inspect the Client’s premises to 

Page | 92AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
3 

ensure that the Assigned Employee is not exposed to an unsafe work place. GovTemps’ 
rights under this paragraph do not diminish or alter the Client’s obligations to the 
Assigned Employee under applicable law, or its obligations to GovTemps under this 
Agreement; 

(b) With respect to the Assigned Employee, the Client will comply with all 
applicable labor and employment-related laws and regulations, and any other federal, 
state or local statute, state constitution, ordinance, order, regulation, policy or decision, 
prohibiting employment discrimination, or otherwise establishing or relating to the terms 
and conditions of Assigned Employee’s Assignment; 

(c) The Client retains the right to exert sufficient direction and control over 
the Assigned Employee as is necessary to conduct the Client's business and operations, 
without which, the Client would be unable to conduct its business, operation or to comply 
with any applicable licensure, regulatory or statutory requirements; 

(d) The Client cannot remove or reassign the Assigned Employee unless 
mutually agreed to in writing by GovTemps and the Client in accordance with Section 
1.01 of this Agreement.  Client will timely confer with GovTemps regarding any concern 
or complaint regarding Assigned Employee’s performance or conduct under this 
Agreement; 

(e) The Client will not pay wages, salaries or other forms of direct or indirect 
compensation, including employee benefits, to Assigned Employee.  Client represents 
that its actions under this Agreement do not violate its obligations it may have under any 
collective bargaining agreement;  

(f) The Client must report to GovTemps any injury to any Assigned 
Employee of which it has knowledge within twenty-four (24) hours of acquiring such 
knowledge.  If any Assigned Employee is injured in the course of performing services for 
the Client, the Client must follow the procedures and practices regarding injury claims 
and reporting; and 

(g) The Client must report all on the job illnesses, accidents and injuries of the 
Assigned Employee to GovTemps within twenty-four (24) hours following notification of 
said injury by Assigned Employee or Assigned Employee’s representative.   

SECTION 3 
FEES PAYABLE TO GOVTEMPS 

Section 3.01.  Fees.  The Client will pay GovTemps fees for the services provided under 
this Agreement as follows: 

(a) The base compensation as fully identified on Exhibit A, as amended; plus 

(b) Any employee benefits GovTemps paid to the Assigned Employee as 
identified on Exhibit B (if applicable), including, but not limited to, salary; wages; 
commissions; bonuses; sick pay; workers’ compensation, health and other insurance 

Page | 93AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
4 

premiums; payroll, unemployment, FICA and other taxes; vacation pay; overtime pay; 
severance pay; monthly automobile allowances, and any other compensation or benefits 
payable under any applicable GovTemps pension and welfare benefit plan or federal, 
state or local laws covering the Assigned Employee. 

Section 3.02.   Increase in Fees. GovTemps may increase fees to the extent and equal to 
any mandated tax increases, e.g. FICA, FUTA, State Unemployment taxes, when they become 
effective.  GovTemps may also adjust employer benefit contribution amounts by providing the 
Client with a written thirty (30) day notice, provided, such changes in employer benefit 
contribution amounts apply broadly to all GovTemps employees. 

Section 3.03.  Payment Method.  Every two (2) weeks during the term of this 
Agreement, GovTemps will invoice in writing the Client for the fees owed under this 
Agreement.  Within thirty (30) days following receipt of such invoice, the Client must pay all 
invoiced amounts by check, wire transfer or electronic funds transfer to GovTemps to an account 
or lockbox as designated on the invoice.  Late payments will be subject to all applicable interest 
payments or service charges provided by state or local law. In addition to charging interest or 
service charges provided by applicable law, GovTemps may, upon written notice to Client, 
suspend performance of services under this Agreement while any amount due is past due and 
remains unpaid.   

SECTION 4 
INSURANCE 

Section 4.01.  General and Professional Liability Insurance.  The Client must 
maintain in full force and effect at all times during the term of this Agreement a Comprehensive 
(or Commercial) General Liability and Professional Liability (if applicable) insurance policy or 
policies (the "Policies"), with minimum coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, 
$3,000,000 aggregate.  In the alternative, as applicable, the Client may maintain in full force and 
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement a self-insured retention (“SIR”) which 
provides the same minimum coverage limits as set forth above.  In the event such SIR exists and 
applies to this Agreement, the Client agrees to fully discuss the SIR’s parameters with 
GovTemps and its relationship to the Policies. At a minimum, the Policies must insure against 
bodily injury and property damage liability caused by on-premises business operations, 
completed operations and/or products or professional service and non-owned automobile 
coverage. 

Section 4.02.  Certificate of Insurance.  Upon request, the Client will promptly issue to 
GovTemps one or more Certificates of Insurance, verifying the Client’s compliance with the 
provisions of Section 4.01.   

Section 4.03.  Automobile Liability Insurance.  If the Assigned Employee drives a 
Municipal or personal vehicle for any reason in connection with their Assignment, the Client 
must maintain in effect automobile liability insurance insuring the Assigned Employee, 
GovTemps and the Client against liability for bodily injury, death and property damage.  

Page | 94AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
5 

SECTION 5 
DURATION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Section 5.01.  Term and Effective Date.  The Effective Date of this Agreement is the 
date that this Agreement is last signed by GovTemps on the signature page (the “Effective 
Date”).  The period during which the Assigned Employee works at the Client is defined as the 
(“Term”).  The Term commences on the Effective Date and will continue for the period 
identified on the attached Exhibit A, or until it is terminated in accordance with the remaining 
provisions of this Section 5.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the date on which this 
Agreement expires and/or is terminated is the ("Termination Date"). 

Section 5.02.  Termination of Agreement for Failure to Pay Fees.  If the Client fails to 
timely pay the fees required under this Agreement, GovTemps may give the Client notice of its 
intent to terminate this Agreement for such failure and if such failure is remedied within ten 
(10) days, the notice will be of no further effect.  If such failure is not remedied within the ten 
(10) day period, GovTemps has the right to terminate the Agreement upon expiration of such 
remedy period.   

Section 5.03.  Termination of Agreement for Material Breach.  If either Party 
materially breaches this Agreement, the non-breaching Party must give the breaching Party 
written notice of its intent to terminate this Agreement for such breach and if such breach is 
remedied within ten (10) days, the notice will be of no further effect.  If such breach is not 
remedied within the ten (10) day period, the non-breaching Party has the right to immediately 
terminate the Agreement upon expiration of such remedy period. 

SECTION 6 
NON-SOLICITATION 

Section 6.01.  Non-Solicitation.  The Client acknowledges GovTemps’ legitimate 
interest in protecting its business for a reasonable time following the termination of this 
Agreement.  Accordingly, the Client agrees that during the Term of this Agreement and for a 
period of two (2) years thereafter, the Client will not solicit, request, entice or induce Assigned 
Employee to terminate their employment with GovTemps, and the Client will not hire Assigned 
Employee as a permanent or temporary employee.   

Section 6.02.  Injunctive Relief.  The Client recognizes that the rights and privileges 
granted by this Agreement are of a special, unique, and extraordinary character, the loss of which 
cannot reasonably or adequately be compensated for in damages in any action at law.  
Accordingly, the Client understands and agrees that GovTemps is entitled to equitable relief, 
including a temporary restraining order and preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, to 
prevent or enjoin a breach of Section 6.01 of this Agreement.  The Client also understands and 
agrees that any such equitable relief is in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other relief 
to which GovTemps can recover. 

Section 6.03.  Survival.  The provisions of Section 6 survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

Page | 95AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
6 

SECTION 7 
DISCLOSURE AND INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS 

Section 7.01.  Indemnification by GovTemps.  GovTemps agrees to indemnify, defend 
and hold the Client and its related entities or their agents, representatives or employees (the 
"Client Parties") harmless from and against all claims, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses 
("Losses") (a) arising out of GovTemps’ breach of its obligations under this Agreement, (b) 
related to the actions or conduct of GovTemps and its related business entities, their agents, 
representatives, and employees (the "GovTemps Parties"), taken or not taken with respect to the 
Assigned Employees that relate to events or incidents occurring prior or subsequent to the term 
of this Agreement, and (c) arising from any act or omission on the part of GovTemps or any of 
the GovTemps Parties.   

Section 7.02.  Indemnification by the Client. The Client agrees to indemnify, defend 
and hold the GovTemps Parties harmless from and against all Losses (a) arising out of the 
Client’s breach of its obligations under this Agreement, (b) relating to any activities or 
conditions associated with the Assignment, and (c) arising from any act or omission on the part 
of the Client or any of the Client Parties.    

Section 7.03.  Indemnification Procedures. The Party seeking indemnity (the 
"Indemnified Party") from the other Party (the "Indemnifying Party") pursuant to this Section 7, 
must  give the Indemnifying Party prompt notice of any such claim, allow the Indemnifying 
Party to control the defense or settlement of such claim and cooperate with the Indemnifying 
Party in all matters related thereto.  However, prior to the Indemnifying Party assuming such 
defense and upon the request of the Indemnified Party, the Indemnifying Party must demonstrate 
to the reasonable satisfaction of the Indemnified Party that the Indemnifying Party (a) is able to 
fully pay the reasonably anticipated indemnity amounts under this Section 7 and (b) will take 
steps satisfactory to the Indemnified Party to ensure its continued ability to pay such amounts.  In 
the event the Indemnifying Party does not control the defense, the Indemnified Party may defend 
against any such claim at the Indemnifying Party’s cost and expense, and the Indemnifying Party 
must fully cooperate with the Indemnified Party, at no charge to the Indemnified Party, in 
defending such potential Loss, including, without limitation, using reasonable commercial efforts 
to keep the relevant Assigned Employee available.  In the event the Indemnifying Party controls 
the defense, the Indemnified Party is entitled, at its own expense, to participate in, but not 
control, such defense.  The failure to promptly notify the Indemnifying Party of any claim 
pursuant to this Section will not relieve such Indemnifying Party of any indemnification 
obligation that it may have to the Indemnified Party, except to the extent that the Indemnifying 
Party demonstrates that the defense of such action was materially prejudiced by the Indemnified 
Party’s failure to timely give such notice.     

Section 7.04.  Survival of Indemnification Provisions.  The provisions of Section 7 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Page | 96AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
7 

SECTION 8 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 8.01.  Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended at any time and from 
time to time, but any amendment must be in writing and signed by all the Parties to this 
Agreement, except for changes to the fees provided for in Section 3. 

Section 8.02.  Binding Effect.  This Agreement inures to the benefit of and binds the 
Parties and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and assigns.  Neither Party may 
assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Agreement without the express written consent 
of the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Section 8.03.  Counterpart Execution.  This Agreement may be executed and delivered 
in any number of counterparts, each of which will be an original, but all of which together 
constitutes one and the same instrument.  This Agreement may be executed and delivered via 
facsimile or electronic mail.   

Section 8.04.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties regarding GovTemps’ placement of the Assigned Employee with the Client, 
and contains all of the terms, conditions, covenants, stipulations, understandings and provisions 
agreed upon by the Parties.  This Agreement supersedes and takes precedence over all proposals, 
memorandum agreements, tentative agreements, and oral agreements between the Parties, made 
prior to and including the Effective Date of this Agreement not specifically identified and 
incorporated in writing into this Agreement.  No agent or representative of either Party has the 
authority to make, and the Parties will not be bound by or liable for, any statement, 
representation, promise, or agreement not specifically set forth in this Agreement. 

Section 8.05.  Further Assurances.   The Parties will execute and deliver any and all 
additional papers, documents, and other assurances and do any and all acts and things reasonably 
necessary in connection with the performances of their obligations under this Agreement.  

Section 8.06.  Gender.  Whenever the context herein so requires, the masculine, 
feminine or neuter gender and the singular and plural number include the other. 

Section 8.07.  Section Headings.  Section and other headings contained in this 
Agreement are for reference purposes only and do not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

Section 8.08.  Severability.  If any part or condition of this Agreement is held to be void, 
invalid or inoperative, such shall not affect any other provision hereof, which will continue to be 
effective as though such void, invalid or inoperative part, clause or condition had not been made. 

Section 8.09.  Waiver of Provisions.  The failure by one Party to require performance by 
the other Party shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such breach, nor of any subsequent 
breach by the other Party of any provision of this Agreement, and shall not affect the validity of 
this Agreement, nor prejudice either Party’s rights in connection with any subsequent action.  
Any provision of this Agreement may be waived if, but only if, such waiver is in writing signed 
by the Party against whom the waiver is to be effective.   

Page | 97AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
8 

Section 8.10.  Confidentiality. Each Party will protect the confidentiality of the other’s 
records and information and must not disclose confidential information without the prior written 
consent of the other Party.  Each Party must reasonably cooperate with the other Party regarding 
any Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request calling for production of documents related to 
this Agreement. 

Section 8.11.  Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to contracts made and to be 
performed entirely within such state, except the law of conflicts.   

Section 8.12.  Force Majeure.  GovTemps will not be responsible for failure or delay in 
assigning its Assigned Employee to Client if the failure or delay is caused by labor disputes and 
strikes, fire, riot, terrorism, acts of nature or of God, or any other causes beyond the control of 
GovTemps. 

 

SECTION 9 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Section 9.01.   Good Faith Attempt to Settle.  The Parties will attempt to settle any 
dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, through good faith 
negotiation between the Parties.   

Section 9.02.  Governing Law/Jurisdiction.  If a dispute cannot be settled through good 
faith negotiation within thirty (30) days after the initial receipt by the allegedly offending party 
of written notice of the dispute, then the controversy or claim may be adjudicated by a federal or 
state court sitting in Cook County, Illinois.  Venue and jurisdiction for any action under this 
Agreement is Cook County, Illinois.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto will be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

Section 9.03.  Attorneys' Fees.  The Parties agree that, in the event of litigation under 
this Agreement, each Party is liable for only those attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by that 
Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 10  
NOTICES 

 
Section 10.01.  Notices.  All Notices given under this Agreement must be written and 

may be given by personal delivery, first class U.S. Mail, registered or certified mail return 
receipt requested, overnight delivery service, or electronic mail.   

Page | 98AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
9 

Notices will be deemed received at the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) days from 
mailing date.  Notices must be sent to the Parties at their respective addresses shown below.  A 
Party may change its address for notice by giving written notice to the other Party. 

 

 

If to GovTemps: GOVTEMPS/MGT CONSULTING 
 630 Dundee Road Suite 225 
 Northbrook, Illinois 60062 

Attention:  Michael J. Earl 
Telephone:  224-261-8366 
E-Mail: mearl@govhrusa.com 

 
 
If to Client: Village of Tinley Park 
 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
 Tinley Park, IL  60477 

Attention:  Pat Carr 
Telephone: (708) 444-5010 
E-Mail: pcarr@tinleypark.org 

 

    

[Signatures on following page]

Page | 99AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 

[Signature Page to Employee Leasing Agreement] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this Agreement on the Effective Date, 
which is the date this Agreement is last signed by GovTemps.  

 
GOVTEMPS, a division of MGT of 
AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC 
 
By    
 
Name: A. Trey Traviesa    
Title: CEO – GovTemps/MGT Consulting  
 
 
 

CLIENT 

By    
Name:  
Title:   

 
 
 

Page | 100AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 

Exhibit A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
Assigned Employee and Base Compensation 

 
 
ASSIGND EMPLOYEE: Ann Marie Mampe         

POSITION/ASSIGNMENT:   Finance Consultant             

TERM OF POSITION:  January 1, 2024 – June 28, 2024.  Agreement will  

automatically be extended on a bi-weekly basis unless either party provides two weeks   

advance written notice. 

Either party may terminate the agreement by providing two weeks advance written notice.     

BASE COMPENSATION: $126/hour. Hours per week will vary but are expected to average 

10-15 hours/week. Hours worked shall be communicated via email to 

payroll@govtempsusa.com by the close of business on the Monday after the prior work week. 

Client will be invoiced every other week and payment may be remitted via check or ACH.  

GOVTEMP/MGT CONSULTING   CLIENT: 
 
 
By:       By:      
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 
This Exhibit A fully replaces all Exhibits A dated prior to the date of the Company’s signature 
above.   

12/13/2023

Page | 101AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:payroll@govtempsusa.com


Leasing Agreement / Rev. 8-2019  
 
 

  
Exhibit B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
Summary of Benefits 

 
DOES NOT APPLY   

Page | 102AGENDA - 12/19/2023, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205015 12/5/2023 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 120523 FIRST CLASS PERMIT #6 - POSTAGE DUE FOR
01-35-000-72110 4,015.00

Total : 4,015.00

205016 12/8/2023 008882  3CMA 3172 INDIVIDUAL MEMBERSHIP - ANNUAL - DONNA F
01-35-000-72720 400.00

Total : 400.00

205017 12/8/2023 014472  AERO RUBBER COMPANY, INC. 120123 STORAGE SPACE RENTAL 12/1/23 THRU 12/1/2
60-00-000-75118 869.40VTP-020499
63-00-000-75118 869.40VTP-020499
64-00-000-75118 745.20VTP-020499

Total : 2,484.00

205018 12/8/2023 002734  AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 200420 EXTRICATION GLOVES
01-19-000-74619 1,800.00VTP-020433
01-19-000-74619 25.00
FIRECRAFT SAFETY GLOVE200422
01-19-000-74619 2,100.00VTP-020438
01-19-000-74619 15.00
FIREFIGHTER GLOVES200423
01-19-000-74619 2,100.00VTP-020436
01-19-000-74619 15.00
BUNKER GEAR - SCHARNHORST, TORNGA, MILLE200755
01-19-000-74619 10,629.00VTP-020166
01-19-000-74619 20.00
BUNKER GEAR - LOPEZ, O'HAGAN, HOGAN200756
01-19-000-74619 10,629.00VTP-020164
01-19-000-74619 20.00

Total : 27,353.00

205019 12/8/2023 002856  AIRY'S, INC 28466 6" FORCE SEWER MAIN BREAK - 8400 163RD S
60-00-000-72745 2,256.96
63-00-000-72745 2,256.96
64-00-000-72745 1,934.55
60-00-000-72745 81.75

1Page:

Page | 103AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205019 12/8/2023 (Continued)002856  AIRY'S, INC
64-00-000-72745 70.07
63-00-000-72745 81.75

Total : 6,682.04

205020 12/8/2023 021170  ALL AMERICAN AWARDS & APPAREL 20685 TABLE THROW - 8' DRAPED W/CUSTOM LOGO, 6
01-19-000-72524 600.00

Total : 600.00

205021 12/8/2023 020879  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 143J-RY9D-PN17 MECHANICS EQUIPMENT GREASE PUMP ORDER#11
60-00-000-73410 233.39VTP-020458
63-00-000-73410 25.93VTP-020458
01-26-023-73410 370.46VTP-020458
01-26-024-73410 185.24VTP-020458
64-00-000-73410 111.14VTP-020458
SPEEDBUMP/CABLE PROTECTOR ORDER #114-5811JKP-QFQ4-6K9F
01-35-000-73570 319.90
FIELD SURVEYING BOOK ORDER# 111-0416978-1K6D-61YP-HGCG
60-00-000-73110 8.66
63-00-000-73110 0.96
64-00-000-73110 4.12
01-26-023-73110 13.74
SNOW MACHINE FLUID ORDER# 113-9904725-621PV9-F6FR-7GLG
01-26-025-73870 29.98

Total : 1,303.52

205022 12/8/2023 016616  AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE 10994 EMS SERVICE AGREEMENT 11/1-11/30/23
01-21-000-72856 45,590.98

Total : 45,590.98

205023 12/8/2023 020071  AMSIVE LLC 568753 LATE NOTICES NOVEMBER 2023 - TP WATER BI
60-00-000-72310 261.36
64-00-000-72310 112.01
60-00-000-72110 446.29
64-00-000-72110 191.27
NOVEMBER '23 WATER BILLS568754
60-00-000-72110 2,349.03

2Page:

Page | 104AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205023 12/8/2023 (Continued)020071  AMSIVE LLC
60-00-000-72310 1,251.77
64-00-000-72110 1,006.73
64-00-000-72310 536.47

Total : 6,154.93

205024 12/8/2023 002756  APCO INTERNATIONAL INC. 1053522 FIRE SERVICE COMMUNICATIONS COURSE
01-21-210-72140 466.00VTP-020486

Total : 466.00

205025 12/8/2023 003015  BEHRENS, JERRY 112523 FY24 BENEFIT REIMBURSEMENT
01-14-000-72435 197.00VTP-019957

Total : 197.00

205026 12/8/2023 012511  BEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 02039420231110 ****5339 VILLAGE TINLEY PARK
01-16-000-74128 15.98

Total : 15.98

205027 12/8/2023 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV230114 VTP2348 - REMOVAL OF SPOILS ETC FROM REC
01-26-023-72890 150.00
60-00-000-73681 220.50
63-00-000-73681 24.50
64-00-000-73681 105.00

Total : 500.00

205028 12/8/2023 019360  BONDI, THOMAS 111323 REIM:  LUNCHES DURING 5 DAY TRAINING - P
01-17-220-72140 75.00

Total : 75.00

205029 12/8/2023 019256  BURWOOD GROUP INC PS-33576-R2R1 TOUCHBASE ON ADC UPGRADE, NETSCALER FIRM
01-16-000-72650 418.50

Total : 418.50

205030 12/8/2023 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC MZ04352 TRIPP 6FT DP TO HD ADAPTER
01-16-000-74128 31.02
POLY ENCOREPRO HW510 NA ROWNB26595
01-16-000-74128 204.66

3Page:

Page | 105AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 235.68205030 12/8/2023 003243 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC

205031 12/8/2023 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC 3-0059243 MTR SP589 NOLOCN - POLICE #5A
01-17-205-72540 34.98
CAB FILTER - UNIT #13-0059296
01-26-023-72540 13.25
64-00-000-72540 3.98
63-00-000-72540 2.32
60-00-000-72540 6.95
MTR FA1782A NOLOCN - STREET #493-0059333
01-26-023-72540 23.08
PRIME GUARD OIL - WATER #13-0059351
60-00-000-72540 15.34
63-00-000-72540 5.11
64-00-000-72540 8.77
HIGHT TEMP DOT - STREET #493-0059363
01-26-023-72540 12.70
MOTOR OIL, WINSHIELD WIPERS - WATER UNIT3-0059408
60-00-000-72540 17.18
63-00-000-72540 5.73
64-00-000-72540 9.81

Total : 159.20

205032 12/8/2023 003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG 188319 01.R160373.0002 INTERIM VILLAGE ENGINEER
64-00-000-72840 1,553.78
01.R160373.00008 POST 5 LIFT STATION RED188320
61-00-000-72840 510.00
01.R160373.00030 WESTERN PRESSURE ZONE-W188321
26-00-000-75708 1,020.00
01.R160373.00031 183RD ST OVERHEAD UTILI188322
20-00-000-75814 644.00
01.R160373.00036 POST 13 LIFT STATION IM188323
61-00-000-75320 2,506.90VTP-020110
01.R160373.0009B DESIGN & ENGINEERING FO188324
30-00-000-75905 18,179.55VTP-020328
01.R160373.D033B ENGINEERING SERVICES 10188325
62-00-000-75705 255.00VTP-020122

4Page:

Page | 106AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 24,669.23205032 12/8/2023 003137 003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG

205033 12/8/2023 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 4175605723 MATS - VH
01-26-025-72790 268.25
MATS - PD4175921228
01-26-025-72790 35.00

Total : 303.25

205034 12/8/2023 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810784702 ACCT#8771401810784702 7825 167TH ST 11/2
01-19-000-72517 101.51

Total : 101.51

205035 12/8/2023 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 2777112019 ACCT#2777112019 175TH & SANDLEWOOD DR 10
01-26-023-72510 104.59
ACCT#3214011009 16853 LAKEWOOD DR 10/25-3214011009
64-00-000-72510 253.34
ACCT#8363023007 179TH ST & 82ND AVE 10/28363023007
60-00-000-72510 206.72
63-00-000-72510 206.71

Total : 771.36

205036 12/8/2023 018234  CORE & MAIN LP U009781 METER COUPLINGS
60-00-000-73631 627.20
64-00-000-73631 268.80

Total : 896.00

205037 12/8/2023 003635  CROSSMARK PRINTING, INC 93320 PLUMBING INSPECTOIN APPROVAL LABEL/BLUE
01-33-000-72310 199.95

Total : 199.95

205038 12/8/2023 020338  DACRA TECH LLC DT2023-10-114 E-TICKETING SUBSCRIPTION FY24 - OCTOBER
01-16-000-72655 2,090.00

Total : 2,090.00

205039 12/8/2023 014690  DARLING INGREDIENTS  INC 13035371 KONA CAFE SERVICE FEE TRAP & SERVICE FEE
01-26-025-72520 983.25

Total : 983.25

5Page:

Page | 107AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205040 12/8/2023 018379  DM INDUSTRIAL JANITORIAL SERV 7720 JANITORIAL SERVICES AT POLICE DEPARTMENT
01-26-025-72525 3,720.00VTP-020345

Total : 3,720.00

205041 12/8/2023 003818  DOJE'S FORENSIC SUPPLIES 23722 LATENT LIFT PADS, 6 PACK
01-17-225-73550 327.45

Total : 327.45

205042 12/8/2023 004152  ECOLAB PEST ELIMINATION INC. 3914835 RODENT CEILING SERVICE - VH
01-26-025-72790 607.85
COCKROACH/RODENT PROGRAM - VH3914836
01-26-025-72790 86.48

Total : 694.33

205043 12/8/2023 004010  ED & JOE'S PIZZA 111423 MEETING WITH MAYOR AND DEVELOPER
01-12-000-72220 32.20
EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT - HALLOWEEN COSTUME120123
01-14-000-72974 275.08

Total : 307.28

205044 12/8/2023 019561  ENDLESS COMMUNICATIONS USA LLC DG-2308 PUSH TO TALK LTE DATA RADIO SVC 12/1-12/
01-42-000-72550 45.74

Total : 45.74

205045 12/8/2023 004177  FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION 8447547 KUSSMAUL INVERTOR FOR BATTALION 46
01-19-000-72540 1,690.00VTP-020511

Total : 1,690.00

205046 12/8/2023 004267  FIRST AYD CORP PSI638866 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
01-26-023-72540 90.43VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 22.83VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 111.93VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 55.96VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 58.76VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 19.59VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 33.58VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 67.10VTP-020238

6Page:

Page | 108AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205046 12/8/2023 (Continued)004267  FIRST AYD CORP
01-26-024-72540 33.56VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 35.23VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 11.74VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 20.13VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 78.86VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 39.44VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 41.40VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 13.80VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 23.66VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 26.97VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 13.49VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 14.16VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 4.72VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 45.22VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 47.48VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 15.83VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 27.12VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 72.77VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 36.38VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 38.20VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 12.73VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 21.84VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 223.94VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 111.97VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 117.57VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 39.19VTP-020238
64-00-000-72540 67.17VTP-020238
01-26-023-72540 48.86VTP-020238
01-26-024-72540 24.44VTP-020238
60-00-000-72540 25.56VTP-020238
63-00-000-72540 8.55VTP-020238

Total : 1,802.16

205047 12/8/2023 020800  FIRST RESPONDERS WELLNESS 18252 WELLNESS CHECKS FROM 11/2 AND 11/22 (12
01-17-220-72855 2,100.00VTP-020259

7Page:

Page | 109AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 2,100.00205047 12/8/2023 020800 020800  FIRST RESPONDERS WELLNESS

205048 12/8/2023 020821  FLAGS USA LLC 112854 3'X5' NYLON NAVY FLAG WITH POLE HEM
01-26-025-73112 285.00

Total : 285.00

205049 12/8/2023 015058  FLEETPRIDE 112786849 LUBE FILTER, SPIN ON FULL FLOW - STREET
01-26-023-72540 42.02

Total : 42.02

205050 12/8/2023 012941  FMP 50-4911754 UPPER REAR CONTROL ARMS - POLICE #23B
01-17-205-72540 309.86

Total : 309.86

205051 12/8/2023 011132  FORCE ENTERPRISES 059641 PRODUCTION OF 2024 LIFE AMPLIFIED CALEND
01-35-000-73210 4,112.58VTP-020483
01-35-000-73210 60.00

Total : 4,172.58

205052 12/8/2023 004224  FOREST VIEW FARMS 120123 CARRIAGE RIDES FOR THE HOLIDAY MARKET
01-35-000-72954 7,605.00VTP-020463

Total : 7,605.00

205053 12/8/2023 011611  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO. IN00646005 RADIO INSTALLATION:  WORKSITE: 278158 ED
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO INSTALLATION WORKSITE: 278159 EDENIN00646006
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
KEYPAD W/IR RECEIVER WORKSITE: 278159 EDIN00646007
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO MAINTENANCE FEES 11/2 - 11/30/23IN00646222
14-00-000-72750 9,096.50VTP-019960

Total : 12,123.50

205054 12/8/2023 020597  FOXIT CORPORATION IN23111417153200 FOXIT PDF EDITOR FOR INDIVIDUALS 13 WIND
01-16-000-72655 539.97

Total : 539.97

205055 12/8/2023 015355  GEOCON PROFESSIONAL SERV, LLC 202311008 22-G1417 REL TP OAK RIDGE CONSTRUCTOIN E

8Page:

Page | 110AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205055 12/8/2023 (Continued)015355  GEOCON PROFESSIONAL SERV, LLC
16-00-000-72840 601.00

Total : 601.00

205056 12/8/2023 010415  GERARD & ROBERTS CONSTR. INC. 23575 2024 BENCHES ON THE AVENUE BENCH PRODUCT
01-35-000-72923 6,985.00VTP-020388

Total : 6,985.00

205057 12/8/2023 015372  GIS CONSORTIUM 744 <GIS> - GISC SHARED INITIATIVES RENEWAL
01-16-000-72652 3,400.00
60-00-000-72652 2,142.00
63-00-000-72652 238.00
64-00-000-72652 1,020.00

Total : 6,800.00

205058 12/8/2023 015397  GOVTEMPSUSA LLC 4298428 A. MAMPE WEEKS ENDING 11/26/23
01-15-000-72790 535.50

Total : 535.50

205059 12/8/2023 019784  HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS LLC 647309-H OFFICE 365 SHAREPOINT SITES CDD
30-00-000-74159 508.75VTP-020271
OFFICE 365 SHAREPOINT SITES CDD648327-H
30-00-000-74159 277.50VTP-020271

Total : 786.25

205060 12/8/2023 018696  HENRY'S HOUSE OF DECORATED 1145 LIGHTNING X LXPB40 TACTICAL OVERNIGHT TU
01-19-000-73610 1,440.00
SPORT TEK ST860 QUARTER ZIP/ FIRE PREVEN1451
01-19-020-73610 52.00
PORT & CO T-SHIRTS NAVY - MALTESE LOGO 11500
01-19-000-73610 1,116.00

Total : 2,608.00

205061 12/8/2023 010238  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 113023 ****2304 COLOR CHANGING DIMMABLE LED STR
01-26-023-73870 18.53
****2304 METAL ROTATING AND POWERED CHRIWJ44612163
60-00-000-73870 63.42

9Page:

Page | 111AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205061 12/8/2023 (Continued)010238  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
63-00-000-73870 7.04
64-00-000-73870 30.21

Total : 119.20

205062 12/8/2023 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 8589297 DUMP CHARGES PER TON TKT#1079627
01-26-023-72890 349.70

Total : 349.70

205063 12/8/2023 005123  ILLINOIS FIRE INSPECTORS ASSOC 24114 2024 IFIA MEMBERSHIP DUES
01-19-020-72720 100.00

Total : 100.00

205064 12/8/2023 005186  INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM 30001854 M-65HC BATTERY - STREET #49
01-26-023-72540 123.00

Total : 123.00

205065 12/8/2023 005251  J AND R SALES AND SERVICE INC. 8431 CIRCLIP - MIN ORDER QTY =10, CHAIN LOOP
01-26-023-72530 181.89

Total : 181.89

205066 12/8/2023 005266  J.M.D. SOX OUTLET, INC. 20230532 WORK CLOTHES/KEVIN MCCARTHY
01-26-025-73610 19.95
WORK CLOTHES/MICHAEL SCHRAGE20230534
01-26-023-73610 154.62
WORK CLOTHES/DANIEL NUNEZ20230535
01-26-024-73610 254.97
WORK CLOTHES/ED CHAPIN20230547
01-26-023-73610 56.90
WORK CLOTHES/MICHAEL SCHRAGE20230550
01-26-023-73610 109.94

Total : 596.38

205067 12/8/2023 021253  KANE, MARK 102423 REIM:  HOTEL & MEALS 3 DAY MULTIPLE ASSA
01-17-220-72140 620.16

Total : 620.16

205068 12/8/2023 005379  KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD 238158 LGL SVC ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING MATTER ID

10Page:

Page | 112AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205068 12/8/2023 (Continued)005379  KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD
01-14-000-72876 1,677.00

Total : 1,677.00

205069 12/8/2023 020858  LEDDIN GROUP LLC 12518 LEADERSHIP LAB 20-99 LEARNERS, 1 YR LAB
01-12-000-72140 6,600.00

Total : 6,600.00

205070 12/8/2023 021252  LESSARD, MICHAEL 120623 OVERPAYMENT FOR CRIME FREE HOUSING 3 PRO
01-00-000-43025 50.00

Total : 50.00

205071 12/8/2023 007100  M. E.SIMPSON COMPANY, INC 41498 WATER ASSESSMENT PROGRAM - 11/20-11/30/2
60-00-000-72790 17,148.00VTP-020279
60-00-000-72513 3,675.00VTP-020279

Total : 20,823.00

205072 12/8/2023 013969  MAP AUTOMOTIVE OF CHICAGO 40-740130 BATTERY - POLICE
01-17-205-72540 -155.00
FILTER ASSY - POLICE STOCK40-741857
01-17-205-72540 387.72

Total : 232.72

205073 12/8/2023 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY 15030-137568 BRK LINE 3/16 NICOPP - STREET #49
01-26-023-72540 54.27

Total : 54.27

205074 12/8/2023 005645  MEADE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC. 706594 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE - NOVEMBER 20
01-26-024-72775 580.94

Total : 580.94

205075 12/8/2023 006074  MENARDS 47615 ACCT# 30860257 - 3/8 X 12 FO[ 2- SS FCT.
01-26-025-72520 26.54
ACCT# 30860257 11" BLACK CABLE TIE 1000,49081
01-26-023-73410 82.88
ACCT# 30860257 LAMPHOLDER - PLASTIC, 8X149097
01-26-025-72520 26.75
ACCT# 30860257 300CT ICICLE, BLUE, SANDI49109

11Page:

Page | 113AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205075 12/8/2023 (Continued)006074  MENARDS
60-00-000-73870 237.33
63-00-000-73870 26.37
64-00-000-73870 113.01
ACCT# 30860257 SPLASH RV MARINE 75 F A/F49140
01-26-025-72520 7.84
ACCT# 30860257 1-12 X 6" GALV NIPPLE, GA49156
60-00-000-73840 55.32
63-00-000-73840 18.44
64-00-000-73840 31.61
ACCT# 30860257 MISC PAINT/STAIN AQ, STAI49168
60-00-000-73870 6.93
63-00-000-73870 0.77
64-00-000-73870 3.30
ACCT# 30860257 VALUE PAINTER 3" TRIM, QS49202
01-26-025-72520 51.42
ACCT# 30860257 - RETURN 3/8 4X8 BCX UL Q49211
60-00-000-73870 -63.75
63-00-000-73870 -7.08
64-00-000-73870 -30.36
ACCT# 30860355 - DISPLAY ADAPT HDMI, BOW49367
01-19-000-73870 100.25

Total : 687.57

205076 12/8/2023 017063  MIDDLETON, ZACHARY 110323 REIM: LUNCH  - OPEN SOURCE INTELLEGENCE
01-17-220-72140 15.00

Total : 15.00

205077 12/8/2023 020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC 112147796 SERVICE CALL# 2305-0235 DAMPERS NOT OPEN
01-26-025-72530 418.00
SERVICE CALL# 2311-0267 PREV MAINT FIRE112147797
01-26-025-72530 418.00
SERVICE CALL# 2311-0063 *EMERGENCY* REPL112147798
01-26-025-72530 3,228.78
SERVICE CALL# 2311-0949 CLEARED PIPING F112147801
01-26-025-72530 1,129.00
SERVICE CALL# 2311-0246 - PREV MAINT PUM112147804

12Page:

Page | 114AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205077 12/8/2023 (Continued)020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC
01-26-025-72530 429.55
SERVICE CALL# 2310-1996 PREV MAINT POLIC112147808
01-26-025-72530 259.00
EXHAUST FAN FOR POST 2M42023199-01
60-00-000-72520 4,113.90VTP-020420
63-00-000-72520 4,113.90VTP-020420
64-00-000-72520 3,526.20VTP-020420

Total : 17,636.33

205078 12/8/2023 020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC 112148106 PROFESSIONAL PREVENTATIVE MAIN - FIRE ST
01-26-025-72530 696.25

Total : 696.25

205079 12/8/2023 019316  MINUTEMAN SECURITY, & LIFE SAFETY 98886 MAINTENANCE FOR LPR CAMERAS
01-16-000-72655 3,414.39VTP-020363

Total : 3,414.39

205080 12/8/2023 005720  MOKENA COMMUNITY PARK DISTRICT 111822 2022  MOWING TIMBERS POINTE PARK COST SH
01-26-023-72881 560.00
2023  MOWING TIMBERS POINTE PARK COST SH112923
01-26-023-72881 560.00

Total : 1,120.00

205081 12/8/2023 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 6599497001 LEAD-FREE "MC" SERIES WHEEL WEIGH, HEX N
60-00-000-72540 43.94
63-00-000-72540 14.64
64-00-000-72540 25.11
01-26-023-72540 92.34
01-26-024-72540 33.23
60-00-000-72540 4.53
63-00-000-72540 1.51
64-00-000-72540 2.58
01-26-023-72540 8.63
01-26-024-72540 4.34

Total : 230.85

13Page:

Page | 115AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205082 12/8/2023 015386  MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC 7041 GIS STAFFING SERVICE OCTOBER  '23
01-16-000-72652 9,270.00
60-00-000-72652 5,840.10
63-00-000-72652 648.90
64-00-000-72652 2,781.00

Total : 18,540.00

205083 12/8/2023 020251  NEOGOV INV-23811 NEOGOV SUBSCRIPTION FOR 9/23-9/24
01-12-000-72655 49,196.73VTP-020477

Total : 49,196.73

205084 12/8/2023 015723  NICOR 01981510009 ACCT#01981510009 METER#3968968 7780 W 18
01-26-025-72511 168.39
ACCT#06821610000 METER 2769335 6640 167T06821610000
60-00-000-72511 39.59
63-00-000-72511 39.59
64-00-000-72511 33.94
ACCT#09977410001 METER#5146885 7801 W 1909977410001
01-26-025-72511 480.49
ACCT#12213610004 METER#5031396 7825 W 1612213610004
01-26-025-72511 494.88
ACCT#53463710003 METER 2912216 18241 S 853463710003
01-26-025-72511 51.43
ACCT#54072310003 METER 5420864 16250 OAK54072310003
01-26-025-72511 1,180.15
ACCT#73675410002 METER 3561300 7800 183R73675410002
01-26-025-72511 1,450.80
ACCT#74433410003 METER 3575402 7700 W 1874433410003
01-26-025-72511 49.57
ACCT#83523710008 METER#3026205 7980 183R83523710008
01-26-025-72511 1,091.54
ACCT#96019958527 METER#4582666 7999 W TI96019958527
01-26-025-72511 269.14

Total : 5,349.51

205085 12/8/2023 012575  P & G KEENE ELECTRICAL 231941 REB DENSO STARTER - STREET #36 ICE & SNO
01-26-023-72540 265.00

14Page:

Page | 116AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 265.00205085 12/8/2023 012575 012575  P & G KEENE ELECTRICAL

205086 12/8/2023 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 071832/1 CUST#891431 - WASHER, MCH SCREW, FASTENE
60-00-000-73870 17.12
63-00-000-73870 1.90
64-00-000-73870 8.16
CUST#891432 - BRUSH TOUCH UP, STAPLE, SP071848/1
01-26-023-73870 58.59
CUST#891432 - MOUSE TRAP - SWEEPER #99071851/1
01-26-023-73870 3.67
CUST#891432 - CABLE TIE71862/1
01-26-023-73840 12.79
CUST# 89143 PWR STRIP 6 OUTLET GRN71866/1
01-26-025-73570 31.96

Total : 134.19

205087 12/8/2023 017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY 141550 4130.0001 LEGAL SVC VTP GENERAL MATTER T
01-14-000-72850 27,066.50
4130.0003 LEGAL SVC FOIA THRU 10/31//23141551
01-14-000-72857 6,193.50
4130.0022 LEGAL SVC NEW BREMEN TIF THRU141552
27-00-000-72850 3,930.00
4130.0025 LEGAL SVC TP 2019 NO CASH BID141553
01-14-000-72850 795.50
4130.0039 LEGAL SVC VOLLMER HARLEM ANNEX141554
01-14-000-72850 90.00
4130.0050 LEGAL SVC LINCOLN WAY 191 PROP141555
01-14-000-72850 60.00
4130.0057 TINLEY PARK PUSH TAX ENFORCEME141556
01-14-000-72850 5,762.00
4131.0002 TP & METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF141557
01-14-000-72855 107.50
4160.0001 LEGAL SVC VPT PROSECUTIONS THR141558
01-14-000-72858 4,343.00
4173-0009 LEGAL SVC J&J GAMING TP (2022-141559
01-14-000-72850 1,042.50
4173.0010 RIVEROAKS PROPERTIES V TINLEY141560

15Page:

Page | 117AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205087 12/8/2023 (Continued)017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72850 1,505.00

Total : 50,895.50

205088 12/8/2023 006735  PHOTOS BY RICK 5740 SANTA PHOTOS FOR HOLIDAY HAPPENINGS
01-35-000-72954 2,656.07

Total : 2,656.07

205089 12/8/2023 006499  PITNEY BOWES INC 120523 ACCT# 8000-9000-0107-6300 METER# 4W00-03
01-14-000-72110 1,686.84
01-33-300-72110 37.35
01-41-040-72110 177.08
01-13-000-72110 109.56
01-41-046-72110 24.57
01-17-217-72110 217.59
01-21-000-72110 0.63
01-35-000-72110 168.51
01-33-310-72110 2.52
01-41-056-72110 313.74
60-00-000-72110 280.85
64-00-000-72110 120.37

Total : 3,139.61

205090 12/8/2023 020299  POINT B COMMUNICATIONS INC INV-29459 VOTP ANNUAL WEBSITE HOSTING
01-35-000-72653 1,200.00

Total : 1,200.00

205091 12/8/2023 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 113023 PERMIT #6 - ADDITIONAL FUNDS TO COVER BI
60-00-000-72110 1,131.40
64-00-000-72110 484.89
PERMIT #6 - DECEMBER '23 WATER BILLS PAR245138
60-00-000-72110 1,214.70
64-00-000-72110 520.59
PERMIT #6 - DECEMBER '23 WATER BILLS - P245140
60-00-000-72110 1,033.21
64-00-000-72110 442.81

16Page:

Page | 118AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 4,827.60205091 12/8/2023 006507 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE

205092 12/8/2023 019583  PRECISE MRM LLC IN200-1045944 5MB FLAT DATA PLAN US WITH NAF OCTOBER '
01-26-023-72655 189.00

Total : 189.00

205093 12/8/2023 018110  PROVEN BUSINESS PRODUCTS 1106655 COPIER SERVICE CONTRACT #10365-1 11/4/22
01-16-000-72756 6,896.02
MONTHLY CONTRACT SVC AGREEMENT #10365-011108126
01-16-000-72756 1,013.50

Total : 7,909.52

205094 12/8/2023 006850  QUILL CORPORATION 35867949 CARDSTOCK
01-35-000-73110 50.90
32G FLASH DRIVES35884505
01-35-000-73110 46.72

Total : 97.62

205095 12/8/2023 006361  RAY O' HERRON CO INC 2309971 GOLD PLATED BADGE - CHIEF BADGES
01-17-205-73610 455.98

Total : 455.98

205096 12/8/2023 019199  RIMMY TOOLS 120523132332 6 1/2 DR 51/64 PENTAGON IMP SKT - PART B
60-00-000-73410 100.17
63-00-000-73410 11.13
64-00-000-73410 47.70

Total : 159.00

205097 12/8/2023 006974  RINGHOFER, WILLIAM 113023 FY24 BENEFIT REIMBURSEMENT
01-14-000-72435 720.38VTP-019964

Total : 720.38

205098 12/8/2023 013442  ROADSAFE-TRAFFIC SYSTEMS,INC 190967 TYPE 1 BARRICADES
01-26-023-73845 1,375.00VTP-020468

Total : 1,375.00

205099 12/8/2023 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING LTD. 23110440 21-R0306 TP CRANA HOMES DEV 80TH AVE & 1
01-14-000-72840 1,350.00

17Page:

Page | 119AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205099 12/8/2023 (Continued)006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING LTD.
22-R0503 TP MARRIOTT HOTEL 183RD ST SEPT23110441
01-14-000-72840 615.50
22-R0633 TP GAS N WASH (LAGRANGE &183RD)23110443
01-14-000-72840 808.50
22-R0690 TP QUEEN'S COURT FLW INVESTIGAT23110444
01-33-310-72840 1,615.00
23-R0412 TP SPLISH SPLASH CAR WASH RENOV23110448
01-14-000-72840 346.25
23-R0486 - TP PARK PLAZA - PHASE II - SE23110449
28-00-000-72840 674.50
23-R0615 TP ODYSSEY PHASE 7 THRU 10/9/2323110450
01-14-000-72840 3,543.00
23-R0656 TP NOVA CAFE 7231 W 171ST ST TH23110451
01-14-000-72840 951.25
23-R0553 TP BOWL - SEPTEMBER & OCTOBER 223110453
01-14-000-72840 2,956.50
17-R0296.04 TP OAK PARK AVE SIDEWALK 17123110498
18-00-000-72840 532.50
19-R0285.06 PROFESIONAL ENGINEERING SVS23110500
30-00-000-75905 19,850.00VTP-020330
19-R0866.04 TP 191ST ST & 80TH AVE - CE23110502
26-00-000-75706 2,715.00
21-R0320.02 TP DOG PARK PATH PHASE II EN23110507
33-00-000-75205 5,664.96
21-R0545.04 TP KIMBERLY HEIGHTS DRAINAGE23110508
65-00-000-75310 2,811.75
22-R0644.01 TP OAK RIDGE CONSTRUCTION EN23110509
16-00-000-72840 1,844.50
22-R0644-04 TP BROOKSIDE GLEN VILLAS CON23110510
28-00-000-72840 4,179.00
22-R0644-04 TP BROOKSIDE GLEN VILLAS CON23110511
01-14-000-72840 5,081.50
23-R0055 TP 2023 MISC ENGINEERING SVC 9/23110513
01-26-023-72840 1,663.00
65-00-000-72840 404.00
23-R0591 TP VARIOUS EV CHARGING STATIONS23110518

18Page:

Page | 120AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205099 12/8/2023 (Continued)006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING LTD.
71-00-000-75816 2,157.50

Total : 59,764.21

205100 12/8/2023 013234  ROMEOVILLE FIRE ACADEMY 2023-673 COMPANY FIRE OFFICER 1 TRAINING, OFFICER
01-19-000-72145 1,200.00

Total : 1,200.00

205101 12/8/2023 016334  RUSH TRUCK CENTERS 3033908075 RETURN#196612 - KT SHOE, KIT BRAKE SHOE
01-26-023-72540 -106.40
HOSE RAD PERMIUM, CLAMP ASSY HOSE, STREE3034406751
01-26-023-72540 80.45
BLOWER ASSEMBLY 12V NAVIST - WATER UNIT3035196506
60-00-000-72540 110.25
63-00-000-72540 36.75
64-00-000-72540 63.00

Total : 184.05

205102 12/8/2023 017575  RZESZUTKO, JUSTIN 111323 REIM:  5 DAY TRAINING DELLEBRITE CCO/CCP
01-17-225-72140 559.32

Total : 559.32

205103 12/8/2023 007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 8732554 PORTAPOTTIES FOR HOLIDAY MARKET
01-35-000-72954 1,358.00VTP-020415
FIREMAN TRAINING CENTER - BASIC RESTROOM8751299
01-19-000-72750 225.90

Total : 1,583.90

205104 12/8/2023 020511  SIERRA ITS 1793 DESKTOP TECH RAQUEL BRINSON 10/29, CALEB
01-16-000-72790 2,013.62VTP-020425

Total : 2,013.62

205105 12/8/2023 007393  SOUND SONIC INC 120423 BINGO HOST FOR SENIORS 12/4/23
01-41-056-72937 175.00

Total : 175.00

205106 12/8/2023 020680  SPEEDWAY LLC 3000013423 NOVEMBER '23 PD CAR WASH
01-17-205-72540 375.00

19Page:

Page | 121AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 375.00205106 12/8/2023 020680 020680  SPEEDWAY LLC

205107 12/8/2023 017891  STAMBAUGH, KYLE 111723 REIM:  LUNCHES DURING 5 DAY TRAINING - P
01-17-220-72140 75.00

Total : 75.00

205108 12/8/2023 012238  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3552844973 CREDIT - TR WHT - NO RESHIP ORIG INV#355
01-17-205-73110 -23.99
ENV 6X9 SS BRON 28# 100CT, JACKET LET 2I3552844974
01-17-205-73110 349.02

Total : 325.03

205109 12/8/2023 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S007469448.001 LEVER NUT, 2 3 COND TERMINAL BLOCK, SCRE
60-00-000-72528 29.04
63-00-000-72528 29.03
LEVER NUT, 2 3 5 COND TERMINAL BLOCK, SCS007469448.002
60-00-000-72528 35.64
63-00-000-72528 35.64
LEVER NUT, 2 COND TERMINAL BLOCKS007469448.003
60-00-000-72528 9.28
63-00-000-72528 9.28
COP BUTT SPLICE, WIRE TERM, WIRE CRIMPERS007472255.001
01-26-024-73570 212.54

Total : 360.45

205110 12/8/2023 011038  STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION INC. 5295 NEW LENOX METER VAULT PROJECT PPAY REQUE
26-00-000-75706 109,646.39VTP-019966

Total : 109,646.39

205111 12/8/2023 021249  STUDENT TRANSPORTATION OF 70216527 TRANSPORTATION RIBFEST - 183RD & VETERAN
01-35-000-72923 5,586.00
TRANSPORTATION RIBFEST - 183RD ST & VETE70229687
01-35-000-72923 4,189.50
TRANSPORTATION RIBFEST - 183RD ST & VETE70229690
01-35-000-72923 5,586.00
TRANSPORTATION RIBFEST - TRIP ID# 12216870229691
01-35-000-72923 5,586.00

20Page:

Page | 122AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 20,947.50205111 12/8/2023 021249 021249  STUDENT TRANSPORTATION OF

205112 12/8/2023 007205  SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC. 220490 DISINFECTANT BY PRODUCTS + COURIER SERVI
60-00-000-72865 1,267.00
63-00-000-72865 543.00

Total : 1,810.00

205113 12/8/2023 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 593218 TUBE ASSY, FUEL - POLICE UNIT E9K
01-17-205-72540 29.44
WIRE ASSY - POLICE UNIT #5A593573
01-17-205-72540 23.00
REPLACEMENT ENGINE 14B 1FM5K8AR4HGA63001695150
01-17-205-72540 3,780.40VTP-020063

Total : 3,832.84

205114 12/8/2023 000645  TED'S GREENHOUSE INC 527703 HOLIDAY WALK DECOR
01-35-000-73112 3,500.00

Total : 3,500.00

205115 12/8/2023 021180  THE HUMAN RACE SPORTS INC 105 BLANKET P.O. FOR UNIFORMS-SHOES
01-19-000-73610 840.00VTP-020513

Total : 840.00

205116 12/8/2023 018724  THE LOCKER SHOP 118413 TINLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT PATCH - RED/WHITE
01-19-000-73610 8.58

Total : 8.58

205117 12/8/2023 007886  THEODORE POLYGRAPH SERVICE 8397 PRE-EMPLOYMENT - ANTHONY LEFKO - POLICE
01-41-040-72846 200.00
PRE-EMPLOYMENT - JOSE CARRANZA, GEORGE D8411
01-41-040-72846 600.00
PRE-EMPLOYMENT - PATRICK PROCTOR - POLIC8435
01-41-040-72846 200.00
PRE-EMPLOYMENT - DOMINIC WISTOCKI, RYAN8438
01-41-040-72846 400.00

Total : 1,400.00

205118 12/8/2023 014854  THOMSON REUTERS-WEST PYMNT CTR849368326 CLEAR LAW ONLINE/SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION C

21Page:

Page | 123AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205118 12/8/2023 (Continued)014854  THOMSON REUTERS-WEST PYMNT CTR
01-17-225-72852 237.57

Total : 237.57

205119 12/8/2023 007691  TINLEY PARK CHAMBER/COMMERCE 121123 JINGLE & MINGLE HOLIDAY PARTY - 4 IN ATT
01-11-000-72220 35.00
01-12-000-72220 35.00
01-33-000-72220 35.00
60-00-000-72220 10.29
63-00-000-72220 1.96
64-00-000-72220 5.25
01-26-023-72220 17.50

Total : 140.00

205120 12/8/2023 011359  TINLEY PARK FOOD PANTRY 120523 DONATIONS RECEIVED AT THE HOLIDAY HAPPEN
84-00-000-20199 394.19

Total : 394.19

205121 12/8/2023 019712  TM TIRE CO INC 155041 FLAT REPAIR - STREET LOADERS 112 RR AND
01-26-023-72530 322.50

Total : 322.50

205122 12/8/2023 016634  TOTAL PARKING SOLUTIONS INC 106514 PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC PARKING METERS
71-00-000-75815 47,750.00VTP-020383
30-00-000-75909 8,550.00VTP-020383

Total : 56,300.00

205123 12/8/2023 013203  TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. 4831 23-057 HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE IMP
30-00-000-75905 94,325.00VTP-020353

Total : 94,325.00

205124 12/8/2023 002613  UNITED HEALTHCARE AARP AARP-PPPR100123 FY24 MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT BILLING
01-14-000-72435 7,973.96VTP-019965

Total : 7,973.96

205125 12/8/2023 020421  VERIZON CONNECT FLEET USA LLC 31200050168 VEHICLE TRACKING SUBSCRIPTION  10/1 - 10
01-26-023-72790 871.45
VEHICLE TRACKING SUBSCRIPTION 11/1-11/3036600047673

22Page:

Page | 124AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
23

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205125 12/8/2023 (Continued)020421  VERIZON CONNECT FLEET USA LLC
01-26-023-72790 871.45

Total : 1,742.90

205126 12/8/2023 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9949212717 ACCT 280481333-00001 DATA 10/14-11/13/23
11-00-000-72127 115.83
01-11-000-72127 144.04
01-12-000-72127 72.02
01-13-000-72127 36.01
01-15-000-72127 36.01
01-16-000-72127 252.07
01-17-220-72127 1,620.62
01-17-205-72127 324.15
01-19-000-72127 756.70
01-19-020-72127 108.03
01-21-210-72127 252.07
01-26-023-72127 546.29
01-26-025-72127 144.04
01-33-000-72127 324.09
01-35-000-72127 36.01
60-00-000-72127 272.24
63-00-000-72127 30.25
64-00-000-72127 129.63
ACCT 2804813333-00003 MOBILE  SVC 10/14-9949212718
11-00-000-72120 84.30
01-11-000-72120 86.67
01-12-000-72120 84.30
01-13-000-72120 94.30
01-16-000-72120 164.46
01-17-205-72120 5,702.69
01-19-000-72120 347.20
01-19-020-72120 170.97
01-21-210-72120 126.45
01-26-023-72120 1,180.71
01-26-024-72120 143.56
01-26-025-72120 304.53
01-33-000-72120 426.50

23Page:

Page | 125AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
24

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205126 12/8/2023 (Continued)011416  VERIZON WIRELESS
01-35-000-72120 47.15
60-00-000-72120 427.18
63-00-000-72120 47.46
64-00-000-72120 203.42
ACCT#442345192-00001 WATER REPEATER 10/29949926840
60-00-000-72127 17.79
63-00-000-72127 17.79
64-00-000-72127 15.25

Total : 14,892.78

205127 12/8/2023 012009  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 120423 FUNDS NEEDED - CRIME SUPPRESSION UNIT/IN
10-00-000-72790 1,000.00

Total : 1,000.00

205128 12/8/2023 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC 5618641-0 COPY PAPER - PD
01-17-205-73110 359.60
COPY PAPER - PD5618642-0
01-17-205-73110 314.65
TONER - F/LJ 1320 HULD, BK - PW5620378-0
01-26-025-73110 215.69
COPY PAPER - VH5622403-0
01-14-000-73110 269.70
DESK CALENDAR, WALL CALENDAR5622722-0
60-00-000-73110 49.22
63-00-000-73110 5.47
64-00-000-73110 23.43
01-26-023-73110 78.13
01-26-024-73110 39.08

Total : 1,354.97

205129 12/8/2023 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1612022 N.I., GAS USED 11/8-11/22/23
01-17-205-73530 7,137.44
01-19-000-73530 661.56
01-19-020-73530 38.59
01-21-000-73530 416.33
60-00-000-73530 702.33

24Page:

Page | 126AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
25

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205129 12/8/2023 (Continued)011055  WARREN OIL CO.
63-00-000-73530 175.58
64-00-000-73530 376.25
01-26-023-73530 1,003.06
01-26-024-73530 483.40
01-33-300-73530 161.92
01-12-000-73530 59.77
01-14-000-73532 29.88
01-14-000-73531 3,664.86
14-00-000-73530 36.71
01-42-000-73530 450.07
DIESEL FUEL USED 11/3-11/22/23W1612023
01-19-000-73545 1,259.87
60-00-000-73545 328.77
63-00-000-73545 82.19
64-00-000-73545 176.12
01-26-023-73545 1,405.19
01-26-024-73545 173.14
01-14-000-73531 314.72

Total : 19,137.75

205130 12/8/2023 008221  WILLE BROTHERS COMPANY 380021 168TH & CRYSTAL CT,  4000 PSI READY MIX
60-00-000-73770 547.71
63-00-000-73770 60.86
64-00-000-73770 260.81

Total : 869.38

Bank total : 791,057.27116 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

25Page:

Page | 127AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
26

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4748 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ENCOMPASS SPECIALTY NETWORK
01-14-000-72542 89.74

Total : 89.74

4749 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210421W008 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 329.50

Total : 329.50

4750 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP220811W019 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 107.50

Total : 107.50

4751 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP190326W026 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 2,587.00

Total : 2,587.00

4752 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200505W003 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 967.50

Total : 967.50

4753 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210902W013 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 9,223.50

Total : 9,223.50

4754 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP220112W046 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 5,009.08

Total : 5,009.08

4755 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP211022W021 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 3,809.75

Total : 3,809.75

4756 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002 PAYEE-VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
60-00-000-72542 961.09
63-00-000-72542 183.06
64-00-000-72542 490.35

Total : 1,634.50

26Page:

Page | 128AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
27

 1:30:28PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4757 12/6/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP2107|2008 PAYEE-GENEX SERVICES, LLC
60-00-000-72542 15.18
63-00-000-72542 2.89
64-00-000-72542 7.74
60-00-000-72542 5.66
63-00-000-72542 1.08
64-00-000-72542 2.88
01-14-000-72542 8.67

44.10

23,802.1710 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

Total :

Bank total : 

Vouchers in this report126

27Page:

Page | 129AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 2:07:33PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ap_py

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

120823 12/8/2023 004640  HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION 120123 MEDICAL BENEFITS DECEMBER - DECEMBER FY2
86-00-000-20430 413,937.06VTP-020474

Total : 413,937.06

126415 12/8/2023 006209  NCPERS -IL IMRF 3683122023 NCPERS BENEFIT BILLING DEC-MAY FY24
86-00-000-20430 624.00VTP-020476

Total : 624.00

126416 12/8/2023 020790  TEXAS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY SB0DBM20231113001 ANCILLARY LIFE INS BILLING DEC-MAY FY24
86-00-000-20430 870.52VTP-020478

Total : 870.52

126417 12/8/2023 020793  TRANSAMERICA LIFE INSURANCE 2505192659 ANCILLARY LIFE INS BILLING DEC-MAY FY24
86-00-000-20430 89.50VTP-020457

Total : 89.50

126418 12/8/2023 017391  VSP ILLINOIS 819223501 VISION BENEFITS BILLING DECEMBER-DECEMBE
86-00-000-20430 3,228.10VTP-020479

Total : 3,228.10

Bank total : 418,749.185 Vouchers for bank code : ap_py

1Page:

Page | 130AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/08/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 2:07:33PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

120823 12/8/2023 004640  HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION 120123. MEDICAL BENEFITS DECEMBER - DECEMBER FY2
01-14-000-72430 37,868.79VTP-020474
01-14-000-72435 91,203.72VTP-020474

Total : 129,072.51

205131 12/8/2023 006209  NCPERS -IL IMRF 7720122023 NCPERS BENEFIT BILLING DEC-MAY FY24
01-14-000-72435 80.00VTP-020476

Total : 80.00

205132 219223501. VISION BENEFITS BILLING DECEMBER-DECEMBE
01-14-000-72430 419.30VTP-020479

Total : 419.30

Bank total : 129,571.81

1,363,180.43Total vouchers :

12/8/2023 017391  VSP ILLINOIS

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

2Page:

Page | 131AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205133 12/15/2023 015570  A CUT ABOVE TREE & STUMP E138172 TREE REMOVAL - 16900 NEW ENGLAND AVE - R
01-26-023-72790 2,200.00VTP-020428
TREE REMOVAL - 17247 67TH AVE - REMOVALE138196
01-26-023-72790 1,475.00VTP-020506

Total : 3,675.00

205134 12/15/2023 010955  A T & T LONG DISTANCE 827776689 CORPORATE ID931719 LB TIP LINE 12/3/23-1
01-17-225-73600 79.17

Total : 79.17

205135 12/15/2023 002734  AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 200847 NEW HIRE BUNKER GEAR
01-19-000-74619 1,760.00VTP-020496
01-19-000-74619 15.00

Total : 1,775.00

205136 12/15/2023 020879  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 11D3-Y9RF-X6VN HIGHLIGHTERS,EXPOS,SHARPIES ORDER# 111-4
01-14-000-73110 98.22
CELLOPHANE WRAP ORDER# 111-7461281-7517011K3-J9H6-9X1K
01-26-023-73870 -88.47
WOMENS UNIFORM SHIRTS11LF-VHVP-N6C6
01-19-020-73610 82.32
INK PAD, STAMP, MANILA ENVELOPES,INDEX C19RJ-JCCP-XRG4
01-14-000-73110 120.14
MAGNETS ORDER# 111-6768357-74634451DDG-YKHC-TKY6
60-00-000-73110 3.87
63-00-000-73110 0.43
64-00-000-73110 1.85
01-26-023-73110 6.15
01-26-024-73110 3.08
GOLF UMBRELLAS ORDER# 113-0248734-8114621DLP-93FP-4QPW
01-35-000-72982 170.43
JABRA CORDED SPEAKERPHONE ORDER# 114-5571GPL-XFLM-G1WC
01-16-000-74128 111.90
TAPE, ENVELOPES, PAPER ORDER# 111-9154201JNY-QGHV-HQK9
01-19-000-73110 59.07
LENOVO THINKPAD CHARGER ORDER# 114-862861JNY-QGHV-PL9J

1Page:

Page | 132AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205136 12/15/2023 (Continued)020879  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.
01-16-000-74128 18.89
FILE ORGANIZERS ORDER# 111-9659533-780981KRH-MG9L-FRXQ
01-19-000-73110 32.61
COFFEE PODS & NAPKIN DISPENSER ORDER# 111Q6C-CJVC-VCPL
01-33-000-73115 81.85
CELLOPHANE WRAP ORDER# 111-7461281-751701V4M-1TCP-D1G6
01-26-023-73870 -29.49
MONTHLY PLANNER RETURN ORDER#112-80981941WHP-LDVX-VDND
01-15-000-73110 -9.70
FOLDING TABLE ORDER# 111-0948705-94922581YDP-XKGV-3MNW
01-19-000-72524 169.18

Total : 832.33

205137 12/15/2023 020879  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 14WT-DJRX-6LK1 JABRA BLUETOOTH SPEAKERPHONE ORDER# 114-
01-16-000-74128 108.95

Total : 108.95

205138 12/15/2023 002628  AMERICAN WATER 4000272492 DECEMBER  '23 FLAT MONTHLY FEE
64-00-000-73225 455.67

Total : 455.67

205139 12/15/2023 014936  AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN 125295 IRRIGATION, INSPECTIONS, REPAIRS - WINTE
01-26-025-72790 257.00VTP-020173
IRRIGATION, INSPECTIONS, REPAIRS - WINTE125301
01-26-025-72790 244.00VTP-020173

Total : 501.00

205140 12/15/2023 018219  AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. INUS208820 TASER CARTRIDGES
01-17-220-74628 2,954.50VTP-020481

Total : 2,954.50

205141 12/15/2023 003166  B & J TOWING AND AUTO REPAIR 23757 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 11/3/23
60-00-000-72266 53.90
63-00-000-72266 53.90
64-00-000-72266 46.20
01-26-023-72266 35.00

2Page:

Page | 133AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205141 12/15/2023 (Continued)003166  B & J TOWING AND AUTO REPAIR
01-26-024-72266 53.00

Total : 242.00

205142 12/15/2023 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P65382954 RAYALC-CP 1.5V ALKALINE BATTERY
01-17-205-73600 35.28

Total : 35.28

205143 12/15/2023 016817  BEVERLY SNOW AND ICE INC 67208 MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT - PLOWING  11/26-1
01-26-023-72785 19,755.00VTP-020376

Total : 19,755.00

205144 12/15/2023 003127  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD IL065LB000001212-0 FY24 MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT BILLING COVERAG
01-14-000-72435 6,563.00VTP-019962

Total : 6,563.00

205145 12/15/2023 019214  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF IL ILLB1212 FY24 MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT BILLING
01-14-000-72435 2,589.00VTP-019963

Total : 2,589.00

205146 12/15/2023 021262  CATANIA, MELISSA Ref001444603 UB Rfnd Cst #00460425, refund duplicate
60-00-000-20599 69.17

Total : 69.17

205147 12/15/2023 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC NG24716 BLACK TONER - MAYORS PRINTER
01-16-000-74128 103.51
TONERS - MAYOR'S PRINTERNG26056
01-16-000-74128 444.03
ACER 20IN LED MONITORNG81694
01-16-000-74128 77.91
TRIPP POWER STRIP 12 OUTLETNH72813
01-16-000-74128 83.38
LENOVO THINKPAD - LVO X1 C11NH91032
01-16-000-74128 1,935.98
TRIPP POWER CORDNL59113
01-16-000-74128 22.04

Total : 2,666.85

3Page:

Page | 134AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205148 12/15/2023 014026  CHANDLER SERVICES CORPORATION 29710 PIERCE VELOCITY - LINE, COOLANT SUPPLY,
01-19-000-72540 1,079.13

Total : 1,079.13

205149 12/15/2023 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC 3-0059382 CABIN FILTER - FIRE #2301
01-19-000-72540 26.50
SPARK PLUGS - POLICE UNIT #1A3-0059438
01-17-205-72540 34.98
PLENUM CHAMBER - POLICE STOCK3-0059493
01-17-205-72540 9.60
SPARK PLUGS - POLICE STOCK3-0059497
01-17-205-72540 34.98

Total : 106.06

205150 12/15/2023 017349  CHICAGO STREET CCDD, LLC 25469 DUMP FEE 11/21/23
01-26-023-72890 160.00

Total : 160.00

205151 12/15/2023 018325  CHICAGO TRIBUNE COMPANY LLC 083566305000 ACCT# CU00027575  CLASSIFIED ADS 11/1-11
01-14-000-72330 1,791.00
01-33-310-72330 238.51

Total : 2,029.51

205152 12/15/2023 018325  CHICAGO TRIBUNE COMPANY LLC 74072186 ACCT #74072186 DAILY SOUTHTOWN SUNDAY-FR
01-14-000-72720 114.99

Total : 114.99

205153 12/15/2023 013150  CHRISTIANSEN FARMS LLC 09944 YARD LEAVES 11/17, 11/20, 11/22
01-26-023-72890 1,800.00

Total : 1,800.00

205154 12/15/2023 003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG 188455 ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ODYSSEY LIGHTIN
30-00-000-75500 13,845.61VTP-020523

Total : 13,845.61

205155 12/15/2023 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 4175921339 MATS - PW GARAGE
01-26-025-72790 440.21
MATS - PD4176632377

4Page:

Page | 135AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205155 12/15/2023 (Continued)013820  CINTAS CORPORATION
01-26-025-72790 35.00

Total : 475.21

205156 12/15/2023 020527  CITY ESCAPE GARDEN & DESIGN 12663 MOWING - NOVEMBER - PAY APPLICATION #15
01-26-023-72881 4,744.00VTP-019983
LANDSCAPE PLANTERS - WINTER PLANTERS & N12664
01-26-023-72881 14,228.26VTP-020019

Total : 18,972.26

205157 12/15/2023 021052  COLEMAN, MICHAEL 120723 REIM: ICC ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP - BUILDING S
01-33-300-72720 347.00

Total : 347.00

205158 12/15/2023 017298  COMCAST BUSINESS 188807646 ACCT 930890410 VILLAGE HALL FIBER INTERN
01-16-000-72125 982.95

Total : 982.95

205159 12/15/2023 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810170142 ACCT#8771401810170142 16250 OPA 11/21-12
01-16-000-72125 249.85

Total : 249.85

205160 12/15/2023 018311  CONNECTION 74717790 H251N-CD HEADSET
01-16-000-74128 189.72
SMART BUY DESKTOP WORKSTATION Z4 G5 TWR74723278
01-16-000-74128 2,210.32
FLASH DRIVES - 6 128GV USB 3.2 GEN, 4 2574792077
01-17-225-73600 106.46VTP-020480
PW - PLOTTER INK - MAGENTA74792088
60-00-000-73110 21.10
63-00-000-73110 2.34
64-00-000-73110 10.05
01-26-023-73110 33.49
01-26-024-73110 16.75
FLASH DRIVES - 233 32GB FLASH DRIVE USB74792657
01-17-225-73600 775.89VTP-020480

Total : 3,366.12

5Page:

Page | 136AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205161 12/15/2023 018234  CORE & MAIN LP U033567 MISC MATERIAL - 1-1/2 WESTERN CB REPAIR
60-00-000-73630 30.73
63-00-000-73630 3.42
64-00-000-73630 14.63

Total : 48.78

205162 12/15/2023 018152  CORE INTEGRATED MARKETING 128530 HOLIDAY MARKET STAGE BANNER
01-35-000-72954 139.69

Total : 139.69

205163 12/15/2023 013121  CRITICAL REACH, INC. 3596 2024 APBNET ANNUAL SUPPORT FEE
01-17-225-72655 995.00

Total : 995.00

205164 12/15/2023 003635  CROSSMARK PRINTING, INC 93372 VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT FORM - 4 PART
01-17-205-72310 565.00
HOLIDAY CARD - INSERT, ENVELOPE, SEAL93430
01-35-000-72310 5,065.08

Total : 5,630.08

205165 12/15/2023 020338  DACRA TECH LLC DT2023-11-114 E-TICKETING SUBSCRIPTION FY24 - NOVEMBER
01-16-000-72655 2,090.00

Total : 2,090.00

205166 12/15/2023 018456  DEL GALDO LAW GROUP  LLC 33169 LEGAL SVC 11/1-11/30/23
01-14-000-72857 215.00
18-00-000-72850 322.50
20-00-000-72850 2,226.25
01-14-000-72850 913.75
LABOR & EMPLOYMENT 11/1 - 11/20/2333170
01-14-000-72855 1,988.75

Total : 5,666.25

205167 12/15/2023 003822  DIXON ENGINEERING INC. 23-1401 IL2023TWS-5376 - POST 1 OVERFLOW PIPE RE
62-00-000-75702 9,500.00VTP-020056

Total : 9,500.00

205168 12/15/2023 021172  ELECTRIC ONE INC 7267 STATION 20 ANTENNA - METRA 80TH AVE STAT

6Page:

Page | 137AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205168 12/15/2023 (Continued)021172  ELECTRIC ONE INC
30-00-000-75812 16,661.00

Total : 16,661.00

205169 12/15/2023 020508  ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT FBN4902578 DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 10C, 680
30-00-000-96142 178.56
30-00-000-96141 349.27
01-21-000-72863 46.73
30-00-000-96141 293.63
30-00-000-74226 4,075.77
30-00-000-96142 138.44
01-21-000-72863 46.73
30-00-000-96141 399.00
30-00-000-96142 197.11
01-21-000-72863 34.18
DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 26SLDC (60-E), 275FBN4902581
30-00-000-96141 446.75
30-00-000-96142 263.71
01-26-024-72863 42.17
30-00-000-96141 554.09
30-00-000-74225 3,119.00
30-00-000-96142 369.62
01-26-024-72863 81.72
30-00-000-96141 557.85
30-00-000-96142 365.86
01-26-024-72863 81.72
DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 63E, 16S, 20W, 86WFBN4915070
30-00-000-96141 430.73
30-00-000-96142 388.42
01-26-023-72863 35.72
60-00-000-20201 326.66
60-00-000-74220 195.94
60-00-000-72863 46.35
60-00-000-20201 329.30
60-00-000-96142 197.53
60-00-000-72863 46.73
60-00-000-20201 513.43

7Page:

Page | 138AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205169 12/15/2023 (Continued)020508  ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT
60-00-000-96142 165.47
60-00-000-72863 43.28
30-00-000-96141 386.90
30-00-000-96142 213.04
01-26-023-72863 35.73
30-00-000-96141 387.92
30-00-000-96142 178.12
01-26-023-72863 32.43
60-00-000-20201 375.52
60-00-000-96142 108.76
60-00-000-72863 42.03
30-00-000-96141 454.49
30-00-000-96142 161.73
01-12-000-72863 43.09
30-00-000-96141 418.81
30-00-000-96142 146.11
01-26-023-72863 39.97
60-00-000-20201 375.52
60-00-000-96142 108.76
60-00-000-72863 42.02
01-26-024-72863 35.72
30-00-000-96141 432.10
DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 2D, 12D, 2-C, 4D,FBN4915104
30-00-000-96141 410.12
30-00-000-96142 207.88
01-17-205-72863 37.73
30-00-000-96141 386.53
30-00-000-96142 165.49
01-17-205-72863 31.85
30-00-000-96141 412.25
30-00-000-96142 227.52
01-17-205-72863 38.46
30-00-000-96141 452.85
30-00-000-96142 161.54
01-17-205-72863 42.93
30-00-000-96141 404.42

8Page:

Page | 139AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205169 12/15/2023 (Continued)020508  ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT
30-00-000-96142 223.27
01-17-205-72863 37.73
DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 26Z7V8 (73) BLDG,FBN4915124
30-00-000-96141 323.66
30-00-000-96142 195.95
01-33-000-72863 46.35
30-00-000-96141 326.25
30-00-000-96142 197.57
01-33-000-72863 46.73
DEC '23 ENT FLT MGMNT 2302 F, 2301 FFBN4915233
30-00-000-96141 532.85
30-00-000-96142 304.94
01-19-000-72863 50.73
30-00-000-96141 549.21
30-00-000-96142 327.54
01-19-000-72863 52.62
30-00-000-96141 532.85
30-00-000-96142 304.94
01-19-000-72863 50.73

Total : 25,463.73

205170 12/15/2023 004119  ETP LABS INC. 23-136996 COLIFORM SAMPLES
60-00-000-72865 921.20
63-00-000-72865 394.80

Total : 1,316.00

205171 12/15/2023 010437  FBI - LEEDA 200096168 ELI - HOBART IN 1/2024
01-17-220-72140 795.00

Total : 795.00

205172 12/15/2023 004176  FEDEX (FEDERAL EXPRESS) 8-338-53006 ACCT#2022-6845-2 SHIPPING COSTS FROM 12/
01-13-000-72110 59.55

Total : 59.55

205173 12/15/2023 020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK 0000114817 ****2177 MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS
60-00-000-72720 199.88

9Page:

Page | 140AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
63-00-000-72720 199.88
64-00-000-72720 171.33
01-26-023-72720 1,713.27
01-26-024-72720 198.64
****2177 183TH ACCIDENT 081823054655
01-17-225-73600 1,319.50
****2177 PARADE OF LIGHTS CANDY10113255120
01-35-000-72954 347.75
****2177 TOWELS, TIDE, DRYER SHEETS, TEA103123
60-00-000-73115 29.82
63-00-000-73115 29.82
64-00-000-73115 25.56
01-26-023-73115 85.22
01-26-023-73110 11.02
01-26-024-73115 42.61
01-26-024-73110 5.51
01-26-025-73580 121.66
60-00-000-73110 6.94
63-00-000-73110 0.77
64-00-000-73110 3.35
****2177 GIFT CARDS FOR PUMPKIN CONTEST110123
01-35-000-72923 75.00
****2177 GIFT CARDS FOR PUMPKIN CONTEST110123
01-35-000-72923 60.00
****2177 RECOGNITION PLAQUE110123
01-14-000-73110 117.50
****2177 JOB POSTING FINANCE DIRECTOR110323
01-14-000-72448 35.00
****2177 JOB POSTING FINANCE DIRECTOR110323
01-14-000-72448 250.00
****2177 POLICE DOG FOOD110323
01-17-220-72240 89.99
****2177 PAPER TOWEL, 3 COMP HLC110323
01-26-025-73580 157.26
****2177 BALLOONS FOR 100TH BIRTHDAY110423
01-42-000-72954 55.00

10Page:

Page | 141AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 TEABAGS, NAPKINS, BATTERIES, CU110723
60-00-000-73110 6.29
63-00-000-73110 0.70
64-00-000-73110 3.00
60-00-000-73115 17.18
63-00-000-73115 17.18
64-00-000-73115 14.73
01-26-023-73110 9.99
01-26-023-73115 49.09
01-26-024-73110 5.00
01-26-024-73115 24.54
****2177 CLOROX WIPES, BOWLS, PEANUTS, P110823
01-14-000-73115 21.76
01-17-205-73600 256.24
****2177 COMMISSIONER HOLIDAY PARTY110923
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION COMMISSI111323
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION COMMISSI111323
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 TRAINING PD111323
01-17-220-72140 325.00
****2177 PLATES, PLASTICWARE, NAPKINS, B111423
60-00-000-73115 42.27
63-00-000-73115 42.27
64-00-000-73115 36.23
01-26-023-73115 37.28
01-26-024-73115 18.64
01-26-025-72520 99.98
01-26-025-73115 83.51
****2177 ALL STAFF MEETING111423
01-14-000-72974 400.00
****2177 VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION COMMISSI111423
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 GIFT CARDS VOLUNTEER APPRECIATI111423
01-14-000-72975 100.00

11Page:

Page | 142AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 GIFT CARDS VOLUNTEER APPRECIATI111423
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 SAMSUNG TV111423.
01-21-210-74111 428.00
****2177 COMMISSION HOLIDAY PARTY RAFFLE111523
01-14-000-72975 100.00
****2177 ALL STAFF MEETING111623
01-14-000-72974 375.00
****2177 PAPERTOWEL DISPENSERS111723
01-26-025-72520 308.58
****2177 GIFT CARDS112123
01-14-000-72974 100.00
****2177 TOURISM TPCC112123
01-35-100-73870 232.46
****2177 GIFT CARDS112123
01-14-000-72974 100.00
****2177 GIFT CARDS112123
01-14-000-72974 100.00
****2177 WATER, POP, BAGGIES, PLATES, TI112123.
60-00-000-73115 32.58
63-00-000-73115 32.58
64-00-000-73115 27.93
01-26-023-73115 93.09
01-26-024-73115 46.54
****2177 EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY PARTY RAFFLE112223
01-14-000-72974 100.00
****2177 GIFT CARDS112223
01-14-000-72974 150.00
****2177 CHICAGO TRIBUNE MONTHLY RECURRI112723
01-35-000-72720 34.00
****2177 POSTAGE HEALTHCARE SERVICES112823
01-14-000-72110 57.50
****2177 MEMBERSHIP S. RIVERA112823
01-15-000-72720 45.00
****2177 CONFECTIONERY SUPPLIES112823
01-41-056-72954 158.82

12Page:

Page | 143AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
64-00-000-73115 6.27
63-00-000-73115 7.32
60-00-000-73115 7.32
01-26-024-73115 10.46
01-26-023-73115 20.95
****2177 EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY PARTY RAFFLE112823
01-14-000-72974 99.90
****2177 WATER, CUTLERY, PLATES, COPY PA112923
01-21-000-72220 31.92
01-21-210-73110 100.68
01-21-000-73110 39.87
****2177 CONFECTIONERY SUPPLIES112923.
01-26-025-73580 30.87
01-14-000-73115 114.34
01-26-024-73115 7.14
01-26-023-73115 14.26
60-00-000-73115 4.99
63-00-000-73115 4.99
64-00-000-73115 4.28
****2177 TREE LIGHTING CEREMONY CAROLERS1188
01-35-000-72954 150.00
****2177 US NAVY 3X5160078
01-26-025-73112 87.12
****2177 PROFESSIONAL PLAN - ANNUAL 11/12073151695
01-35-000-72720 588.00
****2177 ADOBE STOCK2195241668
01-35-000-72720 79.99
****2177 BENNINGTON PEN26290562
01-35-000-73210 258.68
****2177 WILL CTY CTR ECON DEV ANNUAL RE26745
01-33-320-72170 35.00
****2177 COFFEE GRINDER, ESPRESSO GRINDE44825
30-00-000-75909 -477.94
****2177 RECERTIFY 1 DISCIPLINE556421
01-21-210-72140 270.00
****2177 MEMBERSHIP S. RIVERA567504

13Page:

Page | 144AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
01-15-000-72720 195.00
****2177 THINKPAD XI YOGA GEN,  PREMIER6466112858
01-16-000-74128 3,309.62
****2177 C MITERA  ICSC TRADE SHOW6QYDK
01-33-000-72170 492.07
****2177 ADVERTISING FEE7099
01-35-100-72983 900.00
****2177 ADVERTISING FEE7109
01-35-100-72983 300.00
****2177 MICROPHONES ON TABLES IN COUNCI902581435
01-26-025-72530 -55.97
****2177 ACCT#8310012334811 VILL OF TP L9068003808.
01-11-000-72120 83.41
01-12-000-72120 83.41
01-14-000-72120 83.41
01-15-000-72120 83.41
01-16-000-72120 83.41
01-17-205-72120 83.41
01-21-000-72120 83.41
01-26-023-72120 83.41
01-26-024-72120 83.41
01-26-025-72120 83.41
01-33-000-72120 83.41
01-35-000-72120 83.41
01-42-000-72120 83.41
60-00-000-72120 53.23
63-00-000-72120 5.89
64-00-000-72120 25.54
01-19-000-72120 83.41
****2177 C.ZEMAITIS LICENSED PROF ENG RE973288
01-26-023-72720 51.13
60-00-000-72720 30.68
63-00-000-72720 5.73
64-00-000-72720 14.71
****2177 MARKETING COMMISSION D MELCHERT98661480
01-41-046-72220 165.76

14Page:

Page | 145AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 6714 165TH SE2330713240
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 6714 165TH SE2330713242
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 6714 165TH SE2330729100
01-14-000-72355 93.17
****2177 16807-13-37-38 81ST AVEE2331106287
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 8124, 8130, 8158 169TH STE2331106291
01-14-000-72355 93.17
****2177 16825 81ST CTE2331106293
01-14-000-72355 93.17
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 17031 S OZARE2332406441
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 17600 67TH CE2332506314
01-14-000-72355 93.17
****2177 COOL TOOLS MEETING - URBANSKI,F67E20T1
60-00-000-72170 31.50
63-00-000-72170 31.50
64-00-000-72170 27.00
****2177 ACTIVE SHOOTER AND MENTAL WELLNFDTC-0003
01-19-000-72145 620.00
****2177 FOXIT PDF EDITOR FOR INDIVIDUALIN23111417153200.
01-16-000-72655 573.72
****2177 PROMOTINGKJC7UU39G2
01-35-000-72653 150.00
****2177 PROMOTINGM34P9WF8G2
01-35-000-72653 50.00
****2177 PROMOTINGMJK76W78G2
01-35-000-72653 50.00
****2177 PROMOTINGR2GUBW78G2
01-35-000-72653 150.00
****2177 M GLOTZ ICSC TRADE SHOWS56DK
01-11-000-72170 492.07
****2177 3200 SINGLE PULL BAGSTinley2
01-26-023-73681 278.00

15Page:

Page | 146AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205173 12/15/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 P CARR ICSC TRADE SHOWVSVDK
01-12-000-72170 475.06
****2177 D FRAMKE ICSC TRADE SHOWZKXDK
01-35-000-72170 492.07

Total : 22,386.66

205174 12/15/2023 020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK 110323 ****2177 HALLOWEEN PARTY TIP
01-41-056-72954 15.00
****2177 CC LATE FEE112823
01-14-000-72315 29.00
****2177 CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION MAIL596723233
01-13-000-71127 9.65
****2177 PROMOTINGZA3QKVX7G2
01-35-000-72653 25.00

Total : 78.65

205175 12/15/2023 020800  FIRST RESPONDERS WELLNESS 18364 PRE-EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EXAM - DOMINI
01-41-040-72846 585.00

Total : 585.00

205176 12/15/2023 012941  FMP 52-553096 2001 CHEV TAHOE - ACTUATOR TEMP VL - EMA
01-21-000-72540 54.97
FVP BRAKE ROTOR - POLICE STOCK52-553807
01-17-205-72540 279.00
2015 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR UTILITY - B55-554028
01-17-205-72540 31.82

Total : 365.79

205177 12/15/2023 021254  FOR YOU APPETITO 120523 REPAYMENT FOR STAFF FOOD VOUCHERS DURING
01-35-000-72954 510.00

Total : 510.00

205178 12/15/2023 021260  GOEDERT, THOMAS 121223 REFUND OF SPECIAL USE APPLICATION PERMIT
01-14-000-79015 500.00

Total : 500.00

16Page:

Page | 147AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205179 12/15/2023 004538  GOLDY LOCKS INC 44072790 MEDECO DUPLICATE KEY
01-26-025-72520 75.00

Total : 75.00

205180 12/15/2023 021244  GOOD KARMA BROADCASTING LLC 508770a TOURISM RADIO CAMPAIGN 12/4-12/31/23
01-35-100-72983 8,020.00VTP-020532

Total : 8,020.00

205181 12/15/2023 004493  GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC. 768203654 CREAMER, PEPSI - ACCOUNT # 605500021
01-17-205-73315 12.98
01-12-000-72220 7.99

Total : 20.97

205182 12/15/2023 015397  GOVTEMPSUSA LLC 4302443 A. MAMPE WEEKS ENDING 12/3 & 12/10/23
01-15-000-72790 1,449.00

Total : 1,449.00

205183 12/15/2023 015198  GREEN PROMOTING LLC 16874 REORDER OF TOURISM HOSPITALITY BAGS
01-35-100-73870 968.00VTP-020484
01-35-100-73870 104.95

Total : 1,072.95

205184 12/15/2023 019784  HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS LLC 649780-H OFFICE 365 SHAREPOINT SITES CDD
30-00-000-74159 231.25VTP-020271
OFFICE 365 SHAREPOINT SITES CDD655628-H
30-00-000-74159 138.75VTP-020271

Total : 370.00

205185 12/15/2023 021261  HEFTY, PETER 101121 OCTOBERFEST ENTERTAINMENT - COMEDY ACT
01-41-056-72954 250.00

Total : 250.00

205186 12/15/2023 018696  HENRY'S HOUSE OF DECORATED 1550 K805 GREY/BLACK XL, LOG 104 - HENLEY LAD
01-21-000-73610 73.27

Total : 73.27

205187 12/15/2023 010238  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES WG49783909 ****2304 SHOP VACUUM W/DETACHABLE BLOWER
01-26-025-73580 178.97

17Page:

Page | 148AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 178.97205187 12/15/2023 010238 010238  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

205188 12/15/2023 012328  HOMER INDUSTRIES S204621 DROP CHARGE - BRUSH & LOGS 11/22/23
01-26-023-72890 100.00

Total : 100.00

205189 12/15/2023 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 8599854 30YD EXCHANGE-HAUL, DUMP CHARGES PER TON
01-26-023-72890 452.45

Total : 452.45

205190 12/15/2023 020512  ICONECTIV LLC 10186410 ELEP -HISTORICAL PHONE NUMBER DATA 12/22
01-17-225-72852 200.00

Total : 200.00

205191 12/15/2023 020767  ILLINOIS CRIME FREE ASSOC 121123 INDIVIDUAL MEMBERSHIP - DOUG ALBA - CRIM
01-17-217-72720 50.00

Total : 50.00

205192 12/15/2023 021104  ILLINOIS PUBLIC WORKS MUTUAL 2098 MEMBERSHIP II CALENDAR YEAR 1/1/24-12/31
60-00-000-72720 17.50
63-00-000-72720 17.50
01-26-023-72720 50.00
01-26-024-72720 25.00
64-00-000-72720 15.00

Total : 125.00

205193 12/15/2023 005250  J & L DOORS, INC 756998 CYLINDERS - LOCK CYLINDERS FOR OPA STATI
01-26-025-72520 291.20
CYLINDERS - 5 23-065 O-BITTED E KEYWAY 6756999
01-26-025-72520 291.20

Total : 582.40

205194 12/15/2023 005266  J.M.D. SOX OUTLET, INC. 20230546 WORK CLOTHES/JOHN WAISHWELL
01-26-023-73610 123.73
WORK CLOTHES/CLIFF EATON20230558
01-26-024-73610 255.68

Total : 379.41

18Page:

Page | 149AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205195 12/15/2023 006948  JOE RIZZA FORD OF ORLAND PARK 443519 NUT - WHEEL - BLDG UNIT #74
01-33-300-72540 116.60

Total : 116.60

205196 12/15/2023 020207  LENNY'S GAS N WASH 183RD ST 4084 CAR WASH - PD NOVEMBER '23
01-17-205-72540 204.00
CAR WASH - PW NOVEMBER '234085
60-00-000-72540 5.60
63-00-000-72540 1.87
64-00-000-72540 3.20
01-26-023-72540 21.33
01-26-024-72540 4.00
01-26-025-72530 12.00

Total : 252.00

205197 12/15/2023 020207  LENNY'S GAS N WASH 183RD ST 4082 CAR WASH - VM NOVEMBER  '23 - ACCT# 2201
01-12-000-72540 4.00

Total : 4.00

205198 12/15/2023 020983  LIBERTY FLAGS AND BANNERS 20140 REMOVE BANNERS FRO OPA METRA
01-35-000-73112 1,536.00

Total : 1,536.00

205199 12/15/2023 018877  MAINTSTAR INC 3217 MAINTSTAR ANNUAL SUPPORT SOFWARE HOSTING
01-33-300-72655 41,481.56

Total : 41,481.56

205200 12/15/2023 021206  MANICZ MEDIA LLC 1617 TOURISM ADVERTISING - IMPRESSIONS INSTRE
01-35-100-72983 2,513.35VTP-020398

Total : 2,513.35

205201 12/15/2023 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY 15030-137681 ABS SENSOR - POLICE UNIT #1W
01-17-205-72540 32.33
POWER STEERING, BRAKE FLUID - ALL DEPTS15030-137708
60-00-000-72540 28.58
63-00-000-72540 9.52
64-00-000-72540 16.33

19Page:

Page | 150AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205201 12/15/2023 (Continued)020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY
01-26-023-72540 54.43
01-26-024-72540 27.22
FUEL PUMP ASSEMBLY - STREET UNIT #1115030-137769
01-26-023-72540 265.80

Total : 434.21

205202 12/15/2023 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY 6981-611168 BERNZ MAP PRO - STREET - SHOP SUPPLIES
01-26-023-72540 40.12

Total : 40.12

205203 12/15/2023 019338  MCGILL CONSTRUCTION CO LLC 23798 MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS
71-00-000-75801 584,185.73VTP-020524

Total : 584,185.73

205204 12/15/2023 006074  MENARDS 48686 ACCT# 30860355 - RO SR PAINT, FOAM BRUSH
01-19-020-73870 9.97
ACCT# 30860257 - TRI-VOLT TRANSFORMER, D48863
01-26-025-72520 33.28
ACCT# 30860257 - 1" LFNC CONDUIT 2PC48875
01-26-025-72520 23.52
ACCT# 30860257 - 74W PAR30S LIGHTS48936
01-26-025-72520 14.98
ACCT# 30860257 - 100W A19 BW LED 16PK LI48953
01-26-025-72520 165.66
ACCT# 30860257 - OUTDOOR TIMER49454
01-26-025-73570 15.79
ACCT# 30860257 - 11" XTREME CABLE TIE -49466
01-26-023-73870 10.99
ACCT# 30860257 - 2X4-8 STUD/#2_BTR, 1/249474
01-26-023-73870 412.48
ACCT# 30860257 - 24" BALSAM WREATH, MENA49475
01-26-023-73870 287.16
ACCT# 30860257 - 75W PAR30S LIGHT49478
01-26-025-72520 14.98
ACCT# 30860257 - 16" METAL ATOMIC CLOCK49481
01-26-025-72520 44.99

20Page:

Page | 151AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205204 12/15/2023 (Continued)006074  MENARDS
ACCT# 30860257 - MINI-VAC TRANSFER PUMP49487
01-26-025-73410 64.99
ACCT# 30860257 - EMT CONDUIT, STUD, HOLE49494
60-00-000-73870 84.64
63-00-000-73870 84.64
64-00-000-73870 72.56
ACCT# 30860257 - 70CT LED C6 RED, 100 LI49495
01-26-025-73870 486.86
ACCT# 30860257 - 52" FLOCKING STANDING D49496
01-26-025-73870 497.08
ACCT# 30860257 - 52" FLOCKING STANDING D49497
01-26-025-73870 375.85
ACCT# 30860257 - 36" NOBLE FIR WREATH, B49531
01-26-023-73870 43.94
ACCT# 30860257 - LAMPHOLDER - PLASTIC49533
01-26-025-72520 162.33
ACCT# 30860257 - 2X4X8' PREMIUM/SELECT,49534
01-26-023-73870 139.52
ACCT# 30860257 - 2X SPRAY PAINT SAT C.RE49548
01-26-025-73870 75.45
ACCT# 30860257 - 3.5" POWER DRIVE BIT T249557
60-00-000-73870 27.16
63-00-000-73870 27.16
64-00-000-73870 23.28
ACCT# 30860257 - CONDUIT, HOLE STRAP49588
60-00-000-73870 -31.87g
63-00-000-73870 -31.87g
64-00-000-73870 -27.33g
ACCT# 30860257 - 3/4 PLYWOOD SHEATHING,49590
60-00-000-73870 26.69
63-00-000-73870 26.69
64-00-000-73870 22.89
ACCT# 30860257 - HITCHING RING W/PLATES,49591
60-00-000-73870 7.53
63-00-000-73870 7.53
64-00-000-73870 6.45

21Page:

Page | 152AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205204 12/15/2023 (Continued)006074  MENARDS
ACCT# 30860257 - U-BOLT 5/16" X 4-1/2",49601
01-35-000-73112 62.46
ACCT# 30860257 - 2PK LYSOL TOILETBOWL CL49605
01-26-025-73870 175.62
ACCT# 30860355 - C7 REPLACEMENT BULBS  R49653
01-19-000-73870 72.84
ACCT# 30860355 - LP TANK EXCHANGE49654
01-19-000-73585 39.84
ACCT# 30860257 - 70CT LED MINI GREEN, SM49675
01-26-023-73870 191.08
ACCT# 30860257 - 4X4 OUTLET COVER, SCRW49676
60-00-000-73870 2.47
63-00-000-73870 2.47
64-00-000-73870 2.13
ACCT# 30860257 - 6" DIAGONAL PLIER49715
01-35-000-73112 190.34
ACCT# 30860257 - GALV PIPE NIPPLE. ELBOW49717
60-00-000-72540 8.88
63-00-000-72540 2.96
64-00-000-72540 5.08
ACCT# 30860257 - 2" GALV STRAP (5/BAG),49724
60-00-000-73870 -4.98
63-00-000-73870 -4.98
64-00-000-73870 -4.28
ACCT# 30860257 - CMX SPRAY PAINT DOVER W49727
60-00-000-73870 4.54
63-00-000-73870 4.54
64-00-000-73870 3.88
ACCT# 30860257 - 11" BLACK CABLE TIE - 149728
01-35-000-73112 79.98
ACCT# 30860257 - GRY 1- OUTLET COVER49777
01-26-024-73570 202.04

Total : 4,242.88

205205 12/15/2023 006074  MENARDS 48864 ACCT# 30860257 - TROWEL
01-26-025-73410 5.99

22Page:

Page | 153AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
23

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 5.99205205 12/15/2023 006074 006074  MENARDS

205206 12/15/2023 020497  MIDWEST PUBLIC SAFETY LLC 145361976 BODY CAMERA VEHICLE TRIGGER BOX
30-00-000-74603 4,968.00VTP-020380

Total : 4,968.00

205207 12/15/2023 020263  MOBILE WIRELESS LLC 5577 MOBILE VPN - ACCESS FROM 12/13/23 THRU 1
01-16-000-72655 13,690.00VTP-020424

Total : 13,690.00

205208 12/15/2023 011997  MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS-STARCOM 8281762523 CABLE, RSM REPLACEMENT CABLE ASSEMBLY
01-19-000-72567 275.94

Total : 275.94

205209 12/15/2023 005729  MR. RADIATOR & AIR COND SERV 047076 EVAPORATOR - STREET UNIT #92
01-26-023-72540 105.00

Total : 105.00

205210 12/15/2023 012301  MVP FIRE SYSTEMS,INC 17102 ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTION - 7980
01-26-025-72790 690.00
ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTOIN - 785017103
01-26-025-72790 1,115.00
ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTION - 1735517105
01-26-025-72790 790.00
ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTION - TRAIN17106
01-26-025-72790 1,040.00
ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTION - TRAIN17107
01-26-025-72790 440.00
ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECTION - 1625017108
01-26-025-72790 790.00

Total : 4,865.00

205211 12/15/2023 015723  NICOR 49924710004 ACCT#49924710004 METER#4581759 9191 W 17
01-26-025-72511 349.58

Total : 349.58

205212 12/15/2023 021101  NORTHWESTERN MEDICINE 546711 PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL TEST - P. PROCTO
01-41-040-72846 1,598.00

23Page:

Page | 154AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
24

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 1,598.00205212 12/15/2023 021101 021101  NORTHWESTERN MEDICINE

205213 12/15/2023 021263  OWENS, MICHAEL & DONNA Ref001444604 UB Cst #00464989, refund duplicate payme
60-00-000-20599 513.08

Total : 513.08

205214 12/15/2023 013096  PACE SYSTEMS INC IN00054522 CAMERAS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY DATA CENTER
01-16-000-72655 870.00VTP-020319

Total : 870.00

205215 12/15/2023 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 009642/3 CUST# 891431 - SOCKETS 15/16, 3/8, 3/4
60-00-000-73410 38.08
63-00-000-73410 4.23
64-00-000-73410 18.13
CUST# 9404 - MOP HANDLE WOOD 54"071907/1
01-19-000-73580 21.88
CUST# 9404 - SPRAYPAINT SAFETY RED, SCIS071920/1
01-19-000-72520 12.49
CUST# 89143 - SNAP BOLT RND EYE, PLUG GR71913/1
01-26-025-73840 22.36
CUST# 891432 - CABLE TIES71929/1
01-26-023-73870 11.19

Total : 128.36

205216 12/15/2023 020299  POINT B COMMUNICATIONS INC INV-29520 MONTHLY SEO INSERTION ORDER - 12/1 INSER
01-35-100-72790 900.00VTP-020485

Total : 900.00

205217 12/15/2023 018110  PROVEN BUSINESS PRODUCTS 1118403 MONTHLY CONTRACT SVC AGREEMENT #10365-01
01-16-000-72756 1,013.50

Total : 1,013.50

205218 12/15/2023 006850  QUILL CORPORATION 35836630 8.5X11 80LB WHT GLSY CDSK - 250
01-35-000-73110 123.24
LARGE TENT CARDS, AVRY PRINTABLE TABS 1.36101916
01-35-000-73110 82.58

Total : 205.82

24Page:

Page | 155AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
25

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205219 12/15/2023 006361  RAY O' HERRON CO INC 2310555 PATCH, TINLEY PARK COMMUNITY SERVICE
01-17-205-73610 196.50

Total : 196.50

205220 12/15/2023 006870  RELIABLE FIRE EQUIPMENT 98138 TRAIN STATION 80TH AVE KITCHEN INSPECTIO
01-26-025-72535 446.50

Total : 446.50

205221 12/15/2023 007092  SAUNORIS 734679 PROPANE 33LB
60-00-000-73520 9.24
63-00-000-73520 9.24
64-00-000-73520 7.92
01-26-024-73520 13.20
01-26-023-73520 26.40

Total : 66.00

205222 12/15/2023 020644  SCIENTEL SOLUTIONS LLC 007421 NETWORK SWITCHES FOR FIRE STATIONS AND W
30-00-000-74128 8,369.84VTP-020382

Total : 8,369.84

205223 12/15/2023 020511  SIERRA ITS 1799 DESKTOP TECH - RAQUEL BRINSON 11/5-11/11
01-16-000-72790 1,500.00VTP-020425
DESKTOP TECH - RAQUEL BRINSON 11/12-11/11808
01-16-000-72790 750.00VTP-020425
DESKTOP TECH - RAQUEL BRINSON 11/19-11/21822
01-16-000-72790 1,125.00VTP-020425
DESKTOP TECH - RAQUEL BRINSON 11/26-12/21829
01-16-000-72790 1,950.00VTP-020425

Total : 5,325.00

205224 12/15/2023 013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7482ph2-75 LANDSCAPE PLANNING - 10/15-11/11/23
01-26-023-72847 4,712.50VTP-020025
NATURALIZED STORMWATER AREA - 10/15 - 117698-94
01-26-023-72847 1,776.55VTP-020023
MOWING INSPECTIONS AND BIDS - 10/15-11/17946-68
01-26-023-72847 1,377.50VTP-020026
DOWNTOWN PLANTERS - 10/15 THRU 11/11/238081-48

25Page:

Page | 156AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
26

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205224 12/15/2023 (Continued)013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD.
01-26-023-72847 253.75VTP-019997
URBAN FORESTRY PROGRAM - SEPT 17 THRU OC8498-59
01-26-023-72847 6,318.21VTP-020024
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - 10/15-11/11/238803-36
01-26-023-72847 1,087.50VTP-020027
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - 9/17-10/14/239700-02
65-00-000-72591 2,790.00VTP-020309

Total : 18,316.01

205225 12/15/2023 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S007478705.001 COPPER-BONDED GROUND ROD, TIE MOUNT, LOC
01-26-024-73570 352.72

Total : 352.72

205226 12/15/2023 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 593544 WIRE ASSY, POLICE UNIT #5A
01-17-205-72540 52.22
SPROCKET - CAMSHAFT, TENSIONER - TIMING593712
01-17-205-72540 173.65
GASKET CYLINDER, GASKET INTAKE POLICE UN593765
01-17-205-72540 54.17
CAMSHAFT - POLICE UNIT #5A593767
01-17-205-72540 102.93
KIT- SENSOR ATTAC, KIT - TPMS SENSOR RV594026
01-17-205-72540 93.07
SHAFT ASSY - POLICE UNIT #9A594195
01-17-205-72540 556.00
SHIELD, BOLT, NUT, STUD - POLICE UNIT #5594233
01-17-205-72540 51.53
FUEL SENSOR - STREET UNIT #11594256
01-26-023-72540 107.30

Total : 1,190.87

205227 12/15/2023 021115  TECORP INC 2023-46 POST 1 OVERFLOW PIPE REPLACEMENT - PAY A
62-00-000-75702 99,560.00VTP-020312

Total : 99,560.00

205228 12/15/2023 014653  THE BLUE LINE 45817 CIVILIAN POSITION - PT COMM SVC OFFICER

26Page:

Page | 157AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
27

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205228 12/15/2023 (Continued)014653  THE BLUE LINE
01-14-000-72448 199.00
FIRE SERVICE - PT FIRE INSPECTOR RECRUIT45818
01-14-000-72448 199.00

Total : 398.00

205229 12/15/2023 006812  THE GALLERY COLLECTION INV001282719 ACCT# 10949404 - WHITE GOLD BANDED
01-17-205-73600 207.21

Total : 207.21

205230 12/15/2023 021180  THE HUMAN RACE SPORTS INC 106 BLANKET P.O. FOR UNIFORMS-SHOES
01-19-000-73610 700.00VTP-020513

Total : 700.00

205231 12/15/2023 018264  THE LAKOTA GROUP, INC. 23017.01-04 23017.01 PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPE & SITE D
30-00-000-75905 25,083.60VTP-020331

Total : 25,083.60

205232 12/15/2023 007886  THEODORE POLYGRAPH SERVICE 8444 PRE-EMPLOYMENT - ALEXUS MARAVILLAS - PD
01-41-040-72846 200.00

Total : 200.00

205233 12/15/2023 007777  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION 23-2822 15 ELEVATOR INSPECTIONS & 9 ELEVATOR COD
01-33-300-72853 912.00

Total : 912.00

205234 12/15/2023 007930  TRANS UNION 11300215 CREDIT SUMMARY,EMPLOYMENT CRD REPORT, ID
01-17-225-72852 183.96

Total : 183.96

205235 12/15/2023 008040  UNDERGROUND PIPE & VALVE CO 062532-02 BUSHING GREEN CAP 2" CC X 1-1-/2" CC
63-00-000-73630 5.60
60-00-000-73630 50.40
64-00-000-73630 24.00
WATER MAIN BREAK CLAMPS063920-02
60-00-000-73630 151.20VTP-020441
63-00-000-73630 16.80VTP-020441
64-00-000-73630 72.00VTP-020441

27Page:

Page | 158AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
28

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205235 12/15/2023 (Continued)008040  UNDERGROUND PIPE & VALVE CO
MAIN BREAK CLAMPS064424
60-00-000-73630 187.74VTP-020520
63-00-000-73630 54.32VTP-020520
64-00-000-73630 232.80VTP-020520
60-00-000-73630 301.14VTP-020520
MAIN BREAK CLAMPS064424-01
60-00-000-73630 338.31VTP-020520
63-00-000-73630 37.59VTP-020520
64-00-000-73630 161.10VTP-020520

Total : 1,633.00

205236 12/15/2023 010579  UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS UFIW9877 CLASS #202400014 - YOUTH FIRESETTER INTE
01-19-020-72140 150.00
ACCT# @00872964  - K. SULLIVAN - SPECIALUPI12085
01-17-220-72140 125.00

Total : 275.00

205237 12/15/2023 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9950895878 ACCT#242459316-00001 CENTRAL AV METER VA
60-00-000-72127 16.72
63-00-000-72127 16.72
64-00-000-72127 14.34

Total : 47.78

205238 12/15/2023 004192  VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 400-1000-00-01 ACCT#400-1000-00-01 BROOKSIDE GLEN SUBD
64-00-000-73227 146,188.38

Total : 146,188.38

205239 12/15/2023 006362  VILLAGE OF OAK LAWN 1-9990015-00 ACCT#1-9990015-00 11/1-12/1/23
63-00-000-73220 571,931.09
60-00-000-73220 619,592.01

Total : 1,191,523.10

205240 12/15/2023 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC 5624205-0 CALENDAR MONTHLY
63-00-000-73110 1.11
64-00-000-73110 4.76
01-26-024-73110 7.93

28Page:

Page | 159AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
29

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205240 12/15/2023 (Continued)010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC
60-00-000-73110 9.99
01-26-023-73110 15.86
COPY PAPER - FIRE DEPT5627897-0
01-19-000-73110 224.75
REBATE - QUARTERLY SPC ECOMMERCE CREDITC5618523-0
01-14-000-73110 -8.66g

Total : 255.74

205241 12/15/2023 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1594208 DIESEL FUEL USED 9/21 DELIVERY DATE
01-17-205-73530 16.67
01-19-000-73545 1,866.11
60-00-000-73545 408.41
63-00-000-73545 102.10
64-00-000-73545 218.79
01-26-023-73545 2,442.08
01-26-024-73545 82.96
01-14-000-73531 427.88
N.I., GAS USED 11/23-12/4/23W1614193
01-17-205-73530 7,881.55
01-19-000-73530 665.45
01-19-020-73530 86.66
01-21-000-73530 814.11
60-00-000-73530 703.29
63-00-000-73530 175.82
64-00-000-73530 376.76
01-26-023-73530 1,290.04
01-26-024-73530 553.43
01-33-300-73530 172.96
01-12-000-73530 44.73
01-14-000-73531 3,977.59
01-42-000-73530 351.99
DIESEL FUEL USED 11/23-12/4/23W1614194
01-19-000-73545 1,099.17
60-00-000-73545 910.35
63-00-000-73545 227.58
64-00-000-73545 487.68

29Page:

Page | 160AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
30

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

205241 12/15/2023 (Continued)011055  WARREN OIL CO.
01-26-023-73545 1,856.60
01-26-024-73545 114.03
01-26-025-73545 455.40
01-14-000-73531 455.45

Total : 28,265.64

205242 12/15/2023 008226  WYMAN & COMPANY 47481 FRAME - DEBRA MELCKERT PLAQUE
01-14-000-73110 174.25

Total : 174.25

Bank total : 2,386,187.03110 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

30Page:

Page | 161AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
31

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4758 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 CLAIM #200803W006 CLAIM DATE 7/29/20~
01-14-000-72542 135.21

Total : 135.21

4759 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002 PAYEE-ILLINOIS BONE AND JOINT
60-00-000-72542 181.01
63-00-000-72542 34.48
64-00-000-72542 92.35

Total : 307.84

4760 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-1 PAYEE-ILLINOIS BONE AND JOINT
60-00-000-72542 869.26
63-00-000-72542 165.57
64-00-000-72542 443.51

Total : 1,478.34

4761 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210323W028 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 1,178.00

Total : 1,178.00

4762 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP201119W024 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 744.00

Total : 744.00

4763 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210421W008 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 635.50

Total : 635.50

4764 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-2 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
60-00-000-72542 27.34
63-00-000-72542 5.21
64-00-000-72542 13.95

Total : 46.50

4765 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210526W019 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 310.00

Total : 310.00

31Page:

Page | 162AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



12/15/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
32

 9:42:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4766 12/12/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-1 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 15.50

Total : 15.50

Bank total : 4,850.899 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

2,391,037.92Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report119

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

32Page:

Page | 163AGENDA - 12/19/2023, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Interoffice
Memo

Date: December 13, 2023

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager
Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager

Subject: Property Purchase – 17348 South 66th Court

The owner of the property located at 17348 South 66th Court recently approached the Village to 
discuss the sale of the property. The Village already owns the parcel to the south (6700), and the 
Boulevard Phase II will be to its north. With this prime location, it presents a good opportunity for the 
Village to control further development of the downtown area. 

Staff Recommendation: Consider approving a Purchase and Sale agreement in the amount of 
$265,000. Funds are available within the budget/TIF.  

Page | 164AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-080

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY (17348 S. 66th COURT, 
TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 60477)

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
NANCY O'CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DENNIS P. MAHONEY 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW 

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN 
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
________________________________

____________________________________

Page | 165AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-0-080

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 
(17348 S. 66th COURT, TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 60477)

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, (the “Village”) with a population 
in excess of 25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 6(a) of Article VII of the Illinois 
Constitution, the Village may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 
government and affairs including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-3-8 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/2-3-8) 
villages incorporated under the Illinois Municipal Code may acquire and hold real and personal 
property for corporate purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Cynthia Blazejak (the “Seller”) is the owner of certain real property located 
at the address commonly known as 17348 S. 66th Court, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 (the 
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees of the Village (the “Corporate 
Authorities”) find that it is in the Village’s interest to acquire ownership of the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Seller is willing to sell the Property to the Village on terms and conditions 
acceptable to the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Village and the Seller desire to enter into a Purchase and Sale Agreement 
(the “Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, whereby the Seller will 
convey the Property to the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village and its residents to 
accept the conveyance of the Property pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

Page | 166AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 2: The Agreement between the Village and the Seller is hereby approved in 
substantially the form attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A, and in a final form to be approved 
by the Village Manager and the Village Attorney. 

SECTION 3: The Village President and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and attest, on behalf of the Village, the final Agreement upon receipt by the Village Clerk 
of at least one original copy of the Agreement executed by the Seller; provided, however, that if 
the executed copy of the Agreement is not received by the Village Clerk within 30 days after the 
effective date of this Ordinance, then this Ordinance will, at the option of the Board of Trustees, 
be null and void.

SECTION 4: The President and Board of Trustees hereby approve the acquisition by the Village 
of the Property, in the manner and upon such terms as are set forth in the Agreement.

SECTION 5: The Village President, the Village Clerk, the Village Manager, the Village Finance 
Administrator, and the Village Attorney are hereby authorized to execute all documentation, and 
take all action, necessary to consummate the acquisition of the Property by the Village, as may be 
required pursuant to applicable law and the Agreement, including making any amendments to the 
Agreement or other documents in order to effectuate the intent of this Ordinance to purchase the 
Property.

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS ___ day of _________, 2023. 

AYES: 

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

APPROVED THIS _____ day of ___________, 2023.

______________________________
VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
_____________________________________
    VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 167AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT A
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page | 168AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT

This Real Estate Purchase Contract (“Agreement”) is made as of the  Day of December, 2023 
(“Effective Date”), between Cynthia Blazejak , 17348 S. 66th Ct., Tinley Park, IL 60477 (“Seller”) and the 
Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Buyer”).  Seller and Buyer shall each be referred 
to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Seller 
agrees to sell, and Buyer agrees to purchase the real property known as:

17348 S. 66th Ct., Tinley Park, Illinois 60477; PIN: 28-30-411-019-0000 (the “Property”), legally 
described in Exhibit A.

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, Seller and Buyer agree as follows:

1. Financing Contingency. This Agreement is not contingent on Buyer obtaining financing. 

2. Purchase Price.  The purchase price shall be Two Hundred and Sixty-Five Thousand Dollars and 
zero cents ($265,000.00) (“Purchase Price”).

3. Earnest Money. Buyer shall tender earnest money in the amount of $13,250 within five (5) days 
of the Effective Date of the contract. The earnest money shall be held in a Strict Joint Escrow at Chicago 
Title and established by the Buyer. Buyer shall be responsible for any costs related to the Strict Joint 
Escrow.

4. Closing. The closing of the purchase and sale (the "Closing") shall take place (the "Closing 
Date") at a mutually agreeable time at an Office of Chicago Title Insurance Company, or as otherwise 
agreed to by the Parties in writing.

5. Time of the Essence; Closing Date.  The Parties agree that time is of the essence as to the closing 
date and to all dates specified in the Agreement and all addenda.

6. Due Diligence Period. Buyer shall have a period of thirty (30) days following the Effective Date 
(the “Due Diligence Period”) to conduct non-invasive due diligence related to the Property and review the 
title commitment. Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement during the Due Diligence Period.  
At no cost to Buyer, Buyer shall have the unilateral right to extend its Due Diligence period by an additional 
thirty (30) days by issuing the Seller a notice of “Due Diligence Extension,” which will serve to extend the 
Due Diligence Period to a total of sixty (60) days.

7. Closing Date. The Closing Date shall be within seven (7) days after expiration of the Due Diligence 
Period, or any other date agreed to by the Parties, but shall not occur on a Saturday or Sunday.

8. Closing Costs. Recording. Notwithstanding local custom, Buyer shall pay all costs and take all 
necessary steps to record the Deed.

Seller shall not be responsible for any amounts due, paid or to be paid after Closing.  In the event 
Seller has paid any taxes, special assessments or other fees and there is a refund of any such taxes, 
assessments or fees after the Closing, and Buyer as current owners of the Property receives the payment, 
Buyer will immediately remit any refund to Seller. For purposes of any Seller concession, the term “closing 
costs” shall not include any amounts escrowed for taxes or insurance by a lender. 

Page | 169AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2

9. Condition of Property.  As a material part of the consideration to be received by Seller under this 
Agreement, Buyer acknowledges and agrees to accept the Property in “as-is” “where-is” and “with all 
faults” condition at the time of closing, including, without limitation, zoning, land use or building code 
requirements, open permits or compliance with any laws, rules, ordinances or regulations of any 
governmental authority, any hidden defects, environmental conditions affecting the Property, or the 
existence of mold or other pest, whether known, or unknown, whether such defects or conditions were 
discoverable through inspection or not. 

If there is an enforcement proceeding arising from allegations of such violations before an enforcement 
board, special master, court or similar enforcement body, and neither Buyer nor Seller terminate the 
Agreement, Buyer agrees (a) to accept the Property subject to the violations, (b) to be responsible for 
compliance with the applicable code or regulation and with orders issued in any code enforcement 
proceeding, and (c) to resolve the deficiencies as soon as possible after the Closing.  Code violations and/or 
open permits do not constitute title defects which impair marketability. 

The Closing of this sale shall constitute acknowledgement by the Buyer that Buyer had the opportunity 
to retain an independent, qualified professional to inspect the Property and that the condition of the Property 
is acceptable to the Buyer. The Buyer agrees that the Seller shall have no liability for any claims or losses 
the Buyer or the Buyer's successors or assigns may incur as a result of construction or other defects which 
may now or hereafter exist with respect to the Property.

Seller shall have absolutely no duty to modify, alter, or clean the Property (or remove any contents at 
the Property, and in that regard the Seller represents that no other person has any right or claim to any 
contents in or at the Property and that the Seller's Bill of Sale will include such contents). 

Buyer waives any claim against Seller with respect to any of the Property conditions identified in this 
Section.

10. Disclosure of Lead-Based Paint Hazards. In the event the improvements on the Real Estate are 
improved with residential dwellings built prior to 1978, the Buyer hereby acknowledges that:

A) the Buyer has received the following Lead Warning Statement, and understands its contents:

"Every Buyer of any interest in residential real property on which a residential dwelling was 
built prior to 1978 is notified that such property may present exposure to lead from lead-based 
paint that may place young children at risk of developing lead poisoning. Lead poisoning in 
young children may produce permanent neurological damage, including learning disabilities, 
reduced intelligence quotient, behavioral problems, and impaired memory. Lead poisoning also 
poses a particular risk to pregnant women. The seller of any interest in residential real property 
is required to provide the buyer with any information on lead-based paint hazards from risk 
assessments or inspections in the seller's possession and notify the buyer of any known lead-
based paint hazards. A risk assessment or inspection for possible lead-based paint hazards is 
recommended prior to purchase."

B) the Buyer has received a Lead Hazard Information pamphlet;

C) Buyer hereby waives any rights and/or remedies against the Seller provided to him as a 
Buyer in the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act, including the Buyer's 
ten day opportunity to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence of lead-
based paint hazards.

Page | 170AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



3

11.  Taxes and Special Assessments.. Seller will pay the First Installment 2023 taxes at or prior to 
closing. Seller shall provide Buyer with a credit for the 2023 Second Installment taxes and the 2024 taxes 
based on 100% of the 2022 tax bill prorated through the date of closing. Buyer shall be responsible for any 
taxes that become due and payable after Closing. 

12. Insurable title.   Seller shall order title from Chicago Title Company (“Closing Agent”).  Seller 
shall give such title as Seller’s title insurance company shall be willing to approve and insure in accordance 
with its standard form of title policy approved by the governing agency for the state in which the Property 
is located, subject only to the matters provided for in this Agreement (the “Title Policy”).  Unless otherwise 
indicated below, Seller shall furnish, at its expense, a fee (owners) title policy, with coverage in the amount 
of the purchase price.  Closing costs will be computed under Seller’s agreed rate card with Closing Agent. 
Seller shall not be obligated to remove any exception or to bring any action or proceeding or bear any 
expense in order to convey title to the Property or to make the title marketable or insurable, and any attempt 
by Seller to remove such title exceptions shall not impose an obligation upon Seller to remove these 
exceptions.  In the event Seller is not able to (a) make the title marketable or (b) obtain title insurance from 
a title insurance company selected by Seller, all as provided herein, either party may terminate the 
Agreement and the Earnest Money shall be returned to Buyer and Seller shall have no further obligation or 
liability to Buyer hereunder.  

13. Real Estate Commission.  Seller each represent and warrant to each other that it has not 
dealt with any real estate broker, agent, or salesperson (“Broker”), such as may give rise to any legal right 
or claim for commission or similar fee or compensation with respect to the negotiation and consummation 
of Closing of the conveyance by Seller to Buyer of the Property.

14.  Delivery of Funds.  Regardless of local custom, requirements, or practice, upon delivery 
of the Deed by Seller to Buyer, Buyer shall deliver all funds due to Seller from the sale in the form of a 
wire transfer, in accordance with instructions provided by the closing agent.  Failure to deliver funds 
according to the aforesaid method shall be considered a breach of this Agreement.

15. Delivery of Possession of Property.  Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Buyer 
at the Closing and funding of this sale.  If Buyer alters the Property or causes the Property to be altered in 
any way and/or occupies the Property or allows any other person to occupy the Property prior to Closing 
and funding without the prior written consent of Seller, such event shall constitute a breach by Buyer under 
the Agreement and Seller may terminate the Agreement. After Closing, any personal property which 
remains at the Property shall be deemed property of the Buyer. 

16. Form of Deed.  The deed to be delivered at Closing shall be a Warranty Deed.

17. Risk of Loss. In the event of fire, destruction or other casualty loss to the Property after 
the Seller's acceptance of this Agreement and prior to Closing, the Buyer's sole and exclusive remedy 
shall be either to acquire the Property in its then condition at the Total Purchase Price with no reduction 
thereof by reason of such loss or terminate this Agreement. 

18.  Survival. Delivery of the deed to the Property to the Buyer by the Seller shall be
deemed to be full performance and discharge of all of the Seller's obligations under this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, any provision which contemplates 
performance or observance subsequent to any termination or expiration of the Agreement, including but 
not limited to any condition subsequent, shall survive the Closing and/or termination of the Agreement by 
any Party and continue in full force and effect. 

Page | 171AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



4

19. Remedies. If either Party defaults in the performance of this Agreement, the non-defaulting 
Party's sole and exclusive remedy shall be to either: (i) terminate this Agreement; or (ii) pursue specific 
performance, at Buyer's discretion. In the event of termination, the Parties agree to refund to the 
originating Party any funds paid as part of the transaction. Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledge and 
agree that neither Party shall be entitled to any monetary or legal damages as a result of any breach of this 
Agreement.

20. Notices. All notices to be provided under this Agreement must be provided via email 
transmission to the attorney or designated representative for either Party.  Notices shall be sent to:

Seller:

Cynthia Blazejak
Heather Jeeninga
17348 S. 66th Ct. 
Tinley Park, IL 60477

With copy to:

Levit & Lipshutz
Stephanie A. Orzoff
1120 W. Belmont
Chicago, IL 60657

Buyer:

Michael W. Glotz
Mayor
Village of Tinley Park
16250 S. Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

With copy to:

Del Galdo Law Group, LLC
1441 S. Harlem Avenue
Berwyn, Illinois 60402

21. Entire Agreement. Except as provided for in this Agreement with regard to referenced and 
related agreements, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties hereto with regard to the 
subject matter hereof, may only be modified in writing signed by both Seller and Buyer.

22. Miscellaneous. 

A) Sundays. Should the last day of any period called for under this Agreement fall on a 
Sunday, the period shall be extended to Monday. 

B) Waiver. The waiver by either Party hereto of any condition or the breach of any term, 
covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other 
condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or 

Page | 172AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



5

condition herein contained. Either Party, in its sole discretion may waive any right 
conferred upon such Party by this Agreement; provided that such waiver shall only be 
made by giving the other Party written notice specifically describing the right waived.

C) Governing Law. This Agreement is made and executed under and in all respects to be 
governed and construed by the laws of the State of Illinois and the Parties hereto hereby 
agree and consent and submit themselves to any court of competent jurisdiction 
situated in the County of Cook, State of Illinois. 

D) Attorney Review. Purchaser's execution of this Agreement shall constitute 
acknowledgement by the Purchaser that Purchaser had the opportunity to retain and 
consult with legal counsel regarding the Agreement and the Exhibits attached hereto. 
Further, the terms of the Agreement are not to be construed against any party because 
that party drafted the Agreement or construed in favor of any Party because that Party 
failed to understand the legal effect of the provisions of the Agreement. 

E) Assignability. In no event may Seller convey or encumber the Property during the term 
of this Agreement, and neither Seller nor Purchaser may assign this Agreement or its 
rights herein to any third Party. The foregoing restriction to the contrary 
notwithstanding, Purchaser shall have the unrestricted right on or before the Closing 
Date to assign Purchaser's rights and obligations under this Agreement to any entity 
owned or controlled by Purchaser. Upon such assignment, Purchaser shall remain 
liable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

F) Severability. If for any reason any term or provision of this Agreement shall be 
declared void and unenforceable by any court of law or equity it shall only affect such 
particular term or provision of this Agreement and the balance of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect and shall be binding upon the Parties hereto. 

G) Disputes. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the contrary, if any action or 
proceeding is brought by Seller or Purchaser to interpret the provisions hereof or to 
enforce either Party's respective rights under this Purchase Agreement, the prevailing 
Party shall be entitled to recover from the unsuccessful Party therein, in addition to all 
other remedies, all costs incurred by the prevailing Party in such action or proceeding, 
including reasonable attorney's fees and court costs. 

H) Complete Agreement. All understandings and agreements heretofore had between the 
Parties are merged into this Agreement which alone fully and completely expressed 
their agreement. This Agreement may be changed only in writing signed by both of the 
Parties hereto and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of each of the 
Parties hereto and shall merge with the deed delivered to Purchaser at Closing except 
as specifically provided herein. 

I) No Third Party Beneficiaries. The covenants and agreements contained herein shall be 
binding upon and inure to the sole benefit of the Parties hereto, and their successors 
and assigns. Nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any 
other person, entity, company, or organization, any legal or equitable right, benefit or 
remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement. 

J) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and 

Page | 173AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



6

the same instrument, and any signatures to counterparts may be delivered by facsimile 
or other electronic transmission and shall have the same force and effect as original 
signatures.

[Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank- Signature Page Follows]

Page | 174AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



7

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date first 
above written.

BUYER: SELLER:
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK CYNTHIA BLAZEJAK

 _____________________________ _____________________________
By: Michael W. Glotz By: CYNTHIA BLAZEJAK
Its: Mayor

Page | 175AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



8

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Page | 176AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT  
December 7, 2023 –Public Hearing 
 
 
Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations 
18210 La Grange Road 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Petitioner, Scott Nelson, on behalf of Advocate Outpatient Center, is requesting two 
Variations which permit installation of a freestanding sign to increase the sign area from 
the maximum allowable 120 square feet to 231.91 square feet, and to reduce the 
required minimum setback from ten-foot to zero feet at the east and south property lines 
of the subject property at 18201 La Grange Road in the B-3 (General Business & 
Commercial) zoning district.   
 
The Petitioner is proposing to replace the existing, nonconforming EMC sign with a new 
sign.  The existing sign received Variation approval for a height of 13 feet, but did not 
include any approvals for exceeding allowable maximum sign area or minimum location 
distance to property lines.  The proposed replacement sign will meet the 13 foot previous 
Variation approval, and will otherwise conform with all other relevant provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance.   

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 
Steve Nelson on behalf 
of Advocate Outpatient 
Center 
 
Property Location 
18210 La Grange Road 
 
PIN 
27-33-401-019-0000 
27-33-401-020-0000 
27-33-401-021-0000 
 
Zoning 
B-3 General Business & 
Commercial 
 
Approvals Sought 
Variations 
 
Project Planner 
Lori Kosmatka, AICP 
Associate Planner 
 

Page | 177AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations – 18210 La Grange Road 
 

Page 2 of 6 

183rd St.  Orland Pkwy. 
Sign 

Location 

Orland Pkwy. 183rd St. 

Village of 
Orland 

Park 

Unincorp. 

B-3 

B-3 

B-3 

Aerial Location Map (left) and Zoning Map (right) 

ORI 

Existing Building Architecture & Masonry Colors 

Existing Sign appearance & measurements (by Petitioner) 

 
EXISTING SITE, HISTORY, ZONING, & NEARBY LAND USES 

The subject property at 18210 La Grange Road is a medical facility 
operating as Advocate Outpatient Center.  The property has a 
contemporary style building with masonry in beige and reddish tones.  
It is on a 10 acre property northwest of the corner at La Grange Rd. and 
183rd Street.  The property’s west side is adjacent to the Village of 
Orland Park, and its south side is adjacent to unincorporated land.  The 
property was annexed into the Village in 1978.   The subject property is 
located within the B-3 General Business & Commercial Zoning District.   
 
The table below indicates the surrounding zoning and land uses:  
 
Direction Zoning Land Use 

North B-3 (General Business & Commercial) Vacant land 

East B-3 (General Business & Commercial) La Grange Road ROW, Vacant land 

South Unincorporated Vacant land 

West (northerly) 
West (southerly) 

BIZ (General Business) 
RMC (Regional Mixed-Use Campus) 

White Mountain Rec. Center (Golf Course) 
Vacant land 

 
There is an existing freestanding sign at or near the southeast 
corner of the property.  A sign Variation was previously approved 
(Ord. No. 2003-O-062) allowing a three-foot Variation to the 
required ten-foot maximum height, allowing for a 13-foot tall 
freestanding sign with a brick base.  The 2003 Ordinance noted 
the Variation would allow for adequate display the names of 
tenants where certain medical tenants had identification 
problems.   There was no approval for maximum sign area nor 
location distance to the property line.  The 2003 Ordinance did 
not contain any attached drawings specifying the location. 
 
The Petitioner measured the existing sign height as 13’-8¾” 
(exceeding Variation approval) with 201.25 sq ft. (126”x230”) sign 
face area.  The property’s plat of survey appears to show the sign 
near the east property line and on or near the south property 

Page | 178AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations – 18210 La Grange Road 
 

Page 3 of 6 

Proposed Sign Location Setback (Compared to Existing Sign Footprint in Black) 

line.  The Petitioner provided an aerial image with approximate parcel line locations per the county GIS map, which 
shows similar conditions.  The Petitioner measured the existing sign as 11 feet from the current curb location to the 
south.  Staff measures the sign as approximately 130 feet of lawn from the La Grange Road intersection.     
 
VARIATIONS REQUEST 
 
Two Variations are requested for sign face area and location.  The Petitioner proposes to replace the existing, 
nonconforming sign with a proposed, new sign in the same location.  The proposed sign will use the existing 
foundation and steel supports.  It will be double-sided internally illuminated with an aluminum cabinet and a faux 
brick base to match the existing building’s brick color.  The Petitioner clarified the faux brick will be a brick panel 
type product, typically by brands such as GenStone or Texture Plus.  Base landscaping will be provided.  The nearby 
surrounding retaining wall will remain.  
 
The proposed sign will be 13-feet high (includes base) with a sign face area (excludes base) will be 231.92 sq. ft.  
(138” high x 242” long).  The proposed sign will have a larger sign face area than the existing sign, but shorter in 
height per Petitioner measurements.  The proposed sign location will be within the existing sign’s footprint.  The 
proposed sign location will be approximately 11 inches from the property line.  The proposed sign will be 22 inches 
narrower than the existing sign, thus is proposed to encroach 11 inches less from the south property line than the 
existing sign’s nonconforming location, which improves the location setback at or near the south property line.  The 
east side of the proposed sign will be the same location setback as the existing sign near the east property line.   
 

Code Requirements 
Signs are regulated by Section IX of the Zoning Ordinance.  Sec.IX.F. limits the maximum allowable sign face area as 
120 sq. ft., and Sec.IX.D.2.c. requires freestanding signs be located a minimum of ten feet from all property lines, 
and not constructed within the public right-of-way.  Sec.IX.D.2. requires the sign be architecturally compatible with 
the building.  The sign code also limits the sign height (includes base) to ten feet, however, per the previously 
approved 2003 Ordinance, the proposed sign is allowed to be 13 feet tall.   
 
Some limitations and unique circumstances exist.  The Petitioner notes the position of the lot and limitations of the 
sign location due to property lines and right-of-way relative to the visitor entry path from La Grange Road cause the 
sign to be far from the road.  There is an extensive lawn of approximately 130’ right-of-way from the sign to the 
intersection.  The Petitioner notes the visibility from the road and number of tenant panels generally dictates the 
lettering and height, and based on code requirements.  They note meeting code would result in lettering too small 

Page | 179AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations – 18210 La Grange Road 
 

Page 4 of 6 

to be legible from La Grange Road.   They state a sign conforming to code here may result in fewer visitors and thus 
fewer tenants.  They also state that the Variations request of a new replacement sign in place of the existing, aging 
sign along a heavily-trafficked roadway will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.   Lastly, the 
Petitioner notes the proposed sign will have a reduced encroachment to the south as it is narrower than the existing 
sign.  The Petitioner also states the proposed sign is 18% smaller than the existing sign, however this is based off 
area including the base.  According to Petitioner’s field measurements, the proposed sign is 8 ¾” shorter in height.   

  

Proposed New Sign (South Face) 

Page | 180AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations – 18210 La Grange Road 
 

Page 5 of 6 

STANDARDS FOR A VARIATION 
 
Section X.G.4. of the Zoning Ordinance states the Plan Commission shall not recommend a Variation of the 
regulations of the Zoning Ordinance unless it shall have made Findings of Fact, based upon the evidence presented 
for each of the Standards for Variations listed below. The Plan Commission must provide findings for the first three 
standards; the remaining standards are provided to help the Plan Commission further analyze the request. Staff has 
prepared draft responses for the Findings of Fact below. The Commission may choose to modify the findings as they 
choose or based on the evidence received at the public hearing. 
 

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 
conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located. 
• The location of the sign near a heavily traveled arterial commercial roadway corridor would make 

it difficult for its content to be readable if limited to the size regulations per the Zoning Ordinance.  
A sign meeting the regulations would limit the ability of the patients to identify and locate the 
tenants to obtain health care.  

 
2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances. 

• The proposed sign is located near a heavily traveled arterial commercial roadway corridor with an 
extensive length of right-of-way lawn between the east property line and La Grange Road.   
 

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
• The sign will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.  It will replace an existing, 

aging sign, and is located near a heavily trafficked roadway.    
 

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission shall also, in making its determination whether there are practical 
difficulties or particular hardships, take into consideration the extent to which the following facts 
favorable to the Petitioner have been established by the evidence: 
 

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific property 
involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out; 
 

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification; 
 

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 
the property; 
 

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by a 
previous owner; 
 

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and 
 

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent 
property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 

 

Page | 181AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Advocate Outpatient Center Freestanding Sign Variations – 18210 La Grange Road 
 

Page 6 of 6 

MOTION TO CONSIDER 
 
If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, an appropriate wording of the motion would read:  
 
Variations: 
“…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner Scott Nelson on behalf of Advocate 
Outpatient Center two Variations from Section IX.F. (Dimensions Regulations for Wall and Freestanding Signs) and 
Section IX.D.2.c. (Freestanding Signs: Locations) of the Zoning Code at the property located at 18210 La Grange Road 
in the B-3 General Business & Commercial Zoning District.  The proposed Variations will permit the petitioner to 
install a freestanding sign that will increase the sign area from the maximum allowable 120 square feet to 231.91 
square feet, and to reduce the required minimum setback from ten-foot to zero feet at the east and south property 
lines of the subject property, consistent with the Submitted Plans and adopt the Findings of Fact as proposed in the 
December 7, 2023 Staff Report. “ 
 
LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS 
 

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared By Date On Sheet 
 Petitioner Application (Redacted) Petitioner 10/3/23 
 Petitioner Response to Standards Petitioner n/a 
 Narrative Sign Outlet n/a  

Rec’d 11/15/23 
 Sign Information Page (for sign permit application) Sign Outlet n/a 

Rec’d 11/29/23 
 Plat of Survey Bradley K. Lueders 12/17/12 
 Estimated Property Lines Aerial Exhibit Per County GIS Map Sign Outlet n/a  

Rec’d 11/13/23 
 Location Setback (Proposed Vs. Existing) Sign Outlet 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/15/23 
 Comparison to Existing Sign Sign Outlet 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/14/23 
 Proposed North Face Spec Sheet Sign Outlet REV 9 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/14/23 
 Proposed South Face Spec Sheet Sign Outlet REV 9 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/14/23 
 Proposed Electrical Spec Sheet Sign Outlet 11/13/23 
 Proposed North Face Rendering Mockup Sign Outlet REV 8 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/13/23 
 Proposed South Face Rendering Mockup Sign Outlet REV 8 11/13/23 

Rec’d 11/13/23 
 Photos Inside Existing Sign Cabinet Sign Outlet n/a  

Rec’d 11/10/23 
 

Page | 182AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.2023-O-081

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING GROUND SIGN VARIATIONS FOR CERTAIN 
PROPERTY AT 18210 LA GRANGE ROAD 

(ADVOCATE OUTPATIENT CENTER)

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 183AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-081

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING GROUND SIGN VARIATIONS FOR CERTAIN 
PROPERTY AT 18210 LA GRANGE ROAD 

(ADVOCATE OUTPATIENT CENTER)

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois provides 
that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, and the Village of 
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 25,000 is, therefore, a home 
rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article VII, may exercise any power and 
perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to 
tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition for the granting of Variations for freestanding ground sign to increase the 
sign area, and to reduce the required minimum setback at the east and south property lines (“Variations”) 
has been filed by Scott Nelson on behalf of Advocate Outpatient Center (“Petitioner”) with the Village 
Clerk and has been processed in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on the question 
of whether the Variations should be granted on December 7, 2023, at the Village Hall at which time all 
persons present were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said public hearing by 
publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said public hearing in the 
Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley Park; and 

WHEREAS, after hearing testimony on the petition, the Plan Commission found that the petition 
met the requisite standards enumerated in the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance for granting the Variations 
and voted 5-0 to recommend to the Village President and Board of Trustees for the approval of the 
Variations; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission has filed its report of findings and recommendations regarding 
the Variation with this Village President and Board of Trustees, and this Board of Trustees has duly 
considered said report, findings, and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 
Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents to 
approve said Variations; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, 
STATE AS FOLLOWS:

Page | 184AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as finding of fact as if said 
recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission are herein 
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete as if 
fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner has provided evidence establishing that 
he has met the standards for granting the Variations as set forth in Section X.G.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
and the proposed granting of the Variations as set forth herein are in the public good and in the best interest 
of the Village and its residents and are consistent with and fosters the purpose and spirit of the Tinley Park 
Zoning Ordinance.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 
conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.
 The location of the sign near a heavily traveled arterial commercial roadway corridor would 

make it difficult for its content to be readable if limited to the size regulations per the Zoning 
Ordinance.  A sign meeting the regulations would limit the ability of the patients to identify 
and locate the tenants to obtain health care.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.
 The proposed sign is located near a heavily traveled arterial commercial roadway corridor 

with an extensive length of right-of-way lawn between the east property line and La Grange 
Road.

3. The Variations, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
 The sign will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.  It will replace an existing, 

aging sign, and is located near a heavily trafficked roadway. 

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission also considered the extent to which the following facts are 
favorable to the Petitioner based on the established evidence:

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific 
property involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished 
from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. The conditions upon which the petition for Variations are based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variations is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money 
out of the property;

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by 
a previous owner;

e. The granting of the Variations will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and

Page | 185AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



f. The proposed Variations will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent 
property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood.

SECTION 3: The Variations set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following described 
property:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
PARCEL 1: 
THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 33, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREE 32 
MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER, AFORESAID, A DISTANCE OF 1155.73 FEET; THENCE AT 
RIGHT ANGLES THERETO NORTH 88 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 07 SECONDS EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 268.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF LAND HEREIN 
DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 88 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 07 SECONDS 
EAST A DISTANCE OF 126.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE AT RIGHT ANGLES 
THERETO SOUTH 01 DEGREE 32 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 216.00 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE AT RIGHT ANGLES THERETO SOUTH 88 DEGREES 27 
MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 126.00 FEET; THENCE AT RIGHT 
ANGLES THERETO NORTH 01 DEGREE 32 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE 
OF 216.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL 2: 
PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE, EASEMENTS APPURTENANT TO AND FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF PARCELS 1 AND 3 AS CREATED BY THE RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AND 
OPERATING AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN EVANGELICAL SERVICES 
CORPORATION AND SOUTHWEST OFFICE CENTER, LLC, RECORDED MARCH 14, 
2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 002029574 IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDED, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, OVER AND ACROSS THE LAND DESCRIBED 
THEREIN AND FOR THE PURPOSES STATED THERIN.  

PARCEL 3: 
FEE INTEREST IN THE BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS (AS SAME ARE DEFINED IN 
AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 14 OF THE GROUND LEASE DATED MARCH 23, 2001 
MADE BY AND BETWEEN EVANGELICAL SERVICES CORPORATION, AS LANDLORD, 
AND SOUTHWEST OFFICE CENTER, LLC, AS TENANT, SAID GROUND LEASE BEING 
EVIDENCED OF RECORD BY THE MEMORANDUM THEREOF DATED MARCH 23, 2001 
AND RECORDED MARCH 14, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 0020295272) LOCATED 
ON PARCEL 1. 

Page | 186AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 27-33-401-019-0000, 27-33-401-020-0000, and 27-
33-401-021-0000

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:  18210 La Grange Road, Tinley Park, Illinois

SECTION 4: The following Variations are hereby granted to the Petitioner in the B-3 (General Business 
& Commercial) zoning district at the above-mentioned Property to erect said freestanding ground sign in 
accordance with the “List of Reviewed Plans” attached hereto as Exhibit A: 

1. A Variation from Section IX.F. (Dimensions Regulations for Wall and Freestanding Signs) of the 
Zoning Ordinance to permit installation of a freestanding sign that will increase the sign area from 
the maximum allowable 120 square feet to 231.91 square feet.

2. A Variation from Section IX.D.2.c. (Freestanding Signs: Locations) of the Zoning Ordinance to 
permit installation of a freestanding sign that will reduce the required minimum setback from ten feet 
to zero feet at the east and south property lines of the subject property.

SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 
form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 
publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 19th day of December 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 19th day of December 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 187AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Ordinance No. 2023-O-081, “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING GROUND SIGN VARIATIONS FOR 

CERTAIN PROPERTY AT 18210 LA GRANGE ROAD (ADVOCATE OUTPATIENT CENTER),” 

which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 

2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December 2023.

____________________________________
          VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 188AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit A

Per the December 7, 2023, Plan Commission 
Public Hearing Staff Report

Page | 189AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 16, 2023 REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1: PUBLIC HEARING – ADVOCATE OUTPATIENT CENTER FREESTANDING 
SIGN – 18210 LA GRANGE ROAD – VARIATIONS

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner Scott Nelson on behalf 
of Advocate Outpatient Center two Variations from Section IX.F. (Dimensions 
Regulations for Wall and Freestanding Signs) and Section IX.D.2.c. (Freestanding Signs: 
Locations) of the Zoning Code at the property located at 18210 La Grange Road in the B-
3 General Business & Commercial Zoning District.  The proposed Variations will permit 
the petitioner to install a freestanding sign that will increase the sign area from the 
maximum allowable 120 square feet to 231.91 square feet, and to reduce the required 
minimum setback from ten-foot to zero feet at the east and south property lines of the 
subject property.

Present Plan Commissioners: Acting Chairperson Gatto 
James Gaskill
Eduardo Mani
Steve Sepessy
Michael Stocklose

Absent Plan Commissioners: Garrett Gray
Terry Hamilton
Andrae Marak
Kehla West

Village Officials and Staff:  Jason Engberg, Planning Manager
Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner

Petitioners: Patrick Bryck (Advocate Outpatient Center)
David Martinelli (Signs Outlet)
Luis Ortega (Signs Outlet)

Members of the Public:  None

ACTING CHAIR GATTO introduced item #1 and then requested a motion to open the public 
hearing. COMMISSIONER GASKILL made a motion to open the public hearing; 
COMMISSIONER SEPESSY seconded. ACTING CHAIR GATTO requested a voice vote, the 
motion was declared carried. 

ACTING CHAIR GATTO certified that legal notice was posted in accordance with state law and 
informed that anyone wishing to speak on the matter could do so after staff presents their report. 
 

Page | 190AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2

Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner presented the staff report.

ACTING CHAIR GATTO asked the petitioner if they would like to speak.  

The Petitioner David Martinelli was sworn in.  He noted he’s here to answer any questions.  The 
intention is to modernize the campus from a sign that was installed 20 years ago.  He summarized 
the request.  They are trying to honor as much of the ordinance as possible while also providing 
visibility to patients and those passing by at a high rate of speed.  

ACTING CHAIR GATTO asked the commissioners if they had anything to add. 

COMMISSIONERS MANI, GASKILL, and SEPESSY had no comment.  

COMMISSIONER STOCKLOSE asked if the petitioner will come back to propose an electronic 
message center on the sign.   

The Petitioner David Martinelli responded no, it is not the intention for this property.  This sign is 
not being designed with an area to fit the electronic message center.  

ACTING CHAIR GATTO said she visited the area the other day and noted it was difficult to see 
the current sign from La Grange.  She thinks the proposal looks great and appears to go with the 
Advocate look.  She understands why they wish to change the sign.  She asked if anyone from the 
public wished to speak.  Hearing none, She asked Staff to present the standards. 

Lori Kosmatka presented the standards. 

ACTING CHAIR GATTO requested a motion to close the public hearing. COMMISSIONER 
GASKILL made a motion to close the public hearing; COMMISSIONER MANI seconded. 

COMMISSIONER GASKILL made a motion to recommend the Village Board grant the Petitioner 
Scott Nelson on behalf of Advocate Outpatient Center two Variations from Section IX.F. 
(Dimensions Regulations for Wall and Freestanding Signs) and Section IX.D.2.c. (Freestanding 
Signs: Locations) of the Zoning Code at the property located at 18210 La Grange Road in the B-3 
General Business & Commercial Zoning District.  The proposed Variations will permit the 
petitioner to install a freestanding sign that will increase the sign area from the maximum allowable 
120 square feet to 231.91 square feet, and to reduce the required minimum setback from ten-foot to 
zero feet at the east and south property lines of the subject property, consistent with the Submitted 
Plans and adopt the Findings of Fact as proposed in the December 7, 2023 Staff Report. 

COMMISSIONER SEPESSY seconded the motion. 

ACTING CHAIR GATTO requested a roll call vote; all were in favor (5-0). 

ACTING CHAIR GATTO noted this item will go to Village Board on December 19th, 2023. 

Page | 191AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
 
 
Date: December 11, 2023 
 
To: Village President and Village Board of Trustees 
   
From: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 

Angela Arrigo, Human Resources Director 
 
Subject: Paid Leave for All Workers Act (PLAWA) and Recommended One Day of Paid Leave Policy 
 
 
On March 12, 2023, the Paid Leave for All Workers Act (Public Act 102-1143) was signed into law and becomes 
effective January 1, 2024.  This paid leave requires employers to provide up to 40 hours of paid leave on an annual 
basis to employees in Illinois.  Under this Act, the employee is not required to provide a reason or documentation 
for using paid leave and the paid leave cannot generally be denied.   
 
The potential impact to municipal public safety operations including police, fire, and emergency management as 
well as public works operational impact has been reviewed over the last several months including the undue 
financial hardship and operational burden of the requirements of the Act.   
 
The Village currently provides comprehensive time off benefits to 251 full-time employees under the current Code 
of Ordinances including the Village Personnel Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreements.   
 
The Village currently has 280 part-time positions potentially impacted by the paid leave law.  This includes 17 
office professional and administrative positions, 6 Village Senior Bus Service positions, 40 public safety positions 
(including Part-Time Patrol Officers, Community Service Officers, Crossing Guards, Police Records staff, etc),  
132 fire suppression, 3 fire prevention, 66 Emergency Management, and 16 public works part-time positions.   
 
On November 1, 2023, the Illinois Municipal League issued ‘IML Memo:  Paid Leave for All Workers Act Guidance’ 
which includes a ‘Special Counsel Memorandum Regarding the Paid Leave for All Workers Act’.  This 
memorandum analyzes whether home rule municipalities can opt out of this Act and recommends model 
ordinances for adoption by municipalities.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
After considerable review of the potential impact to critical municipal services, the PLAWA provisions, and IML 
recommendations and as the PLAWA does not apply to employers, including municipalities, covered by a current 
ordinance that requires them to provide any form of paid leave to their employees, it is recommended that the 
Village follow the ‘Recommendation For Municipal Action’ of the Special Counsel Memorandum opting out of the 
PLAWA and adopt a ‘One Day of Paid Leave Policy’ for all part-time employees via municipal ordinance.  
 
It is further recommended upon initial adoption, that a pro-rated amount of front-loaded paid leave is provided 
for in accordance with provisions of the law, including the 90 day waiting period.  Estimated initial implementation 
pro-rated benefit value is $26,478 and the annualized estimated benefit value thereafter is $78,351.    

Interoffice   

Memo 

Page | 192AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



One Day of Paid Leave Policy      

 
PURPOSE:  The Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) believes it is in the best interests of employees and the 
community that it clearly defines leave benefits for all Village employees in light of the passage of the Paid 
Leave for All Workers Act (“Act”), 820 ILCS 192/1 et seq. 
 
COVERAGE:  This One Day of Paid Leave Policy (“Policy”) shall apply to all part-time employees. This 
Policy is not applicable for all other employees who currently receive paid time off from the Village (e.g., 
vacation time) in accordance with other Village policies, practices, or collective bargaining agreements. 
 
POLICY:  Eligible employees are divided into the following two categories: (1) part-time Fire Suppression; 
and (2) all other eligible part-time employees. 
 
Part-time Fire Suppression shall be entitled to receive one (1) day of paid leave up to twelve (12) hours of 
paid time off within a 12-month time period measured from an employee’s employment start date.  
 

 
Group Class 

One Day of Paid Leave 
Paid Leave Hours 

Class A, Class B 12 Hours 

 
 

All other eligible part-time employees shall be entitled to receive one (1) day of paid leave up to seven (7) 
hours of paid time off within a 12-month time period measured from an employee’s employment start date.  
 

 
Employment Group 

One Day of Paid Leave  
Paid Leave Hours 

Up to 19 Hours 4 Hours 
20 to 29 Hours 6 Hours 
30 to 34 Hours 7 Hours 

 
 
This paid leave shall be front-loaded on an employee’s first date of employment or on the first day of each 
12-month time period. Carryover of any unused paid leave shall not be permitted. Paid leave shall be paid 
at the employee’s regular rate of pay.  Additionally, if an employee leaves the Village’s employment for any 
reason (i.e., resignation, retirement or termination), then that employee is not entitled to a payout of any 
unused paid leave. 
 
Paid leave may only begin to be used ninety (90) days after January 1, 2024, or after an employee first 
begins his or her employment with the Village. Paid leave requests must be taken for a minimum of two (2) 
hour increments and up to the full amount of paid leave each employee is entitled to during the 12-month 
time period, except for Fire Suppression. Due to operational necessity, Fire Suppression paid leave must 
be taken in full awarded amount. 
 
An Employee is required to notify his or her direct supervisor at least seven (7) calendar days in advance 
before taking any such paid leave. If prior notification is not possible, then the employee shall notify his or 
her direct supervisor as soon as practically possible after the employee is aware of the necessity of the 
leave. 
 
The Village may deny an employee’s request to use paid leave if granting such leave would significantly 
impact core operational needs for the requested time period. The following is an illustrative (not exhaustive) 
list of reasons why requests to use paid leave may be denied: 1) Staffing would fall below minimum levels 
necessary to meet public safety needs or provide effective public service 2) Emergency circumstances exist 
requiring employee attendance or 3) Employee absence would hamper the Village’s ability to meet critical 
operational needs or deadlines.  All denials of paid leave requests shall be given to the employee in writing 
with the reason for the denial.  

Page | 193AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 194AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 195AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 196AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 197AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 198AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 199AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 200AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 201AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 202AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 
NO. 2023-O-082 

 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A ONE DAY OF PAID LEAVE 
POLICY FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 

 

 
 

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
NANCY O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
WILLIAM P. BRADY 

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DENNIS P. MAHONEY 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
KENNETH E. SHAW 

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN 
Board of Trustees 

 
 

  

Page | 203AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-082 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A ONE DAY OF PAID LEAVE 

POLICY FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/1-2-1, provides that the corporate 
authorities of each municipality may pass all ordinances and make all rules and regulations proper 
or necessary, to carry into effect the powers granted to municipalities, with such fines or penalties 
as may be deemed proper; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park is a home rule unit of government pursuant to 

Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 
6 of Article VII, may exercise any power or perform any function pertaining to its government and 
affairs; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 12, 2023, Governor JB Pritzker signed into law the Paid 

Leave for All Workers Act (820 ILCS 192/1 et seq.) (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Illinois did not make the necessary appropriations or include 

statutory language exempting the Act from the Illinois State Mandates Act (30 ILCS 805/1 et seq.); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act does not include any express limitation on the Village of Tinley 

Park’s home rule authority as required by Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2024, the Act requires an employer to provide certain 

paid leave to their employees, unless the employer is subject to an existing municipal or county 
ordinance that requires the employer to provide any form of paid leave to their employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park recognizes the importance of paid leave and 

currently provides reasonable paid leave benefits to its employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park has determined that applying the Act to its own 

employees will negatively impact the Village of Tinley Park and place an undue financial and 

Page | 204AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



operational burden on the Village of Tinley Park’s ability to provide uninterrupted services to its 
residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to clearly define the paid leave benefits that Village of Tinley Park employees shall 
receive and to opt out of the Act; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein. 

 
SECTION 2: That the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, hereby 
adopts its current paid leave policy for all Village of Tinley Park employees as set forth in the 
Village of Tinley Park’s Code of Ordinances and any collective bargaining agreements to which 
the Village of Tinley Park is a party and all other binding legislative actions governing paid leave 
adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, as the same may be 
amended from time to time. However, in no event shall the Village of Tinley Park, as an employer, 
provide less than one (1) day of paid leave per year to any Village of Tinley Park employee. 

 
SECTION 3: Pursuant to the Village of Tinley Park’s home rule authority, the Village of Tinley 
Park hereby declares that the Village of Tinley Park, as an employer, is exempt from the 
requirements of the Paid Leave for All Workers Act (820 ILCS 192/1 et seq.). The Village of 
Tinley Park, as an employer, shall have no additional obligations with regard to mandatory paid 
leave, including, without limitation, any obligations provided under the Act, except those 
obligations required by federal and/or state law which validly preempt the Village of Tinley Park’s 
home rule authority. 

 
SECTION 4: All ordinances, resolutions, and policies or parts thereof, in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of the conflict, expressly repealed on the effective 
date of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 5: If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is ruled unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid application 
or provision, and each invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance is severable. 
 
SECTION 6: That the One Day of Paid Leave Policy is attached hereto as Exhibit #1. 
 
SECTION 7: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval.  
 

Page | 205AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 8: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law.  
 
PASSED THIS 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
AYES:   
            
NAYS:   
            
ABSENT:  
             
APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
                VILLAGE CLERK  

Page | 206AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 
 

Page | 207AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



One Day of Paid Leave Policy      

 
PURPOSE:  The Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) believes it is in the best interests of employees and the 
community that it clearly defines leave benefits for all Village employees in light of the passage of the Paid 
Leave for All Workers Act (“Act”), 820 ILCS 192/1 et seq. 
 
COVERAGE:  This One Day of Paid Leave Policy (“Policy”) shall apply to all part-time employees. This 
Policy is not applicable for all other employees who currently receive paid time off from the Village (e.g., 
vacation time) in accordance with other Village policies, practices, or collective bargaining agreements. 
 
POLICY:  Eligible employees are divided into the following two categories: (1) part-time Fire Suppression; 
and (2) all other eligible part-time employees. 
 
Part-time Fire Suppression shall be entitled to receive one (1) day of paid leave up to twelve (12) hours of 
paid time off within a 12-month time period measured from an employee’s employment start date.  
 

 
Group Class 

One Day of Paid Leave 
Paid Leave Hours 

Class A, Class B 12 Hours 

 
 

All other eligible part-time employees shall be entitled to receive one (1) day of paid leave up to seven (7) 
hours of paid time off within a 12-month time period measured from an employee’s employment start date.  
 

 
Employment Group 

One Day of Paid Leave  
Paid Leave Hours 

Up to 19 Hours 4 Hours 
20 to 29 Hours 6 Hours 
30 to 34 Hours 7 Hours 

 
 
This paid leave shall be front-loaded on an employee’s first date of employment or on the first day of each 
12-month time period. Carryover of any unused paid leave shall not be permitted. Paid leave shall be paid 
at the employee’s regular rate of pay.  Additionally, if an employee leaves the Village’s employment for any 
reason (i.e., resignation, retirement or termination), then that employee is not entitled to a payout of any 
unused paid leave. 
 
Paid leave may only begin to be used ninety (90) days after January 1, 2024, or after an employee first 
begins his or her employment with the Village. Paid leave requests must be taken for a minimum of two (2) 
hour increments and up to the full amount of paid leave each employee is entitled to during the 12-month 
time period, except for Fire Suppression. Due to operational necessity, Fire Suppression paid leave must 
be taken in full awarded amount. 
 
An Employee is required to notify his or her direct supervisor at least seven (7) calendar days in advance 
before taking any such paid leave. If prior notification is not possible, then the employee shall notify his or 
her direct supervisor as soon as practically possible after the employee is aware of the necessity of the 
leave. 
 
The Village may deny an employee’s request to use paid leave if granting such leave would significantly 
impact core operational needs for the requested time period. The following is an illustrative (not exhaustive) 
list of reasons why requests to use paid leave may be denied: 1) Staffing would fall below minimum levels 
necessary to meet public safety needs or provide effective public service 2) Emergency circumstances exist 
requiring employee attendance or 3) Employee absence would hamper the Village’s ability to meet critical 
operational needs or deadlines.  All denials of paid leave requests shall be given to the employee in writing 
with the reason for the denial.  

Page | 208AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, NANCY O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-082, “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A ONE DAY OF 

PAID LEAVE POLICY FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES” which was adopted by the 

President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023. 
 

 
       ____________________________________ 
         VILLAGE CLERK 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page | 209AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 
 
 
Date: December 11, 2023  
 
To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 
   
From: Angela Arrigo, Human Resources Director 
 
Subject: Pay Plan Updates – December 2023 
 
 
A mid-year review of the current pay plan has been completed.  Attached is the updated pay plan and a summary of the 
recommended changes is listed below. 
 
Position Title Change(s)/Reclassification(s) 
Certain positions are being recommended for a title change and/or reclassification of pay grades.  These positions include 
the following:  
 

 Senior Payroll Specialist  
The fiscal year 2024 budget included approval for a Payroll Specialist position.  With the identified needs to 
support the payroll function and transition to the new BS&A ERP, it has been identified that this position was to be 
filled at a senior level.  In conjunction with vacancy, net neutral budget impact.     
 

 Helpdesk Coordinator 
The position of Helpdesk Coordinator was recently reviewed and the job description was updated.  After review, it 
has been determined that this position should be re-classified from pay grade 5 to 4H.  Net neutral budget impact.   
     

 Lead 911 Dispatcher / Lead Telecommunicator 
The EMD certification in the job title is no longer needed and is removed.   Employees are not eligible for 
promotion to this supervisor position without holding the minimum certification requirements. No budget impact.       
 

 Building Permit Coordinator 
As a result of operational needs and internal review, a reclassification of the position Senior Building Permit 
Technician position was warranted to Building Permit Coordinator.  In anticipation of a organizational structure 
change, funds were budgeted for this change in FY24.   
 
 

Position Removal(s) 
Certain positions are being recommended for removal from the pay plan.  These positions include the following: 
 

 Part-Time Positions including: Work Order Technician, Accounting Technician, Fire Alarm Service Officer, 
Telecommunication/911 Dispatcher 
These are part-time positions that are not active positions nor anticipate to be filled in the future.  
 

 911 Dispatcher EMD/Telecommunicator EMD 
As a result of the abolishment of the Telecommunicator position from civil service hiring and hiring of experienced 

Interoffice   

Memo 

Page | 210AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

emergency management applicants, the distinction for EMD certification in the job title for additional 
compensation is no longer needed.   All knowledge, skills, and abilities of candidates are used to determine 
compensation placement at time of hire and EMD certification is a job requirement and must be met for 
continued employment. 
 
 

Position Addition(s) 
Certain positions are being recommended for addition to the pay plan.  Filling of new positions will be in line with budgetary 
approvals.  These positions include the following: 
 

 Marketing Program Coordinator 
As a result of a staffing evaluation, the part-time Marketing Program Coordinator position was reclassified to a full-
time position.  As a result of multiple vacancies in the Marketing Department, no budget impact for FY24.  
 

 Police Analyst  
The temporary position of Police Analyst has been created for FY24 to assist in assigned police investigation in lieu 
of contractor agreement that ended as a result of change in status of assigned contract investigator.   Funding is 
available for FY24.   
 

 Property & Evidence Custodian 
As a result of vacancy review, it was determined that the the position of Property & Evidence Custodian was to be 
filled in lieu of Management Analyst to ensure the highest operational standards for the Evidence Room.  No 
budget impact for FY24. 
 

 Village Bus Driver II 
As a result of the licensing requirements, it has been determined that the addition of a Village Bus Driver II is 
warranted for classification of  Village bus drivers who hold a valid CDL.   No budget impact for FY24. 
 

 Police Records Supervisor 
As a result of a recent retirement, it was determined that supervisory responsibilities for the Records Division were 
to be restructured under the position of Police Records Supervisor and resulted in a promotion of the Assistant 
Records Supervisor to this role.  Due to departmental vacancy, funding was available for this position for FY24.  
 

 Senior Police Clerk Matron  
As a result of proficiency promotions awarded through the annual merit plan, it has been determined this position 
shall be added to the merit plan.  Funds were allocated for proficiency promotions during the FY24 budgeting 
process for proficiency promotions within the merit plan.  No budget impact for FY24. 
 

 Interim Police Chief 
This temporary position has been added to the pay plan due to the current vacany of Police Chief.  This position 
has been approved with no budget impact for FY24 due to vacancy of Deputy Police Chief position.   
 
 

Additionally, minor updates were made to standardize position titles and/or salary grade coding.   
 
Pay Schedules 
There are 4 pay schedules as noted below, all the changes described above are applicable to Appendix B and Appendix C 
only. 

 Appendix A - Step-Based Compensation 
 Appendix B – Merit-Based Compensation 
 Appendix C – Other Part-Time Position Compensation 
 Appendix D – Other Fire Department Compensation 

Page | 211AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION
STEP                                                            

A
STEP                                                    

B
STEP                                                                 

C
STEP                                 

D
STEP                                     

E

Non-Certified Firefighter-Class A $16.98 NA NA NA NA

Firefighter-Class A

Firefigher-Class B

Fire Engineer-Class A

Fire Engineer-Class B

Fire Lieutenant-Class A

Fire Lieutenant-Class B

Fire Captain-Class A

Fire Captain-Class B

APPENDIX "A"

Step-Based Compensation Pay Schedule - Effective May 1, 2023
The following pay steps are hereby established for all positions eligible for step-based compensation for the 
period beginning May 1, 2023 and ending April 30, 2024.  Individual compensation shall be in conformance 

with the table below and shall not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending 
April 30, 2024. 

$24.74 $25.24 

$22.59 $24.45 $23.97 $23.49 $23.04 

$21.55 $21.99 

PART-TIME HOURLY

$20.30 $20.71 $21.13 

$25.73 $26.25 $26.79 

$26.17 $28.35 $27.78 $27.23 $26.71 

Page | 212AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE MINIMUM                                                  
Hourly Rate

MAXIMUM                                                                         
Hourly Rate

Bus Dispatcher 1PT
CCTV Operator 1PT
Office Clerk 1PT
Crossing Guard (Per Run) 1PT
Custodian 1PT
Intern 1PT
Seasonal Maintenance Worker 1PT
Senior Center Assistant 1PT
Van Driver 1PT

EMA Member (Certified) 2PT
Village Bus Driver 2PT

Community Service Officer-Field Operations 3PT
Police Clerk Matron 3PT
Village Bus Driver II 3PT

Administrative Assistant 4PT
Human Resources Assistant 4PT
Marketing Program Coordinator 4PT
Videographer 4PT

Administrative Assistant-Marketing 5PT
EMA Officer 5PT
Fire Inspector 5PT
Marketing Assistant 5PT

Accountant 6PT
Marketing Coordinator 6PT
Police Project Coordinator 6PT
Public Education Officer 6PT

Assistant Fire Chief 7PT
Patrol Officer (Certified) 7PT

Administrative & Technical Staff

Supervisors & Advanced Technical Staff

$14.78 $20.69

APPENDIX "B"

Merit-Based Compensation Pay Schedule - Effective May 1, 2023

The following pay ranges are hereby established for all positions eligible for merit-based compensation for the period beginning May 1, 
2023 and ending April 30, 2024.  The 2023-2024 Merit Award shall range from 0% to 4%, Proficiency Promotions shall range from 5% to 

12%, and any Exemplary Performance Recognition Award shall not exceed 10%.   All compensation shall be based on employee 
performance.  Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the table below and shall not exceed that provided for in the budget 

adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.   

PART-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS

$16.55 $23.18

$20.76 $29.07

$26.03 $36.44

$28.63 $40.08 

$18.54 $25.96 

$23.66 $33.12

Page | 213AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE
MINIMUM                                                   

Annual Salary 
MAXIMUM                                                 

Annual Salary

Custodian 1H

Public Works Service Representative 1H

Clerk Matron* 2C $44,727 $62,618 

Administrative Assistant 2H

Midnight Records Clerk 2H

Police Clerk Matron 2H

Property & Evidence Custodian 2H

Senior Custodian 2H

Senior Finance Clerk 2H

Senior Public Works Clerk 2H

Community Service Officer 3H

Utility Billing Technician 3H

Work Order Technician 3H
Animal Control Officer 3H
Building Permit Technician 3H

Senior Police Clerk Matron 3H

Community Engagement Specialist 4

Helpdesk Coordinator 4H

Human Resources Coordinator 4H

Marketing Program Coordinator 4
Public Information Specialist 4

Special Events Specialist 4

911 Dispatcher/Telecommunicator 5HA $57,908

Administrative Assistant to Police Chief 5

Assistant Police Records Supervisor 5

Associate Planner 5

Business Retention & Marketing Specialist 5

Data Analyst 5

Emergency Planner 5

Executive Assistant 5

Management Analyst 5H 

Staff Accountant 5

Zoning Administrator 5

Accountant II 6

Lead 911 Dispatcher/Lead Telecommunicator 6H

Building Permit Coordinator 6

Office Coordinator 6

Application Support Analyst 7

Assistant to the Village Manager 7

Building Inspector 7H

Code Enforcement Officer 7

Fire Inspector I 7H

Health & Consumer Protection Officer 7

Police Records Supervisor 7

Quality and Training Coordinator 7

$70,424 $98,593 

FULL-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS

Administrative & Technical Staff (*denotes full-time 35 hours per week)

$57,434 $88,011 

$54,183 $75,857 

Managers, Supervisors, and Advanced Technical Staff

$91,290 

$76,057 $106,480

$65,207

$48,223 $67,512 

$51,116 $71,563 

Page | 214AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE
MINIMUM                                                   

Annual Salary 
MAXIMUM                                                 

Annual Salary

Deputy Village Clerk 8

Engineering Project Manager 8

Executive Administrative Assistant 8

Human Resources Generalist 8

Network and Security Administrator 8

Radio Technician 8

Senior Accountant 8

Senior Payroll Specialist 8

Senior Planner 8

Systems Administrator 8

Fire Marshal 9

Foreman 9

Head Mechanic 9

Public Works Administrative Manager 9

Purchasing & Contract Administrator 9

Telecommunications Supervisor 9

Fleet and Facilities Superintendent 10

Planning Manager 10

Street Superintendent 10

Village Engineer 10

Water and Sewer Superintendent 10

Assistant Finance Director 11

Assistant Public Works Director 11

Building Official 11

Emergency Management & 911 Communications Director 12

Human Resources Director 12

Marketing Director 12

Police Commander 12

Assistant Village Manager 13

Community Development Director 13

Deputy Fire Service Administrator 13

Deputy Police Chief 13

Information Technology Director 13

Public Works Director 14

Finance Director 14

Fire Service Administrator 14

Interim Police Chief 14

Police Chief 14

Village Manager 15 $178,390 $240,827

$118,060 $159,381

$88,713 $124,199

Directors and Senior Managers

$112,438 $151,791

$82,142 $114,999

$123,963 $167,350

$130,161 $175,717

$97,585 $132,715

Page | 215AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION HOURLY RATE OTHER COMPENSATION

SCADA Engineer $55.00 NA

Police Analyst $40.00 NA

Snow Plow Driver $25.00 NA

EMA Member (Training) $16.17 NA

Patrol Officer (Non-Certified) $18.00 NA

Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) Instructor $20.00 NA

Commission Secretary $19.26 NA

Health Inspector NA $35.00 Per Inspection

Building Inspector NA $15.00 Per Inspection

$2.00 Hourly Stipend for                                                  
Midnight and Weekend Shifts

Time and One Half (1 1/2) for 
Hours Worked on a Designated 

Village Holiday

Clerk Matron/Police Clerk Matron NA

APPENDIX "C"

Other Part-Time Position Compensation – Effective May 1, 2023
The following compensation is hereby established for certain other part-time positions for the period beginning                                            

May 1, 2023 ending April 30, 2024. Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the rates established below and shall 
not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.

OTHER PART-TIME POSITIONS

Page | 216AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION HOURLY STIPEND

Firefighter Acting as Engineer $1.70 Hourly Stipend

Firefighter Acting as Officer $2.75 Hourly Stipend

Engineer Acting as Officer $1.50 Hourly Stipend

Lieutenant Acting as Shift Commander

Captain Acting as Shift Commander

POSITION HOURLY STIPEND

Non-Certified Firefighter-Class A

Firefighter-Class A

Firefigher-Class B

Fire Engineer-Class A

Fire Engineer-Class B

Fire Lieutenant-Class A

Fire Lieutenant-Class B

Fire Captain-Class A

Fire Captain-Class B

$3.00 Hourly Stipend

WEEKEND SHIFT/SPECIAL EVENT INCENTIVE PAY

$4.00 Hourly Stipend

Weekend Shift Incentive Pay Applies to Assigned Fire Station Shift(s) Saturday Day Shift Starting at 0600 Hours Through Sunday Night Shift Ending 
Monday at 0600 Hours.  Special Event Incentive Pay Applies to Assisgned Shift(s) at a Special Event.

APPENDIX "D"

Other Fire Department Compensation
The following compensation is hereby established for for various Fire Department positions for the period beginning                                            

July 1, 2023 ending April 30, 2024. Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the rates established below and shall 
not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.

ACTING UP PAY

Page | 217AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 
NO. 2023-O-083 

 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PAY SCALES  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2024 

 

 
 

MICHAEL GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
WILLIAM P. BRADY 

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DENNIS P. MAHONEY 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
KENNETH E. SHAW 

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN 
Board of Trustees 

 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys 
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606 

  
  

Page | 218AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-083 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PAY SCALES  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2024 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, and 
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 25,000 
is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article VII, may 
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including, but 
not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) previously approved Ordinance No. 

2023-O-018 and 2023-O-039 (“Pay Ordinances”) establishing certain pay scales and fringe benefits 
for Village employees; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Village now desires to amend a Pay Ordinances pertaining to the pay scales 

for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its 
residents to approve said Amendments; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, STATE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION ONE 

All positions that are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement are classified 
accordingly as set forth below. 

All positions of the Village of Tinley Park that have been classified as "Step-Based Plan 
Compensation", except those covered by a collective bargaining agreement as indicated in the 
final paragraph of this section, shall be paid in accordance with the Pay Schedule which is set 
forth in Appendix "A" commencing on May 1, 2023. Said Schedule as attached hereto and as 
hereby adopted, is approved and incorporated as fully as if said Pay Schedule had been set out 
at length herein. 

All positions of the Village of Tinley Park that have been classified as "Merit-Based 
Compensation", except those covered by a collective bargaining agreement as indicated in the 
final paragraph of this section, shall be paid in accordance with the Pay Schedule which is set 

Page | 219AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



forth in Appendix "B" commencing on May 1, 2023. Said Schedule as attached hereto and as 
hereby adopted, is approved and incorporated as fully as if said Pay Schedule had been set out 
at length herein. 

All positions of the Village of Tinley Park that have been classified as "Other Part-Time 
Position Compensation", except those covered by a collective bargaining agreement as indicated 
in the final paragraph of this section, shall be paid in accordance with the Pay Schedule which 
is set forth in Appendix "C" commencing on May 1, 2023. Said Schedule as attached hereto 
and as hereby adopted, is approved and incorporated as fully as if said Pay Schedule had been 
set out at length herein. 

All part-time Fire Department positions of the Village of Tinley Park that have been 
classified as “Other Fire Department Compensation” shall be paid in accordance with the Pay 
Schedule which is set forth in Appendix "D" commencing on July 1, 2023. Said Schedule as 
attached hereto and as hereby adopted, is approved and incorporated as fully as if said Pay 
Schedule had been set out at length herein. 

Patrol Officers shall be paid in accordance with the pay provisions contained in an 
agreement between the Village of Tinley Park and the Metropolitan Alliance of Police Tinley 
Park Police Chapter #192 approved and adopted by the Village Board of Trustees on 12/15/2020, 
and such successor collective bargaining agreements as may be approved by the Village. Police 
Sergeants shall be paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement approved 
and adopted by the Village Board of Trustees on 5/18/2021, and such successor agreements as 
may be approved by the Village.  

Certain Public Works employees shall be paid in accordance with the pay provisions 
contained in an agreement between the Village of Tinley Park and the International Union of 
Operating Engineers, Local 150 and adopted by the Village Board of Trustees on 2/7/2023 and 
any successor collective bargaining agreements as may be approved by the Village. 
 

SECTION TWO 

The positions listed in Appendix “B” and Appendix “C” are hereby adopted as attached 
hereto.   

 
SECTION THREE 

The rates of pay established in the preceding sections of this Ordinance shall not vest 
and shall not constitute a property interest in the continuance of any special rate or method of 
compensation for any public employee, nor shall they be considered a contract of employment 
or guarantee of continued employment. 

 
 
 

Page | 220AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION FOUR 
No expense shall be incurred by the Corporate Authority of the Village of Tinley Park 

or by any committee or member thereof relative to the compensation to be paid to any public 
employee unless an appropriation has been previously made concerning such compensation. 
Any expense otherwise incurred in violation of this Section shall be null and void as to the 
Village of Tinley Park and no money belonging to the Village of Tinley Park shall be paid on 
account thereof. 

SECTION FIVE 
All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION SIX 
That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 

pamphlet form and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

 
SECTION ELEVEN: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption 
and approval.  

 

 

 
PASSED THIS 19TH day of December, 2023. 
 
AYES:              

NAYS:              

ABSENT:              

APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023. 
 

       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 
                VILLAGE CLERK  

Page | 221AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION
STEP                                                            

A
STEP                                                    

B
STEP                                                                 

C
STEP                                 

D
STEP                                     

E

Non-Certified Firefighter-Class A $16.98 NA NA NA NA

Firefighter-Class A

Firefigher-Class B

Fire Engineer-Class A

Fire Engineer-Class B

Fire Lieutenant-Class A

Fire Lieutenant-Class B

Fire Captain-Class A

Fire Captain-Class B

APPENDIX "A"

Step-Based Compensation Pay Schedule - Effective May 1, 2023
The following pay steps are hereby established for all positions eligible for step-based compensation for the 
period beginning May 1, 2023 and ending April 30, 2024.  Individual compensation shall be in conformance 

with the table below and shall not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending 
April 30, 2024. 

$24.74 $25.24 

$22.59 $24.45 $23.97 $23.49 $23.04 

$21.55 $21.99 

PART-TIME HOURLY

$20.30 $20.71 $21.13 

$25.73 $26.25 $26.79 

$26.17 $28.35 $27.78 $27.23 $26.71 

Page | 222AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE MINIMUM                                                  
Hourly Rate

MAXIMUM                                                                         
Hourly Rate

Bus Dispatcher 1PT
CCTV Operator 1PT
Office Clerk 1PT
Crossing Guard (Per Run) 1PT
Custodian 1PT
Intern 1PT
Seasonal Maintenance Worker 1PT
Senior Center Assistant 1PT
Van Driver 1PT

EMA Member (Certified) 2PT
Village Bus Driver 2PT

Community Service Officer-Field Operations 3PT
Police Clerk Matron 3PT
Village Bus Driver II 3PT

Administrative Assistant 4PT
Human Resources Assistant 4PT
Marketing Program Coordinator 4PT
Videographer 4PT

Administrative Assistant-Marketing 5PT
EMA Officer 5PT
Fire Inspector 5PT
Marketing Assistant 5PT

Accountant 6PT
Marketing Coordinator 6PT
Police Project Coordinator 6PT
Public Education Officer 6PT

Assistant Fire Chief 7PT
Patrol Officer (Certified) 7PT

Administrative & Technical Staff

Supervisors & Advanced Technical Staff

$14.78 $20.69

APPENDIX "B"

Merit-Based Compensation Pay Schedule - Effective May 1, 2023

The following pay ranges are hereby established for all positions eligible for merit-based compensation for the period beginning May 1, 
2023 and ending April 30, 2024.  The 2023-2024 Merit Award shall range from 0% to 4%, Proficiency Promotions shall range from 5% to 

12%, and any Exemplary Performance Recognition Award shall not exceed 10%.   All compensation shall be based on employee 
performance.  Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the table below and shall not exceed that provided for in the budget 

adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.   

PART-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS

$16.55 $23.18

$20.76 $29.07

$26.03 $36.44

$28.63 $40.08 

$18.54 $25.96 

$23.66 $33.12

Page | 223AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE
MINIMUM                                                   

Annual Salary 
MAXIMUM                                                 

Annual Salary

Custodian 1H

Public Works Service Representative 1H

Clerk Matron* 2C $44,727 $62,618 

Administrative Assistant 2H

Midnight Records Clerk 2H

Police Clerk Matron 2H

Property & Evidence Custodian 2H

Senior Custodian 2H

Senior Finance Clerk 2H

Senior Public Works Clerk 2H

Community Service Officer 3H

Utility Billing Technician 3H

Work Order Technician 3H
Animal Control Officer 3H
Building Permit Technician 3H

Senior Police Clerk Matron 3H

Community Engagement Specialist 4

Helpdesk Coordinator 4H

Human Resources Coordinator 4H

Marketing Program Coordinator 4
Public Information Specialist 4

Special Events Specialist 4

911 Dispatcher/Telecommunicator 5HA $57,908

Administrative Assistant to Police Chief 5

Assistant Police Records Supervisor 5

Associate Planner 5

Business Retention & Marketing Specialist 5

Data Analyst 5

Emergency Planner 5

Executive Assistant 5

Management Analyst 5H 

Staff Accountant 5

Zoning Administrator 5

Accountant II 6

Lead 911 Dispatcher/Lead Telecommunicator 6H

Building Permit Coordinator 6

Office Coordinator 6

Application Support Analyst 7

Assistant to the Village Manager 7

Building Inspector 7H

Code Enforcement Officer 7

Fire Inspector I 7H

Health & Consumer Protection Officer 7

Police Records Supervisor 7

Quality and Training Coordinator 7

$70,424 $98,593 

FULL-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS

Administrative & Technical Staff (*denotes full-time 35 hours per week)

$57,434 $88,011 

$54,183 $75,857 

Managers, Supervisors, and Advanced Technical Staff

$91,290 

$76,057 $106,480

$65,207

$48,223 $67,512 

$51,116 $71,563 

Page | 224AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PAY GRADE
MINIMUM                                                   

Annual Salary 
MAXIMUM                                                 

Annual Salary

Deputy Village Clerk 8

Engineering Project Manager 8

Executive Administrative Assistant 8

Human Resources Generalist 8

Network and Security Administrator 8

Radio Technician 8

Senior Accountant 8

Senior Payroll Specialist 8

Senior Planner 8

Systems Administrator 8

Fire Marshal 9

Foreman 9

Head Mechanic 9

Public Works Administrative Manager 9

Purchasing & Contract Administrator 9

Telecommunications Supervisor 9

Fleet and Facilities Superintendent 10

Planning Manager 10

Street Superintendent 10

Village Engineer 10

Water and Sewer Superintendent 10

Assistant Finance Director 11

Assistant Public Works Director 11

Building Official 11

Emergency Management & 911 Communications Director 12

Human Resources Director 12

Marketing Director 12

Police Commander 12

Assistant Village Manager 13

Community Development Director 13

Deputy Fire Service Administrator 13

Deputy Police Chief 13

Information Technology Director 13

Public Works Director 14

Finance Director 14

Fire Service Administrator 14

Interim Police Chief 14

Police Chief 14

Village Manager 15 $178,390 $240,827

$118,060 $159,381

$88,713 $124,199

Directors and Senior Managers

$112,438 $151,791

$82,142 $114,999

$123,963 $167,350

$130,161 $175,717

$97,585 $132,715

Page | 225AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION HOURLY RATE OTHER COMPENSATION

SCADA Engineer $55.00 NA

Police Analyst $40.00 NA

Snow Plow Driver $25.00 NA

EMA Member (Training) $16.17 NA

Patrol Officer (Non-Certified) $18.00 NA

Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) Instructor $20.00 NA

Commission Secretary $19.26 NA

Health Inspector NA $35.00 Per Inspection

Building Inspector NA $15.00 Per Inspection

$2.00 Hourly Stipend for                                                  
Midnight and Weekend Shifts

Time and One Half (1 1/2) for 
Hours Worked on a Designated 

Village Holiday

Clerk Matron/Police Clerk Matron NA

APPENDIX "C"

Other Part-Time Position Compensation – Effective May 1, 2023
The following compensation is hereby established for certain other part-time positions for the period beginning                                            

May 1, 2023 ending April 30, 2024. Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the rates established below and shall 
not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.

OTHER PART-TIME POSITIONS

Page | 226AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



POSITION HOURLY STIPEND

Firefighter Acting as Engineer $1.70 Hourly Stipend

Firefighter Acting as Officer $2.75 Hourly Stipend

Engineer Acting as Officer $1.50 Hourly Stipend

Lieutenant Acting as Shift Commander

Captain Acting as Shift Commander

POSITION HOURLY STIPEND

Non-Certified Firefighter-Class A

Firefighter-Class A

Firefigher-Class B

Fire Engineer-Class A

Fire Engineer-Class B

Fire Lieutenant-Class A

Fire Lieutenant-Class B

Fire Captain-Class A

Fire Captain-Class B

$3.00 Hourly Stipend

WEEKEND SHIFT/SPECIAL EVENT INCENTIVE PAY

$4.00 Hourly Stipend

Weekend Shift Incentive Pay Applies to Assigned Fire Station Shift(s) Saturday Day Shift Starting at 0600 Hours Through Sunday Night Shift Ending 
Monday at 0600 Hours.  Special Event Incentive Pay Applies to Assisgned Shift(s) at a Special Event.

APPENDIX "D"

Other Fire Department Compensation
The following compensation is hereby established for for various Fire Department positions for the period beginning                                            

July 1, 2023 ending April 30, 2024. Individual compensation shall be in conformance with the rates established below and shall 
not exceed that provided for in the budget adopted for fiscal year ending April 30, 2024.

ACTING UP PAY

Page | 227AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, NANCY M O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 

of Ordinance No. 2023-O-083, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PAY SCALES FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2024” which was adopted by the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December 2023.  

 

       ____________________________________ 
       NANCY M. O’CONNOR VILLAGE CLERK 
 

Page | 228AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-067

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 2023 TAX LEVY YEAR

  MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 229AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2023-O-067

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 2023 TAX LEVY YEAR

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 

and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 

25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of 

Article VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 

affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park is authorized under the Illinois Property Tax 

Code to levy a tax against the equalized assessed value of all taxable properties within the 

corporate limits of the municipality to support its operations.

NOW THEREFORE Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, that:

               Section 1:            A tax in the aggregate amount of $30,484,447 for the following sums 

of money as detailed in APPENDIX A, or as much thereof as may be authorized by law, to 

defray all expenses and liabilities of the Village, be and the same is hereby levied for the 2023 

tax levy year for the purposes specified against all taxable property in the Village of Tinley Park.

              Section 2:            The taxes levied hereunder are levied pursuant to the home rule 

powers of the Village of Tinley Park.

              Section 3:            The Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park is hereby directed to 

file with the Clerk of Cook County and the Clerk of Will County duly certified copies of this 

Ordinance within the time prescribed by law.

Page | 230AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



              Section 4:           The Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this 

Ordinance in pamphlet form and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, and publication as required by law.

ADOPTED this 19TH day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village 

of Tinley Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19TH day of December, 2023, by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Tinley Park.

________________________________
Village President 

ATTEST:

_____________________________
                 Village Clerk

Page | 231AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, 

Counties of Cook and Will, and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-067 “AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES 

FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 2023 TAX LEVY 

YEAR,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

on  December 19TH, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19TH day of December, 2023.

__________________________________________
VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 232AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE TRUTH IN TAXATION IN ACCORDANCE

WITH CHAPTER 35 SECTIONS 200/18-55 THROUGH 200/18-101.65
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES

I, Michael W. Glotz, Village President, hereby certify to the Cook and Will County Clerk that the 
Village of Tinley Park has complied with all provisions of Truth in Taxation, as amended, with 
respect to the adoption of the tax levy for year 2023.

(CHECK ONE BOX)

The Village levied an amount of ad valorem tax that is less than or equal to 105% 
of the final aggregate extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the 
preceding year, therefore the publication and hearing provisions of Truth in 
Taxation are inapplicable.

                                                OR

The Village levied an amount of ad valorem tax that is greater than 105% of the 
final aggregate extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the 
preceding year, therefore the publication and hearing provisions of Truth Said 
public hearing was held on ____________________(Date). 

____________________________
Village President 

___       _December 19, 2023______
Date

X

Page | 233AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE TRUTH IN TAXATION IN ACCORDANCE

WITH CHAPTER 35 SECTIONS 200/18-55 THROUGH 200/18-101.65
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES

I, Michael W. Glotz, Village President, hereby certify to the Cook and Will County Clerk that the 
Village of Tinley Park has complied with all provisions of Truth in Taxation, as amended, with 
respect to the adoption of the tax levy for year 2023.

(CHECK ONE BOX)

The Village levied an amount of ad valorem tax that is less than or equal to 105% 
of the final aggregate extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the 
preceding year, therefore the publication and hearing provisions of Truth in 
Taxation are inapplicable.

                                                OR

The Village levied an amount of ad valorem tax that is greater than 105% of the 
final aggregate extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the 
preceding year, therefore the publication and hearing provisions of Truth Said 
public hearing was held on ____________________(Date). 

____________________________
Village President 

___  ___December 19, 2023_______
Date

X

Page | 234AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 235AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 236AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 237AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-068

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS 
AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE BOND ORDER DATED JUNE 5, 2013 IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE ISSUANCE OF $11,340,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2013 OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 

ILLINOIS AS AMENDED BY THE “CERTIFICATE OF REDUCTION OF TAXES 
HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE PAYMENT OF BONDS” 

DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Peterson, Johnson, and Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL  60606

Page | 238AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2023-O-068

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS 
AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE BOND ORDER DATED JUNE 5, 2013 IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE ISSUANCE OF $11,340,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2013 OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 

ILLINOIS AS AMENDED BY THE “CERTIFICATE OF REDUCTION OF TAXES 
HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE PAYMENT OF BONDS” 

DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 

and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 

25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 

VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 

including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted an ordinance, being Ordinance Number 2013-O-014, entitled 

"An ordinance providing for the issuance of not to exceed $13,950,000 General Obligation 

Bonds, Series 2013, of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, authorizing 

the execution of one or more bond orders in connection therewith and providing for the levy and 

collection of a direct annual tax for the payment of the principal of and interest on said bonds, as 

adopted June 4, 2013; and

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2013, the Village Clerk, and Treasurer (the Designated Officers) 

entered into a contract for the sale of $11,340,000 Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 

2013 of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois in accordance to the 

aforementioned Ordinance 2013-O-014 and issued a Bond Order detailing the sale and the Series 

Page | 239AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2013 bonds, terms of the Series 2013 bonds, and the taxes to be levied to provide for the debt 

service of the Series 2013 bonds as contained in Exhibit III of the Bond Order; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

caused to be filed with the Clerk's Office of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, a certified 

copy of the Bond Ordinance and Bond Order as aforesaid, directing the said Clerks to levy and 

collect an annual tax for the purpose of paying the principal and interest upon the bonds 

heretofore authorized; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted an ordinance, being Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, entitled 

"An ordinance providing for the issuance of not to exceed $17,500,000 General Obligation bonds 

of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, for the purpose of financing 

certain capital improvements within said Village and refunding certain of the Village’s 

outstanding bonds, providing for the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay the principal of 

and interest on said bonds, authorizing and directing the execution of an escrow agreement in 

connection with the issue of said bonds, and authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser 

thereof, as adopted November 2, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2021 the Village entered into a contract for the sale of 

$5,965,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B of the Village of Tinley 

Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, which provides for the advance refunding of a portion of 

the Series 2013 bonds, in accordance to the aforementioned Ordinance 2021-O-073 and issued a 

“Certificate of Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of Bonds” which included 

amended direction for the abatement of taxes to be levied to provide for the debt service of the 

Series 2013 bonds as had been contained in Exhibit III of the aforementioned Bond Order dated 

June 5, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

caused to be filed with the Clerk's Office of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, a certified 

Page | 240AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



copy of the Bond Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, and the aforementioned “Certificate of 

Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of Bonds” dated December 2, 2021; and

WHEREAS, there is available to the Village of Tinley Park a sum estimated to be 

$423,023.26 to be derived as follows:

 Hotel/Motel Tax Debt Service Reserve Fund $296,100.00

 Sewer Fund   105,744.71

 Stormwater Management Fund     13,228.27

 New Bremen Tax Increment Finance District Fund       7,950.28

Total of alternate funding sources $423,023.26; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park deem it in 

the best interest of the residents and taxpayers of the Village of Tinley Park that the funds 

available in the aforementioned Village Funds, be used to abate a portion of the remaining 

interest and principal on the aforesaid bonds as directed in the aforementioned “Certificate of 

Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of Bonds” dated December 2, 2021 for 

the tax levy year 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:  

            Section 1:              The sum of $423,023.26, which will be derived from revenue sources 

within the preambles herein described above, is hereby appropriated for the specific purpose of 

paying all of the principal and interest on the Series 2013 bonds which fall due on or before 

December 1, 2024.

As provided in the “Certificate of Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of 

Bonds” dated December 2, 2021, the “remainder amount of tax to be extended” in the 2023 tax 

levy is identified as $740,250.00 to meet the requirements to pay for principal and interest on 

said bonds.  

Page | 241AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



The aforementioned $423,023.26 shall be abated leaving $317,226.74 as the remaining 2023 Tax 

Levy amount.

Section 2:              That the Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park is hereby 

authorized and directed to file a certified copy of this ordinance with the Clerk’s Office of both 

Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, abating the portion aforementioned of the remaining 2023 tax 

levy requirement for the payment of principal and interest due on the issuance of $11,340,000 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013, as provided for in the Bond Order dated June 5, 2013, 

and as amended by the “Certificate of Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of 

Bonds” dated December 2, 2021, in due time and in the manner expressed by law, and the 

County Clerks of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, are hereby authorized and directed to 

abate said tax as provided in this ordinance.

Section 3:               This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval pursuant to law.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023 by the Corporate Authorities of the Village 

of Tinley Park as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023 by the President of the Village of Tinley 

Park.

                         ___________________________________                                                 
    VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

ATTEST:         ________________________                              
VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 242AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of 

Cook and Will, and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-068 “AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF 

THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE BOND ORDER 

DATED JUNE 5, 2013 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF $11,340,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2013 OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 

COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS AS AMENDED BY THE “CERTIFICATE OF 

REDUCTION OF TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE PAYMENT OF BONDS” 

DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

__________________________________________
         VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 243AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-069

AN ORDINANCE ABATING ALL OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS 
PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 
BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT OF TAXES” 

DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF $8,940,000 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 

PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Peterson, Johnson, and Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL  60606

Page | 244AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2023-O-069

AN ORDINANCE ABATING ALL OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS 
PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 
BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT OF TAXES” 

DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF $8,940,000 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 

PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 

and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 

25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 

VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 

including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted an ordinance, being Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, entitled 

"An ordinance providing for the issuance of not to exceed $17,500,000 General Obligation bonds 

of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, for the purpose of financing 

certain capital improvements within said Village and refunding certain of the Village’s 

outstanding bonds, providing for the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay the principal of 

and interest on said bonds, authorizing and directing the execution of an escrow agreement in 

connection with the issue of said bonds, and authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser 

thereof, as adopted November 2, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2021 the Village entered into a contract for the sale of 

$8,940,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021A of the Village of Tinley Park, 

Cook and Will Counties, Illinois in accordance to the aforementioned Ordinance 2021-O-073 

Page | 245AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



and issued a “Notification of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B” and a “Direction for Abatement of Taxes” 

both dated December 2, 2021 which included direction for the abatement of taxes to be levied to 

provide for the debt service of the Series 2021A bonds; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

caused to be filed with the Clerk's Office of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, a certified 

copy of the Bond Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes” 

dated December 2, 2021 in connection with said bond sale; and

WHEREAS, there is available to the Village of Tinley Park a sum estimated to be 

$745,400.00 to be derived as follows:

 Water Retail Fund $480,551.93

 Water Wholesale Fund     66,713.30

 Sewer Fund   198,134.77

Total of alternate funding sources $745,400.00; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park deem it in 

the best interest of the residents and taxpayers of the Village of Tinley Park that the funds 

available in the aforementioned Village Funds, be used to abate all of the payment of the interest 

and principal on the aforesaid bonds as directed in the aforementioned “Notification of Sale of 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes,” dated December 2, 2021 for the tax 

levy year 2023.

Page | 246AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:  

            Section 1:              That the sum of $745,400.00, which will be derived from revenue 

sources within the preambles herein described above, is hereby appropriated for the specific 

purpose of paying all of the principal and interest on the Series 2021A bonds which fall due on 

or before December 1, 2024.

As provided in the “Notification of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of 

Taxes,” dated December 2, 2021, the amount of tax to be extended in the 2023 tax levy is 

identified as $745,400.00 to meet the requirements to pay for principal and interest on said 

bonds.  

The above referenced funds are sufficient to meet the full amount of the 2023 Tax Levy amount 

required, and said levy shall be abated in its entirety.

Section 2:              That the Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park is hereby 

authorized and directed to file a certified copy of this ordinance with the Clerk’s Office of both 

Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, abating all of the 2023 tax levy requirement for the payment of 

principal and interest due on the issuance of $8,940,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2021A of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois as provided in the 

“Notification of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes,” dated 

December 2, 2021, in due time and in the manner expressed by law, and the County Clerks of 

both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, are hereby authorized and directed to abate said tax as 

provided in this ordinance.

Page | 247AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Section 3:               This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval pursuant to law.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023 by the Corporate Authorities of the Village 

of Tinley Park as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023 by the President of the Village of Tinley 

Park.

                         ___________________________________                                                 
    VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

ATTEST:         ________________________                              
VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 248AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of 

Cook and Will, and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-069 “AN ORDINANCE ABATING ALL OF THE 2023 

TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION OF SALE 

OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR 

ABATEMENT OF TAXES” DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

ISSUANCE OF $8,940,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A OF THE 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS,” 

which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on 

December 19, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

__________________________________________
         VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 249AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-070

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS 
AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT 
OF TAXES” DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE 
OF $5,965,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 

2021B OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK & WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Peterson, Johnson, and Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL  60606

Page | 250AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2023-O-070

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS 
AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION OF SALE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION FOR ABATEMENT 
OF TAXES” DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE 
OF $5,965,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 

2021B OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK & WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 

and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 

25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 

VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 

including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted an ordinance, being Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, entitled 

"An ordinance providing for the issuance of not to exceed $17,500,000 General Obligation bonds 

of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, for the purpose of financing 

certain capital improvements within said Village and refunding certain of the Village’s 

outstanding bonds, providing for the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay the principal of 

and interest on said bonds, authorizing and directing the execution of an escrow agreement in 

connection with the issue of said bonds, and authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser 

thereof, as adopted November 2, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2021 the Village entered into a contract for the sale of 

$5,965,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B of the Village of Tinley 

Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois in accordance to the aforementioned Ordinance 2021-O-

Page | 251AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



073 and issued a “Notification of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B” and a “Direction for Abatement of Taxes” 

both dated December 2, 2021 which included direction for the abatement of taxes to be levied to 

provide for the debt service of the Series 2021B bonds; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

caused to be filed with the Clerk's Office of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, a certified 

copy of the Bond Ordinance Number 2021-O-073, and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes” 

dated December 2, 2021 in connection with said bond sale; and

WHEREAS, there is available to the Village of Tinley Park a sum estimated to be 

$164,976.74 to be derived as follows:

 The Hotel/Motel Tax Debt Service Reserve Fund $  79,100.00

 Surtax Capital Projects Fund     51,970.52

 Sewer Fund     28,248.58

 Stormwater Management Fund       3,533.80

 New Bremen Tax Increment Finance District Fund       2,123.84

Total of alternate funding sources $164,976.74; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park deem it in 

the best interest of the residents and taxpayers of the Village of Tinley Park that the funds 

available in the aforementioned Village Funds, be used to abate a portion of the interest and 

principal on the aforesaid Series 2021B bonds as directed in the aforementioned “Notification of 

Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General Obligation Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes,” dated December 2, 2021 for 

the tax levy year 2023.

Page | 252AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:  

            Section 1:              That the sum of $164,976.74, which will be derived from revenue 

sources within the preambles herein described above, is hereby appropriated for the specific 

purpose of paying all of the principal and interest on the Series 2021B bonds which fall due on or 

before December 1, 2024.

As provided in the “Notification of Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of 

Taxes,” dated December 2, 2021, the amount of tax to be extended in the 2023 tax levy is 

identified as $197,750.00 to meet the requirements to pay for principal and interest on said 

bonds.  

The aforementioned $164,976.74 shall be abated leaving $32,773.26 as the remaining 2023 Tax 

Levy amount.

Section 2:              That the Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park is hereby 

authorized and directed to file a certified copy of this ordinance with the Clerk’s Office of both 

Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, abating a portion of the 2023 tax levy requirement for the 

payment of principal and interest due on the issuance of $5,965,000 Taxable General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2021B, as provided for in the “Notification of Sale of General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A and Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 

2021B,” and the “Direction for Abatement of Taxes,” dated December 2, 2021, in due time and 

in the manner expressed by law, and the County Clerks of both Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, 

are hereby authorized and directed to abate said tax as provided in this ordinance.

Section 3:               This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval pursuant to law.

Page | 253AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



ADOPTED this 19th day of December 2023 by the Corporate Authorities of the Village 

of Tinley Park as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

  

APPROVED this 19th day of December 2023 by the President of the Village of Tinley 

Park.

                         ___________________________________                                                 
    VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

ATTEST:         ________________________                              
VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 254AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of 

Cook and Will, and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-070 “AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF 

THE 2023 TAX LEVY REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE “NOTIFICATION 

OF SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021A AND TAXABLE 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021B” AND THE “DIRECTION 

FOR ABATEMENT OF TAXES” DATED DECEMBER 2, 2021 IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE ISSUANCE OF $5,965,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS, SERIES 2021B OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL 

COUNTIES, ILLINOIS,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

__________________________________________
         VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 255AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-071

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE TAX YEAR 2023 VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK PROPERTY TAXES EXTENDED FOR 18501 CONVENTION CENTER 
DRIVE, TINLEY PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS (DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TINLEY PARK HOTEL AND CONVENTION CENTER)

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_________________________________________________________________________________

Page | 256AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2023-O-071

AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE TAX YEAR 2023 VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK PROPERTY TAXES EXTENDED FOR 18501 CONVENTION CENTER 
DRIVE, TINLEY PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS (DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TINLEY PARK HOTEL AND 
CONVENTION CENTER)

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 

and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 

25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of 

Article VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 

affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted Resolution Number 2018-R-050, entitled "A Resolution 

Authorizing The Execution Of A Development Incentive Agreement Between The Village Of 

Tinley Park, The Board Of Education School District 227, And The Harp Group, Inc. Relating 

To The Hotel Property Located At 18501 Harlem Avenue” adopted July 17, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted Resolution Number 2018-R-051, entitled "A Resolution 

Authorizing The Execution Of A Development Incentive Agreement Between The Village Of 

Tinley Park, The Board Of Education School District 159, And The Harp Group, Inc. Relating 

To The Hotel Property Located At 18501 Harlem Avenue” adopted July 17, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park have 

heretofore authorized and adopted Resolution Number 2018-R-052, entitled "A Resolution 

Approving The First Amendment To The Tinley Park Convention Center Management Contract 

Between The Harp Group, Inc, And The Village Of Tinley Park” adopted July 17, 2018; and

Page | 257AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



WHEREAS, The Harp Group, Inc. has expressed its desire to operate and manage the 

Tinley Park Convention Center on behalf of the Village of Tinley Park; and 

WHEREAS, The Harp Group, Inc. has acquired the Hotel Property connected to the 

Tinley Park Convention Center under the business entity Tinley Park Convention Center Hotel 

Owners LLC, and intends to continue the operations of the Tinley Park Hotel as a commercial 

enterprise within the Village of Tinley Park; and

WHEREAS, The Harp Group, Inc. has requested financial assistance in the form of real 

estate Tax abatements pursuant to the provision of law (35 ILCS 200/18-165); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Hotel Property, 18501 Convention Center Drive, is identified 

for property tax purposes by permanent identification number 31-06-100-027-0000; and

WHEREAS, the Company has met the conditions and requirements of the 

aforementioned Agreements and is eligible for the financial assistance provided for therein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:  

SECTION ONE

That fifty percent (50%) of the Village of Tinley Park’s portion of real estate property 

taxes (“Property Taxes”) assessed and extended on the Subject Hotel Property (18501 

Convention Center Drive, PIN 31-06-100-027-0000), shall hereby be abated for the 2023 tax 

levy year (taxes billed and collected in calendar 2024).

Said abatement shall be made only against the amounts extended for the Village of Tinley 

Park (tax agency 03-1270-000). The amounts extended for the Tinley Park Public Library (tax 

agency 03-1270-001) are not to be abated.

SECTION TWO

Annual abatements by Elementary School District 159, Rich Township High School 
District 227 and the Village of Tinley Park shall continue until the first of the following should 
occur:

Page | 258AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



(i) duration of ten (10) tax levy years, commencing with the 2018 tax levy year to which 
the first abatement applies, and in which taxes are actually abated (this being the fifth year of 
abatement);

(ii) the aggregate taxes abated on the Subject Hotel Property by all three of the above-
named taxing bodies equals four million dollars ($4,000,000);

(iii) the abatement obligations of the Elementary School District 159, Rich Township 
High School District 227 and the Village terminate as provided for in aforementioned 
Agreements.

SECTION THREE

That the Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park is hereby authorized and directed to 

file a certified copy of this ordinance with the Cook County Clerk’s Office.  

The County Clerk of Cook County, Illinois, is hereby authorized and directed to abate 

said tax as provided in this ordinance.

SECTION FOUR

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval 

pursuant to law.

PASSED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: 

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of  December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley 
Park.

________________________________
               Village President

ATTEST:

________________________________
  Village Clerk

Page | 259AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Ordinance No. 2023-O-071, “AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF THE TAX YEAR 2023 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PROPERTY TAXES EXTENDED FOR 18501 CONVENTION 

CENTER DRIVE, TINLEY PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS (DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TINLEY PARK HOTEL AND CONVENTION CENTER),” which was 

adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
       VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 260AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: December 4, 2023

To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager

From: Timothy Poulos, Commander of Patrol 

Subject: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-XXX AMENDING TITLE XII CHAPTER 
77 SECTION 10 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED “PEDESTRIANS 
SOLICITING RIDES.”

Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action. 

Description: 

To comply with Illinois State Statutes an amendment to title XII Chapter 77 section 10 of the Tinley 
Park Municipal Code entitled “PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES” is being requested. 

Staff Direction Request: 

1. Approve the amendment of Title XII Chapter 77 section 10 of the Tinley Park Municipal code 
entitled “PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES”. 

2. Direct Staff as necessary 

Attachment 

1. Original ordinance language and proposed amended ordinance language 

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 261AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.2023-O-084

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XII CHAPTER 77 SECTION 10 OF 
THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED

“PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES.”

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray LLC, Village Attorneys

200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606
 

Page | 262AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-084

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XII CHAPTER 77 SECTION 10 OF 
THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED

“PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES.”

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs;

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village to reanalyze 
solicitations by pedestrians within the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park to 
amend the aforementioned provisions of the Tinley Park Municipal Code pursuant to this 
Ordinance; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: That Title XII, Chapter 77, Section 10 (77.10) of the Tinley Park Municipal Code 
entitled “PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES” of the Tinley Park Municipal Code is hereby 
amended by deleting the following strikethrough language and adding the following language 
thereafter: 

§ 77.10 PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES

(A)   No person shall stand in a roadway for the purpose of soliciting a ride from the       
  driver of any vehicle. 

(B)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor.

(ILCS Ch. 625, Act 5 § 11-1006) (’77 Code, § 72.021).

§ 77.10 PEDESTRIANS SOLICITING RIDES

Page | 263AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



(A)   No person shall stand in a roadway for the purpose of soliciting a ride from the 
driver of any vehicle. 

(B)   No person shall stand on a highway for the purpose of soliciting employment or 
business from the occupant of any vehicle.

(C)   No person shall stand on a highway for the purpose of soliciting contributions of any 
vehicle except within a municipality when expressly permitted by municipal 
ordinance.  The local municipality, city, village, or other local governmental entity in 
which the solicitation takes place shall determine by ordinance where and when 
solicitations may take place based on the safety of the solicitors and the safety of 
motorists.  The decision shall also take into account the orderly flow of traffic and 
may not allow interference with the operation of official traffic control devices.

(D)   No person shall stand on or in the proximity of a highway for the purpose of 
soliciting the watching or guarding of any vehicle while parked or about to be parked 
on a highway.

(E)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of a Class A Misdemeanor.  

(ILCS Ch. 625, Act 5 § 11-1006)

PASSED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 264AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-084, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XII CHAPTER 77 

SECTION 10 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED ‘PEDESTRIANS 

SOLICITING RIDES,’” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
         VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 265AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Interoffice
Memo

Date: December 13, 2023

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager
Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager

Subject: Title XI, Chapter 116, Section 116.09 – Maximum Stay Length Penalties

The Village passed an Ordinance in June of 2022 regarding the maximum stay length for hotels and 
motels. With 11 existing hotels, and continued interest from new hotels, it is important to ensure the 
municipal code addresses the hospitality industry and the changes that it has seen largely since COVID. 
Upon further review of this Ordinance, it is recommended that a penalty section be added should 
there be any violation of the ordinance. 

Staff Recommendation: Consider approving a penalty section for any person, firm or corporation who 
violates the maximum stay length Ordinance. 

Page | 266AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-086

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XI, CHAPTER 116, SECTION 
116.09 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 

MAXIMUM STAY LENGTHS FOR HOTELS AND MOTELS

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Page | 267AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-086

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XI, CHAPTER 116, SECTION 
116.09 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 

MAXIMUM STAY LENGTHS FOR HOTELS AND MOTELS

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) currently regulates the maximum 
amount of time that guests are permitted to stay at any hotel, motel, or extended stay hotel within 
the Village (the “Regulations”); and 

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees of the Village (together, the 
“Corporate Authorities”) recognize the need to update and clarify the Regulations from time to 
time; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to update and clarify the Regulations as set forth herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: That the Municipal Code of Tinley Park is hereby amended, notwithstanding any 
provision, ordinance, resolution, or Municipal Code section to the contrary, by amending Title XI, 
Chapter 116, Section 116.09 as follows: 

§ 116.09 MAXIMUM STAY LENGTH.

   (A)   No hotel, motel, extended-stay hotel located within the village shall allow any 
person to occupy such facility for more than 28 consecutive days unless otherwise 
permitted in this section. No guest residing for more than 28 consecutive days shall begin 
a new rental agreement with the hotel, motel, or extended stay hotel without at least a 
fourteen-day two-day vacancy between stays.

Page | 268AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



   (B)   No hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel located within the village shall allow any 
person to occupy such hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel as his or her permanent 
residence, and/or to utilize the hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel address as his or her 
mailing address.

   (C)   Notwithstanding divisions (A) and (B) above, a stay in excess of 28 consecutive 
days, or utilizing the hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel as a mailing address by a guest 
may occur in the following situations:

      (1)   Where there is a written contract or documented agreement between a hotel, motel, 
or extended-stay hotel and a business, corporation, firm or governmental agency to house 
employees or individuals on valid work orders;

      (2)   Where there is documentation, consistent with HIPPA privacy rules, that a hotel 
guest is considered family or is providing care for a patient who is admitted at a local 
hospital;

      (3)   When an insurance company or federal, state or local agency has provided 
documentation that a hotel guest has been displaced from their home by a natural disaster 
or fire;

      (4)   Where there is a written contract or documented agreement between a hotel, motel, 
or extended-stay hotel and an organization to provide emergency or transitional 
housing/shelter.

      (5) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel shall notify 
the Village of any stay in excess of 28 consecutive days. The Village reserves the right to 
request supporting documentation that an extended stay in excess of 28 consecutive days 
is permissible as set forth in this Section. Failure to provide such documentation upon 
request shall constitute a violation of this Section. 

   (D)   All hotels, motels, and extended-stay hotels are required to comply with all 
applicable provisions of this Code.

   (E)   All hotels, motels, and extended-stay hotels constructed after the effective date of 
this subchapter, must provide a minimum of 1,000 square feet in common areas for 
recreational use by guests. In computing the 1,000 square feet requirement, swimming 
pools, fitness or recreation centers, patios, terraces, and other recreational facilities in 
common areas may be used in determining the square footage required by this division. An 
extended-stay hotel is considered constructed only after a certificate of occupancy is issued.

  (F)   Any person, firm, or corporation violating this Section shall be fined $750.00 for 
each offense, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on 
which a violation occurs or continues. Any hotel, motel, or extended-stay hotel that fails to 
comply with this Section for a period of thirty (30) or more days shall be subject to the 
suspension or revocation of its business license and liquor license, if applicable. 

Page | 269AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Ordinances shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its adoption 
and approval. 

SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 270AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and Will 

and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Ordinance No. 2023-O-086, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XI, CHAPTER 116, 

SECTION 116.09 OF THE TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 

MAXIMUM STAY LENGTHS FOR HOTELS AND MOTELS” which was adopted by the 

President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 271AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Interoffice 

Memo 
 

Date: December 13, 2023 
 

To: Village Board 
 

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 

 
Subject: Executive Order and Policy Regarding Unscheduled Intercity Buses 

 

 

On December 7th, 2023 Mayor Glotz and Clerk O’Connor signed an Executive Order regarding 
unscheduled intercity buses. The Executive Order designed authority to the Police Chief to implement 
a policy to protect the health, safety and welfare of the passengers of said buses and the community. 
Attached to this memo is a copy of the Order and policy.  

 
Staff Recommendation: Consider approving and ratifying the Executive Order and policy regarding 
unscheduled intercity buses.  

 

Page | 278AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1 
 

 
 

Tinley park 

 
 
 

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2023-001 
DECLARING A POLICY REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES  

 
WHereaS, the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois (the “Village”) is committed to protecting the health, 

safety, and welfare of individuals residing in and visiting the Village; and  
 
WHereaS, it is in the best interests of the Village, its employees, and its residents to establish a policy 

for the stopping, standing, and parking of intercity buses and the discharge of passengers within the Village (the 
“Policy”); and  

 
WHereaS, the unloading of passengers in inclement or severe weather conditions without a coordinated 

plan poses a significant threat to the health, safety, and welfare of said passengers; and  
 

WHereaS, time is of the essence due to the incoming inclement weather within the Chicagoland area 
and the immediate increase in demands on Village resources resulting from the discharge of said passengers 
within the Village; and  
 

nOW, THereFOre, by the powers vested in me as the Village President (“Mayor”) of the Village of 
Tinley Park, Illinois, I hereby establish the Policy, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein.  

 
 SeCTiOn 1:  Effective immediately, I, the Mayor of the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, delegate to the 
Chief of Police the authority to take any and all lawful action necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare 
of the residents and corporate citizens of the Village, including, but not limited to, the enforcement of the Policy, 
and the authority to cite and take other appropriate measures against the persons who disobey this Order or the 
Policy after due notice, either oral or written has been given.   
 

SeCTiOn 2: This Order is declared effective immediately and shall remain in effect unless otherwise 
lawfully modified, amended, rescinded, or superseded.  

 
SeCTiOn 3: This Executive Order shall be distributed in accordance with applicable law. 
 
SeCTiOn 4:  This Executive Order is not intended to, and does not, except as specifically set forth herein, 

create any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any party against the 
Village, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, employees, or agents, or any other person. This 
Executive Order shall be deposited and kept immediately available on file for inspection in the office of the 
Village Clerk. 
 

 
      __________________________ 
      Michael W. Glotz, Mayor 

 
Received and Filed December 7, 2023 

 
 
__________________________________ 

Nancy, M. O’Connor, Village Clerk 
  

Page | 279AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

POLICY OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK  
REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES 

 

I. Definitions 
For the purposes of this Policy, these definitions shall apply. 

a. “Application” means a form that the Tinley Park Chief of Police makes available for receiving and 
reviewing proposed intercity bus operations. 

b. “Approval” means written notice that the Chief of Police has received, reviewed, and determined that 
an application satisfies the requirements of the Village and this Policy.  

c. “Chief of Police” means the Tinley Park Chief of Police.  

d. “Regularly scheduled service” means intercity bus service that operates trips on a predictable and recurring 
basis, following a schedule that is published in advance and available to the general public, and provides 
service in exchange for paying a fare. 

e. “Unscheduled intercity bus” means any bus used for the transportation of persons between the Village 
of Tinley Park and locations outside of the Chicago-Naperville-Joliet area that is not operating pursuant 
to authorization of the Chief of Police authorization via: (i) an approved letter of permission or (ii) an 
approved schedule and/or approved pick-up/drop-off zone, as of the effective date of this Policy. 

f. “Village” shall mean the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois.  

II. Applicability 
The Chief of Police’s preexisting application, review and approval process for intercity buses, as may be amended 
from time to time, shall apply to: (i) applicants for regularly scheduled service, and (ii) operators with an approved 
letter of permission, schedule and/or approved pick-up/drop-off zone as of the effective date of this Policy. 

III. Notice and Application Required 
The operator of any unscheduled intercity bus must make application for an approval to arrive and load/unload 
passengers in the Village on the appropriate form made available by the Chief of Police. All applications for 
unscheduled intercity bus service must be received by the Chief of Police a minimum of five (5) full business days 
prior to the requested date of arrival in the application.  
 
All applications shall include the proposed passenger list, and the operator shall be required to perform background 
checks on each passenger over the age of eighteen, and shall provide copies of the same to the Chief of Police as 
part of the application.  
 
Each application for an unscheduled intercity bus drop off must include an order authorizing the drop off executed 
by the head of the public body originating the transfer of such passengers.  

IV. Processing and Approval of Applications 
Applications for unscheduled intercity buses will be reviewed on a first-come, first-serve basis. No more than one 
(1) application, regardless of operator, shall be approved by the Chief of Police for a given date, time, and location.  

V. Days and Hours of Operation 
Unscheduled intercity buses shall load/unload passengers within the Village only between the hours of 10:00 a.m. 
and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, and not at any time on Saturdays, Sundays, or designated Village Holidays.  
 
VI. Passenger Pick-up/Drop-Off Locations 

Unscheduled intercity buses shall only load/unload passengers at locations designated by the Chief of Police, 
which shall be listed on the approved application.  

VII. Punctuality 
For any given approval, unscheduled intercity buses must arrive no sooner than, and no later than 30 minutes after, 
the approved arrival time, otherwise the application shall be considered invalidated. Any loading/ unloading of 
passengers outside of this scheduled window shall result in a $750.00 fine per passenger to the operator.  
 
VIII. Proof of Application and Approval 

Operators of unscheduled intercity buses must carry a physical or electronic copy of an approved application and 
present it for inspection at the place of loading/unloading upon request by any 
employee or designee of the Village. 
 
IX. Penalty.  

Any operator of an unscheduled intercity bus that attempts to or does in fact load/unload passengers without an 
approved application shall be subject to a $750.00 fine per passenger upon the intercity bus operator. 

Page | 280AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 
APPLICATION FOR UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUS  

All unscheduled intercity buses must use this application form and receive approval from the 

Village of Tinley Park, Illinois prior to loading/unloading any passengers within the Village limits.  

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Bus Company Name: ______________________________________________________ 

Bus Company Address: ____________________________________________________ 

Bus Company State of Incorporation:         

Primary Contact Name: _____________________________________________________ 

Title/Position of Primary Contact:          

Primary Contact Phone: _____________________________________________________ 

Primary Contact Email:_______________________________________________________ 

Bus Driver Full Name (including middle):_       __ 

Bus Driver’s Date of Birth: _________________________ 

Bus Driver Phone: ____________________________________________________________ 

Bus Driver Operator’s License #          

State of Issuance:    Expiration Date:    

Other employees (Bus Company or 3rd party contractors or individuals assisting with the 

transportation of passengers: (attach a separate page if needed)  

Full Name of any3rd Parties:____________________________________   

Date of Birth:            
    

PASSENGER INFORMATION 
(A) The Applicant must attach a proposed passenger list of all proposed passengers (including any 

employees of a 3rd party involved in the transportation of passengers) to this Application.  
(B) The Applicant must provide background check information for all proposed passengers (including 

3rd party contractors or individuals assisting in the transportation of passengers) over the age of 

eighteen (18) years. Attach background check information to this Application- failure to attach 

background information will result in the Application being denied with no further processing.  
(C) Any passenger or 3rd party employee/individual not listed on the Application who exits the bus will 

be considered in violation of Village Policy (failure to submit a background check with the 

application) and will result in a $750.00 fine, per person, assessed to the bus operator.    

 

Page | 281AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



ARRIVAL INFORMATION 

Proposed Arrival Date*:________________________________________________________ 
(*Must be at least 5 business days from the date of application submission) 
 
Proposed arrival time:  (check only one time period)  
  Morning: □ 10-11 am □ 11am-12pm  
 

Afternoon □ 12-1 pm □ 1-2 pm □ 2-3 pm   □ 3-4 pm  
USDOT of bus:_______________________________________________________________ 

Bus license plate and State: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Any unscheduled intercity bus that allows passengers to disembark outside these days and hours 
will be considered in violation of Village Policy and will result in a fine, per person, assessed to 
the bus operator.  
 

AUTHORIZATION FROM HEAD OF PUBLIC BODY INITIATING TRANSFER 
 

The Applicant must provide an order authorizing the transfer of the proposed passengers which is 

executed by the head of the public body which has initiated the transfer via unscheduled intercity 

bus. No application shall be processed without a copy of the authorizing order.  

 

         Date:      
Applicant Signature  
 
       
Applicant’s Name- Typed or Printed 
 
(Required) 
 
 
Notary Seal:   
 
 
             
Village Use only:     
Date Received:   Time Received:    How received:  
 
Signature of Village Official:                                                                                  Approved or Denied (Circle)   
 
Name of Village Official:                                                                                          

   
     

Page | 282AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 
NO. 2023-O-087 

 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING A POLICY REGARDING 
UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 

ILLINOIS 

 
 

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
NANCY O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
WILLIAM P. BRADY 

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DENNIS P. MAHONEY 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
KENNETH E. SHAW 

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN 
Board of Trustees 

 
 

  



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-087 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING A POLICY REGARDING 

UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 
ILLINOIS 

 
WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”), its 
employees, and its residents to establish a policy for the stopping, standing, and parking of intercity 
buses and the discharge of passengers within the Village; and  

 
WHEREAS, the unloading of passengers in inclement or severe weather conditions 

without a coordinated plan poses a significant threat to the health, welfare, and safety of said 
passengers; and  

 
WHEREAS, time is of the essence due to the incoming inclement weather within the 

Chicagoland area and the immediate increase in demands on Village resources resulting from the 
discharge of said passengers within the Village; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Village President (the “President”) has issued Executive Order 2023-001 

(the “Order”) and a policy regarding unscheduled intercity buses (the “Policy”), attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Group Exhibit 1; and  
 

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees (together, the “Corporate 
Authorities”) of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, have determined that 
it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents to approve, adopt, and ratify 
the Order and the Policy; and   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein.  
 
SECTION 2: That the Order and the Policy are attached hereto as Group Exhibit 1. 



 
SECTION 3: The purpose of this Ordinance is to approve, adopt, and ratify the Order and the 
Policy for the benefit of the Village, its employees, its residents, and its visitors, and to authorize 
the President and his designees to take any and all action necessary to carry out the Order and the 
Policy.  
 
SECTION 4: The Order and the Policy are hereby adopted as set forth in Group Exhibit 1. The 
officers, employees, and/or agents of the Village shall take all action necessary or reasonably 
required to carry out, give effect to, and consummate the Policy, and to take all action necessary 
in conformity therewith. The officers, employees, and/or agents of the Village are specifically 
authorized and directed to draft and disseminate any and all necessary forms to be utilized in 
connection with this amendment and to effectuate the goals of this Ordinance.    
 
SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval.  
 
SECTION 6: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law.  
 
PASSED THIS 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
AYES:   
            
NAYS:   
            
ABSENT:  
             
APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
                VILLAGE CLERK  



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, NANCY O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-087, “AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING A 

POLICY REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF 

TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023. 
 

 
       ____________________________________ 
         VILLAGE CLERK 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

Group Exhibit 1 

 



Interoffice
Memo

Date: December 13, 2023

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager
Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager

Subject: Executive Order and Policy Regarding Unscheduled Intercity Buses

On December 15th, 2023 Mayor Glotz and Clerk O’Connor signed an Executive Order regarding 
unscheduled intercity buses. The Executive Order designed authority to the Police Chief to implement 
a policy to protect the health, safety and welfare of the passengers of said buses and the community. 
This Order specifically outlines rules and regulations surrounding impoundment of unscheduled 
intercity buses for violating Executive Order 2023-001. Attached to this memo is a copy of the Order 
and policy. 

Staff Recommendation: Consider approving and ratifying the Executive Order and policy regarding 
unscheduled intercity buses. 

Page | 283AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1 
 

 

Tinley park 

 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2023-002 

DECLARING RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING UNSCHEDULED 

INTERCITY BUSES  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois (the “Village”) is committed to protecting 

the health, safety, and welfare of individuals residing in and visiting the Village; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village has adopted a policy regarding the stopping, standing, and parking 

of intercity buses and the discharge of passengers within the Village (the “Policy”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the unloading of passengers in inclement or severe weather conditions without 

a coordinated plan poses a significant threat to the health, safety, and welfare of said passengers; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, time is of the essence due to the incoming inclement weather within the 

Chicagoland area and the immediate increase in demands on Village resources resulting from the 

discharge of said passengers within the Village; and  

 
WHEREAS, bus operators have been attempting to avoid compliance with the policies of 

neighboring municipalities regarding permitting requirements for unscheduled intercity buses; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Village, its employees, residents, and visitors 

that the Village implement additional rules and regulations (the “Rules and Regulations”) 

regarding unscheduled intercity buses and hold non-compliant bus operators accountable for 

endangering the safety and welfare of their passengers; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, by the powers vested in me as the Village President (“Mayor”) of the 

Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, I hereby authorize the Village, its Police Department, and its 

employees to implement the Rules and Regulations as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein.  

 

 SECTION 1:  Effective immediately, I, the Mayor of the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, 

delegate to the Chief of Police the authority to take any and all lawful action necessary to protect 

the health, safety and welfare of the residents and corporate citizens of the Village, including, but 

not limited to, the enforcement of the Rules and Regulations, and the authority to cite and take 

other appropriate measures against the persons who disobey this Order or the Rules and 

Regulations after due notice, either oral or written has been given.   

 

SECTION 2: This Order is declared effective immediately and shall remain in effect unless 

otherwise lawfully modified, amended, rescinded, or superseded.  

 

SECTION 3: This Executive Order shall be distributed in accordance with applicable 

law. 

 

SECTION 4:  This Executive Order is not intended to, and does not, except as specifically 

set forth herein, create any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in 

equity by any party against the Village, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, 

employees, or agents, or any other person. This Executive Order shall be deposited and kept 

Page | 290AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2 
 

immediately available on file for inspection in the office of the Village Clerk. 

 

 

       

      __________________________ 

      Michael W. Glotz, Mayor 

 

 

 

Received and Filed December 15, 2023 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Nancy, M. O’Connor, Village Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page | 291AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



3 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK  

REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES 

 

I. Definitions 

For the purposes of these Rules and Regulations, these definitions shall apply. 

a. “Application” means a form that the Tinley Park Chief of Police makes available for 

receiving and reviewing proposed intercity bus operations. 

b. “Approval” means written notice that the Chief of Police has received, reviewed, and 

determined that an application satisfies the requirements of the Village and the Policy.  

c. “Chief of Police” means the Tinley Park Chief of Police.  

d. “Policy” means that written policy which was promulgated by the Village Mayor as set 

forth in Executive Order 2023-001.  

e. “Regularly scheduled service” means intercity bus service that operates trips on a 

predictable and recurring basis, following a schedule that is published in advance and 

available to the general public, and provides service in exchange for paying a fare. 

f. “Unscheduled intercity bus” means any bus used for the transportation of persons between 

the Village of Tinley Park and locations outside of the Chicago-Naperville-Joliet area that 

is not operating pursuant to authorization of the Chief of Police authorization via: (i) an 

approved letter of permission or (ii) an approved schedule and/or approved pick-up/drop-

off zone, as of the effective date of the Policy. 

g. “Village” shall mean the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois.  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

II.  Applicability

These Rules and Regulations shall apply to any unscheduled intercity bus or unscheduled intercity

bus  operator  that  attempts  to  discharge  or  pick-up  passengers  within  the  limits  of  the  Village

without a valid permit issued by the Village as set forth in the  Policy.

III.  Towing and Impounding.

In  addition  to  any  fees  or  fines  set  forth  in  the  Policy,  any  unscheduled  intercity  bus  used  in

violation  of  Executive  Order  2023-001  and  the  Policy  set  forth  therein  shall  be  subject  to

immediate seizure and impoundment. The owner of record of said bus shall be liable for any and

all towing, storage and administrative fees associated with the towing and storage of the bus. The

owner of record shall also be subject to an administrative penalty of Five Thousand U.S. Dollars

($5,000.00).

Whenever a police officer  with supervisory authority and  who is present at the time of an alleged

violation of the  Policy set forth in Executive Order 2023-001 has probable cause to believe that

an intercity bus is  subject to seizure and impoundment pursuant to these Rules and Regulations,

the police officer shall provide for the towing of the bus to an authorized towing facility.

Before  or  at  the  time  the  bus  is  towed,  the  police  officer  shall  notify  any  person  identifying

themselves as the owner of the bus at the time of the alleged violation, or the person who is found

to be in control of the bus at the time of the alleged violation, if there is such a person, of the fact

of  the  seizure  and  of  the  bus  owner’s  right  to  request  a  vehicle  impoundment  hearing  to  be

conducted under Chapter  90, Section 90.21 and 90.22  of the  Tinley Park Municipal Code  by

serving such person with a copy of the citation.

Page | 292AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



4 
 

IV. Criminal Charges 

The Chief of Police is hereby authorized to pursue criminal charges against any (i) unscheduled 

intercity bus operator, (ii) unscheduled intercity bus driver, or (iii) third-party employees who are 

charged with the oversight of the passengers, when such individual attempts to or does discharge 

passengers where such actions endanger the health, safety or welfare of passengers.  

The Chief of Police shall consider the following when determining whether to pursue criminal 

charges:  

(a) The location of the discharge or attempted discharge of passengers;  

(b) Extreme weather conditions, including temperatures below freezing, snowfall, severe 

rain, or other inclement weather which poses a risk to passengers;  

(c) Whether any of the passengers are minors; and  

(d) The time of day and access to shelter or transportation for passengers.  

V. Civil Remedies  

The Village’s attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to pursue any and all civil remedies 

against intercity bus operators that fail to or refuse to comply with the Policy or these Rules and 

Regulations. Such civil remedies include, but are not limited to, injunctive relief, declaratory 

judgements, and debt collection actions.  

 

Page | 293AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-088

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING RULES AND REGULATIONS 
REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 

PARK, ILLINOIS

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Page | 284AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-088

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING RULES AND REGULATIONS 
REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 

PARK, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) has adopted a policy for the stopping, 
standing, and parking of intercity buses and the discharge of passengers within the Village as set 
forth in Executive Order 2023-001 (the “Policy”); and 

WHEREAS, the unloading of passengers in inclement or severe weather conditions 
without a coordinated plan poses a significant threat to the health, welfare, and safety of said 
passengers; and 

WHEREAS, time is of the essence due to the incoming inclement weather within the 
Chicagoland area and the immediate increase in demands on Village resources resulting from the 
discharge of said passengers within the Village; and 

WHEREAS, bus operators have been attempting to avoid compliance with the policies of 
neighboring municipalities regarding permitting requirements for unscheduled intercity buses; and

WHEREAS, the Village President (the “President”) has issued Executive Order 2023-002 
(the “Order”) and rules and regulations regarding unscheduled intercity buses (the “Rules and 
Regulations”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Group Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, the Rules and Regulations hold bus operators accountable for endangering 
the safety and welfare of their passengers; and 

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees (together, the “Corporate 
Authorities”) of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, have determined that 
it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents to approve, adopt, and ratify 
the Order and the Rules and Regulations; and  

Page | 285AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: That the Order and the Rules and Regulations are attached hereto as Group Exhibit 
1.

SECTION 3: The purpose of this Ordinance is to approve, adopt, and ratify the Order and the 
Rules and Regulations for the benefit of the Village, its employees, its residents, and its visitors, 
and to authorize the President and his designees to take any and all action necessary to carry out 
the Order and the Rules and Regulations. 

SECTION 4: The Order and the Rules and Regulations are hereby adopted as set forth in Group 
Exhibit 1. The officers, employees, and/or agents of the Village shall take all action necessary or 
reasonably required to carry out, give effect to, and consummate the Rules and Regulations, and 
to take all action necessary in conformity therewith. The officers, employees, and/or agents of the 
Village are specifically authorized and directed to draft and disseminate any and all necessary 
forms to be utilized in connection with this amendment and to effectuate the goals of this 
Ordinance.   

SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 6: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

Page | 286AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PASSED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 287AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-088, “AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND RATIFYING 

RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING UNSCHEDULED INTERCITY BUSES 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS” which was adopted by the President 

and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 288AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Group Exhibit 1

Page | 289AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: December 12, 2023

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager
Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village manager

From: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

Subject: Harmony Square Infrastructure Improvements – Tria Architecture, Inc., PSA
_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting consideration and possible 
action.

Description: 
Earlier this year Village Board action approved Professional Services Agreements (PSA) to our hired 
professional services for the design phase of Harmony Square. One of the design providers, Tria 
Architecture, Inc., had their legal team respond with concerns to the insurance requirements of the 
template PSA.

Since this concern was brought up, both parties have worked towards a mutually acceptable 
resolution that is now in front of the Village Board for approval. 

To save from the project being delayed, Tria Architecture, Inc. has been working in good faith with the 
understanding that these concerns will be resolved.

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve Agreements as listed.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachments: 
1. Individual Professional Service Agreements as listed.

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 294AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-155

A RESOLUTION APPENDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 295AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-155

A RESOLUTION APPENDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into a/an Agreement with TRIA Architecture, Inc., a true and correct copy 

of such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 296AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

A RESOLUTION APPENDING AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 

TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY 
SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS – 

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS PHASE

Page | 297AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-155, “A RESOLUTION APPENDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY 

SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE,” which was adopted by the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19th, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 298AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315571298.v1

July 25, 2023 VIA E-MAIL
(10) Page(s) Inclusive

mglotz@tinleypark.org

Mayor Michael Glotz
Village of Tinley Park (OWNER) 
16250 S. Oak Park Ave.,
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

Re: Harmony Square Project
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477
Proposal for Professional Services– Design Development, Construction 
Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations

Dear Mayor Glotz:

It was a pleasure talking with you about your design needs. We thank you for the opportunity to 
continue working with you. We have reviewed the project and understand the scope of 
services. We feel that our experience with similar projects and our dedication to exceptional 
design and service will blend in perfectly with this Project. We have described our scope of 
services for the Project below.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING:
I. TRIA Architecture (TRIA) will complete all Architectural Design and structural, 
mechanical, electrical and fire protection engineering services for you (OWNER), as 
described herein. This Proposal is based on the following key components:

A. Design the Support Building to include:
1. Stage with associated support spaces.
2. Skate rental office.
3. Vanilla box flex space for future build-out.
4. Second floor Public Safety Office.
5. Basement for HVAC systems and storage.

B. Design the VIP building to include:
1. Indoor seating space with a kitchenette.
2. Two single user restrooms.
3. Janitor’s closet.
4. Outdoor seating area.
5. Public safety roof deck viewing area.

C. A Vanilla Box (shell and core only) Hospitality Building to include:
1. Unfinished first floor spaces for future bar/restaurant build-out.
2. Finished concessions area for plaza use.
3. Finished toilet rooms for plaza use.
4. Unfinished second floor space for future build-out.

Page | 299AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:mglotz@tinleypark.org


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 3 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

5. Unfinished roof deck area for future build-out.
D. All designs are based on the Schematic Design plans approved on July 17, 
2023.

II. All additional designs or design modifications requested by the OWNER or 
Authorities Having Jurisdiction will be completed on a Time and Material basis above 
and beyond this proposal, including travel.

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES:
I. TRIA will generally field verify visually observable relevant existing conditions for the 
renovation areas only. No field verification of any kind of the remainder of the site is 
included in this proposal.
II. TRIA will provide Design Development services.

A. The design will be based on the Schematic Design plans reviewed by the 
OWNER on July 17, 2023 per OWNER’s requested modifications.
B. TRIA will refine the floor plans, develop building elevations, develop primary 
building and wall sections, determine material selections, and identify the HVAC 
systems.
C. If approved by the OWNER, TRIA will identify the major design elements for 
the A/V Systems, Acoustic Design, and Theatrical Lighting Systems per the fee 
schedule below.

III. TRIA will provide Construction Documents services.
A. Civil (C) Engineering is not provided by TRIA.  OWNER shall contract with others 

for civil engineering services.  
B. TRIA will design the Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing and Fire Protection 
(M.E.P.FP.) systems as required to accommodate the new design, including:

1. TRIA will design the Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) 
system for the buildings.

a. HVAC at vanilla box locations (hospitality building and flex 
spaces within support building) will include the design of a primary 
HVAC unit with ductwork stubbed into space for heating and 
cooling.

2. TRIA will design the electrical system for the building including:
a. General power and lighting.
b. Building mounted site lighting.
c. An addressable fire alarm system.
d. Telecommunications utility entrances (Voice, Data, Internet, 
Security, Television) is not provided by TRIA.  OWNER shall 
contract with others to provide such services.
e. No specialized engineering such as security, intelligent lighting, 
voice, data, etc. design is included in this proposal.
f. All conduit and junction box locations for low voltage systems 
shall be designed for wiring and trim to be provided by 
OWNER’s separate contract with others.
g. Electrical at vanilla box locations (hospitality building and flex 
spaces within support building) will include the main electrical 

Page | 300AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 4 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

panel an basic lighting fixtures.

Page | 301AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 5 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

3. TRIA will design the plumbing system for the buildings, including:
a. Natural gas, domestic water and sanitary sewer for the 
buildings.
b. Automatic Fire Suppression (sprinkler) system for the 
buildings.
c. Plumbing at vanilla box locations (hospitality building and flex 
spaces within support building) will include the design of a water 
and sanitary sewer connection stubbed into the space.

4. All utility entrances will be designed from 5 feet outside the building 
footprints to the interior of the buildings. Utility designs from 5’ to service 
main by Others.
5. All MEP designs for any site amenities are not provided by TRIA.  

OWNER shall contract with others for such services.
C. TRIA will design the new Structural (S.) systems as required to accommodate 
the new design for the Buildings.

1. The OWNER will provide soil testing reports for use by our structural 
engineer.
2. No specialized structural investigations or other designs are included 
in this proposal.
3. If required, all Structural Engineering above and beyond normal 
building design will be billed as a reimbursable expense above and 
beyond this proposal.

D. Structural engineering for any site amenities will not provided by TRIA.  OWNER 
shall contract with others for such services.

E. If the OWNER authorized the following services by checking  the ( ) below, , 
TRIA will provide Audio Visual, Acoustic, and Theatrical Lighting Design per 
the fee schedule below as an Optional Additional Service.

1. (    )  TRIA will provide Audio Visual (A/V) Design Services
a. The scope of A/V systems is not yet defined, but we have 
assumed system capabilities and a level of sophistication that is 
commonly incorporated into the spaces addressed in our scope of 
work.
b. A/V design will be focused on a combination of infrastructure 
and raceway to support portable equipment, and possibly an 
inventory of house equipment to support the most typical uses of 
the venue.
c. We have assumed an AV system budget of the range of
$200,000-300,000.
d. Coordinate with the Civil Engineer (Under Separate Contract) 
in order to align lighting and sound needs with respect to support 
of lawn loudspeakers.

2.(    ) TRIA will provide Acoustic Design Services
a. Provide guidance on sound control from the venue to the 

Page | 302AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 6 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

surrounding properties and provide estimates of noise levels to be 
expected during concert events.
b. Explore landscape and civil options for mitigating the noise 
from nearby train traffic.
c. Provide acoustic design for material selection and shape of the 
venue.
d. Review and comment on progress sketches as design options 
are developed.
e. Review and comment on the design documents and cost 
estimates by others.

3. (    ) TRIA will provide Theatrical Lighting Design Services
a. Design Lighting control specifications, to include written 
narrative describing control intent, programming, functionality and 
interoperability of systems.
b. Provide: Photometric studies, Luminaire schedules, including 
specific luminaire type, lamp, driver and power requirements, 
Luminaire installation details as needed, Luminaire cut-sheets, 
Coordinate with the Civil Engineer (Under Separate Contract) in 
order to align lighting needs with respect to the lawn lights.

IV. TRIA will provide permit drawings for review from the Authorities Having Jurisdiction 
(AHJ’s). The permit drawings shall comply with zoning and buildings codes, rules and 
regulations applicable to TRIA’s scope of services.

A. The OWNER will apply for the permit and coordinate the permit process with 
their Departments.
B. The OWNER will be responsible for all required permitting fees.
C. TRIA will provide all drawing revisions for any permit re-submissions 
requested by the AHJ’s, within our scope of work.

BIDDING PHASE:
I. TRIA will assist the OWNER with all bidding, includes requests for clarifications, 
preparation of Addenda, and pre-bid meetings.

A. It is assumed for this proposal that there will be two (2) separate Bidding 
Phases.

II. Soliciting contractors, bid opening, negotiation, and evaluation of the lowest apparent 
bidder will be by Others under a separate contract.
III. Preparation of construction contracts is not provided by TRIA.   OWNER shall 
provide and cause to be provided construction contracts by others.

CONSTRUCTION PHASE:
I. No Construction Administration services are included in this Agreement.  Such services 

may be provided by TRIA as an Additional Service if so authorized by the OWNER and 
agreed to the TRIA in a written Additional Services Authorization at an hourly rate or 
lump sum as agreed by the parties.   If Construction Administration services are 
authorized as an Additional Service, such Additional Service shall be performed in 

Page | 303AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 7 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

accordance with Article 3.6 of the AIA B101-2017 Standard Form of Agreement between 
OWNER and Architect unless otherwise stated in the Additional Services Authorization. .

GENERAL ITEMS:
I. The OWNER shall provide the following existing information to TRIA:

A. An electronic copy of the existing site showing all utility locations, M.E.P.FP. 
equipment details and sizes, if available.
1. All building covenants, rules and regulations regarding our scope of services are 

to be provided to TRIA prior to the start of services.
B. The most current Hazardous Material reports (lead, asbestos, etc.) for the facility, if 

any.
C. Security, communications, and data systems designs and specifications for 

incorporation into the Construction Documents.
D. Soil testing reports for use by our Structural engineers.
E. Material Testing during construction.

II. This Proposal includes only the items set forth above.  In addition to the items identified 
above as OWNER provided, excluded services include, but are not limited to:  
A. Furniture, Fixture and Equipment (FF&E) Design.
B. ALTA Survey.
C. I.D.O.T. Drainage Checklist.
D. Environmental Assessments, Mitigation, Or Clean-Up.
E. Traffic Studies.
F. Tree Survey.
G. Alternate Bid Designs.
H. Value Engineering.

III. This Proposal is based upon attendance at up to sixteen (16) OWNER/design meetings, 
one (1) Board meeting, and up to (4) pre-bid meetings.
A. Because of the undetermined length and amount of additional meetings the OWNER 

may request, TRIA will prepare any presentation materials required and attend any 
other meetings requested by the OWNER, as an Additional Service on a Time-and-
Material basis above and beyond this proposal, including travel.

This Proposal includes and incorporates by reference AIA Document B101 (2017 edition) - 
Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Architect, Articles two, three, (except for 
Article 3.6) five, six, seven, eight (with the litigation as the selected option for section 8.2.4), 
nine, and ten, inclusive.   

In the event of a termination for convenience, the OWNER may use the sealed Construction 
Documents to complete the construction of the Project upon payment by OWNER of a licensing 
fee in the amount of ten (10) percent of the total fee for this Project less the fee already paid as 
of the time of termination; provided however, the OWNER shall have no right to use in progress 
or unsealed drawings and specifications in the event of a termination for convenience.  

Page | 304AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 8 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

In the event of a termination for cause, the Owner shall no right to use in progress or unsealed 
drawings and specifications for any purpose.  Upon termination for cause and payment of a 
licensing fee in the amount of ten (10) percent of the total fee for this Project less the fee already 
paid as of the time of termination, the Owner may use the sealed Construction Documents, 
provided however, any use by the OWNER of sealed Construction Documents to complete the 
Project is at the OWNER’s sole risk and responsibility where the basis for termination is claimed 
defects in the Construction Documents.   

We at TRIA Architecture look forward to your direction and working with you.

Page | 305AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 9 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

 

 

FEE SCHEDULE

BASE BID PROPOSAL: Architectural Design services as described above for a Lump 
Sum Fee of $449,500.

OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL DESIGN FEES:

□ (Initial) Design of Audio Visual Systems, Acoustical Design, and Theatrical 
Lighting Design as described above, For an Additional Lump Sum Fee of $89,500.00.

2023 HOURLY RATES
(For services above and beyond our scope of services listed above):

Principal Architect $225.00
Associate Architect $190.00
Architectural Associate $180.00
Senior Staff Architect / Senior Interior Designer $180.00 
Staff Architect II / Interior Designer II  $160.00
Architectural Staff II $160.00
Staff Architect I / Interior Designer I $150.00
Senior Architectural Staff $150.00
Architectural Staff $140.00
Graphic Designer $135.00
Architectural Intern / Interiors Intern $130.00
Administrative Assistant $110.00

Approved by (Sign / Print):

Title: Date:

Sincerely,

TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC.
Ronald E McGrath, AIA, LEED AP 
Principal Architect

REM/JP

Attachments: Schematic Design Plans (3)

File Name: MRT.PRP.072523.VOTP.HarmonySquare-CD.docx

 

 

Page | 306AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


Mayor Michael Glotz, Village of Tinley Park (OWNER)
Proposal for Professional Services –
Design Development, Construction Documents, and Bidding and Negotiations
Harmony Square
6750 North Street, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
July 19, 2023
Page 10 of 7

TRIA ARCHITECTURE
Illinois Office | Corporate Headquarters: 901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100, Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Indiana Office: 436 Sand Creek Drive N, Suite 105, Chesterton, Indiana 46304 
Company Main: 630.455.4500 Fax: 630.455.4040

www.TriaArchitecture.com
INIT. 

59298\315571298.v1

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
I. The OWNER will be responsible for all material, printing and distribution costs of progress printings, 
presentations, office drawings and bid documents. These will be provided through TRIA as a reimbursable 
expense.
II. TRIA shall not be liable or responsible for the quality of materials, equipment and fixtures used, nor the 
quality of workmanship on the project.
III. The OWNER will provide proportional monthly progress payments throughout the project and final 
payment upon completion of TRIA’s services for that phase.
IV. If any payment is not paid by the OWNER when due, the unpaid balance shall accrue interest at one 
and one-half percent (1.5%), or the maximum legal rate, per month until paid.
V. TRIA reserves the right to cease all services until prompt payment of all outstanding invoices. In the 
event any portion of an account remains unpaid 120 days after the billing, TRIA may institute collection 
action and the OWNER shall pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney fees.
VI. Payment of invoices is in no case subject to unilateral discounting, back-charges, or set-offs by the 
OWNER, and payment is due regardless of suspension or termination of this agreement by either party. 
Time allotted for permit revisions are deemed inconsequential to the whole project, therefore no portion of 
the fee will be credited if the project does not go through the permit process.
VII. This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days. After that period, TRIA will provide a revised proposal 
for any services.
VIII. If the services covered by this proposal have not been completed within eight (8) months of the date 
hereof through no fault of TRIA, the amounts of compensation, rates and multiples set forth herein shall be 
equitably adjusted.
IX. All designs are the property of TRIA and are not to be used for any project without the expressed written 
consent of TRIA. The OWNER will allow TRIA full access to the site and project to be photographed for use 
in marketing material. The OWNER will provide a copy of the final approved permit set to TRIA
X. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and not withstanding any other provisions of this agreement, the 
total liability, in the aggregate, of TRIA and TRIA’s officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants, and any of them, to the OWNER and anyone claiming by, through or under the OWNER, for 
any and all claims, losses, costs or damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in 
any way related to the Project or Agreement from any cause or causes, including, but not limited to the 
negligence, professional errors and omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty, expressed or 
implied, of TRIA and TRIA’s officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and subconsultants, or any of 
them, shall not exceed the amount of TRIA’s insurance limits.
XI. TRIA and the OWNER waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all 
consequential damages due to either party's termination in accordance with AIA B101 (2017 edition) - Article 
9.
XII. Hourly rates are subject to change at the beginning of every calendar year.
XIII. TRIA reserves the right to renegotiate the fee should changes in the scope of services occur.
XIV. All reimbursables will be forwarded with a 1.1 multiplier factor. All additional services will proceed 
only on a verbal or written “as directed” basis from the OWNER.
XV. TRIA will not be held responsible for identifying and/or investigating any existing hazardous conditions 
or materials on site.

Page | 307AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.triaarchitecture.com/


59298\315571298.v1

2
Future 
Development

5

4

6

4 7

11

1 2 12
10 9

3

13

8

14

Oa
k 

Pa
rk

 A
ve

.

Page | 308AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315571298.v1

LEGEND
1 STAGE, STORAGE & SKATE RENTAL

• 30’x50’ | Stage
• Green room
• Backstage
• Mechanical room
• Flex commercial space.
• Skate rental with storage.
• 2nd floor Village space.

2 STAGE EVENT PLAZA
• 72’x17’ | 1,060 square feet (plaza)

3 SYNTHETIC TURF EVENT LAWN
• 135’x115’ | 14,380 square feet

4 PLANTERS WITH FIREPIT NODES
• Concrete seatwalls

5 SUPPORT BUILDING
• VIP indoor space
• Covered VIP outdoor space
• Bathrooms6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

FLEX-USE PLAZA AREA
• Moveable tables and chairs.

67TH CT. FESTIVAL EXTENSION 

HOLIDAY TREE / ART
GATEWAY PERGOLA
• Overhead structure with seating area at main entry

WATER FEATURE
• 1,250 square feet

CENTRAL PATHWAY AT LAWN WESTERN 

ENTRY PLAZA
• Seating area with movable tables, chairs, and art

OAK PARK AVENUE ENTRY PLAZA
• Seating areas with curved seat walls, planters, shade 

trees and catenary lights
• Harmony Square sign

CORNER COMMERCIAL USE
• Anchor restaurant and event space
• Public restroomsPOTENTIAL ART

HARMONY SQUAREPREFERRED CONCEPT | SUMMER
SCALE: 1”=20’

PREPARED FOR:
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

0 10’ 20’ 40’
NORTH

TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS JULY 17, 2023 © 2019 THE LAKOTA GROUP

FOR REVIEW

Page | 309AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TRIA ARCHITECTURE ARCHITECTURE

59298\315571298.v1

FLEX
1,390

STAGE - SECOND FLOOR PLAN
11e" ,, 1°-e>"

Page | 310AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TRIA ARCHITECTURE ARCHITECTURE

59298\315571298.v1

ST AGE - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
118" "' 1'-12>"

Page | 311AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TRIA ARCHITECTURE ARCHITECTURE

59298\315571298.v1

SUPPORT - FIRST FLOOR FLAN
1/8"= 1'-12)"

SUPPORT - WEST ELEVATION SUPPORT - SOUTH ELEVATION
1/8" • 1'-0"

STAGE - BASEMENT FLOOR FLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

PERGOLA PERGOLA

·t�
,

i ◊
1111

,
rr EXTERIOR WALL 

CONSTRUCTION

ROOF DECK 
ELEVATION

EXTERIOR WALL 
CONSTRUCTION

ROOF DECK 
ELEVATION

n n n n n'

' ·,t- ◊
��  �- i {---- _ _ _mL

COLUMNS COLUMNS

◊ KNEE WALL KNEE WALL

1111,
"

, 1111
"

◊

Page | 312AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT B

59298\315571298.v1

Fee Schedule 

Attached to Proposal

Page | 313AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT C

59298\315571298.v1

Required Insurance

Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth below. Engineer shall cause Owner to be listed 

as an additional insured on any applicable general liability insurance policy carried by Engineer.

1. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory

2. Employer’s Liability – Each Accident: $ 1,000,000

3. General Liability –

a. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $ 1,000,000

b. General Aggregate: $ 2,000,000

4. Excess or Umbrella Liability --

a. Each Occurrence: $ 3,000,000

b. General Aggregate: $ 3,000,000

5. Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit

6. (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): Each Accident $ 1,000,000

7. Professional Liability –

a. Each Claim Made $ 2,000,000

b. Annual Aggregate $ 2,000,000

Page | 314AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT D

59298\315571298.v1

Insurance Certificates

Page | 315AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered  into this  ____ day of Sept.____, 2023 (“Effective Date”), between 
the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois “(Village”), located at 16250 South Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL 
60477, and TRIA Architecture, Inc. (“Consultant”), collectively the “Parties” for the project commonly 
known and referred to as Harmony Square, located at 6750 North Street, Tinley Park, IL, (hereinafter 
“Project”:

I. Services

A.   Consultant agrees to provide, as an independent contractor to the Village, the professional services 
set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, (hereinafter the “Services”), and such other  
professional services or incidental services, if so authorized by the Village in writing and agreed to by the 
parties   as an Additional Service, (hereinafter “Additional Service”).   The standard of care for all 
professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by Consultant under this Agreement 
will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality in compliance with applicable laws, ordinances 
and regulations. The express terms of Exhibit A and documents referenced in Exhibit A  shall  control over 
any term or provision of this Agreement that in any way conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter 
the terms of Exhibit A or documents referenced therein.

B. The Services shall be provided by employees of Consultant, who are experienced, certified, and/or 
qualified and licensed, to the extent necessary to perform said Services in the State of Illinois.

C.  It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Consultant is an independent contractor retained 
for the above-mentioned purpose. The Village shall not control the manner nor the means of the 
Consultant's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as described herein. The term 
"subconsultant" shall mean and include only those hired by and having a direct contract with Consultant 
for performance of services on the Project. The Village shall have no responsibility to any subconsultant 
employed by a Consultant for performance of services on the Project, and all subconsultants and material 
suppliers shall look exclusively to the Consultant for any payments due. The Village will not be responsible 
for reporting or paying employment taxes or other similar levies that may be required by the United States 
Internal Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. Every subconsultant shall be bound by the 
terms and provisions of this Contract as far as applicable to their services. The Consultant shall be fully 
responsible to the Village for the negligent or wrongful acts and omissions of its subconsultants, and shall 
require that any subconsultants perform in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. Nothing 
contained herein shall create any contractual or employment relations between any subconsultant and the 
Village. 

II. COMPENSATION

Consultant will be compensated based upon the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Page | 316AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

III. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.

Consultant will indemnify and hold harmless , at its own cost and expense, the Village, its officers, officials, 
Village President and Board of Trustees, and employees (hereinafter  the “Indemnitees”), from  damages, 
liabilities, losses, expenses (including attorneys' fees recoverable under applicable law ) incurred by 
Indemnitee to a third party claimant because of any death, injuries or damages received or sustained by any 
such third party to the extent caused by a negligent act or omission by the Consultant, its officers, agents 
and/or employees, including any of its subconsultants, arising from the  performance of any professional 
services required by this Agreement.  Nothing herein shall be construed to require the Consultant to indemnify 
and hold harmless any indemnitee from its own negligence or fault.  

To the extent the claim is covered by Consultant’s general liability and excess/umbrella insurance, 
Consultant will defend, indemnify and hold harmless, at its own cost and expense, the Village, its officers, 
officials, Village President and Board of Trustees, employees and volunteers, (hereinafter  the 
“Indemnitees”)  from any claims, actions, demands, lawsuits, damages, liabilities, losses and expenses, 
including attorney’s fees provided as part of the defense obligation, resulting from a third party claim 
against the Indemnitees for bodily injury, death or damage to property which arises from or is alleged to 
arise from the negligent operations of the Architect, its officers, agents and/or employees, including any of 
its subconsultants. In the event that the Village disputes the Consultant or Consultant’s general liability or 
umbrella/excess liability insurer’s coverage decision, nothing within this provision shall be construed as to 
limit or otherwise preclude the Village from pursuing legal action to adjudicate the duties and obligations 
of the Consultant and/or its insurer under the Consultant’s general liability or excess/umbrella policies.  

IV. INSURANCE

During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall provide and maintain the types of insurance set forth 
in Exhibit C, in not less than the specified amounts.

Consultant shall furnish to the Village, prior to commencing any services under this Agreement, and 
annually thereafter, satisfactory proof of the above insurance requirements by a reliable insurance company 
or companies authorized to do business in Illinois. Such proof shall consist of certificates of insurance. Said 
certificates shall list the Village and its officers, officials, Village President and Board of Trustees,  and 
Village employees, as additional insureds on the Consultant’s general liability insurance policy.

V. REPRESENTATIONS

Consultant represents to the Village that it has the experience and ability to perform the services required 
by this Agreement and that that it has the power to enter into and perform this Agreement.

VI. NOTICE

All  legal notices required by this Agreement shall be given by personal service or certified or registered 
mail to:

TRIA Architecture, Inc.
901 McClintock Drive, Suite 100
Burr Ridge, IL 60527
Attention:  Ronald McGrath

OR TO:

Page | 317AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

Village of Tinley Park 
Village Manager
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park IL. 60477

Notice shall be effective upon the date of receipt by personal service or as evidenced by a valid return 
receipt. The name and/or address to which notice is required may be amended at any time by written notice 
to the other party as provided herein.

Page | 318AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

VII. INTERPRETATION

This Agreement provides for services to be performed within the State of Illinois. Accordingly, this 
Agreement, and all questions of interpretation, construction and enforcement hereof, and all controversies 
hereunder, shall be governed by the applicable statutory and common law of the State of Illinois. The parties 
agree that for the purpose of any litigation relative to this Agreement and its enforcement, venue shall be in 
the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois and the parties consent to the in personam jurisdiction of said 
Court for any such action or proceeding.  This provision is in addition to the requirements of the AIA B101, 
Article 10.1 referenced as incorporated into this Agreement in Exhibit A.  Furthermore, the Parties agree 
that the terms and provisions of this Agreement, inclusive of all Exhibits, shall not be construed against any 
Party as the drafter or principal drafter of this Agreement.   

VIII. WAIVER.

The waiver of one party of any breach of this Agreement or the failure of one party to enforce any provisions 
hereof, shall be limited to the particular instance and shall not operate to bar or be deemed a waiver of 
enforcing against other or future breaches.

IX. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that provision shall be 
severable from the rest of this Agreement and the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions will in no way be affected or impaired.

X. ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING

This Agreement and its exhibits sets forth all of the entire understanding of the parties relative to the subject 
hereof and supersedes any and all prior agreements, express or implied, oral or written. No amendment or 
modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless reduced to writing and executed by the parties.

XI. TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by either party if the other party fails to fulfill its 
obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party. The Village may terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, for its convenience. However, no such termination will be effective unless 
the terminating party gives the other party (1) not less than ten (10) business day’s written notice by certified 
mail of intent to terminate, and (2) for notice of termination for cause, an opportunity for a meeting with 
the terminating party to resolve the dispute before termination. 

Page | 319AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Tinley Park and TRIA Architecture, Inc. have executed this 
agreement.

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC.

By: By: 

Village Manager                                       Title: 

DATE:  DATE:

Page | 320AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

CERTIFICATIONS BY CONSULTANT

Eligibility to Contract

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Consultant is not barred from bidding on or entering into 
this contract as a result of a violation of either the bid-rigging or bid-rotating provisions of Article 
33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as amended.

TRIA Architecture, Inc.

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature)

          

Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Human Rights Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Consultant is in compliance with Title 7 of the 1964 Civil 
Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act as amended.

TRIA Architecture, Inc.

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature)

          

Title

Page | 321AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act

The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant to section 3 of the 
Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free workplace for all 
employees engaged in the performance of the work under the contract by complying with the 
requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further certifies, that it is not ineligible 
for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a violation of the Illinois Drug-Free 
Workplace Act.

TRIA Architecture, Inc.

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature)

          

Title

Certificate Regarding Sexual Harassment Policy

The undersigned does hereby certify pursuant to section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 
(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a minimum, the 
following information: (i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual 
harassment under State law; (iii) a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) an 
internal complaint process including penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint 
process available through the Department of Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; (vi) 
direction on how to contact the Department of Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; and
(vii) protection against retaliation.

TRIA Architecture, Inc.

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature)

          

Title

Page | 322AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

EXHIBIT A

Scope of Professional Services

Scope of services will generally consist of design of all building structures of Harmony Square, 
including the Hospitality Building located at the corner of Oak Park Avenue and North Street, the 
Harmony Square Support and Stage Building located at the corner of Oak Park Avenue and 173rd 
Street, and the VIP Building for concert viewing.  See attached Proposal which sets forth the 
specific services that are included as part of this Agreement.

Page | 323AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

EXHIBIT B

Fee Schedule

Attached to Proposal

Page | 324AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

EXHIBIT C

Required Insurance

Consultant  shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth below. Consultant shall cause Owner to be 

listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability insurance policy carried by Consultant.

1. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory

2. Employer’s Liability – Each Accident: $ 500,000

3. General Liability –

a. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $ 1,000,000

b. General Aggregate: $ 2,000,000

4. The Village and its officers, officials, Village President and Board of Trustees, and Village employees shall be 
named as additional insureds on the General Liability policy and such policy shall be primary and non-
contributory over other insurance carried by the additional insureds.

5. .Excess or Umbrella Liability --

a. Each Occurrence: $ 3,000,000

b. General Aggregate: $ 3,000,000

6. Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit          $1,000,000

7. Professional Liability –

a. Each Claim Made $ 2,000,000

b. Annual Aggregate $ 2,000,000

Page | 325AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



59298\315570363.v1

EXHIBIT D

Insurance Certificates

Page | 326AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: December 5, 2023

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager
Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager
John Urbanski - Public Works Director

From: Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Asst Public Works Director

Subject: Professional Services for Traffic Signals at 80th Avenue and Timber Drive
_________________________________________________________________________________
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description: Currently there are no traffic signals located at the intersection of 80th Avenue and Timber 
Drive. This makes it difficult for vehicles that intend on traveling southbound to enter out onto 80th 
Avenue when exiting the Metra parking lots and the library from Timber Drive as well as the 
intersection to get blocked when a Metra train is at the station, not allowing vehicles to cross the 
intersection whenever trains are present, both of which are dangerous. 

The Village has pursued the installation of traffic signals at this intersection in the past; however, the 
plans were not prepared with the signals being interconnected with the railroad crossing signals which 
is a requirement of the Illinois Commerce Commission (ICC) for approval nor was an Intersection 
Design Study (IDS) prepared which is also a ICC approval requirement due to the intersection’s close 
proximity to the crossing.

This work shall consist of Robinson Engineering, Ltd. preparing a Signal Warrant Analysis, 
Intersection Design Study (IDS) and construction plans and bidding documents for the proposed 
improvements. 

Budget / Finance:  Funding is budgeted for in the FY23 Capital Budget (Mental Health Facility TIF: 20-
72840). 

Total Budget Available: $125,000
Engineering Contract Amount: $120,000
Remaining Budget Amount: $5,000

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve Professional Engineering Services contract with Robinson Engineering, Ltd. in the 

amount of $120,000.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachments:
1. Proposal for Professional Engineering Services from Robinson Engineering, Ltd.
2. Village of Tinley Park Agreement for Professional Services

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 327AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-156

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 

TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT 80TH AVENUE AND TIMBER DRIVE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 328AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-156

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 

TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT 80TH AVENUE AND TIMBER DRIVE

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with Robinson Engineering, Ltd., a true and correct 

copy of such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 329AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AGREEMENT WITH ROBINSON ENGINEERING, 
LTD. FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT 80TH AVENUE AND 

TIMBER DRIVE

Page | 330AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-156, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT 80TH AVENUE AND TIMBER 

DRIVE,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on 

December 19, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 331AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into this     day of              ,2023 (“Effective Date”), 

between the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois “(Village”), located at 16250 South Oak Park Avenue, 
Tinley Park, IL 60477, and Robinson Engineering, Ltd. (“Consultant”), collectively the “Parties” for 
the following project: 

 
I. Services 

 
A. Consultant agrees to provide, as an independent contractor to the Village, the professional 

services included in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, as well as such other 
or incidental services as may be necessary to carry out said professional services, as well as 
any other professional services requested by the Village as mutually agreed to by the parties 
(hereafter the “Service”).  The standard of care for all professional engineering and related 
services performed or furnished by Consultant under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances 
at the same time and in the same locality in compliance with applicable laws, ordinances and 
regulations.  The express terms of this Agreement shall take precedence and control over any 
term or provision of any Exhibit that in any way conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to 
alter the terms of this Agreement. 

 

• The Services shall be provided by employees of Consultant, who are experienced, certified, 
and/or qualified and licensed, to the extent necessary to perform said Services in the State of 
Illinois. 

 
• It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Consultant is an independent contractor 

retained for the above-mentioned purpose. The Village shall not control the manner nor the 
means of the Consultant's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as described 
herein. The term "subconsultant" shall mean and include only those hired by and having a 
direct contract with Consultant for performance of work on the Project. The Village shall 
have no responsibility to any subconsultant employed by a Consultant for performance of 
work on the Project, and all subconsultants and material suppliers shall look exclusively to the 
Consultant for any payments due. The Village will not be responsible for reporting or paying 
employment taxes or other similar levies that may be required by the United States Internal 
Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. Every subconsultant shall be bound by 
the terms and provisions of this Contract as far as applicable to their work. The Consultant 
shall be fully responsible to the Village for the acts and omissions of its subconsultants, and 
shall ensure that any subconsultants perform in accordance with the requirements of this 
Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual or employment relations 
between any subconsultant and the Village. The Consultant is solely responsible for the safety 
procedures, programs and methods of its employees and agents and shall hold the Village 
harmless for any and all damages resulting from violations thereof.  Conversely, the 
Consultant shall not coordinate, supervise and direct any portions of the Work for what they 
are not responsible for and shall not be responsible for, nor have control over, construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures, safety, and security for any party 
they are not responsible for.  The Consultant shall comply will all applicable federal, State 
and local safety laws and regulations. 

Page | 332AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
II. COMPENSATION 

 
Consultant will be compensated based upon the Payment Terms in the Proposal for Professional 
Engineering Services attached hereto as Exhibit A and the Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 
B. 

 
III. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

 
Consultant will indemnify and hold harmless, protect and defend, at its own cost and expense, the 
Village, its officers, officials, Village President and Board of Trustees, agents, employees, volunteers, 
representatives, assigns, successors, transferees, licensees, invitees, attorneys, or other persons or 
property standing in the interest of the Village, from any and all risks, lawsuits, actions, damages, 
losses, expenses (including attorneys' fees), claims, or liabilities of any character, brought because of 
any death, injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account 
of any negligent act or omission by the Consultant, its officers, agents and/or employees, including 
any of its subconsultants, arising out of or in performance of any provision of this Agreement, 
including any claims or amounts arising or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Act or any 
other law, ordinance, order or decree.  
 
In the event such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be caused by joint 
or concurrent negligence, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own negligence under 
comparative fault principles. 
 
With respect to the aforementioned duty to protect and defend, this shall apply for non-professional 
services that are performed and to the extent covered by the Consultant's General Liability policy.  
The Duty to Defend does not apply to professional services that are performed which are not covered 
by the Consultant's Professional Liability policy. 

 
IV. INSURANCE 

 
During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall provide and maintain the types of insurance set 
forth in Exhibit C, written on the comprehensive form and as “occurrence” policies, primary to any 
insurance of the Village, in not less than the specified amounts. 

 
Consultant shall furnish to the Village, prior to commencing any activities under this Agreement, and 
annually thereafter, satisfactory proof of the above insurance requirements by a reliable insurance 
company or companies authorized to do business in Illinois. Such proof shall consist of certificates 
executed by the respective insurance companies and attached to this Agreement as Exhibit D. Said 
certificates shall list the Village and its officers, officials, Village President and Board of Trustees, 
agents, employees, volunteers, representatives, assigns, successors, and attorneys, as additional 
insureds on all required insurance policies. 

 
Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance as required by and set forth in the previous paragraph 
of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate of Consultant and Consultant’s officers, 
members, directors, partners, agents, employees, and Subconsultants to Village and anyone claiming 
by, through, or under Village for any and all claims, losses, costs, or damages whatsoever arising out 
of resulting from or in any way related to the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not 

Page | 333AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

limited to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, 
indemnity obligations, or warranty express or implied, of Consultant or Consultant’s officers, 
members, directors, partners, agents, employees, or Subconsultants (hereafter “Village’s Claims”), 
shall not exceed the total insurance proceeds paid on behalf of or to Consultant by Consultant’s 
insurers in settlement or satisfaction of Village’s Claims under the terms and conditions of 
Consultant’s insurance policies applicable thereto (excluding fees, costs, and expenses of 
investigation, claims adjustment, defense, and appeal).  If no such insurance coverage is provided 
with respect to Village’s Claims, then the total liability, in the aggregate of Consultant and 
Consultant’s officers, members, directors, partners, agents, employees, and Subconsultants to Village 
and anyone claiming by, through, or under Village for any and all such uninsured Village’s claims 
shall not be limited.  
 
 
V. WARRANTY 

Consultant represents to the Village that it has the experience and ability to perform the services 
required by this Agreement, that it will perform said services in accordance with the Standard of Care 
presented in Section 1.A, and that it has the power to enter into and perform this Agreement.  

 

VI. NOTICE 

 

Except to the extent that verbal notice is otherwise permitted herein, proper notice may be given by 
personal service or certified or registered mail to: 

Robinson Engineering Ltd. 

17000 South Park Avenue 

South Holland, IL 60473 
 
OR TO: 
 
 
Village of Tinley Park 

Village Manager 

16250 South Oak Park Avenue 

Tinley Park IL. 60477 

 

Notice shall be effective upon the date of receipt by personal service or as evidenced by a valid 
return receipt. The name and/or address to which notice is required may be amended at any time 
by written notice to the other party as provided herein. 
 
 

Page | 334AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

VII. INTERPRETATION 
 
 

This Agreement provides for services to be performed within the State of Illinois. Accordingly, 
this Agreement, and all questions of interpretation, construction and enforcement hereof, and all 
controversies hereunder, shall be governed by the applicable statutory and common law of the State 
of Illinois. The parties agree that for the purpose of any litigation relative to this Agreement and 
its enforcement, venue shall be in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois and the parties’ consent 
to the in personam jurisdiction of said Court for any such action or proceeding. 
 
VIII. WAIVER 
 
The waiver of one party of any breach of this Agreement or the failure of one party to enforce any 
provisions hereof, shall be limited to the particular instance and shall not operate to bar or be deemed 
a waiver of enforcing against other or future breaches. 
 
 
IX. SEVERABILITY 
 
 
If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that provision 
shall be severable from the rest of this Agreement and the validity, legality and enforceability of 
the remaining provisions will in no way be affected or impaired. 
 
 
X. ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
This Agreement sets forth all of the entire understanding of the parties relative to the subject 
hereof and supersedes any and all prior agreements, express or implied, oral or written. No 
amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless reduced to writing and 
executed by the parties. 
 
 
XI. TERMINATION 

 

This Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by either party if the other party fails to 
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party.  The Village 
may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for its convenience.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Tinley Park and (Insert Consultant), have executed this 
Agreement.  

 

Page | 335AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

By:   
Village President 

DATE: 

ROBINSON ENGINEERING LTD. 

By:   

Its:      

DATE:   

CERTIFICATIONS BY CONSULTANT 

Eligibility to Contract 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Consultant is not barred from bidding on or entering into 
this contract as a result of a violation of either the bid-rigging or bid-rotating provisions of Article 
33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as amended. 

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature) 

Title 

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Human Rights Act 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Consultant is in compliance with Title 7 of the 1964 Civil 
Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act as amended. 

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature) 

Title 

12/1/23

Director of Operations

Director of Operations

Director of Operations

Van Calombaris

Van Calombaris

Page | 336AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act 

The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant to section 3 of the 
Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free workplace for 
all employees engaged in the performance of the work under the contract by complying with the 
requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further certifies, that it is not ineligible 
for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a violation of the Illinois Drug-Free 
Workplace Act. 

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature) 

Title 

Certificate Regarding Sexual Harassment Policy 

The undersigned does hereby certify pursuant to section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 
(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a minimum, the 
following information: (i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual 
harassment under State law; (iii) a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) an 
internal complaint process including penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint 
process available through the Department of Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; (vi) 
direction on how to contact the Department of Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; 
and (vii) protection against retaliation. 

The undersigned also certifies that Consultant is in compliance with all other applicable laws and 
regulations regarding its performance of this Agreement. 

Name of Consultant (please print) Submitted by (signature) 

Title 

Director of Operations

Director of Operations

Van Calombaris

Van Calombaris

Page | 337AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Scope of Professional Services 
 
 
 
 
Work as specified and approved by the Village of Tinley Park in the Proposal for   
Professional Engineering Services for Traffic Signals at 80th Avenue and Timber Drive, 
dated 12/1/23.

Page | 338AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



  

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

 
12/1/23 

 
Project 07-R0429.01 

To:  Village of Tinley Park 
                  16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Tinley Park, IL  60477  
 

 
Attn:   Mr. John Urbanski, Director of Public Works 
 

        
RE:     Proposal for Professional Engineering Services 
 Traffic Signals at 80th Avenue and Timber Drive 
 
 
Dear Mr. Urbanski: 
 
Robinson Engineering, Ltd. (REL) is pleased to present a proposal to perform professional engineering services related 
to design engineering services associated for a signal installation of the intersection of 80th Avenue and Timber Drive 
within the Village of Tinley Park (Village). We take great pride in partnering with our clients to achieve their goals, and 
sincerely appreciate the opportunity to offer our expertise and dedication on this project. 
 
Included in this proposal are the following:  Project Overview, Scope of Services, Payment Terms, and Standard Terms 
and Conditions. REL’s Standard Terms and Conditions should be considered as an integral part of this proposal. 
 
1. PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
The intersection of 80th Avenue and Timber Drive is located approximately ¼ mile north of 183rd Street, CH B64.  The 
east leg of Timber Lane serves as an entrance for two METRA commuter parking lots and also for the Tinley Park 
Library. The west leg serves as an entrance for a residential subdivision.  In order to maintain traffic flow and reduce 
the delay of the east leg of the intersection, the Village of Tinley Park has had to provide police officers to direct traffic 
at certain times in the past.  A traffic signal is proposed at the intersection to eliminate the need for the police officers, 
and to maintain acceptable traffic flow throughout the day. 
 
REL will prepare a Signal Warrant Analysis, Intersection Design Study (IDS) and construction plans and bidding 
documents for these proposed traffic signals and traffic signal interconnect along 80th Avenue from 185th Street to 
179th Street. 
      
2. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

A. Topographic Survey      

REL will locate the improvements of the entire intersection including through north of the railroad tracks and 
generate a topographic survey. 
 
The topographic survey will include, but not be limited to, collecting existing grades and locations of all visible 
improvements, including railroad signal equipment, and Village and Cook County utilities. The location of other 
underground utilities will be shown with use of record maps provided to us by owner of utility companies.  The 
location of traffic signals and associated equipment for the proposed interconnect will be shown with the use of 
record drawings for 179th Street and proposed plans for 185th Street and 183rd Street, since 80th Avenue is currently 
under construction just south of our proposed improvements. 

EXHIBIT A
Page | 339AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



P a g e  2  

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

B. Data Collection 
 
REL will use Miovision technology to obtain traffic counts and provide the following: 
 

•    Traffic Counts with Vehicle Types 
•    Signal Warrant Analysis 
•    IDS with Capacity Analysis and Queue Calculations 

  
C. Preparation of Engineering Plans and Specifications 

 
Based on the above data gathered, REL will prepare engineering plans and specifications with the following 
elements: 
 

• Coordination with Village staff 
• Cook County Submittal, Reviews and Coordination 
• ICC Submittal, Reviews and Coordination for the Railroad Tracks 
• Coordination with Metra and other utility companies 
• General project administration 
• Traffic Signal Plans and Signal Interconnect Plans in AutoCAD format 
• Preparation of construction details 
• Preparation of specifications 
• Preparation of probable construction cost/bid schedule 
• Quality control/quality assurance review process 

 

D. Project Bidding 
 

Once the project is designed and the Village authorizes the project to proceed to construction, the project will be 
bid. REL will assist the Village with advertising the project by contacting contractors who typically perform this 
type of work. REL will respond to contractor questions during the bidding phase, and issue addenda to the contract 
documents when required. REL will attend the bid opening, prepare the bid tabulation, assist the Village in 
evaluating the bid proposals, and prepare a letter of recommendation for award of the contract. 

 

E. Construction Engineering 
 

REL will perform construction engineering services consisting of the following: 
 

• Coordination with the Village 
• Submittal review 
• Survey layout of the proposed design 
• Responses to contractor inquiries 

 
Should the Village request Construction Observation services, they would consist of the following: 
 
Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of the Work, as Engineer deems necessary, to 
observe as an experienced and qualified design professional, the progress of Contractor’s executed Work. Such 
visits and observations by Engineer, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the 
Work or to involve detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in 
this Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective 
sampling, and similar methods of general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of professional 
judgment. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer will determine in general 

Page | 340AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



P a g e  3  

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner 
informed of the progress of the Work. Engineer will make a report of Engineer’s visit, summarizing Engineer’s 
general observations and any significant findings.  

 
3. PAYMENT TERMS 
 
REL proposes to perform the design phase of the project (Items A. through D.) for a lump sum fee of $120,000. This fee 
is based on our understanding of the project and experience with similar projects. 
 
Construction engineering (Item E.) will be charged on an hourly basis. 

 
4. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The Standard Terms and Conditions for this proposal are attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
Again, we thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration. Please feel free to call me at 
(815) 412-2014 or email me at vcalombaris@reltd.com with any questions regarding this proposal, or if any additional 
information is needed.   
 
Very truly yours, 
ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. 

     
Van Calombaris, PE 
Director of Operations          

             
 

 
ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 
 
By:      
  Signature 
 
By:      
  Printed Name 
 
Title:      
 
Date:      
 
 

Page | 341AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:vcalombaris@reltd.com


ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD (“REL”) 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Client’s Initial:  ____________________                     Date:  _____________________           

 04/23 

 

CONTRACT – These Standard Terms and Conditions may be amended, added 
to, superseded, or waived only if both REL and Client specifically agree in writing 
to any amendment of these Terms and Conditions (“Agreement”). 

STANDARD OF CARE - The standard of care for all professional engineering, 
survey or related professional services performed or furnished by REL under this 
Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the same 
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the 
same locality.  REL makes no warranties, express or implied, under this 
Agreement or otherwise, in connection with REL’s services on this Project. 

RELIANCE – REL may, without liability, rely on the accuracy and completeness 
of information provided by Client, Client’s consultants and any contractors, 
including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and 
the publishers of technical standards without the need for verification.   

CHANGES IN SCOPE –The proposed fees constitute REL’s estimate to perform 
the services required to complete the Project.  However, all required services are 
not always definable in the initial planning.  Accordingly, circumstances may 
dictate a change in the scope of services to be performed.  Where this occurs, 
changes in the Agreement shall be negotiated, an equitable adjustment shall be 
made to REL’s compensation and agreed to in writing by REL and Client. 

DELAYS – REL shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time.  If, 
through no fault of REL, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly 
and continuous progress of REL’s services is impaired, or REL’s services are 
delayed or suspended, then the time for completion of REL’s services, and the 
rates and amounts of REL’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.   

RIGHT OF ENTRY – Client agrees to obtain legal right-of-entry on the property 
when entry to property is required by the work of this Agreement. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS OF SITE -  REL’s scope of services does not 
include any services related to any environmental issues related to the site 
including petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), 
hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any 
nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, or regulated by any Federal, State, 
or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree 
regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning 
any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material. 

SUSPENSION & TERMINATION – Client may suspend the Project upon seven 
(7) days written notice to REL.  If REL’s services are substantially delayed 
through no fault of REL, REL may suspend services after giving seven (7) days 
written notice to Client.  Either party may terminate this agreement upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to the other party in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party.  If the project resumes after being suspended 30 days or more, 
the contract fee may be re-negotiated to reflect costs of delay, start-up, and other 
costs. 

Client shall remain liable for and shall promptly pay REL and (if applicable) REL’s 
independent professional associates or consultants for all services rendered to 
the date of such suspension/termination of services plus suspension/termination 
charges incurred by REL or REL’s independent professional associates or 
consultants.    Suspension/termination charges may include, but not be limited 
to, salaries, overhead, and fee, incurred by REL or REL’s independent 
professional associates or consultants either before or after the termination date. 

OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS – REL’s opinions of probable Construction 
Cost (if any) are to be made on the basis of REL’s experience, qualifications, and 
general familiarity with the construction industry. However, because REL has no 
control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by 

others, or over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, REL cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, 
bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable 
Construction Cost prepared by REL. If Client requires greater assurance as to 
probable Construction Cost, then Client agrees to obtain an independent cost 
estimate. 

REUSE OF PROJECT DOCUMENTS – All Documents are instruments of 
service, and REL owns the Documents, including all associated copyrights and 
the right of reuse at the discretion of REL. REL shall continue to own the 
Documents and all associated rights whether or not the Specific Project is 
completed.  Client may make and retain copies of Documents for information and 
reference in connection with the use of the Documents on the Specific Project.  
REL grants Client a limited license to use the Documents on the Specific Project, 
extensions of the Specific Project, and for related uses of the Client, subject to 
receipt by REL of full payment due and owing for all services relating to 
preparation of the Documents, and subject to the following limitations: 

 Client acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or represented 
to be suitable for use on the Specific Project unless completed by REL, or 
for use or reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Specific Project, on 
any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification 
or adaptation by REL; 

 Any such use or reuse, or any modification of the Documents, without written 
verification, completion, or adaptation by REL, as appropriate for the specific 
purpose intended, will be at Client’s sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to REL or to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, 
employees, and REL’s independent professional associates or consultants; 

 Client shall indemnify and hold harmless REL and its officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, and REL’s independent professional 
associates or consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or 
modification of the Documents without written verification, completion, or 
adaptation by REL; and 

 Such limited license to Client shall not create any rights in third parties. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH CONTRACTORS – REL shall not at any time supervise, 
direct, control, or have authority over any contractor’s work, nor will REL have 
authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
or procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the Site, nor 
for any failure of a contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to 
that Contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. REL shall not be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor. REL shall have no 
authority to stop the work of any contractor on the Project. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total 
liability, in the aggregate, of REL and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, or REL’s independent professional associates and 
consultants, to Client, and anyone claiming through or under Client, for any 
claims, losses, costs, or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in 
any way relating to this Project or Contract, from any cause or causes, including 
but not limited to tort (including negligence and professional errors and 
omissions), strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty, shall be 
limited to (1) responsibility for payment of all or the applicable portion of any 
deductibles, either directly to REL’s insurers or in settlement or satisfaction, in 
whole or in part, of Client’s Claims, and (2) total available insurance proceeds 
paid on behalf of or to REL by REL’s insurers in settlement or satisfaction of 

Page | 342AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
Client’s Initial:  ____________________                     Date:  _____________________          
 04/23 

Client’s Claims under the terms and conditions of REL’s applicable insurance 
policies up to the amount of insurance required under this Agreement.  

Such limitation will not be reduced, increased, or adjusted on account of legal 
fees paid, or costs and expenses of investigation, claims adjustment, defense, 
or appeal. If no such insurance coverage is provided with respect to Client’s 
Claims, then the total liability, in the aggregate, of REL and REL’s officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or REL’s independent 
professional associates and consultants, to Client and anyone claiming by, 
though, or under Client, for any and all such uninsured Client’s Claims will not 
exceed $50,000.  

The Client may negotiate a higher limitation of liability for an additional fee, which 
is necessary to compensate for the greater risk assumed by REL. 

INSURANCE – REL shall maintain insurance coverage for Professional, 
Commercial General, Automobile, Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability in amounts in accordance with any legal requirements and REL’s 
business requirements.  Certificates of Insurance shall be provided by REL upon 
written request. 

INDEMNIFICATION – To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
REL shall indemnify and hold harmless Client, and Client’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, and employees, from losses, damages, and 
judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) 
arising from third-party claims or actions relating to a Specific Project, provided 
that any such claim, action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to bodily 
injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible 
property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, 
but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of REL or REL’s 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or REL’s independent 
professional associates and consultants. The indemnification commitments in 
this Agreement do not include a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such 
obligation is expressly stated. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and 
Regulations, a party’s total liability to the other party and anyone claiming by, 
through, or under the other party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part 
by the negligence of the party and in part by the negligence of the other party or 
any other negligent entity or individual, will not exceed the percentage share that 
the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of Client, REL, and all other 
negligent entities and individuals. This indemnification provision is subject to and 
limited by the provisions included above in “Limitation of Liability." 

MUTUAL WAIVER – To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Client and REL waive against each other, and the other’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, or other independent professional 
associates and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement to special, 
incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in 
any way related to this Agreement from any cause or causes. Such excluded 
damages include but are not limited to loss of profits or revenue; loss of use or 
opportunity; loss of good will; cost of substitute facilities, goods, or services; and 
cost of capital. 

GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION & VENUE – This Agreement shall be 
governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Illinois.  
Further, the parties agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts 
of the State of Illinois for all purposes regarding this Agreement and that venue 
of any action brought hereunder shall be exclusively in Cook County, IL. 

NON-ENFORCEMENT – A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not 
constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that 
provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 

ASSIGNMENT – A party shall not assign its rights or obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement without the express written permission and consent of the other party.  
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any permitted 
assigns. 

SURVIVAL – All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and 
limitations of liability included in this Agreement shall survive its completion or 
termination for any reason. 

THIRD PARTIES - Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 
impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Client or REL to any Contractor, 
Contractor’s subcontractor, supplier, other individual or entity, or to any surety 
for or employee of any of them.  All duties and responsibilities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client 
and REL and not for the benefit of any other party.   

SEVERABILITY - Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or 
unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all 
remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Client and REL, 
who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken 
provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that expresses 
the intention of the stricken provision. 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS – To the fullest extent permitted by law, all causes 
of action arising under this Agreement shall be deemed to have accrued, and all 
statutory periods of limitation shall commence to run, no later than the date of 
Substantial Completion of this Agreement. 

CONFLICTS - If a conflict exists between the Agreement provisions and these 
Standard Terms and Conditions then these Standard Terms and Conditions shall 
prevail and control. 

DIGITIAL TRANSMISSIONS – The parties agree that each may rely, without 
investigation, upon the genuineness and authenticity of any document, including 
any signature or purported signature, transmitted digitally, without reviewing or 
requiring receipt of the original document.  Each document or signature so 
transmitted shall be deemed an enforceable original.  Upon request, the 
transmitting party agrees to provide the receiving party with the original 
document transmitted digitally; however, the parties agree that the failure of 
either party to comply with such a request shall in no way affect the genuineness, 
authenticity, or enforceability of the document.  Each party waives and 
relinquishes as a defense to the formation or enforceability of any contract 
between the parties, or provision thereof the fact that a digital transmission was 
used. 

COMPLIANCE WITH FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND OPEN MEETING 
ACTS - REL and (if applicable) REL’s independent professional associates or 
consultants may be required to produce documents and emails as part of the 
Freedom of Information Act and Open Meetings Act (Illinois Public Act 96-0542), 
or from a court ordered subpoena.  Requests of this nature are beyond the 
control of REL and are specifically not included in this contract.  REL will notify 
the Client of any request received on behalf of this contract and will invoice the 
Client for time and materials at the published rates in effect at the time of the 
request. 

TERMS OF PAYMENT – As it applies to county, township, municipality, 
municipal corporation, school district, school board, forest preserve district, park 
district, fire protection district, sanitary district and all other local governmental 
units, the Illinois Prompt Payment Act (30 ILCS 540 et seq) shall apply.  For 
Clients not covered by the Illinois Prompt Payment Act (30 ILCS 540 et seq), 
Client recognizes that late payment of invoices results in extra expenses for REL 
and (if applicable) REL’s independent professional associates or consultants.  As 
such, REL and (if applicable) REL’s independent professional associates or 
consultants retains the right to assess Client interest at a rate of one percent 
(1%) per month, but not to exceed the maximum rate provided for by law, on 
invoices which are not paid within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.  
Also, Client agrees to pay reasonable attorney and collection fees incurred by 
REL in the collection of Client’s past due amounts. In the event undisputed 
portions of REL's invoices are not paid when due, REL reserves the right to 
suspend the performance of its services under this Agreement until all past due 
amounts including services, expenses, assessed charges, reasonable attorney 
and collection fees, have been paid in full.  Client waives any and all claims 
against REL for any such suspension. 

Page | 343AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

Fee Schedule 
 
 
 

Attached to Proposal  Engineering 
Services Agreement

Page | 344AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Billing Rates2024 Standard Billing Rates - Effective January 1, 2024

Classification Rate
Principal Engineer 1 $219.00

Senior Project Manager 1 /2 $199.00 / $209.00

Senior Engineer 1 / 2 / 3 $176.00 / $189.00 / $197.00

Project Engineer 1 / 2 / 3 / 4 $140.00 / $148.00 / $158.00 / $169.00

Project Manager 1 /2 / 3 $148.00 / $156.00 /  $166.00

Engineering Technician $140.00

Chief Land Surveyor $176.00

Land Surveyor 1 / 2 / 3 $134.00 / $151.00 / $164.00

Surveying Technologist 1 / 2 $119.00 / $134.00

Senior Planner $166.00

Planner $145.00

Project Scientist $164.00

Grant Writer 1 / 2 $102.00 / $121.00

Project Developer 1 / 2 / 3 $119.00 / $159.00 / $181.00

GIS Coordinator $176.00

GIS Developer $144.00

GIS Technologist $117.00

CAD Manager $166.00

CAD Designer $145.00

CAD Technologist 1 / 2 $110.00 / $126.00

Resident Engineer 1 / 2 / 3 $140.00 / $156.00 / $168.00

Resident Engineering Representative 1 / 2 / 3 $139.00 / $145.00 / $153.00

Field Superintendent $185.00

Assistant Field Superintendent $175.00

Field Crew Chief $139.00

Field Crew Member 1 / 2 $89.00 / $106.00

Operations Manager $156.00

Operations Coordinator $112.00

Operator 1 / 2 / 3 $96.00 / $102.00 / $109.00

IT Technologist / IT Coordinator $119.00 / $159.00

Administrative 1 / 2 $89.00 / $101.00

Project Administration $117.00

Intern / Engineering Intern $59.00

1 Man Field Crew - Prevailing Wage* $185.00

2 Man Field Crew - Prevailing Wage* $310.00

• Rates are subject to revision on or after 1/1/2025. 
• Reimbursable Expenses at a factor of 1.10. Sub-Consultant Fee Markup at 10%
• *Estimated Illinois prevailing wage rate for covered work based on recent Department of 

Labor Davis Bacon clarification.

EXHIBIT B
Page | 345AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

 
Required Insurance 

 
Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth below. Engineer shall cause Owner 
to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability insurance policy carried 
by Engineer.  Village would request insurance at $2 million/$5 million and umbrella of $10 
million.  
 

• Workers’ Compensation: Statutory 

• Employer’s Liability – Each Accident: $ 1,000,000 

• General Liability – 

• Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $ 1,000,000 

• General Aggregate: $ 2,000,000 

• Excess or Umbrella Liability -- 

• Each Occurrence: $ 3,000,000 

• General Aggregate: $ 3,000,000 

• Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit 

• (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): Each Accident $ 1,000,000 

• Professional Liability – 

• Each Claim Made $ 2,000,000 

• Annual Aggregate $ 2,000,000 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 346AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 
 

Insurance Certificate 
 
 

Page | 347AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

WC STATU-
TORY LIMITS

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$
$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

EXHIBIT D
Page | 348AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: November 29, 2023

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager
Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager
John Urbanski -  Public Works Director

From: Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Assistant Public Works Director

Subject: Helipad Improvements – Construction Engineering Services Contract
_________________________________________________________________________________
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description: The Village utilized the Illinois Department of Transportation’s (IDOT) QBS 
(Qualifications-Based Selection) process in selecting the Engineering Consultant to assist with the 
design, cost estimate, Bidding Services and Construction Oversight for the Helipad Aircraft Pavement 
Improvement project. Two (2) consultants submitted RFQ (Request for Qualifications) packets which 
the Village reviewed, rated, interviewed, and selected Primera Engineers, Ltd. IDOT was notified and 
concurred with the Village’s selection.

Primera’s Professional Construction Engineering Services includes shop drawing reviews, preparation 
of supplementary sketches and cost estimates, material certifications, preparing record drawings, pre-
construction conference organization, daily construction observation, field testing, final inspection and 
preparation and providing Public Works periodic project reports.

Budget / Finance:  Funding for Engineering and Construction is budgeted with TIF dollars in the FY24 
Capital Fund Budget (20-00-000-75814). Grant funds have been allocated to the project in the amount 
of $1,440,000 and overall budget is $2,444,510.

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve Professional Construction Engineering Services Contract to Primera Engineers, Inc. 

in the amount of $230,850.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachment: 
1. Professional Construction Engineering Services Agreement with Primera Engineers, Inc.

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 349AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-157

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 350AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-157

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with Primera Engineers, Inc., a true and correct copy of 

such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 351AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES AT ILLINOIS AIRPORTS 

FOR ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING (A/E), 
PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

EFFECTIVE JUNE 2012

PRIMERA PROJECT # 20220379.00

Page | 352AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-157, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD 

IMPROVEMENTS – CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES,” which was adopted by 

the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on December 19, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 353AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 354AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 355AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 356AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 357AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 358AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 359AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 360AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 361AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 362AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 363AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 364AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 365AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 366AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 367AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 368AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 369AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 370AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 371AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 372AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 373AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 374AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 375AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 376AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 377AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 378AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 379AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 380AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 381AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 382AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 383AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 384AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 385AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 386AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 387AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 388AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 389AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 390AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 391AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 392AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 393AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 394AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 395AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 396AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 397AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 398AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 399AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 400AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 401AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 402AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 403AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 404AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 405AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 406AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 407AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 408AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 409AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 410AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 411AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 412AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 413AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 414AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 415AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 416AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 417AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 418AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: November 30, 2023

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager
Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager
John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Assistant Public Works Director

Subject: Helipad Improvements Per Intergovernmental Agreement for Project TF8-5050 – 
Local Share Payment Approval

_________________________________________________________________________________
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description: The Village entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for Project TF8-5050 
with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) - Rebuild Illinois Airport Capital Improvement 
Program that was approved by IDOT on 7/31/23. The IGA was assigned # 234-2547-43591. The 
amount of the IGA is $1,645,257.82 and the Village is required to pay the Local Share amount of 
$239,038.74 which is 20% of the overall cost of the project.

IDOT has submitted to the Village a request to provide the Village’s Local Share per the IGA prior to 
the project being started.

Budget / Finance:  Funding for Engineering and Construction is budgeted with TIF dollars in the FY24 
Capital Fund Budget (20-00-000-75814). Grant funds have been allocated to the project in the amount 
of $1,440,000 and overall budget is $2,444,510.

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve the submittal of the Local Share of the IGA to IDOT in the amount of $239,038.74.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachment: 
1. IDOT Local Share Request for Illinois Project: TF8-5050.

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 419AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-158

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 

HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – LOCAL SHARE PAYMENT APPROVAL

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 420AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-158

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
AND THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR HELIPAD 

IMPROVEMENTS – LOCAL SHARE PAYMENT APPROVAL

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered and previously entered into Agreement 24-2547-43591 with the State of Illinois, 

Department of Transportation (IDOT) which funds Helistop Aircraft Pavement Improvements. This 

Agreement is in the amount of $1,645,257.82 which requires a 20% Local Share totaling $239,038.74. A true 

and correct copy of such Agreement along with the request of payment letter dated August 9, 2023 are being 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park into that said Agreement 

which was entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid submittal of 

payment in the amount of $239,038.74 per the "Agreement” be provided by the Village of Tinley Park, with 

said Agreement to be substantially in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorize approval of the Local Share on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this _19th day of _December_, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 421AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 

HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – LOCAL SHARE 
PAYMENT APPROVAL

AGREEMENT NO. 24-2547-43591:

Page | 422AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-158, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – LOCAL SHARE PAYMENT 

APPROVAL,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley 

Park on December 19, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 19th day of December, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 423AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 424AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 425AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 426AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 427AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 428AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 429AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 430AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 431AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 432AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 433AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 434AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 435AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 436AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 437AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 438AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 439AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 440AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 441AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 442AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 443AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 444AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 445AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 446AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 447AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 448AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 449AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 450AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 451AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 452AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 453AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 454AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 455AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 456AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 457AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 458AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 459AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 460AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 461AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 462AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 463AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 464AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 465AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 466AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 467AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 468AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 469AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 470AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 471AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 472AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 473AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 474AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 475AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 476AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 477AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 478AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 479AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 480AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 481AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 482AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 483AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 484AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 485AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 486AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 487AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 488AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 489AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Tinley park

RESOLUTION 2023-R-159
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR AND AUTHORIZING 

LANDING RIGHTS TO SANTA CLAUS in the

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the United States Federal Aviation Authority, more commonly referred to as the FAA, is responsible 
for all flights and landing operations in the Continental United States, and, therefore, requires precise coordination for 
any and all domestic flying; and,

WHEREAS, in the past sixty-seven (67) years, thousands of man-made objects have been thrown into the 
atmosphere around this planet thereby further complicating the safe movement of any flying machines and/or sleighs; 
and,

WHEREAS, the Illinois State Department of Aviation directs that local authorities establish the necessary approval 
for any flights to land within the State except at registered airports; and,

WHEREAS, the Sheriffs of Cook and Will Counties further delegate that authority, when properly approved to the 
municipalities of those counties; and,

WHEREAS, any miniature sleigh with eight (8) tiny reindeer shall designate the first reindeer to respond to landing 
signals with his blinking red nose; and,

WHEREAS, said sleigh shall be full of toys and will not exceed the air travel weight load limit; and,

WHEREAS, the driver shall be a jolly old elf of outstanding character and shall have in his possession a good flying 
record.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the President, Clerk, and Village Board of TINLEY PARK, 
representing the great citizens of the community, provide Santa Claus with all approvals necessary, in whatever order 
required, to land at the homes as often as he deems appropriate, on Sunday evening, December 24, 2023, and Monday 
morning, December 25, 2023.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Police Department, the Public Works Department, and other Municipal 
Agencies shall provide speedy and helpful assistance to guarantee St. Nick's movement throughout the World.

PASSED this 19th day of December, 2023

Page | 490AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 491AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

STAFF 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 492AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
BOARD 

COMMENT 
 

Page | 493AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 494AGENDA - 12/19/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

EXECUTIVE 
SESSION 

 


	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7
	Agenda Page 8
	Agenda Page 9
	Agenda Page 10
	Agenda Page 11
	Agenda Page 12
	ITEM #2 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM #3 - President Glotz
	ITEM #4 - Consent A
	ITEM #4 - Consent B
	ITEM #4 - Consent C
	ITEM #4 - Consent D
	ITEM #5 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #6 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #7 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #8 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Shaw
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Shaw
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Shaw
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Shaw
	ITEM #13 - Trustee Shaw
	ITEM #14 - Trustee Brennan
	ITEM #15 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #16 - President Glotz
	ITEM #17 - President Glotz
	ITEM #18 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #19 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #20 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #21 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #22 - President Glotz
	ITEM #23 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #24 - Board Comment
	ITEM #25 - Public Comment
	ITEM #26 Executive Session

	Company Name: 
	215 no: Off
	215 yes: Off
	214 no: Off
	214 yes: Off
	213 no: Off
	213 yes: Off
	212 no: Off
	212 yes: Off
	211 no: Off
	211 yes: Off
	121 No: Off
	121 Yes: Off
	117 No: Off
	117 Yes: Off
	116 No: Off
	116 Yes: Off
	115 No: Off
	115 Yes: Off
	114 No: Off
	114 Yes: Off
	113 No: Off
	113 Yes: Off
	112 No: Off
	112 Yes: Off
	111 No: Off
	111 Yes: Off
	API Cost: 
	322 no: Off
	322 yes: Off
	321 no: Off
	321 yes: Off
	314 no: Off
	314 yes: Off
	313 no: Off
	313 yes: Off
	312 no: Off
	312 yes: Off
	311 no: Off
	311 yes: Off
	2111 no: Off
	2111 yes: Off
	2110 no: Off
	2110 yes: Off
	219 no: Off
	219 yes: Off
	218 no: Off
	218 yes: Off
	217 no: Off
	217 yes: Off
	216 no: Off
	216 yes: Off
	Prop Sheet Company Name: 
	Additional fees: 
	Fee for collections: 
	Proposal Sheet Company Name: 
	Date: 
	Email Address: 
	Phone Number: 
	Title: 
	Name (Printed): 
	City, State, Zip: 
	Street Address: 


